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I NTRODUCTION 
i 

This document represenu the final text  o f  the Annual Report which ' 
has been revised to reflect the audited statutory financial statements o f  the 
Company for the period between 24 May 2006 and 3 I December 2006 and ~ 

the audit opinion issued by BDO CampsObers Audit & Assurance B.V.. 

. )  The previous revised text  of the Annual Report which was made available 
by the Company to the registered shareholders on I June 2007 was amended 
in light of certain procedural issues that  had arisen in relation to the work  
o f  HLB Schippers (and their afiliated firm HLB Den Hartog). the firm o f  
accountants that the Company had intended would audit for Dutch statutory 
purposes, iu consolidated and company financial statements for the period 
between 24 May 2006 (iu date o f  incorporation) and 3 I December 2006. The 
issues arising in relation to the work of HLB Schippers (and their afiliated 
firm HLB Den Hartog). which resulted in HLB Schippers nor providing its íinal 
audit report, were procedural only and do not in any way affect the integrity 
o f  the Company's financial statements. The Company addressed the issues 
referred to above by removing al1 references to the audit work undertaken by 
HLB Schippers in the previous revised version of the Annual Repor t  

Subsequently. the Company hired B D O  CampsObers Audit & Assurance 
B.V. as external statutory auditor of the consolidated and company financial 
statements for  Dutch statutory purposes. This Annual Report i s  further 
revised to reflect the engagement of B D O  CampsObers Audit & Assurance 
B.V. and certain other changes, and amends and replaces the revised annual 
report made available on I June 2007. This final Annual Report contains the 
consolidated financial statements o f  A & D  Pharma Holdings SRL for the year 
ended 3 I December 2006. the consolidated non-statutory financial statements 
of the Company forthe period between 24 May 2006 and 3 I December 2006. 
as audited by KPMG Romania SRL the audited consolidated and company 
íinancial statements as prepared by the Company for Dutch statutory 
purposes and the audit opinion issued thereto. A & D  Pharma Holdings SRL is  '1 
the Romanian intermediate holding company which holds al1 o f the  Company's 
pharmaceutical wholesale and retail operations. cc' 

This final Annual Report was made available to shareholders for inspection h, 

at the UK Listing Authority's Document Viewing Facility a t  the address 25 (73, 
The Nor th  Colonnade, Canary Wharf. London EI4 SHSTel: +44 (0)20 7676 0 
1000. Shareholders wil1 be given an opportunity to discuss and adopt the final -..J 
Annual Report aker iu publication at the extraordinary general meeting on 
10 September 2007. 
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Mission Statement 

Provide access to health and beauty products in order to improve 
the quality of people’s life by optirnizing the supply chain from the 
factory gate to the patient 

2 



About A&D Pharma o 

A&D Pharrna N.V. is the Dutch holding company of the largest integrated pharrnaceutical wholesale, 1 
distribution and retail business in Romania. I 

I 
A&D Pharma N.V.'S GDRs have been traded on the Main Market of the London Stock Exchange since 1 
October 2006 i 

N 2006 sales EUR332rn. 

M 2006 ales EUR288m** 
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* Conrolidated raler of A&D Phama Romania according 10 A&D Phama Romania'r financial rmtemenu prepared according to IFRS for the year ended 31 
December 2Wb 
* Unconrolidated raler figurer include inter-company raler of €45.8 million fmm Mediplus w Senriblu and are uuacted fmm A&D Pharma Romania'r 
Cnancial rmtemenu prepared rccording to IFRS for the year ended 3 I December 2006 
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Company a t  a Glance 

Integrated wholesale, distribution and retail model with operating 
synergies 

Clear market leader in Romania's pharmaceutical wholesale and 
retail sectors 

Operating in a large and fastgrowing economy with strong potential 
in the healthcare and beauty markets 

Strong growth since inception in I994 

Experienced management team 

Solid platform for expansion in other Central & Eastern European 
countries 

e 
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2006 Highlights e 

, 
i 

Financial highlights I 

* Consolidated net sales up 34% year-on-year to €33 I .6 million i 
(€247.3 miliion), above pharmaceutical market growth of i 

23%* 

Mediplus sales* up 37% year-on-year to €287.6 rnillion 
(€209.6 miliion) 

Sensiblu sales* up 42% year-on-year to €89.8 million (€63. I I 
miiiion) ! 

12% year-on-year growth in consolidated EBITDA to €28. I 
million (€25 million) 

7.4% year-on-year increase in net incorne 

Group consolidated sales Group consolidated EBITDA 
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Operati ng high I ights 

Mediplus 

Romania’s leading pharmaceutical wholesaler. supplying over 
70% of al1 pharmacies and over 80% of al1 hospitals in the 
country 

- 21%averagemarketshareofpharmaceuticalsalestopharmacies o 
over Jan-Dec 2006 compared to 18% over the same period of 
2005 and approximately double the average market share of 
the 2nd ranked competitor (source: Cegedim) 

17% average market share of the total pharmaceutical 
wholesale market (including sales to hospitals) over Jan-Dec 
2006 compared to  15% over the same period of 2005 (source: 
Cegedim) 

Strong portfolio of brands including 135 foreign and 33 
domestic manufacturers 

* Enlarged portfolio of products through new strategic 
partnerships initiated in 2006 with GSK, Johnson&Johnson. 
Sandoz. Nycomed-Altana. Boehringer Ingelheim o 

- Expansion int0 R. Moldova completed in 4406 



Operating high I ights 

Sensiblu 

! 
i 
i 
i 
I 

l 

‘Sensiblu’ ranked the most valuable brand created since the 
1990s in Romania (Business Week Romania. Brandient and i 
D&D Research - December 2006) 

13% increase in totaal number of transactions to I 2  million 
transactions ( I  0.6 million) 

- 22% increase in average value per transaction to €7.3 (€6.0) 

Over I million loyalty card holders (card system based on a 
CRM platform) No. of transactions (millions) 

12.5 

12.0 

11.5 

11.0 

Approximately 50% of the value of transactions carried out 
through loyalty cards 

3 I stores opened in 2006, consolidating Sensiblu’s position as 
Romania’s largest branded pharmacy chain with a total of 206 
outlets in 5 I towns and cities as at 3 I December 2006 

10.5 

b..* 9.5 
33 acquired pharmacies (former Ideapharm pharmacies) -4 

I 

I 3  
2005 2006 integrated int0 the Sensiblu chain in 2006 

Vahekransaction (EUR) 

2006 

7 



Chairman’s statement 

8 

“My fellow directors and I are acutely awore ofihe role we have undertoken, especiolly in 
ensuring that the company complies with the oppropriaie Duich ond UK corporate governance 
guidelines. It is our goof ia run the compony according to these best principles ...“ 

Dear shareholders. 

O n  behalf o f  the Board of Directors of A & D  Pharma Holdings NV, I would like t o  thank 
you for reading this report and if you are a current shareholder for your trust and support 
of our team. Wi th  the IPO of the company on the London Stock Exchange last October. we 
have opened a new chapter in the successful development of our  company. 

The first twelve years since founding have seen stormy growth under the direction of 
our four founder shareholders and under the leadership of our team of Executive Directors. 
In the 5 years pre IPO. compound annual growth in sales for  the total group was 44%. with 
similar rates in both the Mediplus wholesale and marketing service business as wel1 as the 
Sensiblu retail pharmacy business. The growth in EBITDA over the same period was even 
more impressive at 62%. The whole company is  justifiably proud ofthese past achievements 
and highly motivated to continue the successful growth of our business both in Romania as 
wel1 as selected other CEE markets in the post IPO period. 

W i t h  the completion o f  the IPO in London. the board has been supplemented by an 
initial group of independent non-executive directors and I am honoured to have been 
elected as the Chairman of the Board for  the important period following the public listing. 
My fellow directors and I are acutely aware o f  the role we have undemken. especiaily 
in ensuring that the company complies with the appropriate Dutch and UK corporate 
governance guidelines. It is  our  goal to run the company according to these best principles. 
o r  should we decide t o  deviate for business reasons. clearly justify why we have done so. 

In the initial period after the IPO, the board assisted the Executive Directors in 
formulating the key goals for 2007 and beyond. Several meetings took place until the goals 
were agreed. Thereafcer the board assisted the Executive Directors in communicating and 
discussing these goals with key managers in the organisation. 

In buildingthe boardofdirectors. we havedeveloped aclear competencyprofilefor both 
the Executive as wel1 as the Non-Executive directors. W e  have engaged Russell Reynolds 
Associates (RRA) to support US in the identification of further Non-Executive Directors to 
complement the current group and intend to recommend two further such directors for 
nomination at the next Annual Meeting. The profile of these directors har been selected t o  
add strength to the board to help US to face the challenger ahead in growing the company 
both within and outside Romania as wel1 as to provide a coaching and mentoring resource 
for the senior executives within the company. 

The board is  also working diligently to further strengthen our Executive Directors and 
senior executives within the company. W e  recently completed an assessment centrefor the 
top management group and I. designed to evaluate how we can work even more effectively 
together as a team and to identify both individual as wel1 as group development needs. We 
were once again assisted by RRA in this work. 

This har lead to search for  an Executive Director to develop our  International business 
who we would hope to appoint by the end of 2007. In addition we have identified key staff  

functions which require strengthening such as Human Resources. where we are diligently 
searchinn for a top candidate. Furthermore we have adopted an individual development - 
plan for al1 of our key executive officers in order to furtheiequip them for the challenge of 
managing and growing a dynamic public company such as A & D  Pharma. 

O 



The Board welcomes dialogue with shareholders. W e  look forward to discussions 
as part of our  presentations and road shows and at the Annual Meeting. Additionally, I 
as Chairman or Urs Kamber as Head of the Audit Committee and Senior Independent 
Director would welcome direct discussions should shareholden desire them. 

W e  are proud of our performance in 2006. I shw ld  like to thank al1 employees and &e 
directors for al1 h e i r  diligence, commitment and efforts during the past year as wel1 as our 
shareholders for your support. 

Dr. David Ebsworth 
Chairman 
29 May 2007 
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CEO’s statement 

“Our vision is to become the Eostern Europeon distribution, marketing ond retail service 
provider of choice for the heolth care industry, potients, ond governments” 

Dear shareholders, 

2006 represented a milestone year for A & D  Pharma. We confirmed the value and 
potential o f  our team and the viability of our  business model by successfully completing 
our initia1 public offering on the London Stock Exchange and further consolidating our 
position as the leading integrated pharmaceutical wholesale. distribution and retail business 
in Romania. 

Weare a dynamic company operating in afastgrowing marketand oneofthe fewvertically 
integrated models in pharmaceutical distribution and retail in Europe. Consolidated sales 
o f  Mediplus and Sensiblu continued to outperform general marker growth. increasing by 
34% last year and demonstrating our commitrnent to differentiation from our competitors 
through products, services and operational excellence. 

Looking forward, we believe that the extension of our current business model into 
related healthcare services and our  expansion into neighbouring countries wil1 allow US t o  
become a leading service integrator in the health sector in general. 

W e  intend to continue to build on our  key values centred around innovation. expertise 
and exploring new opportunities in order t o  increase the number of clients and patients 
we serve. To achieve these goals, we expect to focus on  several major general directions: 

* improve current and propose new services and innovative models t o  facilitate patient 
access to pharmaceutical products and medical services; 

help pharmacists and pharmacies better identify and satisfy their patients’ needs; 

provide pharmaceutical companies and medical service suppliers with access t o  high 
quality standard services ranging from distribution to marketing and other services 

engage in  dialogue t o  assist health authorities t o  eficiently manage and reform the 
health system. 

We believe constructing a partnership and dialogue with governmenr and in the future 
with private healthcare bodies. is  beneficia1 for the continued efforts being made towards 
reforming and improving the healthcare system and patient access to quality care. W e  
have therefore dedicated special attention and focus to developing a partnership with 
the health authorities, rnainly the Ministry of Health and the National House for Health 
Insurance (NHHI). through the associations where A & D  Pharma is  a leading member. such 
as the Association o f  Drug Importers and Wholesalers and the Association of Pharmacy 
N e r w o r k .  Co-opent ion with health authorities began to show clear results in  late 2006 
starting with the implementation of some measures to facilitate patient access to medical 
therapy and continues in 2007. The primary changes impacting the sector have been: 

* the elimination of some provisions in the framework contract between the NHHI and 
pharmacies which has helped create a more competitive environment in the retail 
sector; 

the transfer of dispensing oral medication for diabetic patients f rom hospital pharmacies 
to retail pharmacies: 

the initiation o f  an improved system for the allocation of reimbursement ceilings to 
pharmacies according to the speed o f  use of the ceilings per pharmacy. 

O u r  2006 performance, together with our ongoing investments and the IPO, position 
US wel1 for further growth both in Romania and Central and Eastern Europe in 2007 and 

* 

* 

- 

a 

* 

* 
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beyond. In line with our 2007 strategic goals, we anticipate beginning our assessment o f  1 
opportunities for expansion beyond Romania while continuing to consolidate our  market 
share in the domestic market and outperform the market by taking specific measures such 
as, but  no t  limited co: 

launching the implementation of a company-wide Enterprise Resource Planning system 
to further facilitate synergies and processes that can be vertically inregrated with , 
immediate benefits for the business and optimization of operational costs; 

identifying and launching new projects and business lines. such as a new division ro 
disrribute O T C  (CHC) products and new brands in retail under the 'Shop in Shop' 
concept (BoO& / L'Occitane); 

opening new pharmacies and integrating the acquired chain of pharmacies. Ideapharm; i 
commirrioning the new Bucharest-bared warehouse and moving to the new head office; I 

rhe new warehouse wijl be one of the mor t  modern and largest logistic centres in the 
pharmaceutical market in the region. 

O u r  employees are the core component of our strategy implementation. W e  continue 
to rely on their innovative involvement and contribution as wel1 as their willingness to work 
together with the management to create value for our shareholders and organisation. 

i 
l 

* - 

Dragos Dinu 
Chief Executive Officer 
29 May 2007 



History and group structure 

’ ’  , The Group was founded in I994 by four entrepreneurs and initially focused on wholesaling O T C  pharmaceutical products. 

~ In 1997. the Group entered the pharmaceutical retail marker and at  present operates the largest chain o f  pharmacies in 1 Romania. The wholesale pharmaceutical distribution business is  now operated through ADP‘s subsidiary. Mediplus Exirn SRL 
1 (“Mediplus”) and a network of pharmacies through another wholly owned subsidiary. Sensiblu SRL (“Sensiblu”). The pharrnacy 

network operates under the Sensiblu brand. 

A & D  Pharma Holdings N.V. (“A&D Pharma NV’) is the Group’s Dutch holding entity set up in May 2006 while A & D  Pharma 
Holdings SRL (“A&D Pharma Romania”) is the Romanian holding entity o f  the Group set up in December 2005 and fully owned 
by A & D  Pharma Holdings N.V. 

(The Netherlands) 

(Romania) 

L -  i 
99.7%2 50%’ 

. - _. i E L A N T I S F A R M S R L  , 
(Moldova) i I I 1.t.N. 

i 
I i (Romania) 

o 

Note: 
(I) The Gmup founden own the remaining shares. 
(2) The Gmup bunders own the remaining shares to romply with the requiremenr under Romania” Iaw that a joint stock company must have at least five 
shareholderr. Ar at  3 I May Lauren Fimnce SA is 99.7% owned by A&D Pharma Holdings SRL 
(3) The remaining 50 per cent is owned by two individuals who are nor reiated to the Gmup. 

I 2  



Operating review e 

Overview 
In 2006. A & D  Pharma continued to deliver on is stated objective t o  consolidate its 

position as the leading pharmaceutical wholesale and retail business in Romania. Mediplus. 
the Group wholesale division. continued to strengthen iu market leadership position and 
increased its marker share significantly outpacing its competitors. Sensiblu. the Group 
retail division. continued to expand its network throughout Romania and to strengthen 
its wel1 regarded brand. By vertically integrating i ts  wholesale and retail operations and ~ 

by continually leading quality and innovation. A & D  Pharma aims to be in the best position I 
to capture growth in the pharmaceutical sector and in consumer healthcare demand in 
Romania's and neighbouring dynamically growing markets. 

! 

In October 2006, A & D  Pharma became the only Romanian company to list its GDRs ~ 

on the Main Market of the London Stock Exchange, through a E l 3 6  million IPO, giving ~ 

international investon the opportunity to benefit from the anticipated growth in the sector 
and the region. This significant event has contributed to raising A & D  Pharma's profile, 
positioned the Group in an international peergroup and prepared it for further expansion 
by providing access to international capital markets. 

The Romanian pharmaceutical market 
The Romanian pharmaceutical market is expected to continue to expand rapidly due 

to expected growth in purchasing power and economic growth. Cross Domescic Product 
(GDP) is forecast to grow 7.7% in 2006 compared t o  a Eurozone average GDP growth of 
2.7% while US$ GDP per capita in Romania more than doubled in the last five years (source: 
ING). The (OW level of pharmaceutical consumption per capita in Romania (€70 per annum 
in 2006 compared to €400 in France and €4485 in Germany - source: IntelliNews: 'Romanian 
pharmaceutical report', February 2007) reinforces the significant growth potential of the 
marker This. combined with Romania's entry into the EU in January 2007 and fivourable 
demographic and macro-economic trends, such as declining inflation and more flexible. 
transparent health regulations. points towards further growth in the market 

The pharmaceutical market in Romaniagrew by 23% from 2005 to 2006, reachingE 1.55 
billion, at wholesale prices. for the year ended 3 I December 2006 (source: Cegedim). 

F 

, 
c3 * 

A & D  Pharma Romaniaapin grewfister than theyear-on-yeargrowth ofthe marketwith 
revenues up 37%for its wholesale division. Mediplus. and 42%for its retail division, Sensiblu. 
for the year ended 3 I December 2006. demonstrating its leading market position. 
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Mediplus a t  a glance 

Romania's leading integrated wholesale and value added 
service provider 

Extensive range of value added services provided to: - key suppliers (including regulatory. market acces, medical promotion, marketing 
and brand management services) leading to the conclusion of strategic partnerships 
with major international manufacturers 

* pharmacy clients' (including pharmacy refurbishmenc merchandising advice. 
professional and business training, IT services) to create long-term relationships 
and increase loyalty of pharmacy clienr base a * Nation-wide supply chain capabilities: 

* c. I40 vehicles - 
- 
* 

c.60% of deliveries in about 4 hours 

c.20 million sales units delivered monthly 

pre-wholesale services to I9 principals (manufacturers) 

14 
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Baver HealtliCare 
Schering Pharrna 

m. 
.... sanoftaventls 

si.iiiiirr ,““j prins< <i <*‘C 

We build long-term strategic partnerships 

“As in any area one can become better only playing together with the best! Mediplus 
has the ingredients of the best player in the distribution market and represents for US a 
strategic partner in Romania. 

Focus on clients. readiness to share valuable experience and mutual respect are 
common values shared by Bayer Schering Pharma and Mediplus.” 

. ,  Catalin Radu. 
Country Division Head. Bayer Schering Pharma AG, Romania 

“We hereby inform you that Pfizer H.C.P Corporation. the world’s leading 
pharmaceutical company. successfully started the collaboration with Mediplus in 2000. 

Mediplus is the importer and distributor o f  al1 Pfizer pharmaceutical products on the 
Romanian marker During this period Mediplus has proved to be a very reliable business 
partner, being able to  sustain our  growth in the pharmaceutical market through very good 
sales. W e  worked together in order t o  achieve the common goals that we set up for these 
years and we can say that we succeeded. 

I strongly recommend Mediplus as a very good collaborator. a company that respects 
al1 the commitments and fulfills al1 business conditions and agreements. 

W e  do really apreciate a team that i s  ready to grow your business and offer you best 
practice and operations to make it possible. W e  have very high regard o f  the fact that 
Mediplus is focused on customers and their needs and we trust somebody who Is ready to 
add value to an integrated chain o f  distribution.” 

Valentin Dudau. 
Trade Director, Pfizer Romania 

“We have been working together for more than 10 years and we are proud to say 
that we are among the leaders of the market. W e  successfully passed together al1 the I“. 
challenges the market and environment created; we have grown together and also learned 
from each other. I 

0 
Ik’s great to say that the distribution market leader is your partner on such a dynamic 

market and moreover is  ready to share with you its valuable experience. 

Mediplus for  al1 achievements done with its extremely nluable team.’’ 

I 

r’, 
A t  the end, we would like to add that the business means people and congratulate r s  

Q 
‘-4 

Dr. Dan kan. 
General Manager, Sanofi-Aventis Romania SRL 
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Operating review of wholesale business 

Mediplus' share of pharmaceutical sales to pharmacies in Romania continued to increase 
throughout 2006 and reached 24% in the month of December, compared to 18% for the 
rame month o f  2005 (source: Cegedim). This was more than the combined market share 
o f the  second and third largest wholesalers in December 2006. Mediplus' share of the total 
pharmaceutical wholesale market which also includes sales to hospitals. rose from 16% in 
December 2005 to 19% in December 2006 (source: Cegedim). also significantly ahead of 
is competitors. 

Mediplus - a clear market leader (market share in pharmacy segment) 

15% 

20% 

15% 

10% I 

14% 

12% 
/ - =  ' 10% 

5% I 
IH03 2HO3 IHO42HO4 IHOS 2H05 IH06 1H06 - - - 

Mediplus Second largest Third largest 

Nation-wide logistics system 
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As at 3 I December 2006. Mediplus operated a narionwide logistics rystem comprising 
approximately 18,000m’ of warehousing capacity in I 2  warehouses. Mediplus distributes a 
portfolio of approximately 5.000 products to over 3.500 pharmacier throughout Romania. 
representing more than 70% of the total number of pharmacies in the country as wel1 as 3 I O 
hospitals. The pharmacy or retail segment represents 95% of  Mediplus’ turnover. retlecting 
an increase by I% in hospital sales as a proportion o f  total sales. Sensiblu is Mediplus’ largesc 
clienr. accounting for 16% of Mediplus’ turnover in 2006. a slight decline compared co 17% 
in 2005. 

Approximately 60% of Mediplus’ turnover comes from prescribed pharmaceutical 
producu. Mediplus har die largest portfolio o f  pharmaceudcal products among its competimrs 
in Romania. The remaining 40% of Mediplus’ turnover comes from consumer healthcare 
products. including OTC products (35%) and other products ruch as dermo-cosmeticr. 
cosmetics and para-pharmaceuticals (5%). 

t- 
-4 , 
”i 
u-? 

A balanced portfolio 

Otherr 
5% 

1 r‘ 

L3 
v 

Pharmacies are the  dominant 
distribution channel 

HorDitalr 5% 
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Mediplus imports a large part o f  al1 imported branded O T C  products sold in Romania and it is the clear 
market leader in the wholesale sector. This no t  only enables it to negotiate favourable commercial te rmi  
and conditions with its suppliers but also positions Mediplus to become a long-term strategic partner with 
major international producers. Mediplus enlarged its product portfolio in 2006 by distributing the products o f  
three major international suppliers: Johnson&Johnson. Nycomed-Altana and Sandoz and initiated a strategic 
partnership with Boehringer Ingelheim. In 2006 Mediplus and GlaxoSmithKline (GSK) concluded a strategic 
partnership for the distribution o f  GSK vitamins and analgesics in Romania by Mediplus. 

In addition to its distribution services, Mediplus har been offering a range o f  value-added services, including 
marketing and brand management CO key suppliers. Mediplus has been offering to its pharmacy customers 
various value-added services like pharmacy refurbishment. merchandising advice. and professional and business 
training, that help it create long-term relationships with the majority of i t s  pharmacy client base. These value- 
added services differentiate Mediplus from i t s  competitors and enable it t o  generate higher gross margins than 
traditional wholesale businesses. 

Elantis Moldova, which was established in the neighbouring Republic o f  Moldova in August 2006 under a 
joint venture agreement became operational in the fourth quarter of 2006. This f i r s t  expansion outside of 
Romania reflects the Group ambition to replicate its successful business model in selected CEE countries and 
become a leading player in the region. 





Sensiblu a t  a glance 
- 

~~~ 

Romania’s leading branded pharmacy chain 

* Constantly leading in innovation: 

- First branded pharmacy chain 

First open layout pharmacy stores 

First to introduce the combined retail concept: pharmacyldrugstorelbeauty shop1 * 

‘shop in shop’ concept . I  

* First branded pharmacy chain with national coverage 

* First to introduce a loyalty card system 

* First pharmacy chain launching a TV campaign 

* First pharmacy chain to launch a website, monthly magazine. and cal1 centre 

Largest national branded pharmacy chain with 206 outlets as of 3 I December 2006 

More than 1,000,000 households with loyalty cards 

Corpoa te  Social Responsibility program through Sensiblu Foundation 

* 

* 

- 
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Your health & beauty exper t  

A True Story. 

I L‘OCCITANE 
E N  P R O V E N C E  

We strive for excellence and quality 

“Boots has completed an encouraging f i rs t  year of business with A & D  Pharma. I 
The implant o f  Boots bands har been extended to over 120 Sensiblu stores, and j 

we are in the p roces  of adding further content with the launch o f  new brands ruch as i 
our  leading suncare range, Soltan. O u r  performance has been in line with expectations. 
supported by our partner’s high standard o f  marketing delivery. Boots looks forwards to 
continuing i t s  relationship in 2007”. . .  

Michael Caves. 
Regional Country Manager, Boots Retail International 

“L‘Occitane’s worldwide success har now lasted for more than 30 years and. since its 

very beginning, L‘Occitane has created natural and authentic products, manufactured with 
qualitative ingredienu. L‘Occitane has now been offering its Provençal atmosphere and its 
well-being Home & Body products in Romania for almost 2 years. 

Sensiblu started a cooperation with L‘Occitane in 2005 to develop the brand in Romania. 
Sensiblu’s knowledge of cosmetics and of the Romanian market have been precious tools 
to diswibute L‘Occitane. 

The Romanian retail market in general but also its cosmetic markeg have been recently 
facing a great development and L‘Occitane has had the advantage of this positive and 
dynamic evolution. 

Romanians are sensitive to healthy and natural products. which Sensiblu and L‘Occitane 
are together offering and promoting. Sensiblu and L‘Occitane have planned a further 
expansion o f  the brand in the country for the nexr coming years by opening flagship 
shops. 

Sensiblu and L‘Occitane wil1 continue their good cooperation to keep on  making 
Romanians’ dream true about Provence and iu authentic producu in every COccitane +i 

-J shop.” 

Alia H a m .  
Export Manager, COccitane en Provence 
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Operating review of retail business 
Sensiblu. which is  the largest pharmacy chain of i t s  kind in Romania, also conrinued to strengthen its marker 

position during 2006 by adding a further 3 I outlets. In addition co the newly added outlets, Sensiblu conrinued 
i ts  integration of Ideapharm. the chain o f  33 pharmacies in 18 towns that was acquired in December 2005. 
Sensiblu's network comprised a total of 206 outlets in 5 I Romanian towns and cities by the end of 2006. 

Sensiblu 
fast growing pharrnacy network 

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 

Existing New - Sales m 

Focused pharrnacy approach 

Clinical 
I% . .  

Sensiblu pharmacies are differentiated from traditional pharmacies in Romania through their open plan 
format. own-brand products and the shop-in-shop concept (Boots and L'Occitane). Sensiblu operates four 
types of pharmacy: prestige pharmacies. standard pharmacies. clinical pharmacies and rural pharmacies, 
differentiated by location. portfolio and customer target. As at  31 December 2006, Sensiblu operated 183 
standard pharmacies across Romania, I8 prestige pharmacies, two clinical pharmacies and one rural pharmacy 
as wel1 as iwo L'Occitane stores. Standard pharmacies generated 85% of Sensiblu's turnover in 2006, prestige 
pharmacies 14% and clinical pharmacies generated less than 1%. 

As a result of is national presence and innovative pharmacy concept. the Sensibh brand has become 
increasingly associated with health and beauty, high quality services and a healthy lifestyle. A study from ISRA 
Center conducted from January 2006 co January 2007 demonstrated the remarkable year-on-year growth 
in brand awareness among the Romanian popuiation. with 44% (vs 35%) top of mind brand awareness and 
94% (vs 88%) aided brand awareness among surveyed participants. In December 2006. Sensiblu was ranked 
the most valuable pharmaceutical brand and the most valuable brand created after the 1990s in Romania in a 
comprehensive. independent ranking of national brands published by Business Week Romania. in association 
with Brandient and D & D  Research. 

Sensibiu currently serves more than one million customers per month. offering them over 25.000 products in 
six categories: prescription drugs, self medication. mass-cosmetics. dermo-cosmetics. baby products and others. 
The sales of prescribed medication represented 55% of Sensiblu's 2006 revenue, followed by self medication 
(24%). mass marker cosmetics (9%). baby products (7%) and dermo-cosmerics (5%). In 2006. Sensiblu had 21 
own-brand products launched under the Herbology. Dermalin. and Sensiblu brands. 

The number of total transactions a t  Sensiblu pharmacies increased significantly f rom 10.6 million in 2005 co 
over 12 million in 2006, an increase o f  13%. The average value o f  each transaction also went up from €6 in 2005 
to €7.3 in 2006. an increase of 22%. Both numbers reflect the growch trends specific to the Romanian market. 
its early phase of development and relatively low current medication consumption per capita. 

22 



Diversified product mix Fast growth in number and value of 

e 
6 ,i 
5 .: : 

u i  

n 6  21 , z i  
b i  

I 4 '  

E 14 

E 12 

.i3 10 

Dermo-cosmetics 

o 

.c 4 2 :  

i =  
s 

Prescription i 4  2 a: 

o 2 ;  u 
55% 

- 0  

Z 

F-"-L No. of transactions - Value hansaction 

Sensiblu operates a loyalty card system based on a Client Relationship Management (CRM) system. 
The loyalty card scheme helps Sensiblu build customer loyalty. increasing transaction value and acts as a highly 
useful market research cool. By 3 I December 2006, Sensiblu had more than I million loyalty card holders and 
approximately 50% of the value of transactions in Sensiblu pharmacies was carried out  through loyalty cards in 
2006. 
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0 Financial review* 

I NCOM E STATEM ENT 
Sales 

A & D  Pharma Romania's consolidated sales for the twelve months ended 3 I December 2006 were €33 I .6 
million, an increase of €84.3 million or 34% from €247.3 million for the twelve months ended 3 I December 
2005. This gromh in sales was the combined result o f  the underlying g romh o f  rhe pharmaceutical market 
in Romania. which grew by 23% in 2006, exprersed in Euro distributor prices, and A&D Pharma Romania's 
stronger performance compared co iu competitors. Although sales growth declined slightly in 2006 compared 
to 2005, A & D  Pharma Romania's performance continues t o  be above general marketgrowth and in line with 
management expectacions. 

Consolidated EBITDA and Net Proîït Consolidated Sales 
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Mediplus' sales for the twelve months ended 3 I December 2006 were €287.6 million. a year on-year 
increase of €78 million or  37% from €209.6 million in 2005. Sensiblu's sales for the twelve months ended 31 
December 2006 were €89.8 million. a year-on-year increase of €26.7 million or 42% from €63.1 million in 
2005. These unconsolidated divisional sales figures include inter-company sales from Mediplus to Sensiblu. 
Eliminations arising from inter-company sales amounted CO €45.8 million in 2006. 'J 
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* This Financial Review referr to figurer derived from the conrolidated financial statements prepared according to IFRS for the year ended 
3 I December 2006 for A&D Pharma Romania. as we believe these figurer are a better compmble with the rerults of the former group 
A&D Phsrms Holdings NV. Netherlandr Anriller ("ADP Antilier") provided in the IPO pmrpecrur than the resuiu of the lirted entiv. 
A&D Pharma N.V.. which cover only the 7-month penod rince ir. incorpontion until the end of the year (Mal-December 2006). 

Our andyrir of the (inancial performance of the business provided in the "Financial Review" rection refen to rhe 12-month audited resub 
of A&D Rarma Romnia. The "Financid Review" rection rhould be read in conjunction with the noter of the audited financial ~ccounu 
included in the conrolidated financial statements for the year ended 3 I December 2006 for A&D Pharma Romania. Therefore. we believe 
thar these figurer provide more meaninghil inrighr inro the financial porition and ~ y u l t s  of the Gmup. 

However. an analyrir of AäD Pharma Holdings NVr financial performance can be found at the end of the rection 'Financial Review' and it 
rhould be read in conjunction with rut-rection C of the rection 'Financial Staremenrr". 
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Operating costs 
Toral operating costs for the twelve months ended 3 I December 2006 were €308.3 million. an 

increase of €82.8 million o r  37% f rom €225.5 million for the twelve months ended 3 I December 
2005. As a percentage of sales. operating costs increased to 93% in 2006 compared t o  91% in 
2005 and 92% in 2004. 

Cost o f  sales for 2006 was €243.4 million up from E 175.8 million in 2005, and represents a 38% 
increase. slightly lower than the 39% increase in cost of sales in 2005 compared t o  2004. Gross 
margin for the twelve months ended 3 I December 2006 was 26.8% compared to 28.9% for the 
year ended 31 December 2005 and 26% for the year ended 3 I December 2004. The increase in 
gross margin in 2005 compared to 2004 was the result of specific isolated market circumstances. 
such as the delay by health authorities in updating the regulated prices of medication on the basis 
o f  the appreciation o f  the Romanian currency against the US$ and Euro during the f i rs t  half o f  
2005 which benefited the gross margin of the wholesale business. Compared to 2004. which had 
no  exceptional marker circumstances. the gross margin slightly improved from 26% to 26.8% in 
2006, despite the increasing pressure from competition which led t o a  more aggressive discount 
policy t o  clients in 2006. 

Other operating costs (mainly including staff costs, rent and administrative expenses and third I 

party services, excluding depreciation and amortisation) increased by 29% in 2006 co €60. I million 
f rom €446.5 million in the previour year. However. this increase i s  significantly lower than the 61% 
increase in the previous year. The increase in other operating costs in 2006 was experienced 
both in  the wholesale and retail businesses. Whi le the increase in cost in the wholesale business 
primarily reflects the growth in iu business activities. resulting in higher logistics and warehousing 
costs. sales force and an increasing demand for  promotional activities. the retail business suffered 
from sharp increases in real estate prices in Romania. leading t o  high increases in rent for the 
existing locations. 

~ 

I 

EBITDA margin 
A & D  Pharma Romania's consolidated EBITDA for 2006 was €28. I million. up 12% from €25.0 

million in 2005. Mediplus' EBITDA in the twelve months to 3 I December 2006 was €29.4 million. 
up 9% from €26.9 million the year before. In the retail segment the National House for Health 
Insurance's (NHHI) method of allocating the re-imbursement budgets t o  pharmacies. which is  to 
Sensiblu's disadvantage. and the sustained opening o f  new Sensiblu outlets. led t o  an EBITDA loss 
for Sensiblu of €1.9 million in 2006. compared t o  an EBITDA loss o f  €1.8 million in 2005. 
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Wholerale 1006 2005 2004 

Saler i 8 7 s a i  209.603 145.63 I 

EBITDA’ 29.356 26.928 13.539 

EBITDA margin (%) 10.2% 12.8% 9.3% 

R e e d  2006 1005 2004 

Saler 89.780 63.147 50.241 

EBITDA* (I .858) (1.765) 1.639 

EBITDA margin (%) (2.1%) (2.8%) 3.3% 

*Calculauonr based on audired numbers 

Consolidated EBITDA margin for 2006 was 8.5%. compared to 10.1% for 2005 and 9.1% 
for 2004. Mediplus’ EBITDA margin was 10.2% for 2006, compared to 12.8% for the previous 
year. when the high margin was impacted by the marker circumstances explained above. and to 
9.3% for 2004. Sensiblu’s operating margin reported an improvement since the negative margin 
reduced from (2.8%) in 2005 to (2.1%) in 2006, despite the strong growth in the number of 
outlets and the integration of Ideapharm pharmacies into the Sensiblu chain. which put  a strain 
on costs in 2006. 

Net profit margin 
N e t  profit amounted to €17.8 million for 2006 compared to €16.6 million for 2005 while net 
margin for the twelve months ended 3 I December 2006 decreased to 5.4% from 6.7% for the 
twelve months ended 3 I December 2005. 

BALANCE SHEET 
Total assets increased by 30% based on a 16% increase in non-current assets. mainly resulting + 

from the increase in intangible assets. and 61% in current assets, as a result of the expansion in 21 
operations. Working capital for existing business in 2006 was mainly financed by suppliers while ’ 
additional increases in business were funded by new financing resources under the bank credit (3 
íacilities. U? 

I 

A & D  Pharma Romania used a new long-term syndicated bank loan concluded in 2006 to tG 
finance business operations and capex needs (€22.7 miiiion) and t o  refinance existing short-term a 

V 
debt (€30.0 miiiion). o 

Higher capital expenditure o f  €22.7 million in 2006 compared to € 1  3.7 million in 2005 was 
mainly linked to investments in the new logistic centre and headquarters in Mogosoaia. 

The balance sheet structure remains flexible enough to support financing future company 
expansion (net debt was €55.1 million as of 31 December 2006 while book value of equity 
stoodat €30 I. I miliion). 
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
As at 31 December 2006. A & D  Pharma Romania had positive net cash of €17.2 million 

compared t o a  negative net cash position of €I I .3 million as at 3 I December 2005. A & D  Pharma 
Romania used up to  €5 I .7 million from its new long-term syndicated Bank Loan to finance its 
business operations and capex needs and to refinance previous short-term debt. Besides the 
positive net cash from the syndicated loan. the increase in operating profit before working capital 
co €29.1 million in 2006 (from €26.6 million in 2005) contributed to the improvement in the 
2006 net cash position. 

A & D  Pharma Romania’s change in working capital position as a t  3 I December 2M)6 was a 
negative €35.1 million compared to a positive €13.1 million in 2005. Towards the end of 2005 
the National House for Health Insurance settled historica1 debts existing in the health system 
to pharmacies. As a consequence, A & D  Pharma Romania received overdue payments of over 
€20 million from the National House for Health Insurance by the end o f  2005 and passed these 
amounts co suppliers at the beginning o f  2006. This repayment o f  suppliers and higher inventories 
in order to obtain higher discounts and more favourable t e r m  from suppliers. combined with 
an increase in receivables from business expansion, led to negative change in working capital of 
€35.1 million in 2006. 

The major change in cash flows from investing activities in 2006 resulted from higher 
expenditures on fixed assets of €17.4 million, partly associated with the investment in the new 
warehouse in Mogosoia. However. this expenditure was partially offset by the proceeds from the 
sale of mngible and intangible assets, including part of the proceeds of €5.1 million from the sale 
of the previous company premises. 
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Summary of consolidated income statement for A&D Pharma I , 
Romania 

Year ended 3 I December 

(é'rn) 2006 %change 2005. % change 2004' 

Saier 

Retail 89.780 42% 63,147 26% 50.24 I 

Wholerale 287.582 37% 209.603 44% 145.63 I 

Other revenuer 442 

Elirninationr (45.769) 80% (25,456) (1%) (25,621) 

Totai Saier 331,593 34% 247.294 45% 170,693 

Cort of raler (243.43 I) 38% (175,842) 39% (126.261) 

Grorr profit 88, I62 23% 71.452 61% 44,432 

Morgin 26.8% 28.9% 26.0% 

Other operating cosu (60,099) 29% (46.449) 61% (28.860) 

EBITDA 28.063 12% 25.003 61% 15,572 

Morgin 8.5% 10.1% 9.1% 

Depreciation and amOKiratiOn (4.794) 51% (3.174) 83% (1.735) 

Total operating corts (308.324) 37% (225.465) 44% (156.856) 

EBIT 23.269 7% 21.829 58% 13.837 

Mo@ 7.0% 8.8% 8.1% 

Financial gainr I (lorres) (I ,889) (5%) ( 1.988) N A  507 

Profit before taxation 21,380 8% 19.84 I 38% 14,344 

Taxation (3.552) 9% (3.245) 97% ( 1.650) 

Net income 17.828 7.4% 16,596 31% 12.694 

Morgin 5.4% 6.7% 7.4% 

Totai Capitai Expenditure 22.74 I 69% 13,487 35% 9,983 

* See Nore a t  the end of thir rection 
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Consolidated balance sheet for A&D Pharma Romania 

(E’000) 31 December 2006 I January 2006 

Arreh 

Non-current assets 

Propeq.  plant and equipment 35.592 19.915 

Intangible assets 302,009 276.486 

Financial invertmentr 57 . ’  10 

Long term receivabler 7,181 1.356 

Total non-current assets . . 344,839 

297,767 e 
Current arsetr 

Invenrories 63.455 36.622 

Accounts receivable I 19.770 73.61 I 

Other current assets 12.019 10.249 

Rerrricted cash 5.863 

equivalentr 17.194 7.03 I 

current asrets 21 8.30 I 135.734 

Total asrek 563.140 433.501 

Shareholders’ equity and liabilitier 

Shareholderr equity 

Share capital 260,025 260.025 

Translation reserve 23.323 

Retained earnings 17.828 

Total rhareholders’ equity 301.1 76 260.025 a - 
Non-current liabilitier 
Provirions 14.966 13.764 

Long term payabler 1.562 1,138 
Long term borrowingr 69,793 

Deferred mx 6.743 7.272 

Finance lease 1.825 1.555 

Total non-current liabilitier 94,889 23.729 

Current liabilitier 

Short term borrowingr 30.0 I7  

Accounts payable. accruals and other liabilities 164,624 117,715 

Finance lease 2.45 I 2.015 

Total current liabilitier I67.075 149,747 

Total liabilitier 261,964 173.476 

Total rhareholderr’ equity and liabilitier 563,140 433.501 

e * See Note at the end of rhir rection 
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Summary of consolidated cash flow statement for A&D Pharma ' 

i 
Romania i 

I 
~ 

(E'000) 2006 2005. 

Cash Rows from operating activities 

Operating profi t  before working capital changes 29,057 ' i 6 , w  

Increare in receivables and prepayrnenrs (51,338) (15.713) 

Increase in inventories (26.833) (I 1,547) 

Increare in trade and other payabler 43.053 40.368 

Changes in working capital (35.1 18) 13,108 

Tax paid (2.703) (3,618) 

Net cash from operating activities (8.764) 36.049 

Cash Rows from investing activities 

Net  cash used in investing activities (13,698) (I I ,586) 

Cash Row from financing activities 

Net  cash f rom financing activities 51.662 (23.289) 

Translation effect (733) ( 1.896) 

N e t  decrease in cash and cash equivalents 28.467 (722) 

Cash and cash equivalents a t  beginning of the year (I 1.273) (10.55 i )  

Cash and cash equivalents a t  end of year 17.194 (I 1.273) 

*Note 

Pmforma flninclal lnfomatlo" 

The conrolidated profoma Iinancial information is  prerenred by A&D Pharma Holdings SRL and they incorporare the 
rerul~ofrheformergmupA8DPharmsHoldingr NV. NethedandrAntiller("ADPAnriller").the ultimareparenrcompany 
of the openting subsidiader. The Gmup har prerewed die rame opentional s m ~ f u r e  as tha t  of ADP Antiller holding 
before I January 2W6. Therefore. for comparative purper. pmforma income statement and cashflow figurer lor die 
year ended 3 I December 2W5 and 3 I December 2CC4 are exuacued fmm !he conrdidared Fioawial rfauemens of ADP 
Antiller. as demiled above. 
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Analysis of A&D Pharma Holdings NV's financial performance 
During the period from 24 May 2006 (date o f  incorporation) to 3 I December 2006, A & D  Pharma Holdings 

NV. the listed entity. reported the following resulrs: 

Sales 
Consolidated sales for the period were EUR 212m. with the wholesale segment accounting for EUR 

183.6m, the retail segment for  EUR 56.2m and intra-group sales eliminations for EUR 27.8111. 

. I  

Gross Profit 

O Consolidated gross profit for the period was EUR 5 6 . 9 1 ~  resulting in a consolidated gross margin o f  
26.8%. 

EBITDA 
Consolidated EBITDA for the period was EUR 14.1 m (6.7% margin), generated by the wholesale EBITDA 

o f  EUR 14.5m (7.9% margin). retail EBITDA of EUR 0.6m ( 1 . 1 %  margin). and the difference o f  EUR(l)m 
representing unallocated EBITDA loss incurred a t  the holding companies' level. 

Net Profit 
Consolidated net prof i t  for the period was EUR 8.8m (4.2% margin), comprising a wholesale net profit o f  

EUR I Im  (6% margin). a retail net 106s of  EUR I.lm and unallocated net loss o f  EUR I .I m. 

For more details on A & D  Pharma Holdings NV's  financial performance, please see sub-section C of the 
section "Auditors' Reports and Financial Statements". 
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Profit ap p ro p ri ati on 

Appropriation of profit as per Articles of Association 
Article 22 of  the Articles of Association states that the General Meeting shall determine which part of the 

profits earned in a Financial year shall be added to the reserves and the allocation of the remaining profits. 
Distributions can only take place up to the amount o f  the distributable part of the net assets. Distribution o f  
profits shall take place aker adoption of the Annual Accounts from which it appears it is  approved. The General 
Meeting may further resolve to make payments to the charge of any reserve which need no t  be maintained by 
virtue of law o r  the provisions of t h e  articles of association. 

Proposed profit appropriation and dividend distribution 
The foregoing in conjunction with article 23.2.c of  the Articles of Association constitutes that the General 

Meeting is  authorized to adopt the reservation and dividend policy. For the Annual General Meeting o f  
Shareholders o f  21 June 2007, the Board of Directors proposed t o  die General Meeting to adopt a policy 
which mandates the Board of Directors to submit a reservation proposal t o  the GM each year and to 
determine that in principal the net profit of the Company decreased with the amount of such reservation 
as determined by the Board o f  Directors wil1 be available for  distribution of a dividend to the shareholders 
in order to make a meaningful part of the annual net operating results of the activities of the Company and 
its group available to the shareholders each year. In addition, the reservation and dividend policy wil1 be 
scheduled for discussion with the shareholders each year. The resolution regarding reservation and dividend 
policy of the Company was duly passed at  the General Meeting held on 21 June 2007. 

In anticipation of the adoption of a reservation and dividend policy by the GM in accordance with this 
proposal and in view of the satisfactory results of the Company's group in 2006 as explained in this Annual 
Report. the Board of Directors proposed to the General Meeting held on 21 June 2007 to resolve t o  make a 
dividend distribution out  o f  the net profit for the year 2006 under article 22. I of the Articles of Association in 
an aggregate amount of EUR 3,565,600, equaling EUR 0.01 7828 per share and payable as of 3 Juiy 2007. In the 
opinion o f  the Board this proposal is in line with the spirit of proposed reservation and dividend policy and 
the intention of the Company to make a meaningíul part o f  the annual net operating results of the activities 
o f  the Company and i- group available to the shareholders each year. 

It was initially intended that this dividend distribution would be an end o f  year dividend payment out  o f  
the net profit for the year 2006 under article 22.1 of the Articles o f  Association and t o  add the remainder 
o f  the net profit in the amount o f  EUR 5,198.000 to retained earnings. In light of the events outlined in the 
Introduction of the revised Annual Report, the annual accounts could not be adopted at the AGM on 21 June 
2007 and therefore this dividend proposal could nor be put to a vote a t  that AGM. However. the Company 
continued zo propose a resolution a t  the AGM held on 21 June 2007 relating to the dividend announced 
on 24 May 2007. This dividend was proposed as an interim dividend under article 22.4 of  the Articles of 
Association (the payment. ex-dividend and record dates remaining as announced on 24 May 2007). It was the 
Board's opinion that such distribution was possible with due observance of the provisions o f  the Articles of 
Association and Dutch law. 

The above mentioned resolution regarding interim dividend distribution proposal has been duly passed. 
The shareholders received an interim dividend distribution on 3 Juiy 2007 in the amount of the initially 
announced end of year dividend for 2006. The ex-dividend date for the London Stock Exchange listed Global 
Depository Receipts in the Company was 25 June 2007 and the record date was 27 June 2007. Therefore. the 
Board proposed to the AGM that a t  the further Extraordinary General Meeting of shareholders to resolve 
no t  t o  make any dividend distribution out  of the net profit for 2006 and to  add the net profit CO the reserved 
earnings in full. 

b..' 

'J 
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Outlook and strategy 

A & D  Pharma’s strategy is  to continue to build upon i ts  position as Romania’s largestintegrated 
pharmaceutical wholesale. distribution and retail company in order t o  capture the growth of this 
sector in Romania and t o  expand and replicate i t s  successful business model in other attractive 
Central and Eastern European markeu. 

A & D  Pharma expects the favourable general market trends to continue in 2007, with the 
access,ion of Romania to membership of the European Union and the ongoing reform o f  the 
country’s healthcare system. The pharmaceutical market. in particular. is  expected to continue to 
grow a t  a double digit rate. A & D  Pharma anticipates that the recently completed IPO. together 
with the investmenu in increased capacity and state- of-the-art processing and logistics facilities 
should strongly position the Company to continue to outperform general market growth. by 
growing a t  a similar rate as in 2006. 

Increasing competition is  expected to lead to further consolidation of the pharmaceutical 
wholesale market and to increase pressure on wholesale margins. Mediplus is anticipating to 
compensate the pressure on margins by further improving and widening the range ofvalue-added 
services provided to both manuíacturers and pharmacies. thus playing the role of integrator 
in the whole supply chain from manuíacturer to end consumer. In addition to launching new 
services, Mediplus expecu to improve iu market share in the hospital segment provided that 
tenders for  National Programmes are relaunched this year. 

These actions are expected to increase client loyalty. generate further revenues, ensure 
sustainability of current margins and compensate the competitive pressure on profitability lines. 

Reforms initiated last year are expected to continue to reshape the pharmaceutical retail 
sector in 2007. The transfer of oral antidiabetics to retail in autumn 2006 and the shift from fixed 
to indicative ceilings for the therapy of several chronic illnesses starting this year are expected to 
impact retail revenues positively in 2007. 

Furthermore. it is expected that the Sensiblu chain wil1 continue t o  expand in 2007 and is  
expected to grow the number o f  new stores by approximately 8-1 2%. while focusing on profitable 
growth. Sensiblu anticipates it wil1 continue t o  implement i ts  existing strategic pannerships with 
hypermarkets in order to open new pharmacies in their commercial galleries and other high- 
traííic areas in 2007. The Company is also considering opening pharmacies within the proximity 
o f  hospitals and private clinics. e 

In parallel, the Company anticipates it wil1 focus on increasing profitability by further utilising 
the synergies between the wholesale and retail businesses with the implementation of a company- 
wide ERP system. The Company also intends to increase the profitability of i t s  pharmacies by 
building individual plans for each pharmacy and offering better services to i ts  loyal customers. 
which are aimed a t  increasing the turnover generated by cardholders and improving operational 
efficiency. The Company expecu t o  continue t o  enlarge i t s  existing own-brand product range 
and to launch a new own-brand in dermo-cosmetics. 

These measures are expected t o  lead to a turnaround in the retail business resulting in a 
positive EBITDA margin in 2007. 

The number of employees of the Company is expected to increase in line with the development 
o f  the business. 
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Investor relations review e 

A&D Pharma N.V.'S GDRs have been listed on die Main Marker of the London Stock Exchange 
since October 2006. The rotal size of the secondary offering was €136.192.788 (comprising 
I 1,349.399 GDRs or  approximately 34.05% of the Company'r issued share capital at a price of 
€12 per GDR). The offering included an over-allotment option in respect of 8.096.394 existing 
shares of A&D Pharma Holdings in the form of 1.349.399 GDRs. 

Key data on A&D Pharma NV's GDRs 
i 

Date of listing October 24.2006 1 
Marker London Stock Exchange, Main markei ' i  
Number of GDRs 11,349.399 1 i 

Number of shares per GDR 6 8  

Total number of shares 200.000,000 

Free float 34% 

Price per GDR at IPû closinz €12 

ISIN number USO024812085 

LSE Code ADPH 

Bloombem Code ADPH LI 

Reuters Code ADPHq.L 

Summary of shareholder structure post-IPO (as of 24 October 
2006)": 

59% Sognno B.V. 

*More derails on shareholder ~vucwrc are included in the rection "Corporate Govemancë. page 6 I 

e 
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The Head of Investor Relations presented in detail to Board rnembers the IR strategy of the 
company at the beginning of the year. The Head of Investor Relations has also discussed the 
progress and implementation of the IR strategy. any new developments and opportunities in this 
area and the outcome of the meetings with investors. Consequendy. Board members have been 
regularly informed about existing and potential investors’ feedback. Board members have been 
closely involved in reviewing A&D Pharma N.V.’S regular corporate announcernents prior to their 
release to the markets considering the compliance with transparency information requirements 
rpecific to the markets and to the investors’ benefit of being informed in a comprehensive and 
concise manner. 

Investor calendar to-date 

Event Date Location 

Extraordinary Genera Meeting of rhareholderr September 10th. 2007 Amsterdam 

CA IB and Aton Annual Emerging Europe Conference Istanbul September 6th-7th. 2007 

Morgan Stanley European Mid Cap Pharma june 27th. 2007 Budapest 

Annual General Meeting of rhareholderr June 21 th. 2007 Amsterdam 

Errte Bank Inyestor Conference May 3 I th - June Ith, 2007 Cavdad. Croatia 

Roadshow April 16th- 25th 2007 Europe and USA 

Announcement of consolidated financial statements lor 
the year ended 3 I December 2006 for AûD PHARMA 
HOLDINGS SRL 

KBC Romania Conference: “Romanian Equity Market 
Review” 

ING EMEA Romania Forum February 2,2007 London 

London ING Equity Markets. 6th Annual European Healthcare 
Conference 

ING 9th Annual EMEA Forum November 29th-30th 2006 Prague 

April 4th 2007 Bucharert 

March 26th -27th 2007 Bucharert 

December 5th - 6th 2006 
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e Corpora te  governance 
. .  

I 
The Company applies the principles and best practices set out  by the Dutch Corporate 

Gavernance Code ai the Corporate Gavernance Cammiuee. dated 9 December 2003 ( “he 
Dutch Code”). In addition. the Company decided CO comply. as far it is  able. with rhe principles o f  
the U K  Combined Code on Corporate Governance o f  the Financial Reporting Council. published 
in June 2006 (“the UK Code”). 

This section concains the Company’s reporting disclosures on  corporate governance required 
by the Dutch Code, including the required statement of compliance. The U K  Code principles and ~ 

provisions are also considered when disclosing the Company’s corporate governance in place in i 
2006 or proposed for 2007 and the followingfinancial years. 

The Company has adopted a single tier board. Therefore. due to iu organizational structure. 
certain o f  the Dutch Code best practice provisions applicable to the supervisory board wil1 apply 
to the Non-Executive Directors. 

I ,  Governance and Policy 
The Board is committed va ensuring high standards of corporate governance are maincained 

by rhe Company and is  accouncable for this to the General Meeting o f  Shareholders. W e  believe 
that visibly high scandards result in increased shareholder value and satisfaction. 

The Board considers that during 2006 the Company initiated the compliance with the Dutch 
and UK Codes principles and provisions. creating the premises for more progresses in the 2007 
financial year. 

Board Membership 
The Board is  a one-tier board, comprising managing directors with the title “Executive 

member of the B o a r d  (the “Executive Directors”) and. in a majority. with the title “Non- 
Executive member of the B o a r d  (the “Non-Executive Directors”). The members o f  the Board 
(the “Directors”) are appointed by the General Meeting of Shareholders. 

The Board has ultimate responsibility for the managemenc, general affairs, direction and 
performance o f  the Company’s business as a whole. The responsibiliry o f  the Directors is 
collective. caking into account their respective roles as Executive Directors and Non-Executive ,d 
Directors. 1 

c-3 
G’ The Executive Directors are responsible for the day-to-day management of the Company’s 

operations. far achieving the Company’s aims. strategy and policy. and resulu. under the , 
supervision of the Non-Executive Directors. The Execurive Directors are required to keep p,J 
the Non-Executive Directors informed and CO consult with the Non-Executive Directors on 

important matters. E 
21 

The Non-Executive Directors share responsibility for the execution of the Board’s duties. 
caking into account their specific responsibilities. which are essentially supervisory. The key 
element of the role and responsibilities of the Non-Executive Directors is supervision of the 
policy and o f  the fulfilment of duties by the Executive Directors and of the general affairs o f  the 
Company and advising the Execurive Directors. 

The Non-Executive Directors are al1 experienced and influential individuals whose blend of 
skills and business experience convibutes to the proper functioning of the Board, ensuring that 
matters are fully debated and that no individual or group dominates the Board‘s decision making 
processes. 
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The composition of the Company’s Board, at  the end of 2006, was as follows: 

Dr. David Ebsworth, Chairman Non-Executive Director 

D r a ~ o s  Dinu. Chief Executive Officer Executive Director 

Florin Buligoanea, Chief Finance Officer Executive Director 

Vivian Diaconescu, 
Chief Operating Officer, Wholesale 

Claudiu Opran. 
Chief Operating Officer. Retail Executive Director 

Urs Kamber. Member Non-Executive Director 

Executive Director 

e 
Michael Wemms, Member Non-Executive Director 

Walid Abboud. Member Non-Executive Director 

Roger Akoury. Member Non-Executive Director 

Michel Eid. Member Non-Executive Director 

Ludovic Robert  Member Non-Executive Director 

The Non-Executive Directors shall consider drawing up a retirement schedule. in order to 
avoid. as hr as possible, a situation in which many non-executive directors retire at the same 
time. 

At the date of their offices termination. the Executive and Non-Executive Directors are 
subject to re-election by shareholders in accordance with the Articles of Association. each time 
for a period of up to four years, considering the independence criteria for the Non-Executive 
Directors. as set out  by the Dutch and U K  Codes. e 

The Board intends t o  review the composition ofthe Board, and the balance ofskills. knowledge 
and experience o f  iu members. and in case it concludes the Board is no t  o f  the appropriate size 
and balance for the Company. new Executive andlor Non-Executive Directors wil1 be proposed 
for appointment, and the Board wil1 be seeking approval by the General Meeting o f  Shareholders. 
According to the current provisions of the Articles of Association. the Board can consist o f  no  
more than five Executive Directors and nine Non-Executive Directors. subject to any change 
being approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders. 

The Directors’ biographical details are listed below: 

Executive Directors 

Dragos Dinu 
Chief Executive Oficer 

Dragos Dinu. of Romanian nationality. was born in 1967 and has a rnachinery construction 
degree from the Constructions Institute. Bucharest. H e  has been the Chief Executive Officer 
o f  the Group since 2002. In February 1996. he joined the Group taking various positions: Area 
Sales Manager in Plurifarm Division. Manager o f  Plurifarm and an Executive Director position at e 



Mediplus. Between March 2003 and September 2004 he was also Executive Director of Sensiblu. 
He has previous management experience at Bouygues and PepsiCo. He  har been an Executive 
Director of the Company since October 2006 and the term of his directorship expires in 
December 2008. 

Florin Buligoanea 

Chief Finonce Officer 

Florin Buligoanea. of Romanian nationality, was born in 1972 and has a degree from the 
Academy of Economic Studies. Bucharesr He has been the Chief Finance Ofíicer of the Group 
since 2002. He  has worked for DHL, Abela Rocas. Grant Thornton and NE1 group. He was 
formerly Chief Finance Officer a t  Brewery Holdings Romania. He has been an Executive Director 
of the Company since October 2006 and the term o f  his directorship expires in December 
2008. 

Vivian Diaconescu 

Chief Operoting Officer, Wholesole Business 

Vivan Diaconescu. o f  Romanian nationality. was born in 1975 and has a degree from the 
Faculty of International Economic Relations from Ovidius University. Constanta. He har been the 
Chief Operating Ofíicer of Mediplus since 2005. He joined the company in 1998 as Area Sales 
Manager - Farmactiv Division. He became Business Development Manager in 2000 and between 
July 2002 and December 2004 he was the Executive Director of Mediplus (Saler to Pharmacies 
and Hospitals). He has been an Executive Director of the Company since October 2006 and the 
term of his directorship expires in December 2008. 

Claudiu Opran r 
'4 Chief Operating Officer, Retoil Business 

Claudiu Opran. of Romanian nationality. was born in 1973 and has a degree in accounting E) 
and management. He  has been the Chief Operating Ofíicer of Sensiblu since 2005. He joined CC' 
the Group in 2004 as Operational Manager o f  Sensiblu and har over eight years o f  professional 
experience in managerial positions a t  several multinational companies. He has previous business i4 
strategy experience a t  Brau Union Romania (which is  now Heineken) and SA8 Miller Romania. a 
He has been an Executive Director of die Company since October 2006 and the term of his a 

u 

I 

directorship expires in December 2008. 

Non-Executive Directors 

Dr. David Ebsworth 

Choirrnon, Non-Executive Director 

David Ebsworth. of English nationality, was born in 1954 and holds a BSc in Chemistry and 
German and a PhD in Cornparative Industrial Relations from the University of Surrey. Guildford. 
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England. He  har over 25 years’ experience in the ethica1 pharmaceutical, biological, biotechnology 
and generic industries. He has worked at Pfizer. Bayer. Oxford Glyco Sciences PLC and har wide 
ranging experience as a director and non-executive director in pharmaceutical companies. He 
har been a Non-Executive Director of the Company since October 2006 and the term of his 
directorship expires in October 2010. 

Urs Kamber 

Non-Executive Director 

a Urs Kamber. o f  Swiss nationality. was born in 1952 and holds a Swiss CPA degree from 
Balsthal. Swiaerland. He has a background in finance and he has worked extensively in Eastern 
Europe. He was formerly the CFO of Cesky Telecom and a member of the supervisory board 
of the privatised Bulgarian Telecoms Company ETC. He currently has a non-execurive role wirh 
Zentiva NV. He has been a Non-Executive Director of the Company since October 2006 and the 
term o f  his directorship expires in October 2009. 

Michael Wemms 

Non-Executive Director 

Michael Wemms. of English nationality. was born in 1940 and holds a BA in History from 
the University of Bristol. England and an MBA from Cranfield School of Management. He has 
extensive experience in food and general merchandise retailing. most significantly eleven years 
on the board of Tesco PLC in an executive role. He has been a Non-Executive Director of the 
Company since October 2006 and the term of his directorship expires in October 2009. 

Walid Abboud 

Non-Executive Director 

Walid Abboud, of English nationality, was born in I969 and holds a Management Studies degree 
from ESSEC. France. He is a founding shareholder o f  the Company and was actively involved in iu 
management from 1994 to 2002. He har been a Non-Executive Director of the Company since 
October 2006 and the term of his directorship expires in October 2009. 

Roger Akoury 

Non-Executive Director 

Roger Akoury. of Lebanese nationality, was born in I968 and har a degree in Economics from 
the S t  Joseph Faculty, Beirut He is a founding shareholder of the Company and was actively 
involved in iu management from 1994 to 2002. He previously worked in the sales department 
for Emirates Airlines Beirut from 1992 CO 1994. He has been a Non-Executive Director o f  the 
Company since October 2006 and the term of the directorship expires in October 2009. a 
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Terms of Reference 
As o f  its appointment, the Board intended t o  adopt the Terms of Reference of the Board and of the Audit, 

Nomination and Remuneration Committees to deal with such matters as their internal organization. the manner 
in which decisions are taken, the composition and the duties. I> 

O n  I 3  April 2007. the Board of Directors adopted the T e r m  o f  Reference o f  the Board and of the Audit, 
Nomination and Remuneration Committeer, a copy of which is available to shareholders on  request by writing 
CO the Company Secretary. They wil1 be posted on the Company’s website, www.adpharma.ro by end of 2007. 

Board Balance and Independence 

a I 
i 

The Chairman is no t  independenc. due co his variable part of remuneration. dependant on  the company’s 
results. At the date of his appointment. the Chairman was independent l 

The following Non-Executive Directors are not  independent. due to their significant interests in the 

- Walid Abboud 
~ Roger Akoury 
- Michel Eid 
- Ludovic Robert 

In addition, the above mentioned Non-Executive Directors have links with different related parties. with 
who the Company’s subsidiaries had transactions in 2006, as detailed in the Note 21 of the consolidated 
financial statements for A & D  Pharma Holdings SRL. 

Company: 

The Board considers that the remaining Non-Executive Directors are independent in both judgement and 
character and that they carry out their duties in an independent manner. The Chairman and the independent 
Non-Executive Directors provide constructive challenge CO decisionr. Thir is due to their ability CO: - rigorourly analyze management reports; - 
* 

robustly defend their own points of view; 
critically evaluate the pharmaceutical industry and the Company itself. 

The Role of the Board 
Certain decisions of the Management Board must be submined for approval o f  the entire Board and shall 

be adopted with a simple majority o f  the voces cast, which majority shall include the affirmative vote of a t  least 
the maiority ofal l  appointed Executive Directors. and the Chairman shall no t  have a castingvote. Such decisions 
include: 

* specification o f  risk management policies including insurance, hedging. borrowing limits and corporate 
security; 
approval of annual operating and capital expenditure budgets and any material changes thereto; 
extension of the Group’s activities into new business, where new business means performance of activities 
outside the healthcare and pharmaceutical markef o r  into new geographic areas; 
changes relating CO the group’s capital structure including reduction o f  capital. issues of shares (except under 
employee share plans), share buy-backs; 
approval of annual and semi-annual accounts and announcemenrs relating to results; 
proposals for any distribution o r  payment including an interim dividend; 
changes to the structure. size. composition and profile of the Board o f  Directors; 
changes to the structure, size and composition o f  committees o f  the Board; 
succession planning for executive directors and senior managers; 
corporate strategy; investor relations strategy; 

- 
* 

* 

* 

* 
* - - 
* corporate governance; 
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- the entering into by the Cornpany or a subsidiary of agreements o f  any kind with the person (iegai entity 
or individual) who holds the maiority o f  the Company’s issued and outstanding share capital o r  of the 
voting powers a t  the General Meeting or othemise directs iu activities, o r  any person afíiliated with such 
person; 
the application for listing or cancellation of a listing o f  securities of the Company; 
the acquisition or disposal by the Company or  a dependant cornpany o f  a participating interest in the 1 l capital of another company with a value of at least one-third of the arnount o f  the issued capital with the 
reserves according co the Company’s balance sheet with explanatory notes. or. if the Company prepares , 
a consolidated baiance sheet, according co i t s  consolidated balance sheet and explanatory notes in the ! 

. last adopted annual accounts of the company. as wel1 as the substantial increase o r  decrease of such a 1 

investments which require an amount equal to at least a quarter of the amount of the Cornpany’s issued ‘ 
capital wirh the reserves according to the balance sheet with explanatory notes; 
a proposal to amend the Articles; 
a proposal to conclude a legal merger (juridische furie) or a demerger (juridische splitsing); 
a proporal to dirrolve (ontbinden) the Company; 
a petition for liquidation or an application for a suspension o f  paymenis (surseance van betaling) or 

bankruptcy (faillissement): 
a proposal to reduce the Company’s issued share capital; 
the adoption, amendment or termination of internal rules regulating the decision making process and 
working methods of the Board of Directors: 
the internal allocation of duties within the Board; 
the restriction or exclusion o f  pre-emptive rights in respect o f  share issues; 

The Board wil1 decide which other decisions must be submitted to the approval of the entire Board and wil1 

Certain resolutions of the Board further require the prior approval of the General Meeting of 

These resolutions. which are specified in the Articles of Association. are: 

the entry into o r  termination of a long-term cooperation of the Company or a subsidiary with anorher 
legal person o r  partnership or as a fully liable partner in a limited partnership or generai partnership, if such 
cooperation o r  termination is of a far-reaching significance for the Company: 
resolutions to  limit o r  exclude pre-emption r ighu in the event of issuance of shares o r  the granting of rights 
to  subscribe for shares; i-’ 

investmenis which require an amount equal to a t  least a quarter o f  the amount o f  the Company’s issued ‘.J 
capital with the reserves according to the balance sheet with explanatory notes or. if the Company prepares I 

a consolidated balance sheet, according to iu consolidated balance sheet and explanatory notes in the last EÌ 
ir) 

I che application for listing or cancellation of a listing of securities of the Company. 
w 

j * - 
i 

participating interest 1 - 
- 
* 
* 

* - 
* 
* 

include the full list in iu board rules. 

Shareholders. 

* 

adopted annual accounts o f  the Company; - 
Conflict of Interests 

Any conflict of interest o r  apparent conflict of interest between the Company and a member of the Board hJ 

of Directors shall be avoided. Decisions to enter into transactions under which a member of the Board of 
Directors would have conflicts of interest that are of material significance to the Company andlor to the 
relevant member o f  the Board of Directors require the approval of the Non-Executive Directors. 

No director can attend meetings where he could have a conflict o f  intererr. 

During the year under review, the Company continued to consider the transaction by which t o  acquire 20 
per cent of die shares in Arishop Pharma AD, a Bulgarian wholesale company owned by certain of the founding 
shareholders. who are also Non-Executive Directors o f  the Company. 

43 



The discussions were made and the actions were taken by the Company in relation to this transaction 
without the participation and/or involvement o f  the Non-Executive Directors in conflict o f  interesu with the 
Company. namely Mr. Walid Abboud. Mr. Roger Akoury. Mr. Ludovic Robert. 

Board Meetings 
The Board meets formally at least four times a year and ad hoc as required. In addition. on a periodical basis, 

the Executive Directors organize meetings relating to the activities performed by the operational entities. to 
which Non-Executive Directors are invited t o  attend. 

In 2006 no Board meetings were held, and three operational meetings with respectto the operational entities 
activity were held. The operational meetings are held mainly at rhe operational premises. and are designed to 
allow Non-Executive Directors to gain knowledge o f  the activities carried out by the operational entities and 
scrutinize their performance. Also. these meetings facilitate to the Non-Executive Directors meetings with the 
Company’s subsidiaries personnel in order to identify those areas in which Directors can provide advise. 

a 
In addition to the Company’s Board meetings, these operational meetings contribute t o  the Board 

effectiveness. 

The dates when the operational meetings were held are listed below, and al1 Executive and Non-Executive 

- 27 October 2006 
~ 23 November 2006 
- 20 December 2006 

The Board, the committees and the operational meetings are supplied with information by Mihaela Pislaru. 

Directors attended 

the Company Secretary. 

Independent Professional Advice 
When Directors have to seek legal or íinancial advice in furtherance o f  their duties they are alwayr able to 

consult the Company’s advisers and it i s  nor intended to restr ict or discourage this in any way. 

Insurance and Indemnification 
The Company maintains directors’ and oficers’ insurance cover, up to a limit o f  EIS million, in respect of 

any legal actions taken against the directors in connection with their duties. 

Role of Chairman and Chief Executive 
The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive are dirtinct and are held by different people to ensure a clear 

division of responsibility. The Chairman is  responsible for running the Board including monitoring the proper 
functioning of Board and its committeer. ensuring the timely flow o f  information to Board members and 
overseeing their deveiopment whilst the Chief Executive is  responsible for the day-to-day running of the 
Company and reporting upon this to the Chairman. 

Senior Independent Director 
O n  13 April 2007 the Board of Directors appointed, among iu independent Non-Executive Directors. Mr. 

i) deal with the Chairman annual performance evaluation, 

ii) meet shareholders if they have concerns which contact through the normal channels o f  chairman. chief 

Urs Kamber as Senior Independent Director co: 

a executive or finance director has failed to resoive or is inappropriate. 
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Induction Programme 
In the year under review, al1 independent Non-Executive Directors received induction with respect to 

the Company’s business and organizational structure. Directors also received regular updates on  changes and 1 
developments in the business, iegislative and regulatory environments. j 

t 
The Company envisages for 2007 and following financial years developing formal induction training, including ! 

site visits for the new Non-Executive Directors. customized for each director. depending upon his/her skills. ’ 
experience and background. 

Board Evaluation 
The Board intends t o  conduct an annual. formal evaluation o f  its own performance and thatof is committees 

and o f  individual directors. Feedback on collective performance wil1 be collated and presented to the Board and 
acuons t o  improve WIII be agreed and implemented. 

In the year under review, the Company cornmenced an evaluation process for the Executive Directors. 
meant to assess h e i r  personal competencies and intended t o  help in developing their porential and increasing 
their effectiveness. Such evaluation was carried out  by external advisors based in Romania and UK. 

Board Committees 
O n  I 3  April 2007. the Board appointed from its Non-Executive Directors members t o  the Audit. Nomination 

and Remuneration Committees. consisting o f  3 members each. 

Audit Committee 
The directors who are members of the Audit Commiuee are: 

Name Position Date of Appointment 

I e 
Michel Eid Member 13*ApriI 2007 

The Audit Commiuee is  formally constituted with written terms of reference with the full remit of the 
committee role described. A copy of the t e r m  of reference is available to shareholders on  request by writing t - ~  

t o  the Company Secretary. They wil1 be posted on the Company’s website. www.adpharma.ro by end o f  2007. -..j 

The Audit Committee shall supervise the activities of the Executive Directors with respect to: 
i3 

u’ 

r..) 
c3 
c3 
“4 

I 

a) the operation of the internal risk management and control systems. including enforcement of 
the relevant legislation and regulations. and the operation of codes of conducr; 

b) the provision of financial information by the company (choice o f  accounting policies. application 
and asressment of the effects of new rules. information about the handling o f  estimated items in 
the annual accounts, forecasts. work of internal and external auditors. etc.); 

I 

c) compliance with recommendations and observations o f  internal and external auditors; 
d) the role and functioning of the internal audit departmenr; 
e) the policy o f  the company on fax planning; 
9 relations with the external auditors, including, in particular, their independence. remuneration and 

any non-audit services for  the company; 
g) the financing o f  the company; 
h) the applications o f  information and communication technology (ICT). 

In fulfilling i t s  duties. the Audit Commiuee reviewed the audited financial statements in the 2006 Annual 
Report with management. including the quality and not  just the acceptability o f  accounting principles. lt 
satisfied iuelf  with the reasonableness o f  judgements made and the clarity of the disclosures in the financial 
statements. 



The Audit Committee reviewed with the independent external auditors, who are responsible for expressing 
an opinion on the conformity of those financial statements with IFRS or Dutch GAAP. It reviewed with the 
independent auditors the adopted accounting principles and such other matters as required t o  be discussed 
and reviewed with the Committee as defined by the Terms o f  Reference o f  the Audit Committee approved 
by the Board of Directors. In addition. the Committee discussed with the independent auditors the auditors 
independence from managementand the Company. and considered the compatibility of non-audit services with 
the auditors independence. 

! 
The committee discussed with the company’s independent auditors the overall scope and plans for their 

respective audits. The Committee meers with internal and independent auditors. with and without management 
present, as needed to discus the result of their examinations, their evaluations o f  the Company’s risk 
management and internal control system and framework and the overall quality of the Company’s financial 
reporting. In particular. it also discussed the findings of the internal risk assessment and approved the plan of 
internal audits for the year 2007. e 

In reliance on the reviews and discussions referred to above, the committee recommended to  the Board 
o f  Directors and the Board has approved. that the statutory consolidated and company financial statements be 
included in the Annual Report for the year ended December 3 I, 2006 for filing with the respective regulatory 
authorities. 

The Audit Comminee supervised the Company’s relation with BDO CampsObers Audit & Assurance B.V. 
as statutory external auditor of the Company’s statutory consolidated and company financial statements, and 
KPMG Romania SRL the auditor o f  A & D  Pharma Romania’s and the Company’s IFRS consolidated financial 
statements. Reference is made to the “lntroduction” on page I of this Annual Report in connection with the 
prior engagement of HLB Schippers (and their affiliated firm HLB Den Hartog). 

Nomination Committee 
The directors who are members of the Nomination Committee are: 

Michael Wemmr Member I3*  April 2007 
Ludovic Robert Member I3*  April 2007 e 

The Nomination Committee is formally constituted with writ ten terms o f  reference with the full remit 
o f  the committee role described. A copy o f  the terms of reference is  available to shareholders on request 
by writing to the Company Secretary. They wil1 be posted on the Company’s website. www.adpharma.ro by 
end of 2007. 

The Nomination Committee shall supervise the activities of the Executive Directors with respect to: 

a) drawing up the selection criteria and appointment procedures for Executive and Non-Executive 

b) assessing the size and composition of the board and making a proposal f o r a  composition profile of 

c) assessing the functioning o f  individual Executive and Non-Executive Directors; 
d) making proposals for appointments and reappointments; 
e) succession planning for Executive Directors. Non-Executive Directors and, in particular. the 

9 supervising the policy o f  the executive management on the selection criteria and appointment 

directors: 

the Non-Executive board members: 

Chairman of the Board of Directors and the chief executive officer; 

procedures for senior management 

During the past financial year, upon the Chairman’s advice. the Company hired a consultancy firm to 
commence research for Non-Executive Directors candidates having competencies and skills nor present in the 
current Board composition. As at 3 I December 2006 the process was in progress. e 

46 



Rernuneration Cornrnittee 
The directors who are members o f  the Remuneration Committee are: 

Name Porit ion Date of Annointment 

13" April 2007 Micha4 Wemms Chairman 

Dr. David Ebrwonh Member 13" April 2007 

I3*  April 2007 Roger Akoury Member 

The Remuneration Committee is formally constituted with written termr o f  reference with the full remit 
of the committee role described. A copy o f  the terms of reference is available to shareholders on request by . .  
writing to the Company Secretary. They wil1 be ported on  the Company's website. www.adpharma.ro by end 
of 2007. 

The Remuneration Committee shall supervise the activitier of the Executive Directors with respect to: 

a) proposal CO the board for the Remunerauon Policy to be determined by the Generai Meeting; 

b) assessment o f  the current remuneration scheme o f  the Execuuve Directors: 

c) proposal for the remuneration of the executive directors. for adopuon by the board: 

(i) the remuneration structure and 

(ii) the amount o f  the fixed remuneration, the shares andlor options CO be granted andlor other 
variable remuneration componenu. pension rights. redundancy pay and other forms of 
compensation to be awarded. as wel1 as the performance criteria and their application; 

d) proposai for the remuneration o f  the non-executive directors; 

e) preparing the remuneration repor t  

O n  remuneration matters, the Board is advised by Halliweli Consulting. an UK independent execuuve 
remuneration and share schemer consultant. which provides no  other services CO the Company. 

Policy on Other Appointrnents 
The number o f  supervisory boards o f  Dutch listed companies of which an individual may be a member shall 

be limited to such an extent that the proper performance of his duries is assured and as long as no  conflict of 
interesu arises. 

Details of any other relevant appointments held by each Non-Executive Director are listed below. 

I 
\ 

i 

Intercell AG. Vienna. Austria Member of Supervisory Board 
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Name of Director Name of relevant company Porition held in 2006 

Dr. David Ebrwonh Atani Ltd. UK Chairman. Diremor 

Member of Supervisory Baard 
(ended March 2006) 

Chairman of Supervisory Baard 

Non Executive Director 

berapharm Armeiminel GmbH. Germany 

Curacyre AG, Germany 

CuraGen Corporarion. Connecticut. USA 

Renovo Group PLC. Eneland Non Executive Director 

SkyePharma PLC. England Non Executive Director 

Wilex AG, Germany Chairman. Supervirory Board 

Xention Limited. Eneland Chairman. Director 



Name of Director Name of relevant company Porition held in 2006 

Michaei Wemms 
Chairman. Member of Audit and Remmeration 

Committeer and Chairman of Nomination 
Committee (ended November 2006) 

House of Fraser PLC 

Coler Myer Limited 

Inchcape PLC 

Non Executive Director 

Non Executive Director, Chairman of 
Remuneration Committee 

British Retail Consortium 

Galiform Plc 

Majid AI Futtaim Group 

Chairman (ended June 2006) 
Non Executive Director (from 

November 2006) 
Member of Committeer 

BTC (Bulgarian Telecommunicationr 
Company) Urr Kamber Member of Supervirory Board 

. .. 
Non Executive Director. Chairman of 

the Audit Committee Zentiva N.V. 

China Enterprise Capital Ltd. Hong Kong Non Executive Director 

nr AG, Schafhusen. 
Non Executive Director 

Non Executive Director 

Stirling Syrter 
Swiuerland 

WIMAX Telecom AG, Kürnacht. 
Swinerland 

ADAX S.A.. Bevaix, SwiQerland Non Executive Director 

Non Executive Directorr 
ADAX Holding AG, Herbligen. 

SwiQerland 

FS KAMBER AG, Herbligen. Swiuerland 

BOGAR AG, Wallirellen. Swiuerland 

Board Member 

Non Executive Director 

Ethics 
Al1 Group employees wil1 be required to adhere to specified codes of conduct policies and procedures, 

including, but not limited to: 

-Code  of Conduct; 
- Complaints and Whistte Blowing Procedure; 
- Insider Trading Code 

In the year when this report is published. progress has been made with respect to such policies and 

Copies of the above wil1 be made available on the Company's website when they are approved. These policier 

procedures. 

wil1 be reviewed annually. 

Statement of Directors' Responsibility in Relation to the Accounts 
Management is  responsibie for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in 

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes: designing. implementing 
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial a 
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I 
statements that are free from material misstatements. whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying 
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. 

The responsibilities of the auditors in relation to the financial statements included in t h i s  Annual Report are 
set out  in the relevant laws and regulations and are described in the relevant auditor’s reports. 

Going concern 
The Company’s financial statements are prepared on the assumption that the entity is a going concern, meaning 

it wil1 continue in operation for the foreseeable future and wil1 be able to realize assets and discharge liabilities in j 
the normal course of operations. 

Internal Accountability (Internal Control) 
A&D Pharma recognizes that it har a duty to act responsibly towards iu shareholders and CO protect the I 

Company’s asseo. The Board is responsible for reviewing and approving rhe adequacy and effectiveness of the ! 
Company’s internal controls and for ensuring compliance with relevant local laws and regulations. The aim of our 
internal controls i s  t o  provide reasonable assurance that the Company’s operational and financial objectives are 
achieved and that significant r i s k ,  are identified. It should be noted that th i s  reasonable level of assurance does 
nor provide certainty as to the realization of operational and financial business objectives. nor can they prevent al1 
mirstatements. inaccuracies. errors, fraud and non-compliance with rules and regulations. 

During 2006. the reporting and monitoring activities were conducted based on an informal set of procedures. 
Although cenain procedures were documented by the Company. those procedures were not entirely integrated 
in a policy and procedures manual. The existing controk have been enforced or  modified to accommodate changes 
in the business which may affect financial reporting. 

During 2006 Ernst & Young and die Internal Audit Depament  assisted management in the prepantion of a 
“Risk Assessment Report”. The risk assessment was embedded in a “top down Business Process” approach and 
al1 significant risks have been documented in a risk map. Company’r management is responsible for continually 
updating th is  risk assessment and implementing action plans to mitigate chose risk,. The Internal Audit D e p a m e n t  
reviews d i e  riskassessment and operation of the risk managementand conwol systems on an ongoing basis to take 
into account the changes in risk profile and the implication of audit findings. The Internal Audit Department reports 
to the Chief Executive ORcer and to the Chairman of the Audit Commiaee. 

The most important risks identified. as weli as the structure of the aforesaid risk management system and 
aspects of is further development are discussed below and in the section on risk management in the Annual 

ij 
In 2006. the design and operation of die Company’s risk management and control systems were discussed with ’ , 
In suppodng the reporting system and risk management and control procedures, the Board of Directors har 

h,‘ 
p Audit Commiaee 

The Audit Commiaee is designed to help the Non-Executive Directors to períorm their supervisory role. As 
indicated above in section “Board Commiaees”. die Audit Committee was appointed in 2007 and it has the duties ...J 
as set out by its Terms of Reference and summarized above. 

* Internal Audit Depament  

improve the effectiveness of risk managemenf control and governance process. 

Repon  w 

the Non-Executive Directors. 0 

I established and enhanced in 2007 various control functions: 

The Intemal Audit Deparment was established in January 2006 in order to help the management to evaiuate, 

External Auditors 
For the financial year 2006 BDO CampsObers Audit & Assurance B.V. was the statutory external auditor 

of the statutory consolidated and company financial statements. KPMG Romania SRL w a s  the non-statutory 
auditor of A&D Pharma Romania’s IFRS and the Company’s consolidated non-statutory financial statements. BDO 
CampsObers Audit & Assurance B.V. wil1 submit for adoption the audit opinion on the Company’s statutory 
consolidated and company financial statements to the General Meeting. The audit opinion of KPMG Romania 
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SRL on ADP Romania’s and the Company’s IFRS consolidated financial statements wil1 also be presented. BDO 
CampsObers Audit & Assurance B.V. and KPMG Romania SRL also informed representatives of the Board of 
Directors of h e i r  findings and observations. Reference is made to the “lntroduction” on page I of this Annual 
Report in connection with the prior engagement o f  HLB Schippers (and their affiliated firm HLB Den Hartog). 

The Group issues to its external stakeholders financial Statements prepared in accordance with the International 
Financial Reporting Standards as endorsed for use in the European Union (“IFRS”). Internal financial reports are 
prepared on the basis o f  IFRS as well. The statutory consolidated and company financial statements are prepared 
in accordance with IFRS and Dutch law. Financial results and key operational and financial performance indicators 
are reported monthly and variances from plans and budgets are investigated and reported. 

Risk Management 

e The following secrion contains a selection of important risks that have been identified and for the management of 
which a process of setting strategies, controls and mitigating measures har been initiated. They nevertheless involve 
uncertainty that may lead to the acwal results differing from those projected. There may also be current risk; that  
the company har not  yet fully assessed but that could have a material impact on the company’s performance at a 
later stage. The company’s risk management and internal control system has been designed to timely identify and 
respond to these developments. but 100% assurance can never be achieved. 

Generic risks 
Risks Related to the Company and the Group 

The success and growth of the business depends on the continued macroeconomic and pharma market 
growth. 

The success and growth of the Company’s business has been linked to and will, to a larger extent depend on 
continued expected improvements in the Romanian macroeconomic environment and on the forecast growth of 
die local consumer spending and the pharmaceutical marker An economic slowdown in Romania could materially 
adversely affect die business, financial and operational results of the Company. 

Jhe Romanian public heakh sector regulations 

e The pharmaceutical industry in Romania heavily relies on Government policies relating to the public health 
system, defining the health insurance system and regulating the institutions responsible for monitoring and 
implementing such policies. 

In Romania, there i s  only one insurance body, namely the National House for Health Insurance (NHHI); 
NHHI has a monopoly in rhe Romanian pharmaceutical marker which i s  different to other European countries 

that have several insurance houses thatcreate a competitive marker This means thatthe NHHI does nor always act 
efficiently, uansparendy or in the best interests of contributions payers. 

Drug r+imbursement 

The Governmental health spending policy and level of state budget allocation towards drug reimbursements is 
an important element of the Romanian pharmaceutical retail sector. Reduction of state budget funds allocated to 
timely re-imbursement of pharmaceuticals purchased in the retail system would have a significant direct impact on 
revenues of al1 pharmacies in the marker including Sensiblu. 

Predidons of porliamen5 government authorities or public organizations 

Considering significant unexpected measures in the past the Company cannot accurately predict the nature 
of the measures that, may be adopted by legislative and governmental authorities o r  public organizations or their 
impact on  the Company’s subsidiaries’ revenues. e 
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Phormoceuticol industry and competition 

The pharmaceutical industry in Romania is  fragmented and price-competitive. Potential entry of major 
international industiy players and consequent consolidation may lead t o  further erosion o f  margins in the 
marker Even though market is fragmented. the smal1 players (especially from retaii) might organize themselves ~ 

info purchasing groups in order to increase the negotiation power based on bigger volumes. 

i 
Group exponsion ~ 

The Group plans to grow iu business through organic growth and also through domestic and international 
mergers and acquisitions. The,Group is currently looking into a possible expansion o f  die Group’s business into 
Bulgaria. Moldavia, Ukraine and Serbia. As al1 ofthese countries are emerging markets. the Group’s business may I 
be subject to greater risk, than in more developed counrries. 

Systerns foilures and deloys could horrn the Group’s business 

The Company and the Company’s subsidiaries manage their warehousing, logistical and point-of-sale 
operations through a variety o f  electronic mediums, including the intranet. networked personal computers 
and automated inventory management systems. These operations are heavily dependent on the integrity o f  
the electronic systems supporting thern. Mediplus’ and Sensiblu’s systems and operations are vulnerable to 
damage or interruption from human error, natura1 disasters. power loss, computer viruses. intentional acts of 
vandalism and similar events. 

Hurnon resource risks 

Company’s ability to retain highly skilled, committed as wel1 talented staff working in sales. marketing, finance. 
general management and human resources is critical t o  the Company’s future success. Within the l imiu of iu 
strategic direction, the cornpany is making huge and ongoing effortz v) manage the required processes. The 
Company may have co adjust the timing of its growth path due to  constraints or opponunities in this field. 

i 
I 

Risks Related to Sensiblu 
Risks ossocioted with the obility to hire ond retoin quolified phormocists 

The retail pharmaceutical business in Romania is  significantly dependent on the availability of licensed 
pharmacists. Sensiblu believes that iu benefits and training programs should enable it co actract, hire and retain 
qualified personnel. However. it may nor be able to attract hire and retain enough qualified pharmacists as the i.-L 

number of eligible candidates is limited t o  the pharmacist license holders in Romania. 
‘J 

a Dernogrophicol Restrictions 

The number o f  pharmacies to be opened in Romania i s  currently restricted by law according co demographical 
restrictions which are applied in a non transparent and potentially arbitrary manner. Sensiblu benefits from I 

high entry barriers set by the regulations. If the restrictions are liked or lessened. large international pharmacy L> 
chains may enter die Romanian pharmaceutical marker through acquisition of Romanian pharmaceutical chains c) 
and by organic growth which would lead to  further competition in the retail marker which may have a material 9 

‘A 

I 

adverse effect on the Company and its subsidiaries. 

Certoin leose ogreements have not been registered with the Land Book 
According to Romanian law. lease agreements with a term of over three years must be registered with 

the Land Book in order for the tenant co have protection in case the building owner change, which i s  the 
equivalent of a land regiscry in other countries. This lack o f  registration may lead t o  the lease agreements’ prior 
termination and may have a material adverse effect on the business and operations o f  Sensiblu. 

Certoin construction permits have nor been obtoined 

A significant number of Sensiblu pharmacies have been re-furbished without the relevant construction 
permit having been obtained from the City Hall. There is  a risk that Sensiblu may be fined by the City Hall with 
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up to EUR 100.000 in total for al1 pharmacies without a construction permit from the City Hall and may be 
required to return the buildings to the state they were prior to any refurbishment 

Risks Related to Mediplus 

Exchange rote fluctuotions moy affect Mediplus’ business 

More than 70 per cent, on average. of Mediplus’ products are imported. Since iu transition to a market 
economy. Romania har experienced several periods o f  material fluctuation in the value of iu currency. Despite 
the current strength of the Romanian economy, the risk of further currency fluctuation and devaluation 
continues. Depreciation of the RON against the Euro and the US dollar could increase the cost of acquiring 
key producu from Mediplus’ main suppliers. which could lead to reduced prof iu  denominated in RON. Any 
significant fluctuation in exchange rates may affect the Company’s subsidiaries’ profitability. Company’s aim is 
to mitigate iu currency exposure by hedging their open currency positions in order to protect the operating 
result against effects of currency fluctuations 

Incentives gronted by Mediplus to pharmocists and phormocies 

Mediplus isgrantingincentives to pharmacists, pharmacy assistants. in relation to the commercial relationships 
established between Mediplus and their pharmacies. Granting of these types of incentives i s  common practice in 
the Romanian wholesale pharmaceutical market t o  stimulate sales and mainrain or increase the market share of 
a wholesaler. Although a common market practice. the carrying out  o f  such activities may lead to administrative 
andlor other sanctions. 

Pharmoceuticol industry ond cornpetition 

The pharmaceutical wholesale industry in Romania is fragmented and price-competitive. Potential entry of 
major international industry players and consequent consolidation may lead t o  further erosion of margins in the 
market which would negatively affect the financial performance of the Group 

Distribution proctices moy be re-clossified or subject to odministrotive sanctions 
The Group’s subsidiaries have been involved in variour practices which may constitute violations of specific 

Romanian Iawsand regulationr regarding the wholesale. retail and advertisingof medical producuand medication. 
including of prescription drugs. These practices are common in the Romanian pharmaceutical market and. t o  
the Company’s knowledge. in relation to these practices no  sanctions have been applied to date. However, if 
investigated and proved. such practices may result in either the re-classification of certain transactions from 
a w standpoint or fines and other sanctions. Any such re-classification, fine or sanction may have a material 
adverse affect on  the business, resulu of operation o r  financial condition of the Group. 

a 

Lock ofupdated agreements with customen 

Due t o  frequent changes o f  the commercial conditions applied by Mediplus in  the relations carried out  wirh 
iu customers. Mediplus faces difficulties with executing amendments to its written agreements in due course, 
although new commercial conditions are periodically changed and therefore applied. Mediplus is considering 
creating ways for  an automatically up-dating process, but no system har been implemented in this respect 

Statement of compliance 
The Company was not  listed until October 2006, and therefore the Dutch and UK Codes only became 

effective as o f the  listing date. Since then, the Company has been working to fully implement the Dutch and UK 
Codes with the exception o f  the deviations described below. 

The Board is committed to report progresses on these matters to the General Meeting of Shareholders to 

a be held after 2007. 
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Company wil1 not  be able to comply with in 2007 and the following years. except the following: 

Best practice provisions 111.8.4 of the Dutch Code and A.3.2 of the U K  Codelll.8.4 Dutch Code 

- --7 
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The Company deviated from this best practice provision due to the fact that two of the Non Executive 
Directors held more than íive supervisory memberrhip in listed companies: Dr. David Ebsworth (Chairman) and 
Mr. Michael Wemms ( fo ra  short period o f  time). 

In both cases, the time commitment to the Company was clearly stated in the agreements concluded with 
the Non-Executive Directors. 

Dutch Code: Principle 111.7 Remuneration 

“[ ...I The remuneration o f  a supervisory board member is  not dependent on the results o f  the company.” 

As more detailed in the Remuneration Commiuee Report,the Chairman’s remuneration comprisesavariable 
part, dependent of the Company’s results. A t  the date of his appointmenc, the Chairman was independenr 

Dutch Code: Principle 111.5 Composition and role of three committees of the supervisory 
board 

U K  Code: provisions relating to  committees 

No commiuees were established in 2006. The Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Commiuees have been 
established on I 3  April 2007. 

Dutch Code and U K  Code: Information inclusion on the website 

The relevant information. as provided by the Dutch and UK Codes, was not included on the Company’s 
website. The Company undertakes to  comply with these requiremenu, as soon as reasonable possible in 2007 
and following yearr. 

U K  Code: Provision D.2.4 “The company should arrange for the Notice to  the ACM and related 
papers to be sent to  shareholders at least 20 working days before the meeting.” 

For the 2007 AGM the Company has applied the Dutch law and its Articles o f  Asrociation provisions. 
according co which “The convocation shall take place no later than on the 15th day prior to the date of 
meeting.“ 

Dutch Code: Provision IV.3.9 regarding Anti-takeover measures 

The Company did not prepare any policy relating to anti-takeover measures meant t o  prevent or discourage 
an unwanted takeover of the Company. 

U K  Code: Provision D.Z. I “At any general meeting, the company should propose a separate 
resolution on each substantially separate issue, and should in particular propose a resolution at 
the AGM relating to  the report and accounts” and C.I.1 “The directors should explain in the 
annual report their responsibility for preparing the accounts and there should be a statement by 
the auditors about their reporting responsibilities” 

For the reasons set out  in the Introduction to the Annual Reporr the Company has not proposed a 
resolution at  iu June’s AGM relating to  the 2006 Annual Report and Accounts, nor included in the previous 
revised version o f  the Annual Report a statement by the auditors about their reporting responsibilities. 
Shareholders wil1 have an opportunity co discuss and vote on the adoption o f  the final Annual Report a t  the 
extraordinary general meeting on September I O. 2007. 
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2. Remuneration Committee Report 
Introduction 

The Board of the Company determined co follow U K  Corporate Governance best practice in relation to I 
Executive remuneration for the year in question. Therefore this report has been prepared in accordance with ~ 

the spirit of The UK Directors’ Remuneration Report Regulations 2002 (the “Regulations”). The report also 
meets the relevant requiremenu of the U K  üsting Rules of the Financial Services Authority and describes how 
the Board has applied the Principles and complied with the provisions of the U K  Combined Code (the “Code”) j 
on Corporate Governance relating CO directors’ remuneration. It also meets the requirements of the Dutch i 
Corporate Governance Code regarding the Executive and Non-Executive Directors. ! 

The Board has decided. subject to shareholder approval at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the 
Cornpany (“2007 AGM’)to introduce an incentive plan for non-executive directors (fuii details are contained in 
the Shareholders’ Circular accompanying these Repon û Accounts). The Board recognises by doing so that it 
wil1 be in breach of both the UK and Dutch Codes. However, the Board and the Company’s major shareholders 
do nor believe that this aspect of UK and Dutch Corporate Governance Best Practice is  appropriate at this 
stage of the Company’s development It is  their opinion that the alignment o f  interests between the executive 
directors. non-executive directors and shareholders of the Company is  best achieved through the introduction 
of this plan. lt should be noted that benefits are only provided under the plan for achieving challenging absolute 
total shareholder returns over the performance period. 

Remuneration Committee 
The Remuneration Committee was established in April 2007 and the members are: 

Name Porition Date of Appoinbnent to Commit tee 

Michael Wemms Chainnan 13” April 2007 

Dr. David Ebrworth Member 13* April 2007 

Roger Akoury Member 13* April 2007 

The responsibility for the establishment of a remuneration policy and iks  COS^ is  a matter for the full Board, 
on the advice of the Remuneration Committee. The recommendations o f  the Remuneration Committee have 
been approved without amendment by the Board for submission to shareholders. The Remuneration Committee 
is  responsible for developing policy on remuneration for executive directors and senior management and for 
determining specific remuneration packages for each of the executive directors. 

The Remuneration Committee rnembers have no personal financial interest other than as shareholders in 
matters to  be decided. no potential conflicts of interests arising from cross directorships and no day-to-day 
involvement in running the business. 

During the period under review, the Board sought the assirtance o f  the Chief Executive on matters relating 
to directors’ performance and remuneration. N o  director takes part in discussions relating to their own 
remuneration and benefits. The Board and the Remuneration Committee appointed and received wholly 
independent advice on execurive compensation and share scheme design from Halliwell Consulting. No other 
sewices were provided CO the Company by Halliwell Consulting during the year. 

The Remuneration Comrnittee is  formally constituted with written t e r m  o f  reference with the full remit 
of the comrnittee role described. A copy of the t e r m  of reference is available to shareholders on request by 
writing to  the Company Secretary wil1 be posted on the Company’s website. www.adpharma.ro. 
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Philosophy behind Remuneration Committee's Approach 
j 

The policy is  designed t o  encourage. reward and retain the executives and the Remuneration Committee 
believes that shareholders' interests are best served by remuneration packages which have a large emphasis 
on performance related pay. Emphasis on  performance should encourage executives to focus on  delivering the 
business strategy and. by providing meaningful incentives t o  executives. ensure that the appropriate balance 
between fixed and performance related pay is  maintained. 

, .  

Remuneration Policy 
The Remuneration Committee wil1 review on an annual basis whether i ts  remuneration policy remains 

appropriate for the relevant financial year. Factors taken into account by the Remuneration Committee 
include: - - 
* changing market pracrice; 
* 

In line with this general review the Committee specifically considered the appropriate equity incentive 
arrangemenu for the directors and other senior executives of the Company. This process led t o  the design o f  
the A & D  Pharma 2007 Long-Term Incentive Plan (the "2007 LTIP) which it is intended to operate following 
the 2007 AGM and conditional on shareholders passing an ordinary resolution approving the Plan at this 
meeting. 

market conditions affecting the Company; 
the recruitment marker in the Company's sector; 

changing views of institutional shareholders and their representative bodies. 

Policy for 2006 & 2007 

In al1 other respeccs the policy applied during 2006 wil1 continue t o  apply for 2007. The Board's policy 
during 2006 was t o  set the main elemenu of the remuneration package at the following quartiles in comparison 
to the Company's Comparator Group: 

Potential Totai Potential Potential Total 
Benefits S h o r t - T e m  Annual Compenration 

Remuneration Share 
available Awards 

Annual 

Potential 

Value e in kind Bonus Pension Base 
ralary 

Lower 
auanile 

Upper quaniie 

Maximum 
bonus payoutr 

are only earned 
byexecuùves 
for achieving 

upper quartile 
performance. 

Median 

The remuneration 

Marker 
Median practice 

package wiil provide 
lower quartiie 

tota short-term 
remuneration unless 
high levels of bonus 

paymentr are eamed 
by executives. 

Median Median 

The remuneration package wil1 
provide a lower quanile total 

compenration value unless 
executives earn their bonus 

payouts and satisíy the performance 
conditions amched to their share 

incentives. Maximum bonus and 
share incentive payments wil1 
only occur for upper quanile 

performance. 

Comparator Group 
The Company's Comparator Group is  made up predominantly o f  UK and European companies o f  comparable 

- pharmaceuticals; 
- wholesale pharmaceuticals; and 
- retail. 

market capitalisation t o  the Company drawn from the following sectors: 
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Balance between Fixed 81 Performance Based Compensation 
The chart below demonstrater the proposed balance between fixed and variable performance based 

compensation for each executive director for the forthcoming financial year following the introduction o f  the 
proposed LTIP 

Balance B e t w e e n  F ixed & Per fo rmance  Based Compensa t ion  (Var iab le Compensat ion)  

I _ _  . . .. . . - 
f I - O n  Taqet Bonus Available u 

d Claudiu Op- 

Fixed Compensation - Vanable Compensation - 
Elements of Executive Directors’ Remuneration 

Basic Salary 

For 2ûfJ7 the Remuneration Committee has applied the criteria set out  below to determine the salaries 
payable: 

Name 2007 Salary Quarti le Porition 

Dranor Dinu - Chief Execurive OHicer € 226.000 Lower Ouarrile 
I 

Florin Buligoanea - Cn cf Finance Oñicer 

Vivian Diaconercu - C O 0  Wholcsale € 165.000 LowerQuanie . , 
E 206.000 Lower Quaniic - 

1 

Claudiu Opran - C O 0  Retail € I 13,000 Lower Quartle I 

Refeirncer ro quaniler are co quamiler in rhe Compararor Group. The r a l q  Fgurer above are gmrred up fmm rhe nec pay figurer “ring CC‘ 
an appmximsre mx rate of 3 0 8  j.D 

! 
,.J 

the levels of base ralary for similar positions with comparable status, responsibiiity and skilis, in organisations a 
of  broadly similar size and complexity. in particular the lower quartile salary levels o f  those comparable Q 

w 

the performance of the individual executive director; 

the individual executive director’s experience and responsibilities; and 

pay and conditions throughout the Company. 

When determining the ralary of the executives the Committee takes int0 consideration: 
* 

companies within the pharmaceutical retail sector and the Comparator Group; 
* 

* - 
Annual Performance Related Bonus 

Bonus payments are nor pensionable. The foliowing tables summarise the main features of the Company’s 
executive bonus plan. 
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Bonus 
Dragos Florin Vivian 

Dinu Buliaoanea Diaconescu 
Claudiu Opran 

Maximum Annual Bonus Potential (%ge of Salary) 

COrnDan" No max imum 

100% 100% 100% 100% 

E: 14.1 80 
6.4% 2006 Bonus Paid (&as %ge of Saiary) 

€0 €73.787 
0% 119.3% 

€17.1 21 
26.4% 

Median Bonus Paymenrs in the 
Comparator Group as a %ge of 37% 24% 55% 55% 
Sal7d-y 

100% 100% 100% 100% New Policy Maximum Bonus Potential 
for 2007 

Refermces to quaniler are w quartiler in the Comparator Gmup. 

The bonuses for 2006 have been paid on the basis of the level of the satisfaction of various performance 
conditions including EBITDA, market share, logistic activity and control of expenses. 

The maximum bonus potential has been set at 100% of'salary. with effect from I January 2007. The 
performance conditions for the annual bonus plan are reviewed and agreed by the Remuneration Committee 
at the beginning of each íinancial year to ensure that they are appropriate t o  the current market conditions 
and position of the Company in order t o  ensure that they continue zo remain challenging. Aíter reviewing 
the bonus targets the Remuneration Committee has set similar budgeted íinancial Performance targets and 
personal effectiveness targets for the executive bonus plan for 2007. 

Share Incentives 

Old LTIP 

e In 2002, the Board o f  the Company put in place an equity based incentive plan for certain members of the 
senior and middle management of the Company. The plan involves a cash payment linked to the value of the 
Company's shares (with the aggregate number o f  reference shares being a maximum of  7% of the Company's 
issued share capital). The value o f  the cash payments were based on the offer price o f  the Company's shares on 
flotation. Participants in the plan are required to repay the bonus if they are employed by a competitor within 
I2  months of the date of payment 

New LTIP 
The Remuneration Committee's policy is to provide annual share grants t o  executives a t  the median level 

compared t o  the Comparator Group. Share incentives, excluding al1 employee plans, wil1 be provided through 
the proposed "A&D Pharma 2007 Executive Long-Term Incentive Plan" that is to be p u t t o  shareholders at the 
forrhcoming 2007 AGM. details of which are provided in the separate circular. No g r a m  were made during 
the year under any discretionary share plan. 

Dilution 
The Company intends to operate al1 iu share arrangemenu (both discretionary and al1 employee) within 

the UK Association of British Insurers Guidelines on dilution. The AB1 Guidelines provide that the Company 
can issue a maximum of  10% of iu issued share capital in a rolling ten year period t o  employees under al1 i t s  
share plans. In addition. of this 10% the Company can only issue 5% to satisfy awards under discretionary or 
executive plans. e 
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Pension 

Defined Contribution Plan 
The executive directors should receive payment into a defined contribution pension arrangement equal to 

10% of net base salary. This arrangement is not applied for  the moment 

Benefits in Kind 

The Company provides normal benefits in kind for executives of this level in a company of thir size, such as 
company cars. healthcare and permanent health insurance. 

Other Remuneration Matters 
Executive Directors' Contracts 
Details of the service conuacts o f  the executive directors of the Company are as follows: . .  

Potential 
Termination 

Payment 

Company Notice Contract Contract Lapse 
Period date Date 

01.10.06 3 1.1 2.08 

Ol.IO.06 3 1.1 2.08 

Name 

Dragor Dinu 
Chief Executive Oficer 

Florin Buligoanea 
Chief Financial Officer 

Vivian Diaconescu 
C O 0  Wholerale 

Claudiu Opran 
C O 0  Retail 

12 months 

I 2  months 
See table below for 

Details 
01.10.06 3 1.1 2.08 I2 monrhr 

01.10.06 3 1.1 2.08 12 months 

Al1 uecut ive  directorr' c o n m m  are renewable 16 monthr from date of appoinrmenr 

Termination 
r 
21 

I 
The following table sets out the entitlements and penalties for the various circumstances surrounding the 

termination of an executive'r employment with the Company: <L! 
i 

Executive Giver Notice Company Gives Notice ,L' 

No Employment New No Employment c3 N e w  
Employment 

by Compet i tor  

Element o r  Employment Employment or Employment Summary '3 
with a Non- Dirmirral *.J bY w i th  a Non- 

Compet i tor  Compet i tor  Compet i tor  

Salary for I 2  monthr Yes Yes Yes Yes No 

75% of Total Cash 
Compenration for 
24 monthr (salary No Yes (ree note 2) No Yes (ree note 2) No 
and bonus) -(ree 
note I) 

Penalty Payment 
(ree note 3) Yes (ree note 3) Yes (ree note 3) No No No 
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Note I: rhe payment is being made to cornpenrate the executive for agreeing n m  fo work with a competitor of the Company dwing 
this 14 month perbd. The limited pool of experienced executiver in he Cornpany’r market maker the employment of iu exewtivei very 
stvactive fo current or pctential competirorr. Therefore the Remunention Commiuee felt that it was errential that there pmririonr 
were inciuded in the service agreements to pmtect the Company’r commercial intererts and in thir care these inrereru rake precedence 
over UK corporate governanre best practice diat rtated notice payments rhould nol exceed I 2  monthr ralary. 

Note 2: thhe Company har the right to offret any eamingr received by the executive as a rerut of hir employment pmviding similar 
services ro anorher company againrt its liability to make the paymenr 

Note  3: the executive is liable for the following payment if he volunrarily terminates his employment prior to the Conuact Lapre 
Date set out nbove. 

Liabiiitv on Termination of EmDiovment . .  
Period Period 

Ol.lO.2007 to 3 i .i 2.08 Name 

Dragos Dinu E3million €I.Smiliion 

E1.Smillion Florin Buligoanea €3million 

Vivian Diaconescu E3million €I Smillion 

Claudiu Oaran €lmiliion f0.5million 

O i. 10.2006 to 30.09.2007 

This penalty payments structure has been put in place to discourage executives departing in order CO 

maintain the stability of the executive team. 

The Remuneration Commiuee wil1 ensure that there have been no unjustified payments for fii lure on an 
executive director’s termination of employment. There are no special provisions in the contracts o f  employment 
extending notice periods on a change of control o r  liquidation of the Company. 

Chairman 
The Chairman is entitled to.an annual fee o f  €120,000. For each full day worked in excess o f  40 days in 

the year he is entitled t o  an additional fee of €3,000 per day. The current expected time commitment of the 
Chairman is 96 days per annum. The Chairman’s appointment is for  a fixed term o f  four years. 

The Chairman is also entitled to an additional fee at the end o f  his initia1 term as Chairman. The additional 
fee i s  equivalent to the aggregate of I% of  the total Company shareholder return in excess of a 15% return (the 
“threshold) in respect o f  each complete year o f  the term. If the N e w  Europe Blue Chip Index falls by more 
than 10% in any year, the threshold for that year wil1 be reduced by i% for every I% drop in the Index greater 
than 10%. Accrued elements o f  the additional fee wil1 receive interest a t  a rate of 2% above EURIBOR until 
the date of  paymenr O n  a change o f  control the Chairman is entitled t o  a payment equivalent CO the accrued 
element of the additional fee at the date of the change of control and a payment equivalent t o  the additional fee 
that would have been earned had the mean average toral shareholder return for the previous completed years 
o f  the term continued until ics normal end. There are similar provisions if the Chairman leaves the Company 
as a “good leaver” i.e. death. 

Non-Executive Directors 
The remuneration o f  the non-executive directors is  determined by the Board based upon recornmendations 

from the Chairman and Chief Executive (or. in the case o f  the Chairman. based on recommendations from 
the Senior Independent Non-Executive Director and the Chief Executive). The individual fee levels are as 
follows: 

Additional Fee for Working more than 40 dayr 
Per dl” Name Basic fee € 

Michael Wernms €70,oM) f I .200 

Urr Karnber €80,000 €2,000 

Ludovic Robert €0 
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Additionai Fee for Work ing more  than 40 days 
Name Basic fee E 

Per day 

Michel Eid €0 €0 

Roeer Akoun €0 €0 

Walid Abboud €0 €O 

Non-executive directors do nor currently participate in any bonus plan or share incentive programme 
operated by the Company and are nor entided t o  pension contributions or other beneíits provided by the 
Company. It should be noted *at subject co shareholder approval a new incentive plan is being implemented 
for the non-executive directors (fuii details are set out  in the Shareholders’ Circular accompanying these 
Report & Accounts). The non-executive directors’ appointments are for f ixed- term of three yean. The termr 
and conditions o f  appointment of che non-executive directors are available for inspeccion. 

Total Shareholder Return Performance Graph 
The graph shows the Company’s performance, measured by tocal shareholder return. compared co the 

constituencs of the N e w  Europe Blue Chip Index which the Committee has selected on the basis thar it 
provides a good indication of the Company’s share price performance against the general market. 

Total Shareholder  R e t u r n  from D a t e  of F lo ta t i on  

__ A&D Phama - New Europe Blue Chiplndex 

Directors‘ Emoluments 
The total of directors‘emoluments in the year was €681,964. 

e 
-4 

The remuneration of each director. during the year ended 31 December 2006 is set ou t  in the cable 
below. 

Annuai performance 
related bonus 

Basic ralarylfeer Pension Totai 

Executive directors 
Dragor Dinu 
Florin Buligoanea 
Vivian Diaconercu 
Claudiu Opran 

202,349 
135,719 
6 I ,843 
64,890 

14.180 21 6.529 
O 135.71 9 

73.787 135,630 
19.65’6 84.586 
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Annual períormance 
related bonus Pension Basic salav/fees Total 

Non-executive directorsl 
Dr. David Ebsworth €72.000 €72.000 
Michael Wemms €17.500 €I 7,500 
Urr Karnber €20,000 €20,000 
Ludovic Roben €0 €0 
Michel Eid EO €0 
Roger Akoury EO €O 
Walid Abboud EO €0 

Total €574,301 'E 107.663 €681,964 

e Note I: The Executive Directors a l m  receive the benefir of a company car (the purchase yailue of which is beween E45.W 
rnd é55,Wû). 
Note 2: The Non-Execucive Directom were appoinred on the 9th October 2w6 and die payrnen~ relate to the period fmm thir date. 

LTIP Payments I 
The following table seu out  the payrnents t o  the executives as a result of the old LTIP (described above) 

and the repayment provisions if they voluntary terminate their ernployment with the Cornpany (see above 
section on executive directors' contracts): 

Penalty Payment 

Executive Date of Payment Value on Date of Period O1 .I 0.2006 Period O1 .I 0.2007 

€ €mill ion émill ion 
Payment to 30.09.2007 to 3 1.1 2.08 

Dragor Dinu 25 October 2W6 4.454.600 3 I .5 
_ _ _ _ ~  

Florin Buligoanea 25 October 2006 4.454.600 3 I .5 

Vivian Diaconescu 25 October 2006 3.8 I 8.200 3 I .s 
Claudiu Ooran 25 October 2006 I.272.800 I 0.5 

e No options o r  LTIP awards apart from those mentioned in the table above were granted or held by the 
directors during the year. 

By order o f  the Board 
Michael Wemms 
Remuneration Cornmittee Chairman 
I June 2007 

3. Disclosures reauired mrsuant to the Decree 
imdementing Article I6 of the EU Takeover " 
D i kect ive 
Share capital structure 

The Company's authorized share capital amounu to E 220,000.000. consisting of 220,000,000 ordinary shares, 
with a nominal value of 'E per share, of which 200.000,M)O shares have been issued and have been fully paid up. 
Shares can be issued in registered forrn only. N o  share certificates rnay be issued for shares. 

As of 24 November 2006 a nurnber of 68,096,394 shares are publicly traded on the London Stock Exchange, - 
in the form of Regulation S GDRs, each GDR representing six ordinary shares, with a nominal value of 'E 1.00 
each. e 
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The Company and Citibank N.A., acting in its capacity as depositary, have established a depositary receipt 
tácility for the issuance of Rule 144A GDRs. although no Rule 144A GDRs were issued. 

Transfer restrictions 
Due to  the following restrictions. holders of GDRs are advised to consult legal counsel prior to making 

any offer, resale, pledge or other transfer of the Regulations S GDRs. the Rule 144A GDRs or the shares i 

represented thereby. 

Regulation 5 GDRs 

The Regulation S GDRs and the shares represented thereby have not been, and wil1 no t  be, registered I 
under the Securities Act or with any securities regulatory aurhority o f  any state in the United States or other ~ 

jurisdiction. and may nor be offered or sold within the United States. The Regulation S GDRs and the shares ! 
represented thereby may only be offered. sold o r  delivered outside the United States in offshore transactions in 
reliance on Regulation S, and in each case in accordance with any other applicable law. 

Rule 144A GDRs 
To the excent any Rule I44A GDRs (including those irrued in exchange for Regulation S GDRs) are issued in 

thefutureandfor solongas such Rule 144AGDRsare“reswictedsecurities”withinthemeaningof Rule 144(a)(3) 
under the Securities A c t  such Rule 144A GDRs and the shares represented thereby may only be offered. sold or 
delivered within the United States to qualified institutional buyers (as defined in Rule i44A) (“QiBs”) in reliance 
on the exemption from the regiswation requirements of the Securities Act provided by Rule 144A. 

Notwithstanding anything to rhe contrary in the foregoing. the GDRs may not be deposited into any 
unrestricted depositary receipt facility in respect of GDRs established or maintained by a depositary bank. 

The Rule 144AGDRs offered in relianceon Rule 144Awill beevidenced bythe Master Rule 144AGDR. Before 
any interest in the Master Rule 144A GDR may be offered. sold. pledged or othemise transferred t o  a perron 
who takes delivery in the form of an interest in the Master GDR. it wil1 be required to provide the Depositary 
with a wriuen certification (in the form provided in the Rule 144A Deposit Agreement) as to compliance with 
applicable securities laws. 

To the extent (if any) that  Rule I 44A GDRs may be offered and sold, holders may be relying on the exemption + 
-4 from the provisions of Section 5 of the Securities Act followed by Rule 144A. 

General 
u2 

Any r e d e  or other transfer, or auempted resale or other transfer, made othemise than in compliance , 
with the above-stated restrictions shall not be recognized by the Company o r  the Depositary in respect of the  r.^ 

*” Regulation S GDRs, the Rule 144A GDRs or  the shares represented thereby. 

Disclosure ofrnojor shareholdings ond copitol interests 

According to the provisions of Act on the Disclosure of Major Shareholdings and Capital Interesu in 
Securities-lssuing Institutions. certain shareholders and the executive and non-executive directors holding 
interests in the irsuing company have the obligation to disclose to the Dutch Authority for Financial Markers 
(AFM) their holdings in the company. in order to increase transparency regarding major shareholdings and 
capiral interests in securities-issuing institutions. 

The information regarding the major shareholdings and capital interests i s  made available to AFM by way of 
notifications filed by the shareholders and directors concerned. and is  published on the AFM’s website. at www. 
afm.nl. 
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As at 21 May 2007, according to the AFM’s website. two major holdings were posted: 

Active Pharma Invert Ltd. which holds 58.95% capital interesu in the Company. and which directly (for 58.5% 
capital interesu) and potentially (tor 0.45% capital interests) exercises i ts  voting r ighu in the Company, 

* 

1 through iu subsidiary Sograno B.V., Date of disdosure: I November 2006. 
* JP Morgan Chase & Co, which holds 5% capital interesu in the Company, and which can potentially exercises 

its voting righu in the Company, through i ts  subsidiaries JP Morgan Investment Management Inc.. JF Asset 
Management Ltd.. JPMorgan Asset Management (lapan) Ltd., JPMorgan Asset Management (UK) Limited. Date 
ofdisclosure: I November 2006. 

Date afdisclosure: I November 2006. 

posted: 

* 

As at 21 May 2007, according to the AFM’s website. the following directors’ holdings in the Company were 

Dragos Dinu. Executive Director, Chief Executive Officer. who holds 4,454,600 shares, representing 2.2273% 
capital interests. 
Date ofdisclosure: I November 2006. 
Florin Buligoanea. Executive Director, Chief Finance Officer. who holds 4,454,604 shares, representing 
2.2273% capital interesu, 
Date ofdisdosure: I November 2006. 

Vivian Diaconescu. Executive Director. Chief Operating ORicer Wholesale Business, who holds 3,818,200 
shares, representing 1.909 I% capital interesu, 
Date ofdisdosure: I November 2006. 

Claudiu Opran, Executive Director. Chief Operating Cíficer Retail Business, who holds 1,272,600 shares, 
representing 0.6363% capital interesu. 
Date ofdisclosure: I November 2006. 

Dr. David Ebsworth, Non-Executive Director, Chairman of the Board of Directors, who holds I8.000 shares, 
representing 0.01% capital interests. 
Dote ofdisclosure: I November 2006. 

* 

- 
* 

Voting rights 

GDR holders wil1 have no direct voting r ighu with respect to the shares represented by the GDRs. They 
wil1 be able to exercise voting r ighu with respect to the shares represented by GDRs only in accordance 
with the provisions of the relevant Deposit Agreement relating to the GDRs and relevant requirements o f  the 
Company’s Articles of Association and Dutch law. which provide for a proxy being granted to the holder upon 
request by such holder. provided the proxy i s  submiaed to the Board of Directors 5 days prior to the meeting 
of shareholders. There are, therefore. cemin  practica1 limitations on the ability of GDR holders to  exercise their 
voting r ighu due to the additional procedural steps involved in communicating with hem.  Under the Company’s 
Articles o f  Association. the Board of Directors can set a registration date for determining which shareholders o r  
GDR holders have the right to aaend and vote at the meeting o f  shareholders. 

Rules governing the oppointment and dismissal of manoging directors and supervisory diredon and 
arnendment ofthe Articles ofAssociotion 

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, the Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors 
are appointed by the General Meeting, for a period of up t o  four years. Re-appointment is possible, but each time 
f o r a  period of up to  four years. 

Any suspension or dismissal of directors (Executive and Non-Executive) can only be made by the General 
Meeting, based on a resolution that is well-motivated. Any suspension may be extended one or more times, but 
may not last longer than three months in the aggregate. If at the end of that period no decision has been taken 
on termination of the suspension. or on dismissal, the suspension shall cease. 
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When a proposal of the Board o f  Directors to amend the Articles o f  Association o f  the Company is  made 
t o  the General Meeting, this must be mentioned in the notification of the General Meeting o f  Shareholders and 
a copy of the proposal including the text o f  the proposed amendment must a t  the same time be deposited and 
held available a t  the Company’s office for inspection by the shareholders and the GDRs holders until the end of 
the meeting. Such copy wil1 also be available for inspection a t  the General Meeting o f  Shareholders. 

Resoiutions on the appointment and dismissal of directors and on the amendment of the Articles of 
Association can be adopted by simple maiority. 

Jhe powen ofthe managing board, in particular the power to issue or reporchase shares ofthe 
company 

In the Articles. the power t o  decide on any further issuance of shares or righu for shares and on the t e r m  
and conditions thereof, has been delegated to  the Board of Directors. This delegation prevenu the General 
Meeting from deciding on the issue of shares o r  the granring of rights t o  subscribe for shares and is valid for 
a period of five years. ending on 19 June 201 I. The delegation is  limited CO the Company’s authorized share 
capital from time t o  time. Therefore. under the current Articles. the Board o f  Directors has the right to issue an 
additional 20Aûû.000 shares without the need to amend the Arcicles. The delegation to the 

Board of Directors may be extended for periods of up to five years by a resolution o f  the General Meeting. 
In the absence of a resolution extending the delegation the General Meeting shall have the aurhority to issue 
shares and grant the right CO subscribe for shares. 

Shares may not be issued ar less than their nominal value. The nominal value o f  shares and share premium (if 
any) must be fully paid up upon issue. Each holder o f  shares har pre-emptive rights to subscribe for any shares 
or rights to subscribe for shares. Pre-emptive rights are in proportion to the percentage of outstanding shares 
that the holder owns. Pre-emptive r ighu do nor apply t o  shares (or rights co subscribe for shares) issued for a 
non-cash consideration, to shares (or rights to subscribe for shares) issued to  employees of the Company or its 
affiliates o r  to shares issued to a perron who exerciser a previously acquired right to subscribe for shares. The 
Board of Directors has been delegated the authority to exclude o r  limit pre-emptive rights o f  holders of shares, 
which delegation is valid for a period o f  five years. ending on I9 June 20 I I, and may at  any time be extended for 
periods of up to five years by a resolution of the General Meeting. 

A resolution o f  the Board o f  Directors to limit or exclude pre-emption rights in the event o f  the issuance 
o f  shares or the granting of rights t o  subscribe for shares requires the prior approval o f  the General Meeting. 
It should be noted. however. that the absence of approval of the General Meeting does not affect the ability of 
the Management Board to exclude or  limit pre-emptive rights. The Board of Directors shall apply the Statement 
o f  86 Principle5 of the UK Pre-Emption Group when deciding on the exclusion or limitation of pre-emptive 
rights. 

Acquisition by the Company ofits own shares 

The Company may acquire fully paid-up shares in iu own capital for no consideration or if the following 

a) the General Meeting has authorized the Board of Directors CO make the acquisition (which authorization 
can be valid for no more than I 8  months). specifying the maximum number o f  shares that may be acquired. 
the manner in which such shares may be acquired and the l im iu  within which the price must be seC 

b) the Company’s equity. after deduction of the acquisition price. is no t  less than the amount o f  the paid-up 
and called portion o f  share capital plus the reserves that the Company has t o  maintain under Dutch law 
or the Articles; 

c) the Company and its subsidiaries would as a result o f  such acquisition no t  hold, or hold as pledgee. 
shares with an aggregate nominal value exceeding one-tenth o f  the Company’s issued share capital. 

conditions are met: 

i 
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The Articles provide that the Company shall be able to acquire shares in order to transfer these shares 
under employee stock option or stock purchase plans, without an authorization of the General Meeting being 
required. The Board of Directors has nor been authorized to acquire shares in the Company’s own capital. 

i. . 

Shares held by die Company or i ts  subsidiaries cannot be voted on o r  counted for quorum purposes at 
shareholders’ meetings. 

l~ Significant agreements afeaed by the change of control clause 

Citibank Loan Agreement I 
I 

O n  I 3  July 2006. the Company’s subsidiaries (A&D Pharma Holdings SA, Ideapharm, Mediplus and Sensiblu), 
as borrowers. entered int0 a EUR 100 million syndicated loan agreement with Citibank N.A., London as 
arranger, Citibank International Plc as agent, HVB Bank Romanian S.A. as issuing bank and Citibank Romanian 
S.A as security agent, (the “Citibank Loan Agreement”). The lenders under the Citibank Loan Agreement 
are: Bank Austria Creditanstalt AG, Piraeus Bank S.A. (London Branch), Alpha Bank AE. BRD Groupe Société 
Genéralé SA, EFG Private Bank (Luxembourg), ING Bank N.V. Dublin Branch. Invesrkredit Bank AG, Raiffeisen 
Bank SA, Citibank Romania SA, MKB Bank RT Budapest and Banca Romaneasca S.A. 

The Citibank Loan Agreement contains certain customary events of default (which, in case of occurrence. 
wil1 generate an accelerated loan repayment) including, inter alia, change of control. but subject to certain 
exceptions. 

Supply agreements 
There is a certain number of supply agreements to which Mediplus is party, which could be affected as result 

of the exercire by the suppliers of the right CO terminate the agreement in case of change of control. 

The suppliers concerned are: Abborr GmbH & Co.KG Germany. Bayer SRL Romania. Eli Lilly Export SA 
SwiQeriand. GSK Healthcare Hungary, Roche Romania Srl. Krka d.d.. Nov0  mesto, Slovenia. Pierre Fabre 
Dermo- Cosmetique France, Reckit Benckiser Healthcare Eastern Europe Czech Republic. Laboratories Urgo 
France. 

I 
/ ‘ I  , 

‘ 8  , 

4. United Kingdom Tax Considerations 
United Kingdom Tax Considerations 

The following discussion i s  a summary o f  certain United Kingdom tax considerations relating to an invertment 
in the GDRs. The comments below are of a general nature based on  current United Kingdom law and H M  
Revenue and Customs’ published practice as a t  the date hereof. They do no t  necessarily apply to al1 categories 
o f  investor. Prospective investon are urged to consult their own tax advisers prior t o  investing with respect to 
their own particular circumstances. In particular, these commenu do not  apply to the following: 

* - investors who are nor the beneficia1 owner of GDRs; 

investors who do not  hold their GDRs as capita1 assets; 

special classes of investor such as dealers, broker dealers, insurance cornpanies and investment 
companies; 

investors who own (or are deemed to own) 10 per cent. o r  more of the Company’s voting rights o r  
GDRr: 

investors who hold the GDRs as part of hedging or conversion transactions: or 

* 

- 
* investors who have (or are deemed to have) acquired their GDRs by virtue of an office or ernployment 

O 
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Withholding tax 
Dividend payments in respect of GDRs may be made without withholding or deduction for or on account o f  

United Kingdom income tax. 

Taxation of dividends 
Dividends received by investors who are resident in the United Kingdom for tax purposes or carrying on a 

trade. profession or  vocation in the United Kingdom through a branch or  agency- or, in the case of a corporate 
investor. a permanent establishment in connection with which the GDRs are held, wil1 generally be subject 
t o  United Kingdom income tax or corporation fax, as the case .may be. on the gross amount of any dividend 
paid before the deduction of any Dutch withholding taxes. Credit may be piven for Dutch fax withheld (and 
nor recoverable from the Dutch tax aurhorities) subject to the United Kingdom tax rules regarding calculation 
and availability o f  such credit including taking al1 rearanable steps to minimise the arnount of Dutch rax on the 
dividends. See "- Netherlands Tax Considerations - Dutch dividend withholding tax". 

An individual investor who is resident but not domiciled in the United Kingdom wil1 generally be subject to 
United Kingdom income tax on dividends received to the extent that  such dividends are remitted to  the United 
Kingdom or deemed to be remiued to the United Kingdom. A dividend is remitted to the United Kingdom if it is 
paid to the United Kingdom or transmiued or brought to the United Kingdom in any way. 

A dividend may also be treated as remitted to the United Kingdom under certain anti-avoidance legislation 

Taxation of disposals 
For the purpores of United Kingdom taxation on chargeable gains. the disposal of GDRs by investors which 

are companies within the charge to  United Kingdom corporation tax (by reason of being resident in the United 
Kingdom or carrying on a trade through a permanent establishment in the United Kingdom to which the GDRs 
are auributable) may. depending on the investor's circumstances. give rise to a chargeable gain or allowable loss. 

A disposal of GDRs by an investor who is  an individual who is  iesident or ordinarily resident in die United' 
Kingdom or who carries on a wade. profession or vocation in the United Kingdom through a branch or  agency 
to  which rhe GDRs are auributable may give rise to  a chargeable gain o r  an allowable loss for the purposes of 
United Kingdom taxation of chargeable gains. Any chargeable gains may. depending on die individual's personal 
circumstances. be reduced or  offset by available exemptions or reliefs from capital gains tax. including the 
annualexemption and taper relief. 

An individual investor who is  resident or ordinarily residen5 but not domiciled. in the United Kingdom, and 
who does nor carry on a trade in the United Kingdom. wil1 be liable for United Kingdom capital gains tax only to 
the extent that the chargeable gains made on the disposal of GDRs are remitted o r  deemed to be remiued to  
the United Kingdom. Dealings in the GDRs on the London Stock Exchange may give rise to remitted prof iu that 
would. therefore. give rise t o a  United Kingdom capital gains tax liability. 

An individual investor who is  neirher resident nor ordinarily resident in rhe United Kingdom for tax purposes 
and who does not return to the United Kingdom within five years of the disposal o f  GDRs wil1 not normally be 
liable for United Kingdom m a t i o n  on chargeable gains realised on the disposal of such GDRs unless. at the time 
of the disposal. such investor carries on a wade. profession or  vocation in the United Kingdom through a branch 
or agency to  which the GDRs are attributable. 

Stamp duty 
No liability t o  United Kingdom stamp duty or stamp duty reserve tax wil1 arise on the issue of GDRs to 

United Kingdom stamp duty wil1 not normally be payable in connection with a transfer of GDRs provided that 
the instrument of transfer i s  executed and retained outside the United Kingdom, the GDR register and the GDR 
register is not held in the United Kingdom and no other action is taken in the United Kingdom by the transferor 
o r  transferee. 

investors. 

No United Kingdom stamp dury reserve fax wili be payable in respect of any agreement to transfer GDRs. 

67 



Corpora te  social responsibil i ty a 

A&D Pharma - Fully dedicated to health and 
life 

A & D  Pharma is  a company actively involved in  the community through both Sensiblu and 
Mediplus. In order to fulfill i ts commiunentto the community. A & D  Pharma launched the Sensiblu 
Foundation as part of h e  corporate social responsibility of the Group. 

The management team of the Group believes that a healthy company is a socially responsible 
company. Here are some examples of our activities: 

Sensiblu Foundation 
As a healthcare company, A & D  Pharma is constantly linked to people's health and the social 

fabric and believes that it is  iks duty t o  offer support to the community and t o  contribute as 
much as it can co the social well-being. In March 2002. the Sensiblu Foundation set the goal of 
being closer to people in need and to improve their lives. The Sensiblu Foundation is the only 
Romanian corporate foundation to provide direct support services for people in need. 

cos0 Blu 

The principal project of the'sensiblu Foundation, Casa Blu. targets victims o f  domestic 
violence. for whom the fund offers long-term shelter and reintegration counseling in order to 
help victims t o  rebuild their disrupted lives. Employees and volunteers. many who specialize in 
sociology, law. and psychology. work to help women and children. Women receive assistance in 
finding employment, raising children and becoming reintegrated in their community. The project 
has received many awards from various organizations and institutions and demonstrater A & D  
Pharma's commitment to the community. 

a 

In 2006, 1,600 women and children benefited from direct, telephone o r  on-line counseling 
from Cara Blu. During this period, 8 women and 8 children were placed in the temporary 
shelter for 4 months. 
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Casa Blu Project is  an example of successful public-private partnership. O u r  traditional public 
partners are the City Halls and Police Department. 

Porents School 

Duringthe first half of 2006. the Sensiblu Foundation implemented a new program - P a r e n t r  i 
School  - addressing the dysfunctional relationships between mothers and children. P a r e n t r  ; 
School  is an educational group which focuses on developing the concept of motherhood and 
improving mother - child relationships using psycho-dramatic techniques and art. The program ; 
addresses abused women from the Casa Blu program who have one or more children. 

! 
W e  offered support for 454 individuals in 2006. In 2007, the Parenu School wil1 be developed 

in partnership with a public school and wil1 be addressed t o  those parenu whose children study 
in that institution. 

Restroining order lobbying project 

restraining order system under the existing Criminal Code. 

V-Doys Cornpoign 

In line with the international activities of other non-governmental organizations with similar 
concerns, during November 25th - December 10th the foundation held the third VDays  
Campaign. with 16 days o f  programs against gender related violence. Developed under the 
slogan “lf you lose control. someone else could lose their life”. the campaign emphasized that 
violence against women is  a breach of human rights with extremely serious effects on the family 
as a social institution. 

’ 

The Sensiblu Foundation har also been actively involved in lobbying for the introduction o f  a 

The General Directorate of the Bucharest Police. the Mayoralty o f  District 3, the General 
Directorate o f  Social W o r k  and Child Protection. the National Agency for Family Protection and 
the Ecumenical Association o f  Churches in Romania were our partners in t h i s  campaign. 

The main activities developed under this program included: 

White Ribbon campaign - the white ribbon symbolizes a man’s pledge to never commir. 
condone or remain silent about violence against women 

Silent Witness exhibition - a  memorial for al1 women murdered by a family member in 2006, 
in Bucharesr; each victim was represented by a red silhouette ”telling” the victim’s story 
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- 
- The messages against violence were reinforced by priests in Bucharest churches 

The campaign ended with a candle light outdoor ceremony. in the memory o f  murdered 
women 

During the 16 day program, the Sensiblu Foundation team and 30 volunteers distributed 

Q 
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more than 15,000 flyers, calendars and white ribbons to the public. 

Aid for flood vicürns 

The Sensiblu Foundation, assisted by A & D  Pharma, provided tangible support for the victims 
o f  the most severe floods in Romania within the last 100 years. “Hea l th  and hope”  was the 
name of one of the widest national aid programmes launched in 2005 and 2006 by a corporation. 
Employees of Sensiblu and Mediplus and volunteer medical doctors spent months in flooded 
villages, offering first aid to victims in that area. 
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W i t h  a budget of €I 50,000, the “Health and Hope” carnpaign. organized in 2006, focused 
on the inhabitants of the 3 affected counties Calarasi (Chiselet. Manastirea. Spantov villages). 
Dolj  (Bechet town, Macesu de ]os and Rast villages). and Bistrita-Nasaud (Tarlisua village). W e  
also focused on solving urgent problems and giving priority t o  children. The health of children 
was the first concern. The Sensiblu Foundation, sponsored by Sensiblu. donated 30,000 powder 
milk packs and 5,000 baby feeding bottles in various parts of the country, including the flooded 
regions. The Foundation also donated 30,000 pairs o f  shoes to the affected villages, together with 
considerable donations o f  pharmaceuticals for several hundreds o f  refugees in Bistrita Nasaud 
county. 

. .  
Sensiblu Professional Excellency Program 

O u r  main objective is t o  deliver outstanding professional services to  our  customers. 
W e  are committed to investing in people and to prepare highly educated specialists for the 
pharmaceutical market In 2006 Sensiblu launched the most complex educational and rewarding 
programe for the pharmacy professional in Romania. under the name o f  Sensiblu Professional 
Excellency Programme. This program addressed students in pharmacies and Sensiblu’s 
employed pharmacists. 

The program is the f i rs t  integrated training and development program in the pharmaceutical 

Sensiblu Scholarships targeting students in pharrnacies. originating from low-level income 
families. It is actively promoted in 300 high schools from over 220 Romanian cities; we 
currently offer scholarships t o  40 students; 

The Sensiblu Training Center targeting students at the Pharmacy University; 

Sensiblu Academy i s  addressed to our  pharmacists by offering training sessions on various 
medical specialties held by wel1 known key opinion leaders in the medical field; 

Best of Sensiblu i s  a regular internal contest for  our pharmacists. The winners enjoy a few 
days o f  teambuilding abroad. 

market in Romania. The four pillars of the program include: 

* 

a Independent of diabetes 

In October 2006, Sensiblu launched the long-term programme “Independent of diabetes” 
aiming t o  raise awareness about the health risks associated with diabetes. The components of 
the programme are: 

* the website www.desprediabet.ro. which includes information on al1 forms of diabetes, 
evaluation of patients’ health status, diagnosis as wel1 as information on nutrition and 
lifestyle: 

publishing “Diabetes-A Practica1 Guide”, by Professor Maria Mota. PhD. in 20,000 copies 
- offered free o f  charge t o  al1 patients of diabetes who came to  collect their prescripuons in 
Sensiblu pharmacies: 

free blood rugar and cholesterol testing - w e  tested over 10,000 people in b cities. 
including Bucharest 

The programme wil1 be continued in 2007 

* 

- 

Mediplus 
Mediplus has supported the professional associations of pharmacists. patients and various 

other under-represented areas. developing pamerships with representatives o f  various NCOS 
and public institutions. a 
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Support to Phorrnocistr Cornrnunity 

In 2006. Mediplus continued its programmes for the support o f  the pharmacisrs’ communities. 
offering sponsorship to  some of the most important professional events of the year. 

Aid to Cornrnunity I 

W i t h  the S U ~ ~ O K  of the Sensiblu Foundation, in 2006, Mediplus har continued the prognmme / 
o f  pharmaceuticals donationr. offering products of over f 15,000 to 14 organizations. ofwhich the I 
most significant are: - - The Pro-Family Arsociation; - 
Atopic Dermatitis Cornpoign 

.! 
The Romanian Society of Sexual and Contraceptive Education: 

The General Directorate of Child Social Care and Protection of District 3, Bucharest 

In the Spring of 2006. Mediplus developed a social marketingcarnpaign for the children affecred 
by atopic dermatitis disease. Thus. for each Avene product bought in April, Mediplus donated I .5 
RON t o  the Romanian Pediatrics Society and the Dermo-Pediatrics section of Coletina Horpital 
of Bucharest At the end of the campaign. hi-tech medical devices were acquired for the Hospital. 
in support to the treatment o f  this disease. 

This campaign was awarded with “The Best Community Marketing Programme” of  
2006, within the “People for People” Gala, organized by the American Chamber of Commerce in 
Romania and The Community Relations Association. 

‘ e  
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Au ditors’ Reports and Financial 
Statements 

This Annual Report contains the following financial statements: 

A. Independent Auditors’ Report and consolidated financial statements prepared according to 
IFRS for the year ended 3 I December 2006 for A & D  PHARMA HOLDINGS SRL (“A&D 
Pharma Romania”). 

B. Independent Auditors’ Report and A & D  PHARMA HOLDINGS N.V. (“A&D Pharma NV’) 
consolidated audited accounts prepared according to IFRS for the period from 24 May 2006 
t o  3 I December 2006. 

l. ! 
C. Independent Auditor’s Report and A & D  Pharma Holdings NV’s statutory company and 

consolidated financial statements as at  and for the period from 24 May 2006 (date of 
incorpontion) to 3 I December 2006 

The Annual Report includes the consolidated financial statements prepared according to IFRS 
for the year ended 3 I December 2006 for  A & D  Pharma Romania for  comparative purposes. 
They are a better comparable with the results of the former group A&D Pharma Holdings NV. 
Netherlands Antilles (“ADP Antilles”) provided in the IPO prospectus than die results of the 
listed entity, A & D  Pharma N.V.. which cover only the 7-month period since its incorporation until 
the end of the year (May-December 2006). 

Our analysis of the financial performance o f  the business provided in the “Financial Review” 
section refers to the 12-month audited accounts of A & D  Pharma Romania. The “Financial Review” 
section should be read in conjunction with the notes to the consolidated financial statements for 
the year ended 3 I December 2006 for A & D  Pharma Romania. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

The Board of Directors'of A&D Pharma Holdings SRL 

Report on the consolidated financial statements 

W e  have audited the accompanying conroiidated financial statements of A&D Pharma Holdings SRL (and itr subsidiaries) 
(the "Group"). which comprirer the consolidated baiance sheet as at 31 December 2006 and the consolidated income 
statement the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the conrolidated cash flow sta<éhent for the year then 
ended. and a summary of significant accounting policier and other expianatory nores. 

Management's responsibility for the consolidated financial statements 

Management is  rerponrible for the preparation and fair prerentation of these conrolidated financial statemenu in 
accordance with international Financial Reporting Standardr. This rerponsibiiity includer: designing. implementing and 
maintaining internal control relevant 10 the preparation and fair prerentation of consolidated financial statements that are 
free from material mirstatements. whether due to fraud o r  error; reiecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and 
making accounting ertimater that are rearonable in the circumrtances. 

Auditors' responsibility 

Our responribility i s  10 express an opinion on these consoiidated financial statements based on OUT audit We conducted 
OUT audit in accordance with International Standardr on Auditing. Thore rtandardr require that we comply with relevant 
ethica1 requirements and plan and períorm the audit to obtain rearonable assurance whether rhe conrolidated financial 
statements are free of material mirrtatemenL 

An audit invokes performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounu and dirclosurer in the financial 
statemenu. The procedures selected depend on our judgment. including the arressment of the rirks of material misstatement 
of the consolidated financial statements, wherher due to fraud or error. In making thore risk arsesrments. we consider 
internai control relevant 10 rhe entity'r preparation and fair presentation of the financial statemenu in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. bur nat for the purpore of expresring an opinion on the effectivenesr 
of the entity'r internal convol. An audit alpo includer evaluating the appropriatenerr of accounting principles wed and 
the rearonablenesr of accounting estimater made by management. as wel1 as evaluating the overall prerentarion of the 
consolidated financial statements. 

c We believe that rhe audit evidence we have obtained is rufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for OUT opinion. 
'Y 

Opinion I 

c' 
In OUT opinion. the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of rhe conrolidated financial position of 

the Group as at  31 December 2006. and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidared cash iìows for the 
ic, , 
ir.! year then ended in accordance with international Financial Reporting Standardr. 

Other Matters 
'-.J This report is made solely to the Board of Directors of A&D Pharma Holdings S R L  The consoiidated financial statements 

are nol statutory financial statemenu of the Group. nor are the financiai statements intended for statutory filing purposer. 
Our audit work har been undertaken so that we might state 10 the Board of Directors of A&D Pharma Holdings SRL those 
matters we are required to state to them in an auditoir report and for no other purpore. 10 the fuilert exrent permitted by 
law. we do nor acceptor assume responribility to anyone other than the Group and the Board of Directors of A&D Pharma 
Holdings SRL. for our audit work. for this report, or for the opinionr we have formed. 

KPMG Romania SRL 
Bucharest. Romania 
30 March 2007 
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GENERAL INFORMATION 

Description of the business 

A&D Pharma Holdings SRLand its rubsidiaries' (together "the Group") principal activities include the import, wholesale 
and recail distribution of pharmaceutical products. The Group's facilities are based in Romania. The parenr company. A&D 
Pharma Holdings SRL (ADP SRL or "the Company") was incorporated as a joint stock company in Bucharert. Romania. in 
2005. The principal rubridiaries are disclosed in Note 23. 

As at 3 i  December 2006 the Group have 3.173 employees (2.642 as at I January 2006). The registered office of the 
Company is 2. Marasesti Bivd., Bucharest, Romania. 

A&D Pharma Holdings SRL war set up pn 2 December 2005, following a cash contribution made by the shareholden 
in November 2005 (Note 12). The Group was formed on 22 December 2005, by way of in-kind contribution from Sograno 
BV. conrirting of shares of Mediplur Exim SA 2nd Sensiblu SRL There were no material tranractions affecting the Group 
between 22 December 2005 2nd I January 2006. 

The legal form of the Company was changed on 22 September 2006, from a joint-stock company into a limited liability 
company. together with the change of shareholden' rtructure. and ADP Netherlands (ar defined below) became the role 
shareholder of the Company. At the rame date, the individual shareholderr: Robert Ludovic Charler Simon. Walid Abboud. 
Michel Charles Eid, and Roger Fami EI Akoury rold their minoricy interest to A&D Pharma Holdings N.V. 

Ar at  I January 2006. the utimate parent company war A&D Pharma Holdings N.V. (formerly known as Destar Holdings 
N.V.. hereinafter "ADP Antilles") which was incorporated as a limited company in Curaçao. Netherlands Antiller dwing 
2001. The registered office of the Company i s  Kaya W.F.G. (lombi) Mensing 36. Curaçao. Netherlands Antilles. 

On I I May 2006, ADP Antiller rold i t s  investment in Sograno B.V. (and through that the investment in the Company) to 
Am've Pharma Invert Limited ("API Lrd.", a limited company incorporated in and organized under the laws of Cyprus, for 
the price of EUR 260 miliion). API Ltd.. which is owned by die rame shareholden as the Group. har hence become the new 
holding company of the Group. Thir war a restructuring ruch that the investments remain under common control of the 
Group shareholderr. This transfer of the investments did not reduce the net assetr of the Company and Group. 

On  3 I May 2006, Sograno set up A&D Pharma Holdings NV ("ADP Netherlands"). a joint-stock company incorponted 
and organized under the lawr of the Netherlandr. and made an in-kind contribution to i t s  share capital consisting of 
the shares held in the Company. ADP Netherlands har i ts registered office at 2 Martinus Nijhofflzan. 2624 E5 Delft, The 
Netherlandr. 
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Shareholders structure 

The shareholder of the Company as at 3 i December 2006 was: 

Number of shares Shareholding % 

A&D h r r n a  Holdings NV. Nerherlandr 29,436,690 100 

29,436,690 I O0 

The rhareholderr of the Company as at I January 2W6 were: 

Number of shares Shareholding X 

Sograno BV 29.436.686 99.999986 

Roben Ludovic Charler Simon I O.OoooO35 

Walid Abboud I O.OoooO35 

Michel Charler Eid I O.OWW35 

Roner F a w i  EI Akoun I O.OMM035 

29,436,690 I O0 

The ultirnate parenr company is Acrive Pharma Inveif Limited. Cyprus. 

The perrons who held office during the year ended 3 I December 2006 were the foliowing: 

Dragos Dinu Chief Executive Oflicer 

Fiorin Buiigoanea Chief Financiai Oficer 

Liviu Voicu Group Finance Manager 

Ciaudiu Manolescu Group Reporting Manager 

Mihaeia Piriaru Head of Group Legal Department ti 

%.I 
Vaii Fiorea Group Economic Director , 

c" 
Raluca Lazarovici Head of Group Trearury Depanment ,a 

iuiiana Ciuiinet Head of Internal Audit Depanment 

i-7 - 
Group Pubiic Relations Manager ,m 

-J 
.? hura  Fiorea 

Carmina Buzuloiu Head of Group investor Reiations & Corporate Finance 

Geowe Pacea Grom Information Oflicer 

Stefan Lumnickv G~OUD Procurement Oficer 

Brandura Fecioru Group Human Resourcer Manager 

Sorin Sfirlogea ERP CC Director 

Bondan Dumitrercu G ~ U D  iT Manaeer 
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N o t e  3 I December 2006 I J a n u q  2006 

Assets 

Non-cument arreu 

Propeq. plant and equipmenr 4 35.592 19.915 

intandbie zwets 5 302.m 276.486 

Financial invertmenu 6 57 10 

Long term receivabier 7 7.181 1.356 

Total "o"-c"lre"t arren 344.839 , . 291.767 

Current  assets 

I""e"t0nS 8 63.455 36.622 

Accounts rectivabie 9 119,770 73.61 I 

Other cument arrets 10 12,019 10.249 

Reruicted cash l i 5.863 8.221 

Cash and cash equivalents II 17.194 7.03 I 

Total CYment .set* 218,301 115,134 

Totai arren 563,140 433,501 

Sharehoiderr' equlty and l iabl l l t iei  

Shareholderr' equmy 

Share capitai 12 260.025 260.025 

Translation reiewe 23.323 

Retained earningr 17.828 

Total rhareholders' equity 301,116 260,025 

Non-current liabiiitier 

Provirionr 16 14.966 

Long term papbies 17 i ,562 1.138 13.764 a 
Long term bormwingr 15 69.793 

Deferred tax I3 6.743 7.272 

Finance lease 14 1.825 1.555 

Total non-cument liabiiitier 94,889 23,129 

Current  liabiiitier 

Shontem bormwingr 15 30,017 

Accounts pyabie. a~cmais and orher liabiiitier 18 164,624 117,715 

Finmrr  b x e  14 2.45 I 2.015 . .. 
Total current iiabilities 167.075 149.147 

Total liabilitler 261,964 113,476 

Total rhareholders' equity and liabilitler 563,140 433.501 

Authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2007 and authorired for signature on their behalf by: 

Dragos Dinu 

Chief Executive Oificer 

The notei i to 28 form an integral pan of these Conrolidated Financial Staremenu. 

Florin Buligoanea 

Chief Financiai Officer a 



molidated Statement of IncÒme for thevear ended 31 Dec 

Note 3 I December 1006 

%les 33 1.593 

Openting COIU 19 (308.324) 

Openting pmfir 23.269 

Financial income . .  4.370 

Financial upenre (6.259) 

Fioaocial rerulr 7.0 ( 1.889) 

Pmfit befon wation 21.380 

Taxation I3 (3.552) 

Pmfit ror thc yuir 17.828 

Authorired for issue by the Board of Directorr on 30 March 2007 and authorired for rignature on their behalf by: 

Dragor Dinu 

Chief Executive Officer 

ï h e  norer I co 28 íorm an integral part of these Conrolidsted Fimncial Statementr. 

Florin Buligoanea 

Chief Financial OñÎcer 
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2006 

Cash ilowr from omra t ine  actlvitles 

PmRt before taxation 21.380 

Adiurtmenu for: 

Depreciation and amortization 4.794 

Lorr on disporal of rangible and intangible arreu (1.735) 

Prooerw. h n t  and e<luiDment immirment . , (360) 

Interest expenre 5.359 
- 

O p e a t l n g  proilt before worklng capital changes 19,057 

Increare in receinbler and prepayments (5 1.338) 

Increase in inventorier (26.833) 

Increase in wade and other payabler 43,053 

Changes In worklng capital (35,118) 

Tax paid (1,703) 

N e t  cash from opera thg  actlvities (8.164) 

Cash iiowr from Invertlng activitier 

Purcharer of pmperty. plant and equipment (I 7.430) 

Purcharer of intangibler (I .48 I) 

Acquirition of other subsidiader (273) 

Proceedr fmm d e  of tangible snd intangible arreu 

Interest received 370 

5.1 I 6  

N e t  cash "red In investing activitler 

Cash ñow from ilnancinn activltier 

(13.698) 

Lonn term loanr 69.793 

Shon t e m  bomowingr (I 1,713) 

Lease paymenu (3.147) 

Interest paid (3.271) 

Net cash fmm financing activitier 5 1.662 

Translation eíiect (733) 

Net decreare in cash and cash equinlents 

Caah and cash equinlents a t  beginning of rhe p a r  

Cash and cash cquivalentr a t  end of year (Note I I) 

18.467 

(I 1.273) 

17,194 

A - 8  The notes I to 28 form an inregral pan af these Consolidated Financial Staremenu. 
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e ? n r o l i d a t e d  State/ment'of Changes in Shareholderr' Equity for the year ended 31 December 2006 
(AU amounts are exprerred in EUR 'OOO;unless'othë&ire'stated) -___ 'aL7 ____I 

Share capital Translation reserve Accurnulated pront Total 

I Janurry 2 w 6  260,025 260.025 

Pmfit for the year 17.828 17,828 

Tanrlation reserve 23.323 23.323 

31 December 2006 260,025 23.323 17.828 301.176 

The Gmup is nor allowed to declare ind pay dividend3 without prior conrent of Citibank (see Nate 15). 

a 

The nota I to 20 fwm an integml part of these Conrolidated Finsncial Sratemenu. A - 9  
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1. REPORTING ENTITY 

These conrolidated financial statemenis (alternatively referred to hereinafter ar the “financial statements**) are presented 
by A&D Pharma Holdings SRL (“ADV or the “Company”) and they incorporate the resuhs of the Company and i t s  
subridiaries (together the“Group”or separately the”Entity”or “Entitier”). as detailed in Note 22.The Group has preserved 
the rame operational structure as that of A&D Pharma Holdings. Netherlands Antilles (ADP Antilles) holding before I 
January 2006. Therefore, for convenience purposes. proforma income statement and cash flow figurer for the year ended 3 I 
December 2005 are extracted from the conrolidated financial sfatementr of ADP Antilies. as detailed in Note O. 

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OFTHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
. I  

2.1 Basis of preparation 

a These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with. and comply with. International Financial 
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) issued by International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) as adopted by EU. These are nor 
the statutory accounts of the Group. 

The consolidated financial statements are prepared based on the statutory records of the Entities. which are maintained 
on a going concern basis under the historical COP convention excepr for the derivative financial inrtruments, measured ar 
fair value. 

The preparation of consolidated íinancial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the ure of ertimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilitier and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities 
at  the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenser dwing the reporting period. 
The estimater and associated assumptionr are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed 
to be rearonable under the circumrtaancer. the rerults of which form the basis of making the iudgernentr about carrying 
values of assets and liabilitier that are not readily apparent from other sources. The ertimates and underlying assumptionr 
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revirions to accounting ertimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is  
revired if the revision affeas only that period. or in the period of the revision and future periodr if the revision affects both 
current and future periods. Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of current events and 
actionr. actmi rerulis may differ from these estimater (Note 24). 

2.2 Functional currency 

The functional currency of A&D Pharma Holdings SRL is  the RON (“Romanian ieu”). the currency that best reflects the 

a economic substance of rhe underlying events and circumstancer relevant to that Entity (“the functional currency”). 

The RON is nor convertible outside Romania. The management of the Company has decided to adopt EUR as 
prerentation currency for conrolidated financial statements. 

The balance sheet items have been translared into EUR by dividing the RON amounts a t  the National Bank of Romania 
(“NBR”) official exchange rater as at the date of each balance sheet. as set out below: 

3 I December 2006 I January 2006 

RON I I EUR 3.3817 3.6771 

The statement of income items for the periods ended 3 I December 2006 were translated uring the RON/EUR monthly 
average exchange rates. The translation of the balance sheet and statement of income items into the presentation currency 
gave rise to a translation reserve as defined in Note 3.9. Cash flowr are tranrlated usingappropriare average exchange rater. 
Components of equity are not retranslated. 

Such computationr and presentation of amounts in EUR rhould not be construed as a reprerentation that the RON 
amounts have been or could be converted into EUR at these rater or any other rates. 

2.3 Going concern 

a Management is  satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare these financial statements on a going concern basis. If the Group 
was unable to continue in operational existence. adjurtments would have to be made to reduce the carrying value of assets 
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to their recoverable amountr and to provide forfurther liabilitier which might arire. Additionally. funher adjustmenrs would 
have to be made to reclassify fixed assets and long-term liabilities as current asretr and liabilitier. rerpectively. 

As at I January 2006. current liabilities exceeded currenr assets by EUR 14 million. As disclored in Note 15. in 2006 the 
Group har finalized irs finance restructuring. The new financing facility concluded wirh Citibank replaces and extendr the 
maturiùer of overdraft facilitier by approximately two yearr. 

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

3.1 Group accounting . .  
a) Subsidiaries 

Subridiarier, which are those Entiries in which the Group har an interest of more than one half of the voting rights or 
otherwire har power to govern the financial and operating policies, are consolidated. The exirtence and effect of porenrial 
voting rights that are prerently exercisable or prerently convertible are considered when arserring wherher the Group 
controlr another entity. 

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is tansferred 10 the Group and are no longer consolidated 
from the date when conrrol ceases. The purchare method of accounting is used 10 account for rhe acquisition of subsidiaries 
(Note 29). 

The colt of an acquisition is measured by the fair value of the assets given up, shares issued or liabilities undemken 
at the date of acquirition plus c o m  directly attributable to the acquirition. The excess of the COSI of acquisition over the 
fair value of rhe net asiets of the rubridiary acquired is recorded as goodwill. Inter-company transactionr. balancer and 
unreaiised gainr on transattions between group companier are eliminated unrealired losser are alro eliminated unlerr COS 

cannot be recovered. Where necessary. accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed to ensure conrirtency with 
rhe policies adopted by the Group. 

b) Associates and joint ventures 

Associates are entities over which rhe Group generally har beween 20% and 50% of the voting rights. or over which 
the Group har significant influence. but which it does nor control. Investments in arrociater are accounted for ar described 
in Note 3.5, 

Joint ventures are thore entities over whose activitier the Group har joint control. ertablirhed by contractual agreement 
and requiring unanimous consent for srrategic financial and operating decisions. Associater and joint ventures are accounted ~- 
for using die equiry method (equity accounted investeer). The consolidated financial smtements include die Group'r share -4 of rhe income and expenses of equity accounted investees, aker adjustments to aiign the accounting policies with those of 
the Group. from the date that significant influence or joint control commences until rhe date that significant influence o r  ~ 

joint control cearer. 
c c  

I 

c) Acquisitions from entities under common control 

Business combinationr arising from transfers of intererts in entities that are under the tontrol of the rhareholder thar 
controls the Group are accounted for as an acquisition at the date when business combination har occurred. The arrets and 

SJ 
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%I liabilities acquired are recognised at fair value (Nore 28). 

d) Transactions eliminated on consolidation 

- 
Intra-group balances, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from inm-group transactionr. are eliminated in 

preparing the conrolidated financial statements. Unrealised gains arising from transactionr wirh equity accounted investeer 
are eliminated againrt the investment to the extent of the Group's interest in the investee. Unrealired losser are eliminated 
in the Same way as unrealised gains. but only to the extent that there Is no evidence of impairment 

3.1 Segment reporting 

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group's business regmenrs. based on the Group's management and 
internal structure. Inter-segment pricing is determined on an arm's length basis. 

A -  I I  
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Segment results. assets and liabiliries inciude items directly arrributable to a segment as wel1 as chose that can be 
allocared on a reasonable basis. 

Segment capitai expenditure is the total colt incurred during the period co acquire segment assets that are expected 
CO be used for more than one period. 

Pr imoy reporting f o m o t  - business regments 

The Group comprises the foilowing main business regments: 

* Wholesale 
Retail 

Seconday reporting f o m a t  - geogrophical regmentr 

The operational activities of the Group are in Romania and accordingiy no geographical segment is prerented. 

3.1 Property, plant and equipment 

Propemy, plant and equipment is recorded a t  purchase or construction cost 

"Depreciation is caiculated on the amounts of property, plant and equipment on a straight-iine basis down to the assets' 
estimated residual values. 

The depreciarion periods. which approximate the esrimated useful economic iives of die respective assetr. are as 
foliows: 

TYDe Ureful life (years) 

Buildingr 30-50 

Leasehold improvements 3-10 

Comwterr and electronic equipment 3-5 

Motor vehicles and t ruck 3-5 

Fixrures and fittings 3-10 

Land i s  n a t  depreciated. 

Repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of income during the financial period in which they incur. The 
colt of major renovations is included in the carrying amount of the asset when it is  probable that future economic benefits 
in exces of the originaliy assessed rtandard of performance of the existing asset wili flow to the Group. Major renovations 
are depreciated over the remaining useful iife of the related asset. Gains and iorses ariring from the retirement of propemy. 
plant and equipment are included in the statement of income ar incurred. 

Al1 borrowing costs are expensed as incurred 

Impoiment  

A t  each reporting date the management asiess ar to whether there i s  any indication of impairment of property. plant 
end equipmenr Kany ruch indicacion exim, [he managemem estimates che recoverabk a m r  which is determined as the 
higher of an asset's net seliing price and i t s  vaiue in ure. In arsesring value in ure. the estimated cash flows are discounted co 
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate rhat reflects current market arsessments of the time value of money and 
the risks rpecific co the arrer The carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable amount and the difference is recognired as 
expenre (impairment 10s) in the statement of income. An impairment l os  recognised for an arret in prior years is reversed 
if there har been a change in the circumstances leading to the impairment. a 

A -  I2 



the year ended 31 December 2006 

3.2 Intangible assets 

o) Goodwill 

Goodwill represents amounts arising on acquisition of subsidiaries. associates and joint ventures. Goodwill represents 
the difference beween the tost of the acquisition and the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired. 

tested for impairment at each reporting date. 
Goodwill is rtated at c o x  less any accumulaced impairment losser. Goodwill is allocated co cash generating units and is 

Impainnent 

A t  each reporting date the management assess whether there i s  any indication of impairment of goodwill. If any ruch 
indication exists. die management estimates die recoverable amount which i s  determined as the higher of net selling price 
and it. value in ure of cash generaring units it is aliocared to. In arserring value in ure, the esrirnated cash flowr are discounted 
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that refiects current market assersmem of the time value of money and 
the risks specific to the asiel. The carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable amount and the difference is recognised ar 
expense (impairment los) in the statement of income. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. 

. I  

b) Bronds 

Acquired brandr are capitalized on the balance sheet These brands are valued on acquisition by an independent valuer. 
using a discounted cash flow methodology based on management assumptions and estimater regarding future revenue 
growth. pricer. costs and economic factors in valuing a brand. These assumptionr reflect management's best estimater but 
these ertimater involve inherent uncertainties. which may not be controlled by management 

No amortiration i s  charged on brand intangibler as the Group believes thar the value of these brands is maintained 
indefinitely. The factors that result in the durabiliry of brands capitalised are that there are no material legal. regulatory. 
contractuai. competitive. economic or other factors that limit the ureful life of these intangibler. 

Furthermore: 

- The Group expects to acquire. hold and support brands for an indefinite period. The Group supports there brands 
through spending on consumer marketing across the business and through significant invertment in promotional support. 
The brands capitalired are expected to be in iongrtanding and profitable market sectors. 

- The likelihood that market based factors could uuncate a brand's life is relatively remote becaure the rize and market 
share of the brands in quertion. 

The brands are tested for impairment a t  each reporting date. irrespective of whether there i s  an indication that the 
relared assets may be impaired. as wel1 as whenever there is any indication that they may be impaired. Management estimater 
the recoverable amount which is determined as the higher of net relling price and the value in ure of rhe cash generating 
units it is allocated to. The carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable amount and the difference is recognised as 

~ 

'4 , 
a 
'L, 
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expense (impaiment loss) in the statement of income. 

c) Phormocies licenses I 

Expenditure to acquire operating licenses for pharmacies are capitalired at  cost Prior to I January 2006, the retail 
segment subsidiary. Sensiblu. used to amortise pharmacy licenses using the straight line method. over the lease term6 for the 
iocationr where the pharmacies were operating. Srarting I January 2006. the Company har ceased amortiring rhe licenses 
due to changes in applicable legal framework (see Note 5). 

As a consequence. licenses are tested lor  impaiment a t  each reporting date. Impairment terting is performed in 
a rimilar way to that of brands and goodwill (ree paragraph above). Licenrer are rtated at tost Iess any accumulated 
impairment losses. 

d) Computer licences ond softwore 

Expenditure to acquire licences and computer software i s  capitalired and amortired uring the straight-line method over 
their useful lives. normally I to 5 years. 
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e) Impairment ofintongible asseis 

Where an indication of impairment exirts. the carrying amount of any intangible arset is arsessed and. when impaired. 
the asret is written down immediately to i t s  recoverable amount 

3.1 Investments 

The Group clasrified iu investmentr in debt and equity recuritier into the following categories: trading. held-to-maturity 
and available-for-sale. The clarrification is dependent on the purpose for which the investmentr were acquired. Management 
determines the clarsification of itr invertmenu at the time of the purchare and re-evaluates ruch designation on a regular 
basis. Investmenu that are acquired principally for the purpore of generating a profit from short-term fluctuationr in price 
are clasrified as trading investmenu and included in current asseu; for the purpose of these financial statements short term 
is defined ar 3 months. Invertments with a fixed maturity that management har the intent and ability to hold to maturiry 
are classified ar held-to-maturity and are included in non-current arsets. except for maturitier within 12 months from the 
balance sheet date which are clarsified ar currenr arreu. Invertmentr intended to be held for an indefinite period of time. 
which may be rold in response to needr for liquidity ot changes in interest rates. are classified as available-for-rale and are 
included in non-current asretr unlerr management har the exprers intention of holding the inverment for Iers than I2 
months from rhe balance sheet date OT unlesr they wiil need to be rold 10 raire operating capital. in which care they are 
included in current assers. 

Purchases and rales of investmenu are recognized on the rade date, which is the date that the Group commits 
to purchare o r  rel1 the asret  Cox of purchase includer transaction costs. Trading and available-for-sale investmenu are 
rubrequently carried a t  fair YPIUB. Held-to-maturity invertmenu are carried a t  amortired colt uring the effective yieid 
method. Realized and unrealized gainr and losser ariaing from changes in the fair value of trading and available-for-rale 
invertmenti are included in the statement of income in the period in which they arise. The fair value of invesments i s  
based on quoted bid prices or amountr derived from cash fiow models. Fair values for unlirted equity recurities are 
ertimated using applicable pricelearningr o r  pricelcash Oow ratior refined to reflect the specific circumrtances of rhe irruer. 
Equity secwities for which fair values cannot be mearured reliably are recognized at colt Iers impairment. When recurities 
classified as available-for-rale are rold or impaired the accumulated fair value adjustments are included in the statement of 
income ar gainr and losres from investment securities. 

3.2 Inventories 

Inventories are rrated at the lower of colt and net realirable value. Cort i s  determined by the firrt-in, firrt-out (FIFO) 
method. Net realirable value is the ertimated relling price in the ordinary course of business. Iers any relling expenrer. When 
necessary. provision is made for obsolete, slow moving and defective inventorier. 

3.3 Trade receivables 

Trade receivabler are recopired initially at  fair value and rubrequently measured at amortired cort uring the effective 
interest method. Iess provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of rrade receivabler is ertablished when there is 
objective evidence that rhe Group will nor be able to collect al1 arnounu due according to the collection t e r m  of receivabler. 
Significant financial dificultier of the debtor. probability that the debtor wil1 enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation. 
and defauit or delinquency in paymenu are considered indicators that the trade receivable i s  impaired. The amount of the 
provision is  determined bared on management risk assessment of the trade receivabler collectibility. 

3.4 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalenu are carried in the balance sheet a t  cost. For the purposes of the statement of cash Oowr. 
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, cash held at cal1 with banks. other short-term highly liquid investmentr 
with original maruritier of three months or Iers, and bank overdnfts. In the balance sheet, bank overdrafu are included with 
borrowingr in current liabilities. 

3.5 Shareholders’equity 

Share capital 
Ordinary and preferred shares are clarsified as equity. Any excerr of the fair value of consideration received over rhe 

par value of shares irsued is recopired as a share premium and any deficit i s  deducted from share premium and retained 
earningr. if available. 
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Translation reserve 

In translating the financial statements into EUR. al1 rerulting exchange differencer are clasrified ar equity. The main 
differences arise on Khe uanslation of income and expense items at the monrhly average exchange ater  and assets and 
liabilities at the date of each balance sheet closing rate. Components of equity are not retranslated. 

Dividends 

The Group can only pay dividendr from i t s  entitier statutory retained earnings. based upon financial statements prepared 
in accordance with local accounting regulationr. 

. .  
Dividendr are recognised ar a liability and deducted from equity at the balance sheet date only if they are declared 

before or on the balance sheet date. Dividendr are dirclored when they are proposed before the balance sheet date or 
proposed o r  deciared after the balance sheet date. bu i  before the financial statements are authorired for issue. 

3.6 Deferred income taxes 

Deferred cax assets and liabilities are calculated in respect of temporary differences using the balance sheet liability 
merhod. Deferred income m e s  are provided lor  al1 temporary differencer ariring between the tax basis of assets and 

es and their carrying valuer for financial reporting purporer. A deferred fax asset i s  recorded only to the extent that 
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be udlised. 

Deferred tax assets and liab es are measured a t  cax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the arret Is 
realised or the liabiliry i s  senled. based on tax rates that have been enacred o r  substantively enacted a t  the balance sheet 
date. 

Deferred income cax i s  provided on temporary differences ariring on investments in subsidiarier and associates. except 
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that the ternporary 
difference will not be reverred in the forereeable future. 

3.7 Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Group har a present legal or constmctive obligation as a result of past events. and 
it is probable that an oudlow of resourcer will be required to senle the obligation. and a reliable estimate of the amount 
can be made. Where the Group expectr a provision to be reirnbursed. for example under an inrurance contract, the 
reimburrement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is vinually certain. 

r 3.8 Leases 

Leases of properry. plant and equipment where the Group har substantially al1 the r isk ,  and rewards of ownership "-I 
are clarrified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalired at the inception of the lease at the lower of the fair n lue of 
the leared properry or the present value of the minimum lease paymenrs. Each lease payment is allocared beween the CS 
liability and finance charges 10 ar 10 achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental u) 
obligations. net of finance charges. are included in ather long-term payables. The interest element of die finance costs is I 

chaged to the income statement over the lease period. The properry. plant and equipment acquired under finance leases i s  P d  
depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the asset or the lease term. 

r' 
,i 

117, - 
Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as 

operatlng leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the iessor) are charged to the 
income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. 

3.9 Borrowings 

Al1 loans and borrowingr are initially recognised a t  rhe fair value of the consideration received Iers directly anributable 
transaction costs. The rransacrion costs incurred in issuing the liability are amortired over Khe life of the loan. 

After initia1 recognition. interest bearing loans and borrowings are rubsequently rnearured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method any difference beween fair value of the proceeds (net of transaction costr) and the redemption 
amount i s  recognised as interest expense over the period of the borrowings. 
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3.10 Accounts payable 

Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried a t  cost. which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the 
future for goods and services received. whether or not billed to  the Group. After initial recognition. the Group mearures 
trade payable at amortised cox  uring effective interest method. 

3.1 1 Foreign currency transactions 

Transactions in foreign currencies are tranrlated to  the respective functional currencies of Group entities at exchange 
rates at the dates of the transactionr. Foreign exchange gainr and losser rerulting from the settlement of such transactions 
a?d from the translation at baiance sheet date exchange rater of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies are recognised in the statement of income. 

e 3.1 2 Revenue recognition 

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sak of goods and services in the 
ordinary course of the Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of value added tax. returns, rebates and discounts. 

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods are 
transferred to the buyer and when coilection is reasonably assured. 

Sales of services are recognised in the accounting period in which the services are rendered. by reference to completion 
of the specific tranraction assessed on the basis of the actual service provided as a proportion of the total services to be 
provided. 

Interest income is recognired on a time-propomion basis using the effective interest method. When a receivable 
i s  impaired. the Group reduces the carrying amount to  its recoverable amount. being the ertimated future cash flow 
dircounted at original effective interest rate of the instrument. and continuer unwinding the discount as interest income. 
Interest income on impaired loanr is recognired using the original effective interest rate. 

3.13 Employee benefits 

The Group, in the normal course of business. makes payments to the Romanian State on behalf of its employees. 
Al1 employees of the Group are members of the Romanian State pension plan. Al1 ruch contributionr to the mandatory 
government pension rcheme are expenred when incurred. The Group does not operate any other pension scheme or post 
retirement benefit plan and. conrequently. har no obligation in respect of pensions. In addition. the Group is not obliged to 
provide further benefits to current and former employees. 

3.14 Financial instruments 

Non-derivative financial instruments comprire invermenti in equity and debt securities. trade and other receivables, 
cash and cash equivalentr. Ioans and borrowingr. and trade and other payabler. 

Non-derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value plus, lor  instruments nor at fair value through 
profit or loss. any directly amibutable transaction cost. except as dercribed below. Subrequent to initial recognition non- 
derivative financial inrtruments are mearured as dercribed below. 

Fair value i s  the amount lor  which a financial instrument could be exchanged between knowledgeable and willing partier 
in an arm's length transaction. The amounts disclored in the financial statements approximate their fair value. 

The Group ures financial inrtruments that are subject to fiuctuationr in foreign currency exchanges (Note 26(ii) ) for 
the financial risks faced by the Group. 

Changes in the fair value of a derivative hedging instrument designated as a fair value hedge are recognised in profit or 
lorr. The hedged item also Is stared a t  fair vaiue in respect of the risk being hedged. with any gain or loss being recognised 
in profit or loss 

3.15 Determination of fair Vahes 

e A number of the Group's accounting policies and dirclorurer require the determination of fair vaiue. lor both financial 

A -  16 



and non-financial arrets and liabilities. Fair values have been determined for measurement and / or disclosure purposes 
bared on the following methods. Where applicable. funher information about the asrumptions made in determining fair 
values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset o r  liability. 

Intangible assets 

The fair value of other intangible assets is based on the discounted cashflows expected to be derived frorn the use and 
eventual rale of the assets ar detailed in Note S. 

Inventory 
. .  The fair value of inventory acquired in a business combination is determined bared on iu ertimated relling price in the 

ordinary course of business Iess the estimated costs of completion and sale. and a reasonable profit magin based on the 
effort required to complete and sell the inventory. 

Trade and other receivables 

The fair value of vade and other receivables is ertimated ar the present vahe of future cash flowr. dircounted a t  the 
market rate of interest at the reporting date. 

Derivatives 

The fair value of forward exchange contracts is bared on their listed market price, if available. If a listed market price is 
nor avdilable. then fair value is estimated by discounting the diíference between the contractual forward price and the current 
forward price for the residual maturiry of the contract using a risk-free interest rate (based on governrnent bonds). 

Non-derivative financial liabilities 

Fair v a h .  which is determined lor disclosure purporer. is  calculated bared on the present value of future principal and 
interest cashflows. dircounted at the market rate of interest a t  the reporting date. For finance learer the market rate of 
interest is determined by reference to simihr lease agreements. 

3.16 Recent accounting pronouncements 

(oj Adoption ofstondords efenive from 1 Jonuory 2006 

in accordance with the relevant requirements. 
As at I January 2006. the Company adopted the IFRSs below. The financial statements have been amended as required. 

r 
* IAS 19 (Amendment). Employee Benefits '*4 

I 

La 

C8 
I 

bJ' 
-i 

'4 

. IAS 39 (Amendment). Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of Forecast Intracompany Transactionr 

IAS 39 (Amendment). The Fair Value Option 

IAS 39 and IFRS 4 (Amendment). Financial Guarantee Contracts 

IFRS I (Amendment). Firrt-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standardr and IFRS 6 (Amendment). 
Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resourcer 

IFRS 6. Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resourcer 

IFRIC 4. Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease 

IFRIC 5, Rights to Intererts arising from Decommissioning. Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds 

The adoption of the new o r  amended rrandards did nor have a significant impact on the Company'r financial 

* 

.. 

* 

statements. 

(bj Adoption ofstondords efective from 1 Jonuory 2007 

Certain new standardr. arnendments and interprerations to existing rtandards rhat have been published are mandatory 
for the Group's accounting periods beginning on or aker I January 2007 or later periodr but which the Group has not early 
adopted. as followr: 
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IFRS 7 Financial Inrtrumentr: Dirclorurer - The Standard wil1 require increared dirclorure about the rignificance of 
financial inrtrumentr for an entity'r financial porition and performance, and qualitative and quantitative dirclorures on 
the nature and extent of risks 

Amendment to IAS I Prerentation of Financial statements - Capital Dirclorurer - Ar a complimentary amendment 
ariring from IFRS 7 (ree above). the Standard wil1 require increared disclosure in respect of the Group'r capital. 

IFRS 8 Operating Segmentr (effective from I January 2009). The Standard requirer segment disclosure bared on the 
componentr of the entity that management monitors in making decirionr about openting matters. Operating segmentr 
are componenrs of an entity about which separate financial information Ir available that i s  evaluated regularly by the 
chief openting decirion maker in deciding how to  allocate resourcer and in arsesring performance. Thir rtandard which 
becomes mandator, lor  the Group'r 2009 financial statements is not expected to have any impact on the financial 
statements. 

IFRIC 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under IAS 29 Financial Reporring in Hyperinflationary Economier (effective 
for annual periodr beginning on or aker I March 2006) addrerrer the application of IAS 29 when an economy firrt 
becomer hyperinflationary and in particuiar the accounting for deferred m. IFRIC 7 is not relevant to the Group'r 
operationr ar the Group does nat have the currency of a hyperinflationary economy ar iu functional currency. 

IFRIC 8. Scope of IFRS 2 (effective for periodr beginning on or after I May 2006, that i s  from I January 2007) The 
interpretation states that IFRS 2 als0 applier to tranractionr in which the entity receiver unidentifiable goodr or services 
and that ruch items rhould be measured ar the difference between the fair value of the share-bared payment and the 
fair value of any identifiable goodr o r  services received (or t o  be received). 

IFRIC 9, Rearrerrment of Embedded Derivativer (effective for annual periodr beginning on o r  aker I ] m e  2006). The 
interpretation stater that an entity rhall arses whether an embedded derivative is required to be reparated from the 
hort contract and accounted lor  ar a derivative when the entity firrt becomer a pariy to the contract Subrequent 
rearressment is prohibited unlerr there is a change in the termr of the contract that rignificantiy modifier the cash flowr 
that otherwire would be required under the contracf in which care rearressment i s  required. iFRIC 9 is not relevant 
t o  the Group'r operations. 

IFRIC 10 Interim Financial Reporthg and Impairment - The Interpretation prohibitr the reverral of an impairment 101s 
recognired in a previour interim period in respect of goodwill. invermentr in equity inrtruments or financial arretr 
carried at c o l t  

IFRIC I I IFRS 2 - Group and Trearury Share Tranractionr - The interpretation requirer a share-bared payment 
arrangement in which an entity receiver goodr or services ar consideration for iu own equity-inrtrumentr to be 
accounted for as an equity-rettled share-based payment transaction. regardlerr of how the equity inrtrumenu needed 
are obtained. It alro provider guidance on whether share-bared payment arrangements. in which rupplierr of goodr or 
services of an entityare provided with equity inrtrumentr of the entity's parent, rhould be accounted for ar cash-renled 
or equity-rettled in the entity'r financial statements. 

IFRIC 12 Service Concerrion Arrangemenu - The Interpretation provider guidance to private rector entitier on certain 
recognition and mearurement issues that arire in accounting for public-to-private service concerrion arrangemenu. 

Unlerr otherwire dercribed above, these new rtandards and interpretationr are nor expected to  rignificantly affect the 

- 

e 

* 

. 

e 
* 

Group'r financial statements. 

4. PROPERN, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Arretr in 

construction 

Learehold 'omputen Motor Fixturer& of Total 
vehicier Land & buildingr imprwemenu & eiectronic 

equipmenr 

7.267 4.184 1.391 4,IM) 1.073 1.900 19.915 Opening net book amount PI of 
0110112lm6 

Translation difierences 525 399 I44 349 I I4  145 1.676 

Addirionr 1.226 I73 1.169 1.885 758 16.072 21.283 

Tanrferr 824 1.777 29 1.391 497 (4.518) 
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e t e r  to the,Conrolidated Financi? Statemenk ar at and.for the year ended 31 December 2006 
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Compurerr Arreu in 

fittingr construction 

Learehold Motor Fixture. & courreof Toml & electronic 
equiprnent vehicler Land 8 buildingr imprwemenrs 

Depredation charge (101) (I .43 I) (814) (1,600) (396) - (4.342) 

Irnpaiment 295 45 20 360 

Cloring net book amounr 7.130 5,397 1.960 5.484 2.038 13.583 35.592 

At 3 I December 2006 

Cos1 7.320 8.712 4.043 8.1% 3.007 13.583 44,811 

Accumulared depreciation (1%) (3.3 15) (2.083) (2,662) (969) - (9.219) 

Net book vrlue as of 3 I 
December 2006 

7.130 5.397 1.960 5.484 2.038 13.583 35.592 

Arreu under conruuction represent mortly the building of new head office in Mogoroaia (EUR 12,128 thourand 
including the automatic warehousing rystern ), the building of new warehourer in Craiava (EUR 621 thousand) and iasi 
(EUR 394 thourand) and improvementr made a t  the 29 new leared pharmacier which had not been opened until aíter h e  
period end. The new head office in Mogoroaia har been operational from February 2007. 

2006: EUR 1,088 thourand). 

2006 EUR 4,660 thourand). 

Learehold improvemenu include services from related partier capitalired in amount of EUR 1,950 thousand (I January 

Bank borrowingr (Note 15) are recured over buildingr and land wirh a net bookvalue of EUR 5,367 thourand (I January 

The impairment on learehold improvementr relater co the arretr existing in rome pharmacier which are inrended co 
be relocated. 

Included above are leared arreu (mainly electronic equipment. motor vehicler and trucks). where the Group is a lessee 
under a finance lease ar followr: 

3 I Dec 1006 I Jan 1006 

Corr - capitalired tnance Ieaies 10.431 8. I98 

Accurnulated depreciation (3.235) (I ,484) 

Net b k  V I I Y ~  PI of 3l l lZ2006 7. I96 6.714 

5. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

Goodwill Brand Senriblu . Llcencer SoRware and other Total 

At I Jmuary 2OM 

Opening net book mmmt 229,260 45.000 1.534 684 276.406 

Translarion reserve 20.027 3.931 I36 76 24.170 

Addirionr 405 49 1.409 1.863 

23 23 
Addirionr Mugh business 
combination 

Disoorals 1811 (81) 

Depreciation charge (452) 052) 

Cloring net book amounr 249.700 48.931 1.719 1.659 302.ûO9 

Ar31 December 2006 

Cos1 249.700 48.93 I 2.168 2.4 I 9  303.218 

Accumulared depreciation (449) (760) ( 1.209) 

Net book value 249.700 48.93 I 1.719 1.659 302.009 
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Goodwill war computed as followr: 

The vdue of Mediplur Exim SA and Senriblu SUL ertablirhed by the Company (See Note 12) 

Les: Fair vdue of net aseu acwired (ree rable below) 

260.000 

(32.615) 

Gmdwill aririnz fmm the acquirition of Mediplus Exim SA and Senriblu SRL 227.385 

Add Exirring goodwill in Senriblu SRL fmm the acquiririon of Ideapharm SA 1.883 

229.268 

405 

Gmdwill as a t  I January 2006 

Add Gmdwill in Mediolur Exim SRL from the acouirition of Lauren Finance IFN SA 
~~ ~ 

Tnnrlation reserve 20.027 

Gmdwill as at  3 I December 2006 

The fair value of the net arsets of Mediplur Exim SA and Senriblu SRL (consolidated with Ideapharm SA) ar at I Januaty 
2006 is as followr: 

Mediplus Senrlblu (conrolidated) Ellminationr Total 

Propere,. plant and equipmenr 13.398 6.517 19.915 

Gmdwill and other intangibler 286 48.8 I 3  49.099 

Receivabler and other arreu 92.623 6.455 (I 3.852) 85,226 

I""e"WdeS 28.620 8.637 (635) 36.622 

N e t  Arreu 3.297 30.171 (853) 32.6 I 5  

Ar at  31 December 2006 and I January 2006. for impairment purporer, management har allocated goodwill to the 
Group'r w o  main cash generating units. Mediplur k i m  SA EUR 21 6.465 rhousand ar a t  3 I December 2006 (EUR 198,703 
thourand as at I January 2006) and Sensibh SRL EUR 33.235 thourand as at 3 I December 2006 (EUR 30.565 thourand as 
a t  I Januaty 2006). Goodwill was allocated taking into account the enterprise value arsessed by the independent valuer lor  
each entity and its net arrets upon being acquired. There are no matenal differences beween the net assets of the Entitier 
ar a t  the acquirition date (22 December 2005) and as a t  I January 2006. a 

Ar ar 22 December 2005. this Group acquired itr only brand ("Senriblu"), which har an indefinite economic life in 
accordance with management's ertimarion. The brand war valued by an independent valuer, using a dircounted cashflow 
methodolog based on management arrumprionr and ertimater regardingfuture revenue growth. prices. costs and economic 
factors. The discount rate used in the computationr war ertimated at 15%. by the SCOR Interbrand and SCOR Brand 
Finance approaches. 

The acquired goqdwiil representr a rum of non quantifiable intangible arsets ruch ar: 

Leading porition in Romanian pharmaceutical wholesale and retail. a market of EUR 1.563 million and with a compound 
annual growrh rate of 3 1% pa. Thir high growth rate is driven by the rtrong economic growrh further rupported also by 
the recent EU membership. 

Proven management track record 

ADPr management har a proven track record of delivering profitable growth and conristently increaring market share. 
ADPr management team har been involved with the Group since 1996 and har managed the business independenrly of 
the founding shareholders since Juiy 2002. Under the supervision of the current management team, ADP har (i) become 
the leading pharmaceutical wholeraler and retailer in Romania, (ii) achieved national coverage in both the wholerale and 
retail markers, (iii) introduced variour innovative services for both rupplierr and clients in wholerale. (iv) introduced the 
loyalty card scheme lor Sensiblu curromerr and (v) underraken the firrt major private pharmacy chain acquirition in the 
pharmacy retail market in Romania through the acquisition of Ideapharm. 

Mediplur' consumer heaithcare divirions and value added service a 
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* Mediplus is  differentiared from traditional wholeraiers due to i t s  consumer healthcare rales divirions which provide 
contract marketing services and promote OTC brand. of international producers generating higher gros margins than 
the traditional wholesale business. Mediplus also provider a wide range of value added services to both producers and 
iu pharmacy clientr such ar free pharmacy software. pharmacy refurbishment services and pharmacist training. 

Vertical integrarion: srrong synergies on borh revenuer and cosrs 

There are significant rtrong synergier between the wholesale and retail businerrer. Revenue synergies arire from the 
improved inright gained by Mediplus via Senriblu into mnsumer behaviour and segmentation which enabler Mediplus to 
offer greater value added services to is key ruppiiers. Cost synergier are generated by higher operations efficiency due 
to venical integntion. For example. fewer field saies force virits are required lor  Sensiblu which meanr that rales and 
marketing costi are reduced. Inyoice processing coits and time are also reduced. Mediplus provides for Sensiblu with 
warehouring facilitier. logistics infrartructure. the head office building and other central coifs. 

Ar a t  31 December 2006 management terted goodwill, brandr and licenrer. ar wei1 as non-current fixed assets for 

* 

* 

impairment (ree Note 24 (i”)). 

Pharmacy licence 

Licences reprerent mainly rhe cost of the legal entities acquired by Sensiblu SRL during the years. in order to obtain their 
exisring operating licencer to open new pharmacies. 

The life and the conditions for obtaining a pharmacy license are regulated under anicle I5 of the Normr approved by 
the Order no. 6261 200 I, ikrued by the Romanian Minister of Health. modified and completed by the Order no. I 1961 2004. 
Anicle I5  stipulater that the pharmacy licenrer obtained after the enforcement of the Order no. I I99 are to be permanen5 
under the amendment of prererving the initia1 conditions that have originated the authorization of ruch a licenre. 

In respect to the licenrer previourly obtained. havinga limited iife of 5 yearr accordingto the Order no. 626. the new 
regulation setes they wil1 be re-authorized. under the provisionr of the Order no. I 199. 

Conridering the changes in legislation mentioned above. and bared on the fact that no licenre was cancelled rince the 
Company’s foundation, the management har decided 10 cease the arnonisation of the current pharmacy licenres. 

The new accounting approach adopted by the Company is to prererve the vahe of the licences to the level as at I 
January 2006, lor  the exirting oner. and to the level of acquisition cosi lor  the newly obtained licenrer. over an indefinite 
lifetime. 

The change in the accounting estimate impacts the depreciation charge lor  the period ended 3 I December 2006 with 
EUR 405 thourand. The management considers impracticable to ertimate the effect of thir change over future accounting 
periods. t.’ 

Acquisition of Lauren Finance IFN SA ’4 
I 

On 18 July 2006, the Group acquired 99.67% of huren Finance IFN SA (“huren”) as follows: 94.97% from Gemira Cl 
Investmenti Ltd (related party) and 4.69% from otherr. lor the amount of EUR 450 thourand plus 2.3% of Lauren’r monthly c.? 

I 

1.3 

e;, 
c“ 
’4 

saies for a t  least 5 years. staning I January 2007. 

huren  was incorporated in 2004. and i ts  object of activity is  financial intermediation. specifically irruing of credit cardr. 

At  the date of acquisition, huren’s total statutory turnover was EUR 8 thousand and the net 101s was EUR 28 thousand. 
Net assets at acquirition date are EUR 72 thourand. As at year end, huren’s net rales are in amount of EUR I I thourand 
and the net asseu are at the level of EUR 42 thourand. 

As at 3 I December 2006 the National Bank of Romania (“NBR”) did not give an official anrwer to the requert to include 
Lauren in the General Register of Non-Banking Financial institutionr. the panier have agreed to  extend the acquisition 
agreement until a decirion wil1 be formulated by NBR. 

6. INVESTMENTS 

As a t  3 I December 2006 and I January 2006. ai1 avaiiable for sale securitier are carried a t  colt because they are nor 
publicly traded and management of rhe Group is nor able to measure reliably their fair vabe. 
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7. LONGTERM RECEIVABLES 

3 I December 1006 I January 1006 

Long term wade receivabler 4.365 218 

Healti- Inrurance Houses receivabler 1.562 1.138 

Loan u> shareholden (Nore 21) 950 

Other 304 

7.181 1.356 

As at 31 December 2006. the carrying value of long term receivables approximater their fair value of EUR 7.359 
thousand (I January 2006 EUR 1.374 thourand). 

Ar at 3 I December 2006 amortised colt was computed based on an effective weighted average interest rate of 7.23% 
(3.47% ar a t  I January 2006). 

Bank borrowings (Note IS)  are secured over EUR 4.365 thousand from the above long term trade receivables 
balance. 

Following a three year analysis of receivables. it was determined that from the total popularion of curtomers with 
outstanding amounts ageing 60 days from the sale date, approximately 10% are “cashed after a period longer than I year. 
This amount (EUR 4.365 thourand) war reclassified as long term receivablei. 

As a t  31 December 2006, the Health Inrurance Houses receivable balance in amount of EUR 1.562 thousand (as a t  I 
Januai-y 2006 EUR 1,138 thourand) consists of amountr due from Health Inrurance Houses for sales of items subsidized by 
the Romanian State. sales which exceeded the ceilings set out in the contractual agreements concluded by Ideapharm SA 
with the Health Insurance Houses for the year ended 3 I December 2005. Since the sales were in exces of the contractual 
agreements. as at the dare of thir report the Health Inrurance Houses do nor recognire these amountr. However. these long 
term receivabler from Health hurance House are covered by a warranty undertaking from GlaxosmithKline SRL (GSK 
Group - Note 17). 

According to the acquisition contract of Ideapharm SA. GSK Group must cover al1 the uncollected receivables from 

In case the Health Insurance House wil1 nor pay i t s  outstanding debts towards the Company within a period of 3 years, 

Health Insurance House. which were outstanding at the acquisition date. 

GSK G~OUD wil1 ComDenrate these amounts with the debtr of the ComDanv. 

8. INVENTORIES 

I Jimuary 1006 

Goadr held for $ale 64.827 37.403 

3 I December 1006 

Pmvirion for slow moving 2nd obsolete invenrov ... (1.372) (781) 
63.455 36.622 

i 

Bank borrowingr (Note 15) are secured over EUR 63.136 thourand from the above inventorier. 

9. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

31 December 1006 I January 1006 

Trade receivabler I 15.552 74.81 I 

Amounts due irom relared pamier (Note 21) 6.487 1.571 

Impsiment for receivabler (2.269) (2.771) 

119,770 73.61 I 

Trade receivabler amortised cost was computed based on an effective weighted average interest rare of 4.55% p.a. as at 
31 December 2006 (I January 2006 3.47%). 
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Bank borrowings (Note 15) are secured over EUR I 19,770 thourand from the above trade receivables balance. 

The fair value of trade receivables (including relared parties) as at  31 December 2006 and I January 2006 i s  EUR 
120. I I3 thousand and EUR 79.861 thousand. respectively. 

As an extenrion of the initia1 contract signed by Mediplus k i m  SA and Orone Laboratorier SRL (relared party) in the 
year 2004. on I January 2006 a convention war rigned for conveying the old Orone division's receivables to the rupplier 
Ozone Laboratories SRL. Following rhir convention. ai1 the debts in relation with Ozone merchandise older than 210 days. 
were conveyed from Mediplus k i m  SRL to Ozone Laboratories SRL. The amount of debt uansferred by Mediplus Exim SA 
to Ozone Laboratorie. SRL in 2006 is in value of EUR 1.140 thourand. 

The Group has undertaken a review of the provision for loyaity points program in rerail segmenr Commencing with 
2006. che Company has implemented rome operational ruler that limit in time the availability of card ure. Bared on the 
new policy and in line with the historical analysir of loyalcy points "rage. the Company har determined a percentage of total 
points dirburrement from customers. The Company believes that the new ertimate provides a more precire approximation 
of the future impact of a i torner  urage of loyalty ppintr. Thir change in accounting estimate har been applied prospectively 
from I s t  January 2006. This har reduced the provision for loyalty points for die year by EUR 575 thourand. In 2006. following 
analyris of historical data and increared control over receivable collection. the Group management har decided co change its 

impairment asressment methodology by focusing on specific evaluation of significant customers. Had the old methodology 
been used (bared more on general provisioning). the impairment for receivables balance as at 3 I December 2006 would 
have been higher by EUR 1.5 million. 

10. OTHER CURRENTASSETS 

I Jnnuary 1006 3 I December 1006 

Pleparme"tr 4.886 1.630 

VAT recovenble 4.889 1.346 

Loanr nceivable ímm customem 733 725 

Amouna receivable fmm shareholden (Note 21) 587 792 

Advancsr to rupplien 35 I 898 

Sundry debton. net 35 I 181 

Amounrr due fmm relared panier (Note 21) 222 4.677 

12.019 10.249 
l.- 

In prepaymentr the Group har included various forms of discounts granted in advance to clienu. %I 

11. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
G' 

Cash and bank in RON 17.127 2,245 bJ 

Cash ind bank in fongn  currency 67 4.786 '3 

-4 

3 I December 1006 I january 1006 , 

17.194 7.031 

Reauicrcd cash 5.863 8.221 

23,057 15.252 

Ar a t  3 I December 2006 the value of short-term deporits included within cash and bank in RON was EUR 14.5 million. 
and the weighted average eífective interest rate on short-term bank deporits was 3.36% p.a. As at  I January 2006 short- 
term deposits value was EUR 56 thousand and the weighted average effective interest rate on short-term bank deporits 
was 3.25% p.a. 

Bank borrowings (Note 15) are recured over EUR 589 thourand from the above cash balance, 

For the purpore of the cash flow statement. the cash and cash equivalents comprire the following: 
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31 December1006 I January 2006 

Cash and bank balancer 23.057 15.252 

L e s  rertdcted cash (5.863) (8.221) 

Bank overdrafu (Note 15) (18.304) 

17.194 (I 1.273) 

12. SHARE CAPITAL 

The statutory irrued share capital was contribured as set out below: 

Shares 
(EUR ‘000) 

Date 

Cash contribution November 2005 25 

In-kind conuihution bv Sonnno BV of shares in Mediolus Exim SA and Senriblu SRL December 2W5 300.000 

300.025 

Shares have a nomina1 value of RON 37.2 each and al1 have equal voting rightr. The total rtatutoiy value of share capital 
is 300.025. 

The shares of Mediplus Exim SA and Sensiblu SRL, contributed by Sograno BV info the share capital of the Company. 
have been valued by an independent valuer uring the market comparison approach, whereby price data (“multiples”) for 
shares of rimilar companier which are traded in public markers (the “Comparable Companies”) were applied to the Entitier’ 
financial data to  ertimate hei r  marketable value. As value mearurer. the valuer “red pricetearningr. pricelraler. price/EBITDA, 
and price/EBIT ratior ar of the valuation date. The Comparable Companier ured in developing these ratior were drawn from 
the rame indurtry ar the Entitier. 

For the purposer of these tinancial statements drawn up under IFRS, the fair value of the shares of Mediplus Exim SA and 
Senriblu SRL war ertimared at 260.000. which rerultr in a share capital of the Company of 260.015 as at I January 2006. 

The irrued share capiml consists of the following: 

Number of shares O r d i n q  shares 
Ithausandì íEUR ‘0001 .- ~~ ~ -, 

At I January 2006 29,437 

Ar 3 I December 2W6 29.437 260,025 

13. TAXATION 

1006 

Income tax expenre - current 4.669 

Deferred fax (income)lupenre (1.117) 

Income fax 3.552 

The Romanian rubridiaries accrue income m at the rate of 16% on profits as a t  3 I December 2006 and 3 I December 
2005 computed in accordance with the Romanian m legislation. 

The profit before taxation lor  financial reporting purpores is reconciled to  the total tax expenre as followr: 

1006 

Profit before fax charge 21.380 

Tax calculated at domertic 3,421 rater applicable TC> pmfits in he rerpective countries 
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Finakcial Statements as at and %r the year ended 3 I December 2006 
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3 I December 3006 

~ _ _  

Tax effect ofitemr whlch are not deductible or 
arrerrable foor taxatlon purporer 

Non-deductible upenrer 1.440 

Other non-temporary adjurtmenrr (782) 

Recopired deferred (nx asset (527) 

Non-recognired deferred tax arret movement 

Income mx 3.552 

I J i n u a v  1006 

Cumulative 

W m p o w  
differencer 

Delaerred wx a s r d  Cumularive Deferred rax arred 
(liabiliry) temporair (liabiliry) 

differencer 
I I I I 

Pmperry. plant and equipment (i.118) (179) 1.586 254 

IWe-IiS 7.831 1.253 3.958 633 

Receivablei 5.953 952 4.912 786 

Invexmtnrr (4-w (71) (*6) (65) 
Papbles 2nd other xccruu.Is (I 3.33 I) (2.133) (14,014) (2.242) 

7.892 1.263 3.51 i 562 Delerred rax arrer lor rtatuwry unured bi 
relief 

Brand (48.93 I) (7.828) (45.000) (7.200) 

Dekmd (nx srred(liabiiity) (42.146) (6.743) (45.453) (7.272) 

The movement in deferred tax liability balance is  ar followr: c“ 

-4 

Dderred tax (iiabiiity)/asset 0 

(“0 

Pu‘ 

Deferred wx (expenre)/income 1.1 17 (2, 
(3 

I Jinuary 2W6 (7.272) ’ 

Translarion reserre (588) -4 

31 December2W (6.743) 

In the context of rhe Group’r current structwe. rax losser and current fax arsets of the different companier may not 
be set ofi against current tax liabilitier and taxable profits of other companier and. accordingly. taxer may accrue even when 
t h k  i s  a net conrolidated fax loss. Therefore. a deferred tax arret of one of the comanier is not offset aeainrt the deferred 
fax liability of another company in the Group. 

14. FINANCE LEASE 

Finance lease liabilitier - minimum lease payrnenc;: 
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year ended 3 I December 2006 

I January 2006 3 I December 2006 

Gros obligations under finance leases 

Lerr than I year 2.694 2.258 

Between I year and 5 yearr 1.924 1.658 

4.6 I 8  3.916 

Future finance charges (342) (346) 
Present M I U ~  of finance lease liabilitier 4.276 3.570 

The present value of Anance lease liabilities is  as follows: 

3 I December 2006 I January 2006 

L e s  b a n  I year 2.451 2.015 

Between I year and 5 yearr 1.825 1.555 

Present vdue of Snance leae lisbilitier 4,276 3.570 

The carrying amounls of lease obligations approximate their fair value. 

15. BORROWINGS 

Ar at I3 Juiy 2006, rhe Company har contraned the syndicated loan with Citibank. The balance as at 3 I December 2006 
is as follows: 

3 I December 1006 

71.718 CITIBANK - EUR (Syndicated Lom) 

Prepaid feer - Iers b a n  I year (745) 

( 1.1 80) Preoaid feer - between I year and 5 ~ e i m  

69’793 e 
Long term hans are prerented as followr: 

31 December 2006 Lender Maturl+ Intere*t 

CITIBANK - Facility A 31 July201I EURIBOR 6m + I .95% p.a. 4.000 

CITIBANK - Facility 82 3 I July 2009 EURIBOR 3m + 1.7% p.a. 50,580 

CITIBANK - Facility B I 3 I ] d y  2009 EURIBOR 3m + 1.7% p.a. 17.138 

71,718 

This financing facility replaced the overdrafr facilitles provided by HVB Bank and ING Bank. 

The bank har agreed to  split the total facility as followr: 

Facility A -capital expenditure requirementr andlor repayment of existing indebtedness of any member of the Group. 
over a period of 5 years; 

Facility BI - working capital requirements andlor repayment of exirting indebtednerr of any member of the Group 
(revolving). over a period of 3 years; 
Facility 82 -capital expenditure requirements andlor repayment of existing indebtednesr of any member o I f  the Group. 
over a penod of 3 years: 

Facility B3 -issuance of letters ofguanntee to the extent required in the ordinary course of the business ofany member 
of the Group. over a period of 3 years: 

- 
- 
- 

a * 
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Financial Sdternents as,at and.for the  year ended 3 I December 2006 
in EUR '000;'unlerr othemisé;tited) -______ . .  *~, ,  

Limirations and utilisationr: 

The maximum amount can be utilired lor  facility A i s  EUR 10 million at the date of the agreemenr 
The maximum amount that can be utilired for facility B2 i s  EUR 45 million; 

The maximum amount of al1 letters of guanntee isrued under faciliry B3 rhali nor exceed EUR I O million: 

The maximum toral amount that can be utiiired for facility B is EUR 90 million a t  the date of the agreement. 

The Citibank Laan Agreement contains cenain affirmative covenantr. including. without limiration. cenain financial ratio 
covenanu co be observed and. in rome cases, restrictionr on dividend paymentr. unless a cenain debdEBITDA ratio is 
met 

- 
* - 
* 

Shon term barmwingr aFd bank overdrafu are analyred below: 

I lanuary 2006 

HVB BANK - EUR 16073 

ING BANK- RON 2.231 

Toni Overdrait 18.304 

SOGRANO. EUR (Short term lom) Mediplur Exim SRL 11.713 

30.017 

Derailed bank overdnfts and short term loanr are prerented ar foilowr: 

Lender naturity Interert I January 1006 

3 I August 2w6 EURIBOR 3m + 3% p.a. I 5 . m  HVB BANK - EUR 
Mediplur k i m  SRL 

HVB BANK - RON 
Suiriblu SRL 

3 I August 2006 Overnighr RBOR + 3% p.a. 1.073 

3 I August 2006 BUBOR Im +l.S%p.a 2.23 I ING BANK- RON 
Senriblu SRL 

t-' 

Bank ovsrdrafu 18.304 'V 
I 

30 June 2006 9% 11.713 '3 SOGRANO - EUR 
(Short term lom) Mediplur Exim SRL CD 

30.017 ? ~ ,  

a 
There is  no short term borrowingr payable by the Group as a t  31 December 2006. 

16. PROVISIONS 

Ar at I January 2006, the Group recognized in iu balance sheet a part of the acquired contingent liabilities of Mediplus 
Exim SA and Sensiblu SRL The change in balance a t  31 December 2006 as compared with I Januaiy 2006 i s  due to a 
tranrlation effect on opening balancer. The contingent liabilitier not recognized - due to management's not being able to 
make reiiable estimations of their impact - are dercribed in Note 25(i). 

The Group was subject to a Romanian Curtomr Authority control regarding the clasrification of certain imponed goods 
which were not considered as nutritional ruppiements and w e d  with 18%. but w e d  as exemptcd productr. The control 
of the Romanian Curtomr National Authority covered the period from 2001 to 2003 and resulred in additional curtom 
dutier. VAT, and related interest and late paymenu in amount of EUR 0.8 million, which is included in the amount of EUR 
15 million. 
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year ended 3 I December 2006 

.T.& 

Management is actively challenging the imposirion of these charges. 

Thus the legal and fiscal environment in Romania and it. implementation into practice can change and is subject 
to different interpretation by various Minirtrier of the Government and their agencier that are authorired to conduct 
audits (I<controIs") of Romanian companies. Management har therefore made provision for tax or  other liabilitier in the 
financial statements where they consider that tax or  other authoritier could take differing positions with regards to  the 
interpretation of these issues. 

17. LONG TERM PAYABLES 

Ar a t  3 I December 2006. the long term payables of the Group to GlaxoSmithKline SRL (GSK Group) guarantee for the 
receivable balance of EUR 1,562 thousandr of the Group. in relation with Health Insurance House (Note 7) (EUR 1,356 ar 
a t  I January 2006). 

Long wade payabler arnortired COS was computed bared on an effective weighted average interest rate of 5.38% p.a. as 
at 3 I December 2036. The fair value of long term trade payabler ar at 3 I December 2006 and I January 2006 is EUR 1,685 
thousand and EUR 1.374 thourand. respectively. 

18. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS AND OTHER LIABILITIES 

3 I December 2006 I Jsnuary 2006 

Trade paysbler 146.775 101.012 

A m o u n ~  owing co related pader (Note 21) 9.369 12.468 

Taxon pmfit 2.553 587 

Due co State 2.548 696 

Financial liabilitier 1.590 

Due to employeer 1.140 572 

Interest papble 432 

Advancer for rak of land and building 2.201 

Cther payabler 217 I79 

164.624 117.715 

Short trade payables arnortised cost war computed bared on an effective weighted average interest rate of 4.96% ar at 
3 I December 2006 (I January 2006 4.63%). 

The fair value of trade payables (including related paKieS) as at 3 I December 2006 and I January 2006 is EUR 156,960 
thousand and EUR 116,086 thousand. respectively. 

Financial instrurnents at fair value through profit or loss 

The Group entered int0 a number of foreign currencies enhanced non-deliverable forward contracts 10 mitigate i ts  
foreign currency exposure with trade payabler. Al1 gainr and losses on foreign currency contracts are recognired in the 
incorne statement The unrealired losser as at 31 December 2006 on these non deliverable forward contracts are EUR 
1.590 thourandr. 

The table below rummarizer. by major currency. the contractual amounts of the Group non-deliverable forward foreign 
exchange contracts as a t  31 December 2006, with details of the contracted exchange rates versus the RON. Foreign 
currency amounts are tranrlated a t  market rates ruling at  the balance sheet date. 
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oter to the Conroiidated Financial Statemenp as at and'for the year ended 3 I December 2006 
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e 

Enhanced forward Partkipation exchange Notional amount 
exchange rater rater in EUR 

Buy US Dollan 2.72 1.92 15.185 

Buy US Dollars 2.60 2.70 5.3 I5 

Buy Euro 3.47 3.60 18.wO 

Buy Euro 3.40 3.50 8.wo 

The "Enhanced forward rare'' reprerentr the rate at  which the Group buyr rhe notional amounts in foreign currency as 
long as the spot rate is below the "Participation rare". In care the spot rate reaches or goes above the Participation rate. 
the Group exits the hedge. 

19. OPERATING COSTS 

2006 

tost  of rales 243.43 I 

Salazier md benefits 28.781 

Rent and adminirvative ~ X D ~ ~ X S  11.913 

Third party services i 1.070 

Advertiring and pmmotion 13.419 

Deprecistion 2nd amortiration 4.794 

Irnpainnent for fixed asseu (360) 
Pmvirion foor inventoner 487 

Inventor-, write oH 1.453 

Penaltier and h e r  1.337 

ImDaiment on receivabler (515) . .  
Operationai foreign exchange (income)/ expenre 

Lorres on bveigei,, currency non delivemble fomard conuacts 

(9.900) 
1.590 

Orher expenrer 823 

308.324 

20. FINANCIAL RESULT 

2006 

Foreign exchange diHerences. net 3.989 

Interest expenre (3.810) 

Interest (expenre)/revenue financial inrtruments (1.549) 

Other financial expenre (9W) 
(1.889) 

Interest income 38 I 

21. RELATED PARTYTRANSACTIONS 

For the purposer of these financial statements, parries are considered to be related if one party har the abiliry to control 
the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisionr ar deíined 
by IAS 24 "Related Party Disclosure". In considering each porsible related party relationship. attention is directed to the 
substance of the relationship. nor rnerely 10 the legal form. 

Related parties may enter inro transacuons which unrelated parties might not. and cransactionr between related partier 
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may nor be effected on the rame terms. conditionr and amounts ar tranractionr beween unrelated partier 

The nature of the related p a q  relationrhipr for thore relared partier with whom the Group entered int0 significant 
tranracu'onr dwing the period ended 3 I December 2006 or had significant balancer outstanding at 3 I December 2006 are 
demiled below. Tranractionr were entered into with related partier dwing the ordinary course of business on both normal 
and preferential commercial terms. 

Country of 
Controlled by the iame ultimate sharehoidem A=ti"iy incorporrtlo" 

Romania 
Conrumer Product Network SRL Importer and dirtributor of 
(fomerly Farmactiv SRL) psraphamaceuticai producu 

Global Burinerr hfrware SRL Sofrware deveiopment Romania 

. . .  
Ozoone Laboratorier SRL Phsmaceutical manufacrurer Romania 

Fleer Management Services SRL Car fleer maintenance Romania 

Press Pro International SRL Media promotion Romania 

Bulpria 
importer and dirtributor 

of pharmaceuticd pmducu 
Arirhop Pharma AD 

Oxigen Plus SRL Oxigen products diruibutor Romania 

Country of Controlled by the rame ultimete rhnreholderr Actlvity Incorporation 
Minibh SRL Baby ciorhing and toy* Romania 

Optical Network SRL Optical prcducu Romania 

Gemira Invertmenu Ltd invertment fund Cyprus 

Lauren Finance SRL Merchant card Romania 
Adkit Serv SRL Management services Romania 

Grup 3 Convacting SRL conrwction Romania 
Cristal Diagnortic SRL Lab0rator)r tew Romania 

During the period, the following tranractionr were carried out with related partier: 

Saler of g d r  and service$ 2006 
Orone Laboratorieer SRL 3.054 

Employees 1.195 

Minibh SRL I96 
Opticai Nework SRL 191 

Conrumer Product Network SRL i49 

Gemira Servicii SRL I 

4.786 

Mediplur Exim SA and Ozone Laboratorier SRL have entered into an agreement dated I January 2006. bared on which 
the former undertook to provide the laffer storage and dirtribution services. ar wel1 as logirtic services related to the 
transport and management of Ozone bboratorier productr. up to  a yearly limit set out by the partier in the agreement. The 
agreement rernainr in force until 3 I December 2007. The fees that Orone Laboratorier must pay to  Mediplur k i m  SA are 
calculated by applying cemin percentages to  the value of the Ozone Laboratories finirhed products acquired by Mediplur 
Exim SA from Ozone Laboratorier. 
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On 2 August 2006 Sensiblu SRL and Ozone Laboratories SRL entered into a service agreement according to which the 
former undenook to provide to the latter cemin services lor  the merchandising of Ozone Laboratories products in 159 
of Senriblu SRCs pharrnacies. The nurnber of the pharmacies where these services are 10 be provided wil1 increase to 190 
by the end of 2006 and to 210 by I July 2007. The agreement is entered into lor  a I2 month period. namely from I Juiy 
2006 to I Juiy 2007. The tariffs to be paid by Ozone Laboratories SRL are set out lor  each type of services provided. Given 
the significant package of services acquired. Ozone Laboratorier SRL benefits from a 17 per cent discount applied to the 
aggregate value of the purchased services. 

Purcharer of goodr and serylces 2006 

Ozone Laboratorier SRL . .  24.409 

Conrumer Product Nework SRL 2.131 

Fleet Mawement SRL 532 

Oxigen Plus 168 

Miniblu SRL I20  

Ozone Labonconer Ltd 37 

Optical Netwo* SRL I27 

Global Burinerr hftware SRL S 

Lauren Finance SRL 

SC Cnrml Diagnortic SRL 121 

Adkit Sew SRL 41 

Senriblu Optica SRL 13 

Othcn 27 

27.732 

The goods and services purchased are prerented net of discounts received from Ozone Laboratorier SRL dwing the 
period ended 3 I December 2006. The value of discounts received by the Group in the period is of EUR 4.951 thousand. 

Snler of property. plant and equlpment 2006 
Y 

G N ~  3 Conmcting 159 

Conrumer Product Nework SRL 52 

Ozone Laboratoner SRL 41 

Founding Shareholden 37 

0fh-r 27 

316 

Purcharer of property plant and equlpment 2006 

GNP 3 Conmcting 13.163 

Conrumer Product Nework SRL I I 4  

Global Burinerr Software SRL 98 

Fleet Management SRL 16 

13.39 I 
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2006 

Management ralarier 2.477 

_____~ ~ 

Interest related to lom grmted by related parties 

Interest paid to Sograno BV 

1006 

391 

The following balancer were outstanding with related panies: 

Trade recelvables from related partier 31 December 2006' I January 2006 

Orone Laboratorier SRL 4.286 280 

Employees 1.516 -0  
Ozone Laboratories Lrd 453 

Optical Network SRL I09 101 

Miniblu SRL 100 309 

Conrumer Producr Nemork SRL 23 881 

6.487 1.57 I 

For the above receivable, the Company har provided the amount of EUR 1.5 million as at 3 I December 2006. 

Other receivabier fmm related partier 3 I December 1006 i Januiry 1006 

Ozone Laboratories SRL 64 1.622 

Arishop Pharma AD 895 

Receivable from rhareholderr 1,537 792 

Greenville BV 60 I 

Ozone Laboratories Ltd 416 

Conrumer Product Nemork SRL 

414 Miniblu SRL 36 280 

Optical Network SRL 40 98 

Oxigen Piur SRL 60 283 

Gernira Servicii SRL 12 

Otherr 10 68 

1.759 5,469 

T a d e  payabier to rclated parties I January 1006 
Orone Laboratorier SRL 7,323 7.836 

Grup 3 Contracting SRL 1.286 41 

Optical Network SRL 74 I29 

Fleet Management SRL 60 

SC Crisral Diagnortic SRL 23 
Miniblu SRL 18 I97 

3 I December 1006 

Conrumer Producr Nemork SRL 579 53 

Global Business Software SRL 9 
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Trade payabler to related partles I Januay 1006 

Ozone Laboratorier Ltd 4.163 

Others 6 40 

9.369 12.468 

1 I December 2006 

Ar at I January 2006 a contract war rigned beween Mediplur Exim SA and Ozone Laboratorier SRL. related party 
of the Group (Note 9). related to the transfer of the Mediplur'r outstanding receivabler balancer older than 210 dayr on 
Ozone productr. 

The contract concerns rhe compenration of rhird panier receivabler balancer towards the Group against the Ozone 
Laboratorier SRL payable balance. 

b a n  frrom related partier 3 I December 2006 I Januay 2006 

Soarano BV I1.713 

Tranractions with rhareholderr 

I Jinuay 2006 Balancer frod(due) to rhareholderr 1 I December 2006 

Lom granred fo ADP NV (Nore 7) 950 

To recover fmm foundinn shareholden íNote IOI 39 

Orher amoum receivabld(payab1e) (Nore 10) 548 (3) 

791 
Arnounu due fmm founding shareholden in respect of the price adjusment 
on h e  shares purchased in Senriblu SRL (Nore 10) 

N e t  amount recovarable fmm shareholden 1.537 709 

As a t  21 September 2006. Mediplur k i m  SA har concluded a loan agreement to lend EUR 950 thourand to A&D 
Pharma Holdings NV. The loan bears an interest rate of 7% p.a. and the principal and interest receivable have a maturity 
of three yearr. Ar a t  3 I December 2006. the cargng value of shareholder'r loan approximater their fair value of EUR 950 
thourand. 

The founding rhareholderr have provided goodr to i t s  employees, as benefitr in kind, in amount of EUR 767 thourand. 
The receivable of the Company from the founding rhareholderr for the amount mentioned above were wrinen off by the i-' 

management decirion. 21 
I 

c3 The Management har decided ar ar 3 I December 2006 to wdte-off these receivabler. 

Other amounrs receivable comprire the withholdingtax due to the state in relation with past tranractionr involving h e  cc, 

i*J 

C3 

u 

I founding rhareholderr. 

Bared on adminiruator's decirion of Mediplus Exim and Senriblu from 7 March 2007. the rhareholderr have commined 
rhemselves to repay the amount of EUR 548 thourands to the two companier. Q 

As at I January 2006 the balance due from the ultimare shareholderr in respect of the shares purchased in Senriblu SRL 

Ar a t  15 September 2006. the ultimate rhareholderr have reimburred their debtr due to the Company in amount of 

Other tranractionr with key management perronnel 

Directors of the Company control 7% of [he voting shares of the Group'r parent company. A&D Pharma Holdings NV. 
Netherlandr. Non executive independent directorr of the parent company Board render services to Romanian Group with 
na charges 

was denominated in USD. unsecured and interest free. 

EUR 792 thousand (USD 938 thourand). 
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22. MAIN SUBSIDIARIES 

The conrolidated rubridiarier included within the Group and the degree of control exercised by A&D Pharma Holdings 
SRL are ar followr: 

%share Country of E"tiV ACti"iV 
31 December 2006 I Januay 2006 

100 I O0 

incorpration 

Romania 

Romania 

Import and wholerale diruibution of 
pharmaceuticai productr in Romania 
Retail dirvibution of pharmaceutical 

productr in Romania 
Retaii dirtribution of phamaceutid 

pmductr in Romania 

Mediplur k i m  SRL 

Senriblu SRL 

Ideapham SA 

Lauren Finsnce SRL Romania Financisl activitier I O0 

100' ' I O0 

Romania 

In September 2006 Ideapharm SA merged with Senriblu SRL. 

23. SEGMENT INFORMATION 
~~ ~~ 

Statement of Income 

Year end& 3 I December 2006 Wholesde Retdl Other Ellmlnatlonr Gmup 

Saler 287,582 89.780 (45.769) 331.593 

Openting income and expenser (260.327) (94.331) (87) 46.421 (308,324) 

Segment relult 27.255 (4.551) (87) 652 23.269 

Unallocated orher operating income 2nd 
eXpe"Se9 

Openting proíirl(lorr) 27.255 (4.551) (87) 652 23.269 

e Finance COID. net (I ,679) (210) 

Profid(lorr) before taxation 25.576 (4.761) (87) 652 21.380 

Income fnx expenre (4,058) 506 (3.552) 

Net pmfir/(lorr) for the p a r  21.518 (4.255) (87) 652 17.828 

Balance sheet 

Ar at I I December 1006 Wholerale Retal1 Other Eiimlnationr Group 

Segment arses 245.988 42.057 299.973 (24.878) 563.140 

Unallocared arses 

Total zses 245.988 42.057 299,973 (24.878) 563.140 

209.776 50.727 34 1.427 261,964 Segment liabilitier 

Unallocated liabilitier 

34 1.427 261.964 Total liabilitier 209.776 50.727 

Capital expenditure 18.053 4.688 22.741 

Depredation 2nd amorrisation (2.101) (2.693) (4,794) 

e Included in operating income and expenres are depreciarion and amortisation charges in amount of EUR 4.794 thourandr 
out of which wholerale accounts for EUR 2.101 rhourandr and reinil segment for EUR 2,769 thourandr. 
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üalance sheet 

As at I Januarv 2006 Wholerale Retoll Other Elirnlnatlons Gm"p 

segment arres 142.493 35.677 300.025 (44.694) 433.501 

Toral arses 142.493 35.677 300,025 (44.694) 433.501 

Segment liabilitier 119.732 36.914 6.770 173.476 

Total Iiabiiider i 19,731 36,974 6.770 173.476 

Primoiy reporting format - business segmenis . .  

There are material saler and other transactions between the business segmentr. Segment assets consist primarily of 
property.plantandequipment. intangibleassets. inventories. receivables and operatingcash and invertments.Segment iiabiiities 
comprire operaring iiabilitier. lease liabilities and borrowings. Eliminations comprise mainly intercompany commercial and 
service transactions. 

Capital expenditure comprirer addirionr to propeny. plant and equipment and intangiblet 

The secondary regrnental information based on geographical area is not material to be disclosed as almost al1 the activity 
is  carried out in Romania. 

24. USE OF ESTIMATES 

The Company makes estimates and arsumptions concerning the future. The rerulring accounting estimater will. by 
definition. reldom equal [he related actual results. The ertimates and arsumptions that have a significant risk of cauring a 

material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below. 

(i) Interest income and expenses 

Interest income and expenses for linancial instruments is recognised in the income statement a t  amonired colt uring 
rhe effecuve interest rate method for receivables and payabler. 

The effectik interest method is a method of calculatingthe amonised colt of a financial arret or a financial liabiliry and 
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. 

The effective interest rate is  the rate that exactly discounts ertimated future cash payments or receiptr through the 
expened life of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. 

I-A 

The linear amortiration merhod "red to determine the amonired cox  for both receivable and payables reprerents the ..4 
management's best estimate for the value of the corresponding amortiration. I 

(ii) Impairment losse. on receivable 
c, 
w 

In accordance with the internal impairmenr assessment methodology. the Company reviews its receivable portfolios 
to assess impairment on a yearly basis. In determining whether an impairment loos should be recorded in the income U 
statement. the Company makes judgments as to whether there is any obrervable data indicating that there is objecrive (2 
evidence of impairment that har an impact on the ertimated future cash flowr from an individual or from entire portfolio of q:t 
receivabler. Management uses ertimateer based on historica1 los experience; in the Same time the calcdation of the present -4 
value of future cashflows requires judgement by the management The methodology and arsumptions ured for ertimating 
both the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed reguiarly to reduce any differences between loss estimates 
and actual IOSI experience 

(iii) Canying vaiue of inventories 

The Company assesses at each balance-sheet date the requirement for a provision againrt its inventorier. The Company 
uses its judgement. bared on the expiry date of goods in order to estimate the level of the provision required. 

(iv) Impairment of non-financiai assets 

Arrets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are terted annually for impairment Arrets 
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that are subject CO amornisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumrmncer indicare that 
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is  recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying 
amount exceedr its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to rel1 and 
value in ure. For the purposes of arressing impairment. assets are grouped a t  the lowest leveis for which there are separately 
idenrifiable cashflows (cash-generating units). 

Identification of cash generating units requires judgment and is based on ability to generate independent cash inflows. 
00th the wholesale and retail segmentr are treated by the Management ar cash generating units as their operations are 
interdependent and there are no smaller units that have the ability t o  generate revenues largely independent from others 
within the group. 

Goodwill is allocated at the acquisition date before the end of the Rrst  annual reporring period. As a t ' 3 i  December 
2006 management tested goodwill, brands and licenser for impairment. Goodwill acquired through business combination. 
indefinite lived intangibler and net book value of fixed arsets have been allocated to cash generating units as foliows: 

Excerr of 
Vahe In recoverable 

Ure amount over 
carryhg amount 

Totai 
nmount of Carryhg 

rangible ariets Val"= 

Carying Carying 
Carying amount of amount of 

pharrnacy 
brand licencer 

Canying Cash- 
generathg amount af . 
""lt gcadwili indefinite lived 

WhoIer.de 216465 26,705 243,170 338,986 95,816 

Retall 33.235 48.93 I 1.719 8.887 92,772 134.797 42,025 

249.700 48.93 I 1.719 35.592 335.942 473.783 137.841 

In deiermimng the values in "Se, the management "ses f0.r-year dew led free cashflow forecasu (lor per oa 2007-20 .O) 
and rhen simpltfied frec cash iìow forecasu in perperuity wirn a dircounr rate of 9.6%. UI ng d m  for 2010. Tne va ue in -SC 

of me cash generat'ng units was Dared on a growrn íacror of 2% for al1 cain flowr beyona tnc acw:led prolecr'onr. 

Key arrumprionr are barcd on a mral pharma marker of EUR 1.268 m'ilion 21 at 3 I December 2005 

Over the íodrycar period. me Compound Annual Growrn Rare (CAGR") of rhe toml pnarma marker I ert:macca 
a t  19% (i.e. EUR 2.976 mil1 ar at 31 December 2010). The ADP Whoerale'r CAGR 'I  expectea at  3 1 %  yearly. up 10 31 
DecemDer 2010 (kom net ra CI of EUR 286 mil1 as ar 3 I December 2005 10 EUR 824.3 m Ion in 2010). 

Over tne rame perioa. rhe remi, marker's CAGR :I 20% (kom EUR 286 m II ar ar 3 I Dccember 2006 10 EUR 81 5 mil.ion 
as ar 31 December 2010). Tne esr'mared ADP Rcw I segment CAGR of 56%. JP 10 31 December 2010 (from nel raler of 
EUR 89.8 mil1 on as ar 31 December 2005 ro EUR 370 mil1 on in 2010) 

The key assumpr;onr in me va1.e in bse cat~lar ions dererm ning recovenbie a m 0 . n ~  for rne specif.c cash-geiierat ng 
un;tr noted abave are: 

Wholerale segment 

For the wno crale bLrinerr. me Company prolecrs raler and grorr marg'nr by proadct gr0.p bared on esrimarea mawet 
growrh dynamicr and expectcd market shares. Management beiiever rhe arrumed improvements and rnargins are rearonnbly 
achievable. 

Retail segment 

For rhe remil business. rhe Company bared iu forecartr on rhe projected future nLmDer of pharmacier. ana how 
sales per pharmaq are expecrcd 10 evolve. Managemem beiiever the ars-med improvcmenu and marg ns are reasonaD y 
achievab e. 

As ar 3 I DccemDer 2006, management tested goo.iwili ana brandr íor 'mpairment DY rcfwence to the Enr'tier' D-siness 
plans drawn up for tne per'oa 2006-2010. Thc arr.mptons ana crtimates used .n tne prepantion of these business plans 
are f.nher aem led in Nore 24. Fo lowing there resrs management has reached rhe concl-Sion rhar me above-ment onca 
arsets are nor impa'red as at  3 I DecemDer 2006. 

Pre.acquir.'rion carry ng amo~nrs were dererminea based on app iCaD e IFRSs Imme0 arely mfore me acqJ 5 r<On. 

The vdue of assetr. iao'iities and contingent iabil'tics recognired on acq. s t on are rhe:r est:mated fair values. 
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Management i s  confident that the projectionr are reasonable in the context of conrolidating the leaderrhip porition on 
the local market. 

25. CONTINGENCIES, COMMITMENTS AND OPERATING RISK5 

(i) Contingencies 

a) laxation 

legislation. . ,  
The Romanian taxation ryrtem is undergoing a procerr of conrolidation and harmoniration with the European Union 

Even if the current Romanian Fircal Code is meant to create a rtable tax framework. tax legislation is still subject to a 
significant amount of changes and contradictory interpretationr. which may apply retroactively. 

Moreover. in practice. the tax authoritier can take an aggrerrive approach and asserr additional rax liabilities and related 
late payment penalties (2006 0.06% per day plus 0.5% per month of delay) bared on quertionable interpretationr of the tax 
legislation. As a result. penaltier and deiay payment interest could r e d t  in a significant amount payable to the State. 

Contingent liabilitier may arire in relation to additional taxer that may be imposed by the rax authoritier ar a result of 
reviews performed. Corporare tax returns can be subject to review by tax authoritier within a 5-year period. 

b) Transfer pricing 

The Romanian Fircal legislation includer detailed regulationr regarding transfer pricing beween related partier and 
includer rpeciíic methodr for determining transfer pricer beween related pricer a t  a m * i  length. 

Although transfer pricing is a relatively new issue in Romania and the authoritier have minimal experience in dealing with 
if. continuour development of legislation indicater that the authoritier are becoming aware of its growing importance. 

The company'entered into variour tranractions with companier within the group. as wel1 as other tranractions with 
related partier. 

Although no forma1 vansfer pricing documentation is required under the domertic legislation, in practice h e  Romanian 
tax authoritier may requert rpecific documenmuon on a care-to-care basis. 

In light of this. if obrervance of arm's length principle cannot be proved. a future tax control could challenge the values 
of tranractions beween related panier and adjust the íiscal result with additional taxable revenuednon-deductible expenrer 
(i.e. arrerr additional profit tax liability and relared penaltier). 

c) Competition lam 

The group har various contracts with rupplien which may be clarsiíied by Competirion Council ar potential prohibited 
practicer. Should the Competition Council open an invertigation on any of these contracts and decide that Prohibited 
Practicer exisr. the Group and relevant supplierr may be subject to an Anti-Trust Fine for each offence. The fine may be up 
to 10% of annual turnover for the íinancial yearr prior to the invertigation. Management is  confident that it is nor probable 
that ruch a risk wil1 materialire. and is taking the necerrary measurer to aker thore agreements to be fully in h e  with 
Competition lawr. 

d) Operating environment 

The Romanian economy continuer to display rome characteristicr of an emerging market 

The Group'r rubridiarier have been involved in variour practicer which may conrtitute violations of rpecific Romanian 
lawr and regulationr regarding the wholerale. retail and advertiring of medical productr and medicarion. including of 
prercription drugs. 

These practicer are common in the Romanian pharmaceutical marker and. to the Company'r knowledge. in relation to 
these practicer no invertigationr have been undepken or sanctions applied to date. However. if invertigated and proved. 
ruch practicer may result in either the reclarrification of certain tranraction from a fax rrandpoint or fines and other 
sanctions. The rax exposure may result int0 additional EUR 9.3 million profit rax. VAT and late payment interest and also 
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confiscation of revenues in amount of EUR 2.9 million 

However. the inspection performed by the Fiscal Authoritier covering the financial periods to 3 I December 2004, did 
not result in any additional tax liab es o r  penaltier in connection with thir matter. Although ruch amounts are porrible 
and rnay be material. it is the opinion of the Group's management that these amountr are either nor probabie. OT rearonably 
determinable. or both. 

The accompanying financial statements do nor inciude any provision for such matters. 

e) Lego1 proceedings 

During the period. the Group was involved in a number of court proceedings (both as a plaintiff and a defendant) 
arising in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of management. based on iegai advice. there are no current legal 
proceedingr o r  other claims outstanding which could have a materiai effect on the result of operations o r  financial porition 
of the Group and which have not been accrued or dirclosed in these conrolidated financial statements. 

fJ Insuronce policies 

The Group hoids insurance policies covering i ts  office building. warehouses and inventory balances as weli as insurance 
poiicies covering itr losser rerulting from malpractice for the retaii business. The Group holds no other inruranCe poiicies in 
relation to i t s  arsets. opentionr. product liability. or in respect of public liabiliry or other inrurable rirkr. 

g) Eienefits in kind to employees 

Over time. the Group har given benefits in kind to its employees, which could be regarded ar salaries by the fircal 
authoritier and m e d  accordingly. However. the inspection performed by the Fiscal Authorities covering the financial 
periodr up to 3 I December 2004. did not result in any additional tax liabilities or penalties in connection with this matter. 
Therefore. Group management considers the risk of ruch taxes being impored to be remote and the accompanying financial 
statements do not include any provision for such matters. 

(ii) Controctuol commitments 

o) Operating lease controm for phorrnacies 

The Group har operating lease contracts for pharmacies location in total amount of EUR 30.8 miilion. for a period fmm 
3 to 10 yearr. with future minimum lease paymentr as foliows: 

o i) Iers than I year EUR 6.6 rnillion; 

ii) between I and 5 years EUR 18.7 miliion: 

iii) more than 5 years EUR 5.5 million. 

b) Construction Agreement for Mogosooio office building ond warehouse 

As at 23 June 2005. Medipiur has entered into an agreement for the construction of an office building and a warehoure 
in the Mogoroaia village with Grup 3 Contracting (reiated party). 

The agreement was further amended as at I March 2006 and sets out the following deadlines for the construction 
works: (i) 31 July 2006 for the warehoure. and (ii) 30 September 2006 for the office building and for campleting ancillary 
outfitting works. In case of delayr in carrying out the relevant construction works the contractor is liable for penalties of 
EUR 2.500 per day of delay. 

Although the deadlines were nor achieved ar at 3 I December 2006. no penaltier were perceived or collected. 

The value of the agreement i s  of EUR 10.8 million exclusive of VAT, payable by Mediplus in severai inrtalments upon the 
acceptance of different categorie1 of construction works. 

As at 3 I December 2006. future services in an amount of approximately EUR 2.0 million rhould be rendered by Group 
3 Contracting (related party) to Mediplus related to thir agreement. 

c) Contram concluded for improvements to leosed phormocies 

The Group concluded agreements with Riga International and Grup 3 Contracting (related party) for improvemens 
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t he  year ended 3 I December 2006 
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which were performed in 2006 to leared pharmacies. The total value of payments in 2006 for improvements was in amount 
of EUR I million. 

(iii) Guorontees 
Ar a t  31 December 2006. the Group had contingent liabilitier in respect of bank and other guaranteer and other 

matters ariring in the ordinary course of business from which it i s  anticipated that no material liabilitier wil1 arire. In the 
ordinary course of business the business the Group har given guaranteer amounting co EUR 4.7 million to third parrier 
ar at 3 I December 2006 (EUR 6.2 million ar at I January 2006). 
Ar at 3 I December 2006 the Group har an agreement with HVB Bank Romania for the purpose of issuing of leners 

guarantee in amount of EUR 325.000. The unused faciliry available to rhe Group as at 3 I December 2006 was EUR 
247.000. 
As a t  3 I December 2006 the Group har an agreement with ING Bank Romania for the purpose of irruing of letters 

guarantee in amount of EUR 900.000.The unured facility available to the Group as a t  31 December 2006 was EUR 
384.wo. 

As a t  I January 2006 the Group had a credit facility opened at ING Bank Romania. with a ceiling of EUR I .8 million for 
rhe purpore of irruing letters ofguarantee. The unured faciliry available to the Group as a t  I January 2006 was EUR I.) 
miliion. 

As at 3 I December 2006 this faciliry har been cancelled. 

As at i January 2006 the Group had a credit facility opened at HVB Bank Romania with a ceiling of EUR 20 million 
for both loan and letters of guarantee. The unused faciliry available to the Group ar a t  i January 2006 was EUR 13.4 
million. 

As at 3 I December 2006 this facility had been cancelled. 

* 

. ,  
. 

* 

* 

26. FINANCIAL RISK5 

(i) Credit risk 

Financial arreu. which potenually subject this Group to credit risk. conrirt principally of trade receivables. The Group 
har policies in place 10 ensure that rales of producu and services are made 10 customerr with an appropriate credit history. 
The carrying amount of accounts receivable. net of impairment adjunment, reprerents the maximum amount expored to 
credit risk. 

The Group har no significant concentrations of credit risk other than the case of Senriblu SRL and Ideapharm SA with 
the amounts due from the Health Insurance Houses. Credit risk with respect to these receivabler i s  limited. rince these 
amountr are primarily due from the Romanian State and hence are considered to be ultimateiy recoverable. Accordingly. 
management believe that the Group har no significant net credit risk with regardr to ruch balancer. i” 

w 

c, 
C P  

h-’ 
t3 

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on purchares and borrowingr that are denominated in a currency other E, 
than the rerpective functional currencier of Group entitier. The currencier giving rire to this risk are primarily Euro. U.S. ..*i 
Dollars (USD). Swisr Franc (CHF). 

Cash is placed in financial inrtituuonr. which are conridered at the time of deporit to have minimal risk of default I 

(;i) Foreign currency risk 

significant foreign currency denominated borrowingr. Thir exporer the Group to foreign exchange risk 
The Group imports rupplies from orher European counrries rhrough its Romanian rubsidiaries. which alro amract 

The Group hedges 50 percent of al1 monthly payments to ruppiiers denominated in Euro and USD. The Group user 
forward exchange contracts to hedge iu foreign currency risk. The forward exchange contracts have maturitier of Iers than 
one year aker the reporting date. Where necerrary. the forward exchange contracts are rolled over at maturity. 

(iii) Interest raie risk 

interest rater on borrowings are variable. ar disclosed in Note 15. The Group has no significant interest-bearing arreu. 
The Group’r income and operating cash flowr are impacted by changes in market interest rater rince the majority of 
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(iv) Liqoidity risk 

31 December 2006 I january 2006 

IEUROWOI IEUROWOI 

Arreu 
160.508 93.8W Monerary assee in RON 

Monetary asseu in foreign currency 1.519 6,668 

162,027 l00.4M( 

~~ 

Liabilitier 
M o n e t q  liabilitier in RON (I 10,193) (73.240) 

Monetary liabilirier in foreign currency (145,028) (92.964) 

(255.221) (166.204) 
Net monetary porition in RON 50.315 20,560 
Net rnonetary porition in foreign currency (143.509) (86.296) 

The Group'r policy on liquidity is to maintain rufíicient liquid rerources to meet the obligations ar theyfall due; however. 
due to the Group'r current financing structure. there is a significant risk that the Group wil1 encounter liquidity problemr 
in the forereeable future. 

27. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS 

Recovery of debtr from Romanian Minirtry of Health 

In January 2007, foliowing the discusrionr beween the Drugs Dirtribution Asrociarion, other arsociations and the 
Minirtry of Health. a law bil1 regarding rhe acceptance and the payment method of the debts related to rales exceeding the 
rettled ceilingr for pharmacier, war propored to Parliament for debate and approval. 

CiTIBANK Loan - utilization requerts 

In January 2007 the Group reimbursed an amount of EUR 5,500 thourand from Facility B. 
In February 2W7 the Group har drawn an amounc of EUR 3.000 thourand from Facility B. 

Ar at  28 February 2007 the amount withdrawn by the Group from Facility A and Facility B is of EUR 67.293 thourand. 

28. PROFORMA FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

The conroiidated proforma financial information i s  prerented by A&D Pharma Holdings SRL and they incorporate the 
rerultr of the former group A&D Pharma Holdings NV, Netherlands Antilier (ADP Antiller). the ultimate parent company of 
the operating subsidiarier. The Group har prererved the rame operational rtructure as that of ADP Antiller holding before 
I January 2006. Therefore. for comparative purporer. proforma income statement and cash flow figurer lor rhe year ended 
3 I December 2005 are extracted from the conrolidated financial statements of ADP Antilier. ar detailed below. 

Statements of income 

ADP SRL 1006 ADP Antiller 2005 
5aler 331.593 247.294 

Operaring COIU (308.324) (225.45) 

Operating pmfir 23,269 21.829 

Financial income 4.370 1,810 

Financid expenre (6.259) (3.798) 

Financial result (1.889) (I ,988) 

Pmfit before mation 21.380 19.841 

Taxation (3.552) (3.245) 

Pmfit for the year 17.828 16.596 

Gain on net monerary porition 
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year ended 3 I December 2006 

e 

e 

Statements of cash flows 

A D P  SRL 2006 A D P  Antlller2005 

Cash flowr fmm operating actlvltie* 

Pmfir before mation 2 1.380 19.841 

Adjurtmentr foc 

De~reciation and amomration 4.794 3.174 

Lorr on disporal af inveimenu 17- 

Lom on dimoral of tanzibie and inranpible a s e u  (1.7351 267 

Pmpeq. plant ind equipment impaiment (3601 790 

Interest incame 081) (242) 

Incuert upcnrc 5,359 2.712 

Operatlng pmflt  before worklng capital changes 29,057 26,559 

Increasc in receirabler and prepaymem (51.338) (15,713) 

Inrreare in inventolrer (26.833) (I 1.547) 

Inc-re in rade and orher payabler 43.053 40.368 

Changes In worklng capital (35.1 18) 13,108 

Tax paid (2.703) (3.618) 

N e t  cash fmm operathg actlvitles (8.764) 36,049 

Cash flowr fmm investhg actbitiei 

Purchares of pmperry. plant and equipment (I 7,430) (7.417) 

Purchare. of inrangibler (1.481) (1.478) 

Acquirition of Ideapharm (2.335) 

Acquirition of ober subsidiafier (273) 

Disposal of invertmenu. net (1.226) ii 
.--I Pmceedr fmm raie of tangible and intangible asie= 5.1 16 698 I 

Interest rereived 370 172 ~7 
N e t  cash “red In inverthg xtivlt ies (13.698) (I 1,586) U3 

t,.;’ 

C3’ 
Long term lans  69.793 . Q  

I 

Cashflow from flnencing actlvlties 

Short term borrowingr (I 1.713) (5.000) -4 
Lease paymenu (3.147) (2.366) 

Dividendr psid (12,766) 

Interest paid (3.271) (3.157) 

N e t  cash fmm flnanclng actlvitles 51,661 (23,289) 

Translation effect (733) (1.896) 

N e t  decreare In cash and cash equlvnlentr 20,467 (722) 
~ 

Cash and cash equlvalentr a t  befinning of the p a r  

Cash and cash equlvalentr at end of year 

(I 1,273) (10,551) 

17,194 (I 1,273) 
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Notes to the Consolidated Finincial Sete-ents as at and foor the year end& 31 December 2006 
(AI1 amoÙnts are &presred in EUR '000; unless otheh+ise's&ted) 

, . .,," .____.__..I ~ 

e l  

Operating colts 

AD? SRL 2006 ADP Antilles 2005 

Cort Of raler 243.43 I 175.842 

Salaiier and beneliu 28.782 16.973 

Rent and adminiruative expenrer 11.913 10,380 

Third p a q  iemices i 1,070 9.131 

Adverdring and pmmotion 13.419 5.539 

DeDreciation and amortization 4.794 3.174 

790 

Receivable write off 

Immiment for fixed arrets (3601 

Provision for inventoner 487 366 

Invenrov write off 1.453 853 

Penaltier and finer 1.337 483 

Impaiment on receivabler (5151 (1.137) 

Openùonal foreip exchange (incame)/ expenre (9.900) (813) 

Heding ioss 1.590 

o h e r  expenrer 822 1.267 

308.324 225.4ó5 

Financial result  

ADP SRL 2006 ADP Antilles 2005 

Fareign exchange difierences. net 3.989 1.568 

Interest income 381 141 

(2'225) e Interest expenre (3,810) 

Interest (expenre)/revenue linancial inruurnents (1.549) (487) 

Other financisl expenre (900) (I ,086) 

11.889) I 1.988) 

Related parties 

Saler oí goodr and services ADP Antilles 2005 

Ozone Labcnroner 5RL 3.054 3.615 

Employees 1.195 159 

Miniblu SRL I96 43 

ADP SRL 2006 

Optical Nework SRL 191 77 

Conrumer Product Nerwork SRL i 49 1.558 

Gemira Sewicii SRL I 

Ozone Laboratoder Ltd 422 

Lauren Finance SRL 23 

*her\ 89 - .. - 
4.786 5.986 
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are exprersed in EUR ‘000:unlerr othemise’skted) 
otes to theconsolidated Financial Statements a l a t  and for the year ended 3 I December 2006 

’.,. -- ._.___I . .  

Saks of property, plant nnd equlpment A D P  SRL2006 A D P  Antiller 2005 
Orone Labanmrier ZRL 41 I80 

Conrumer Product Network SRL 52 21 
Ootical Network SRL 4 144 

Miniblu SRL 2 76 
Gmup 3 Conmcting I59 

Othsri 14 
316 435 

Purchaser of modr and rervlces ADP SRL 2006 ADP Antiller 2005 
I 

Ozone Labontoner SRL 24.409 13.796 
~ 

Conrumer Product Network SRL 2.131 575 

Fleer Management SRL 532 I O0 

oriven Plus I68 

Miniblu SRL I20 I68 

omne Labontoner Ltd 37 8.977 

Optical Nework S R L  127 97 

Clobal Business Sokware SRL 5 123 

Lauren Finance SRL 18 

SC Cristal Diagnoruc SRL 121 35 
Adkit Seiv S R L  42 II 

Senriblu Optica S R L  13 l i  

m e n  27 32 

27.732 23.943 

A D P  SRL 2006 A D P  Antüles 2005 
Mamgement ralanes 2.477 1.327 

c” 

Segment infonnation ‘il 
I 

o Stmtement of income A D P  SRL 

Year ended 1 I December 2006 Wholerale Retail Other  Elimlnatlons Group LG 

bles 287,582 89.780 (45,769) 331.593 

46,421 (308.324) 

I 

t.- 

,a Openting income and expenser (260.327) (94.331) (87) 

Segment result 27.255 (4.551) (87) 652 23.269 ~~ 

Unallaated oher openting income and expenser 

Openting pmfit/(ioss) 27.255 (4.551) (87) 652 23.269 

Finance cosu. net (1.679) (2 10) (1.889) 

PmSt/(lorr) before wation 25.576 (4.761) (87) 652 21,380 

Income mx upenre (4.058) 506 (3.552) 

Net proRJllorr) for the year 21.518 14.255) 187) 652 17.828 
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Statement ofincome. ADP Antiller 
Year ended 31 December 200s Wholerale Retail Other Eliminations Group 

209.603 63.147 (25,456) 247,294 Saler 

26.125 (225.465) 
Segment result 25.165 (3.176) (829) 669 21.829 

Unailocared other operating income and 
eXpe"SeS 
Operating pmfirl(lorr) 25.165 (3.176) (829) 669 21.829 

Opemting income and expenrer (I 84,438) (66.323) (829) 

Finance cosui net (2.201) 67 362 (216) (1.988) 

Monetary gain/(lorr) 
Pmfiti(lorr) before mation 22.964 (3.109) (467) 453 19.841 

Net pmfid(lorr) for the year 19.976 (3.109) (518) 247 (3.245) 16.596 e income tax expenre (2.988) (51) (2%) 

ADP SRL 
Year ended 3 I December 1006 Wholerale Retail Other Eliminations Group 

Capitai expenditure 18.053 4.688 22.74 I 
Depreciation and amortiration (2.101) (2.693) - (4,794) 

Year ended 31 December 2005 Wholerale Retail a h e r  Eliminationr GrOUp 

Capiral expenditure 6,647 6.840 13.487 

Depreciation and arnortiration (1.763) (1.411) - (3.174) 

ADP Antiiler 

IFRS does nor prescribe an accounting treatment for common control business combinations and rherefore it is  
management*s decirion to determine the appropriate accounting treatment to be applied. IFRIC decided not to prercribe 
precire treatmentr for al1 possible situations in thir area only becaure there i s  co0 much diversity in practice and judgment 
wil1 alwayr remain. 

According to  IAS 8.10 "Accounting policies. Changes in accounting estimater and errors,' in the absence of a Standard 
or an Interpretation that specifically applies to a transaction, management rhall ure its judgment in developing and applying 
an accounting policy that reaults in information that i s  relevant CO the economic decirion-making needr of userr. 

The management of the company arrersed inter alia that A&D Pharma Holdings SRL, (new "Company"), could be e 
regarded as the acquirer if it is considered that the rertructuring war linked to another future tranraction. a future Initia1 
Public Offering (IPO). 

In these circumrtancer. given the substance of the transaction, the purchase method of accounting wil1 provide userr of 
the financial statemene with more relevant information that an approach in which only one of the pre-exirting entitier is  
prerented a t  fair vdue and the other o m  at book mlue as recommended by IFRS 3.22 under the reverse acquirition method. 
The Management of the Company has made thir selection. considering al1 the pertinent facts and circumstances: 

. It is more ureful for future investorr to apply an accounting method which would result in fair values being attributed 
to the asrets. liabilities and contingent liabilitier of the existing businesres. and the recognition of goodwill, relating 
to al1 of thore businesses. The ure of book value for the most imporrant segment - wholesale and fair value for the 
rmailest segment - retail would impair the usefulness of the information provided to urers about the combination both 
comparability and reliability; 

IFRS 3 scopes out common control tranractions and did not issue any guidance to prescribe or ban the method applied 
in thir case; 

The accounting policy chosen did not mirinform the public; the diñerence between reverre acquisition and fresh s t a r t  
accounting is an adjurtment between goodwill and premium reserve. The value of the goodwill is tested yearly for 
impairment and any exces over the recoverable amount is  recognised as an expenre in the profit and loss account. The 
nature of the business strongly encourager the use of fair value for both businesses. 

The two subsidiarier are in the pharma industiy - wholerale and retail dirtribution. While the retail dirtribution. the 

* 
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I N DEP EN D ENT AU D ITO RS' REP0 RT 
The Board of Directors of A&D Pharma Holdings NV 

Report on the consolidated financial statements 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of A&D Pharma Holdings NV (and its subsidiarier) 
(the "Group"). which comprises the consolidated balance sheet as a t  3 I December 2006 and the conrolidated income 
statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the conrolidated cashflow statement for the seven month 
period rtarted 24 May 2006 (incorporation date) and ended 31 December 2006. and a rummary of significant accounting 
policier and other explanatory notes. 

Management's responsibility for the consolidated financial statements 

Management is responrible for the preparation and fair prerentation of these consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with Internarional Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includer: derigning. implementing and 
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentarion of conrolidated financial statements that are 
free from material rnirrtatements, whether due to  fraud or error; relecting and applying appropriate accounting policier; and 
making accounting estimater that are reasonable in the circumstancer, 

Auditors' responsibility 

Our responsibility is to exprerr an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conduned 
OUT audit in accordance with International Standardr on Auditing. Thore rtandardr require that we comply with relevant 
ethica1 requirementr and plan and perform the audit t o  obtain reasonable arsurance whether the conrolidated financial 
statements are free of material misstatemenr 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on ourjudgment. including theasserrment ofthe rirks of material misstatement 
of the conrolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud o r  error. In making those risk arrerrmenrs. we conrider 
internal control relevant ro rhe entity'r preparation and fair prerentation of the financial statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumrtances. but notfor the purpose of exprerring an opinion on the effectiveners 
of the entity's internal control. An audit als0 includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting principles used and 
the rearonableness of accounting ertimater made by management, as wel1 as evaluating the overall prerentation of the 
conrolidated financial statements, 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obrained is  rufficient and appropriate to pmvide a basis for our opinion. 

Opinion 

In OUT opinion. the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the 
Group ar a t  3 I December 2006, and of i t s  consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash fiowr lor  the seven 
month period rtarted 24 May 2006 (incorporation date) and ended 31 December 2006 in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards. 

Other Matters 

This report is made solely to the Board of Directors of A&D Pharma Holdings NV. The consolidated financial statements 
are not rtatutory financial statements of the Group. nar are the financial statements intended for rtatutory filing purporer. 
Our audit work har been undemken 10 that we might state to the b a r d  of Directors of A&D Pharma Holdings NV those 
matters we are required to state to  them in an auditor's report and for no other purpore. To the fullert extent permitted by 
law. we do nor acceptor arrume responribility to anyone other than the Group and the Board of Directors of A&D Pharma 
Holdings NV. for our audit work. for this report, o r  for the opinions we have formed. 

KPMG Romania SRL 
Bucharert. Romania 
26 April 2007 a 



a 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

Description of the business 

A&D Pharma Holdings NV and iu subridiarier‘ (together “the Group”) principal activities include the import, wholesale 
and retail dirtribution of pharmaceuucal products. The Group’s faciiitier are bared in Romania. The parent company. A&D 
Pharma Holdings NV (ADP NV or “the Company”) war incorporated as a limited liability company in Delft, the Netherlandr. 
00 24 May 2006. By meanr of the amendment of the anicles of asrociation dated 19 June 2006, the legal form of the 
incorporated limited liabiiity company was changed,into public company. The principal subsidiarier are dirclored in Note 
22 

As a t  3 I December 2006 the Gmup have 3.173 employees ADP NV har i t s  regirrered office a t  2 Martinus Nijhofflaan. 
2624 ES Delk  Netherlandr. 

On 24 May 2006. Sograno set up ADP NV. a joint-stock company incorporated and organized under the lawi of the 
Netherlands. and made an in-kind contribution to i t s  share capital conrirting of the shares held in the A&D Pharma SUL 
Mediplur. Sensiblu. Ideapharm. 

l a 
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Shareholders structure 

The shareholder of the Company as a t  3 I December 2006 was: 

Number of shares Shareholding % 

Sognno EV. Netherlandr I17.wO.wO 58.5MM 

Defrin Inveiment Ltd 4.454.600 2.2273 

Nezik Tradine Ltd 3.818.200 1.9091 
~~ 

Wartfield Invermem Ltd i ,272.6M) 0.6363 

Mantin Lrd 4.454.600 2.2273 

Citibank N.A. (Deporitaiy) 69.000.000 34.5wo 

200.000.wO I O0 

The shareholderr of the Company ar a t  24 May 2006 were: 

Number of shares Shareholding % 

Sograno BV 2.5w.000 i O0 

2.500.000 I O0 

The ultimate parent company is Active Pharma Invest Limited. Cyprus. 

The Board of Directors as at 3 I December 2006 were the following: 

Dragor Dinu Chief Executive Officer 

Chief Financial Officer Florin Buligoanea 

e Vivian Diaconercu Chief Operating Oíficer Wholerale 

Claudiu Opran Chief Operating Officer Retail 

Chaiman of rhe Board David Raymond Ebrworth 

Roberr Ludovic Charles Simon Non-Executive Director 

Non-Executive Director Charler Eid Michel 

Non-Executive Director Roger Akoury 

Walid Abboud Non-Executive Director 

John Michel Wemms Chaiman of Remmeration Committee 

Chairman of Audit Committee e Urr Kamber 
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Note 3 I December 2006 

Arretr 

Non-cument asets 

Pmpeq.  plant and equipment 4 35.592 

Intangible asierr 5 282.960 

Financial invermenu 6 57 

Long term receiuabler 7 6,231 

Total non-cument arret. 324,840 

Current =set* 

I""e"to&. 8 63.455 

Accounu receivable 9 I 19.787 

a h e r  Current arsets 10 11.849 

Reruictd cash i I  5.863 

Cash and cash equivalenrr II 17.194 

Toa1 current assets 218,148 

T o a 1  srretr 542,988 

Shareholderr' equlty and Ilabilltier 

Shareholderr' equlty 

Share capiral I2  2 o o . m  
Share orvnium 59.075 

Tmnslarion reserve 12.178 

Reraincd earningr 8.783 

Total rhareholderr' equity 280.036 

Non-current liabilltier 

Prwiriom 16 14,966 

Long term papbles 17 1.562 

Long term bormwingr 15 69.793 

Deferred u 13 6.7M cI 
'4 

Toa1 non-cument Ilabillties 94.850 ~, 
Finsnce Ieare 14 1.825 , 

Current liabllitler I 

Short f ~ m  borrowiner I5  - b.28 
~ . /  ~~ 

Accounrr payable. acc~uds and other liabilitier 18 163.071 Ga 
TU< on pmhr 18 2,580 

';I 
Finrnre I ~ i e  14 2.45 I 

Total rhareholderr' eaulw iind liabilltier 542.988 

Authorired for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 April 2007 and authorired for rignarure on their behalf by: 

Dragor Dinu 
Chief Executive Officer 

The noter I to 29 fom rn integral pan of these Conrolidated Financial Sraremenu. 

Florin Buligoanea 
Chief Financial Officer 



(All'amouhts $e ë x p t k ë d  in EUR ' O O O ~ ~ n i ë r i o t ~ e ~ i r ~ s t a t e d )  

3 I December 1006 

S d C S  212,039 

Operating cosu 19 (200.967) 

Operating pmfit I 1.072 

Note 

Financial income 3.074 

Financial expenre (2.292) 

Financial result 20 702 

Pmfit before mation I 1,854 

Taxation I 3  (3.071) 

Pmfit for die petiod 8.78) 

~ 

Basic earninp per share 24 €0.04 

Diluted earningr per share 24 €0.04 

O Authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 April 2007 and authorired lor signature on rheir behalf by: 

Dragor Dinu 
Chief Executive O f k e r  

- 
Florin Buligoanea 

Chief Financial ORicer 

The nofes I to 29 form an inregral pan of these Conrolidared Financial Staremenu. 8 - 7  



(AH arnounts $e eiprisred in EUR '000;unlessótherwise'rroted) 

8-8 

2006 

Cash ilowr fmm operathg estivlties 

Profit before mation I 1,854 

Adjurtmentr foc 

Depreriation and amortization 3.074 

Lorr on disporal of tangible and inrnngibie assleu 

Pmpeq.  plant and equipment impaimenr 

(74) 

(443) 

Interest income (1.153) 

Interest expenre 2.698 

Operathg pmflt before worklng capital changes 15.956 

Increare in receivabler and prepayrnenu (34,626) 

Increare in inventwier (28,052) 

49.083 

Changes In worklng capital (13,595) 

Tax p i d  (1.177) 

Net cash fmm opeatlng ectlvlties 1,184 

Cash flowr fmm inverthg actkitles 

Increare in vade and other payabler 

Purchares of propmy. plant and equipment (13.141) 

Purcharer of intangibler (I ,006) 

Acquirition af other rubridiarier (273) 

Proceedr fmm d e  of rangible snd intangible airreu 803 

Intereit received 233 

Net cash ured In investing activltles (13,384) 

Cashflow fmm flnanclng actlvlties 

Long term l a n s  69.793 

Shon tem bomwingr (5,614) 

Lease pymens (2.263) 

Dividend. paid (925) 

Interest paid (2.291) 

Net cash from financing activirier 58,700 

Translation effect (178) 

Net inweSe in cash and cash equivaienu 46.322 

Cash and cash equivaiens beginning of the pericd (29,128) 

Cash 2nd cash equivalenu a t  end of period (Nore I I) 17.194 

The noter I to 29 form an integral pan of here Conrolidared Financiai Staremenu. 



~ 

(Ai1 amountr are exprerred in EUR '000~unlersóthemise~stated) 
e 

Share Share Translation Retalned 
capltal premium reiewe Earnlngr Total 

Balance IS at incorporation date (24 May 2006) 2.500 257.500 260.000 

Conversion of share premium into the irrued 
capiral on June 28.2006 

197,500 (197.500) 

Share premium disribution on October 9,2006 (925) (925) 

Pmfit for the petiod 8.783 8.783 

12'178 e Translatiion reiewe 12.178 

Balance PI at  3 i December 2006 200.003 59.075 12.178 8.783 280.036 

The Group is not allowed to declare and pay dividendr without prior consent of Citibank (ree Note 15). 

The notei I to 29 form M integral part of these Conrolidated Financial Staremenrr. 6 - 9  
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the period from 24 May 2006 

(Ai1 amounts &e exprerred in EUR ‘000;unlessothemise rtated) 

1. REPORTING ENTITY 

These consolidated financial statements (alternatively referred to hereinafreras the “financial statements“) are presented 
by A&D Pharma Holdings NV (“ADP NV“ or rhe “Company”) and they incorponte rhe results of the Company and iu 
rubridiarier (together the “Group” or reparately the “Entity” or “Entitier”). ar detailed in Note 22. 

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OFTHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

2.1 Basis of preparation 

These conrolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with. and comply wirh. International Financial 
Reponing Standardr (“IFRS”) irrued by International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) as adopted by European Union 
(“EU). These are not the rratutory accounts of the Group. nor are the financial statements intended lor  the rratutory filling 
purposes. 

The consolidated financiai statements are prepared based on the staturory records of the Entities. which are mainrained 
on a going concern basis under the historica1 COSI convention except for the derivative financial instrumentr. measured a t  
fair value and financial instrumentr mearured at  amonized cosc 

The preparation of consolidated financial stat&nenrs in conformity wirh IFRS requires the use of estimates and 
arrumprionr that affect the reporred amounts of assets and liabilitier and dirclorure of contingent asseu and liabiliu’er 
a t  the date of the financial statements and the reported arnounu of revenues and expenser dwing the reporthg period. 
The estimates and associated arsumptions are based on historica1 experience and various other factors that are believed 
ro be reasonable under the circumsrancer. the resulrs of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying 
values of assets and liabilitier that are nor readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions 
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revirionr to accounting ertimater are recognired in the period in which the ertimate is 
revised if the revirion affects only that period. or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both 
current and future periods. Although these estimates are based on management’r best knowledge of current events and 
actions, actual results may differ from these estimates (Nore 25). 

2.2 Functional currency 

Based on the pnmary economic environment in which rhe group enritier operate and taking inco account the other 
factors as described in IAS 21. the functional currencier of individual consolidated Group entitier were determined as 
fellows : 
* ADP NV-EUR 
* ADP SRL - functional currency was determined to be Romanian Leu (“RON”) 

Mediplus - functional currency was determined to be Romanian Leu (“RON”) 
Sensiblu - functional currency w a s  determined co be Romanian Leu (“RON) 
ideapharm - functional currency was determined to be Romanian Leu (“RON) 
Lauren - functional currency was derermined to be Romanian Leu (“RON”) 

The RON is nor convertible outside Romania. The management of the Company har decided co adopt EUR ar 

* 

* 

. 

presentation currency for the purpose of consolidated financial statements. 

The balance sheet items have been tranrlated inro EUR by dividing the RON amounts ar the National Bank of Romania 
(“NBR”) official exchange rates as at the date of each balance sheet. as set out below: 

3 I December 2006 

RON I I EUR 3.3817 

The statement of income items for the periods ended 3 I December 2006 were translated using the RON/EUR monthly 
average exchange rates. The translation of h e  balance sheet and statement of income items info the presentation currency 
gave rise 10 a translation reserve as defined in Note 3.9. Cash flows are tranrlated using appropriate average exchange rates. 
Components of equity are nor retranslated. 

Such compurations and prerentation of amounts in EUR rhould not be conrtrued as a reprerenration that the RON 

E -  10 
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No te r  to the Consolidated Financial statements as at  and for the period from 24 May 2006 
(date of incorporation) to 3 I December 2006 
(AM amounts are exprerred in EUR '000. unlerr o t h e m i r e  rtatcd) 

amounrs have been or could be converted int0 EUR at these rates or any other rates. 

2.3 Going concern 

Management is  satisfied that it is  appropriate to prepare these financial statements on a going concern basis. 

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

3.1 Group accounting 

o) Subsidiories 

Subsidiarier. which are those Entities in which the Group har an interest of more than one half of the voting rightr or 
othemise har power to  govern the financial and operating policies. are consolidated. The existence and effect of potential 
voting rights that are prerentiy exercirable or presently convertible are considered when arsesring whether the Group 
controk another entity. 

Subsidiahes are conrolidated from h e  date on which control is transferred to  the Group and are no longer consolidated 
from the date when control ceases. The purchare method of accounting is "red to account lor  the acquisition of subridiaries 
(Note 29). 

The cost of an acquisition i s  measured by the fair value of the assets given up. shares issued or liabilities undertaken a t  
the date of acquisition plus casts directiy attributable to the acquisition. The exces of the cost of acquirition over the fair 
value of the net assets of the rubsidiary acquired is recorded ar goodwill. 

b) Associotes ond joint ventures 

Associates are entities over which the Group generally has beween 20% and 50% of the voting rights. or over which 
the Group har significant influence. but which it does nbt control. 

joint ventures are those entities over whose activities the Group har joint control, establirhed by contractual agreement 
and requiring unanimous consent for rtrategic financial and operating decisionr. Arsociater and joint ventures are accounted 
lor  uring the equity method (equity accounted investees). The consolidated financial statements include the Group's share 
of the income and expenses of equity accounted investeer, after adjustments to align the accounting policier with those of 
the Group. kom the date that significant influence o r  joint control commences until the date that significant influence or 
joint control cearer. 

c) Acquisitions fiorn entities under.cornrnon control 

Business combinations arisingfrom transfers of interertr in entities that are under the control of the shareholder that 
controls the Group are accounted lor  as an acquisition a t  the date when business combination har occurred. The assets and 
liabilities acquired are recognised a t  fair value (Note 29). 

d) Transoa'ons elirninoted on consolidotion 

Intra-group balancer, and any unrealired income and expenses arising from intra-group transactionr. are eliminated in 
preparing the consolidated financial statements Unrealised gainr ariring from tranractions with equity accounted investeer 
are eliminated against the invertment to the extent of the Group'r interest in the investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated 
in the rame way as unrealired gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment. 

3.2 Segment reporting 

Segment information i s  presented in respect of the Group's business segmentr. bared on the Group'r management and 
internal structure. Inter-segment pricing is determined on an arm's length basis. 

Segment rerutr. arses and liabilitier include items directly attributable to a segment as wel! as those that can be 
allocared on a reasonable basis. 

Segment capital expenditure i s  the total colt incurred during the period to acquire segment assets that are expected 
to be used for more than one period. 



Primary reporting format - business segmentr 

The Group comprirer the foliowing main business segments: - Wholesale 

* Retail 

Secondary reporting format - geographical segments 

The operational aciiitier of the Group are in Romania and accordingiy no geographical segment i s  presented. 

3.3 Property, plant and equipment 

Properry. plant and equipment is recorded at purchare or construction cost 

Depreciation is calcuiared on the amounrs of property. plant and equipment on a straight-line basis down to the arre t i  
esrimated residual valuer. 

The depreciation periodr, which approximate che ertimated ureful economic livei of the rerpective arretr. are ar 
follows: 

Ureful life (yearr) 

Buildingr 30-50 

Leasehold improvemenu 3-10 

Type 

Computers and elenronic equipment 3-5 

Motor vehicler and trucks 3-5 

Fixtures and finings 3-10 

Land is nor depreciated. 

Repairs and maintenante are charged to the statement of income during the financial period in which they incur. The 
con  of major renovations i s  included in the carrying amount of the asset when it is  probabie that future econoniic benefitr 
in excess of the originaily assesred rtandard of performance of the existing asset wil1 flow to the Group. Major renovations 
are depreciated over the remaining useful life of the related asset. Gains and losses ariring from the retirement of property. 
plant and equipment are included in the statement of income as incurred. t- 

"4 
Ali borrowing cosu are expensed as incurred. I 

Impairrnent 
I 

r.J 
a, 
cc 
'4 

At each reporring date the management arresr as 10 whether there i s  any indication of impairment of properry. plant 
end equipmenr if any ruch indication exiso. the management ertimater the recovemble amount which i s  determined as the 
higher of an arret's net selling price and i t s  value in use. In arserring value in ure. the ertimated cash flowr are discounted to 
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that  reflectr current market assersments of the time value of money and 
the risks rpecific to the arset The carrying amount is reduced to the recovenble amount and the difference is recognised as 
expenre (impairment ioss) in the statement of income. An impairment lori recognised for an asset in prior years is reverred 
if there har been a change in the circumsrancer ieading to the impairmenr 

3.4 Intangible assets 

o) Goodwill 

Goodwill reprerenu amounrs ariring on acquisition of subridiarier. associates and joint ventures. Goodwill represents 
the difference beween the COSI of the acquisition and the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired. 

Goodwill is rrared a t  COSI lesr any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash generating uni= and is 
terted for impairment at  each reporting date. 

6 -  I 2  



the period from 24 May 2006 

(Ai1 amountr  &è èipreised'in' EUR 'OOO;unl<is;othemire~stated) 

Impairment 

At each reporting date the management assess whether there is any indication of impairment of goodwill. If any ruch 
indication exists, the management ertimates the recoverable amount which is determined ar the higher of net selling price 
and i t s  value in ure of cash generating units it is  allocated to. In asressing value in use. the ertimared cash Rowr are dircounted 
to their present value uring a pre-cax discount rate that reflectr current marker asressmentr of the time value of money and 
the riskr specific to the asret The carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable amount and the difference is recognired ar 
expenre (impairment lorr) in the statement of income. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. 

b) Brands 

Acquired brandr are capitalized on the balance sheet These brands are valued on acquisition by an independent valuer. 
using a dircounted cash Row methodology bared on management arrumptions and ertimates regarding future revenue 
growrh. pricer. costs and economic factors in valuing a brand. These assumptionr refiect management's best estimates but 
these ertimates involve inherent uncertainties. which may not be controiled by management. 

No amortiration is charged on brand intangibies as the Group believer that the value of these brandr is maintained 
indefinitely. The factors that result in the durability of brandr capitalired are that there are no material legal. regulatory. 
contractual, competitive. economic o r  other factors that limit the useful iife of these intangibles. 

Furthermore: 

The Group expects to acquire. hold and support brandr for an indefinite period. The Group supports these brands 
through rpendingon consumer marketingacrosr the business and through significant investment in promotional support 
The brands capitalired are expected to be in longstanding and profitable market sectors. 

The likelihood that market based factors could truncate a brand's life is relativeiy remote because rhe rize and marker 
share of the brandr in question. 

The brands are tested for impairment a t  each reporting date. irrespective of whether there is an indication that the 
related asretr may be impaired. as wel1 ar whenever there is any indication chac chey may be impaired. Management estimaces 
the recoverable amount which is determined as the higher of net reiling price and the YPIW in ure of the cash generating 
units it is allocated co. The carrying amount i s  reduced to the recoverable amount and the difference is recognised as 
expense (impairment Iosr) in the statement of income. 

* 

- 

c) Pharmacies licenses 

a Expenditure to acquire operating licenses for pharmacier are capitalired a t  cox.  

As licenses are tested for impairment at  each reporting date. Impairment terting is performed in a rimilar way to that of 
brands and goodwill (ree paragraph above). Licenrer are stated at tost Iers any accumulated impairment lorres. 

d) Computer licences and software 

Expenditure to acquire licencer and computer rofhvare is  capitalired and amortised using the straight-line method over 
their ureful livep. normally I to 5 yearr. 

e) Impairment ofintangible assets 

Where an indication of impairment exirts. the carrying amount of any intangible asset is arsersed and. when impaired. 
the asset is written down immediately to i t s  recoverable amount. 

3.5 Investments 

The Group clasrified itr invertments in debt and equity recurities into the following categorier: trading. held-to-maturity 
and available-for-sale. The clarrification is dependent on the purpose for which the invertments were acquired. Management 
determiner the clarsification of i t s  invescmentr at the time of the purchase and re-evaluater ruch designation on a regular 
basis. Investments that are acquired principally for the purpore of generating a profit from short-term fiuctuationr in price 
are clasrified as trading investments and inciuded in current asretr; for the purpore ofthere financial statements short term 
is defined as 3 months. Investments with a fixed maturiry that management has the intenr and abiliry to hold to maturity 
are clasrified as held-to-maturiry and are inciuded in non-current arrets, excepr for maturitier within 12 monthr from the a 
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a 

balance sheet date which are classified as current arseu. Investments intended to be held loran indefinite period of time. 
which may be rold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates. are classified as available-for-sale and are 
included in non-current assets unless management har the express intention of holding the investment for less than I 2  
monthr from the balance sheet date or unierr they wil1 need to be rold to a i re  openting capital, in which care they are 
included in current assetr. 

Purchases and rales of investments are recognized on the trade date. which is the date that the Group commits 
to  purchase o r  sell rhe asser Cost of purchase includes transaction colts. Trading and avaiiable-for-sale invertments are 
subsequently carried at fair value. Held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortized cost using the effective yield 
method. Realired and unrealized gainr and loses ariring from changes in the fair value of trading and available-lor-sale 
investments are included in the statement of income in the period in which they arise. The fair value of inverpents is 
based on quoted bid prices or amounts derived from cash flow modelr. Fair values lor  unlisted equity iecuritieo are 
ertimated uring appiicable pricelearnings or pricelcarh flow ratios refined to reflect the specific circumstancer of the issuer. 
Equity iecuvitiei for which fair Y ~ I U Q S  cannot be rnearured reliably are recognired at colt Iers impairment. When securities 
clarrified ar available-for-sale are roid ar impaired the accumulated fair vdue adjustmentr are included in the statement of 
income as gains and losser from investment securitier. 

3.6 Inventories 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realirable value. Cost is determined by the first-in. first-out (FIFO) 
method. Net realisable value is the ertimated selling price in the ordinary course of business. Iess any selling expenses. When 
necessary. provision is made for obsolete. slow moving and defective inventories. 

3.7 Trade receivables 

Trade receivables are recognised initially a t  fair value and rubsequently mearured at  amortired colt uring the effective 
interest method. Iers provision for impairmenr A provision for impairment of trade receivabler is establirhed when there is 
obiective evidence that  the Group wil1 nat be able to collect al1 amounu due according to the coilection terms of receivables. 
Significant financial dificulties of the debtor. probability that the debror wil1 enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation. 
and default or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that the trade receivable i s  impaired. The amount of the 
provision is  determined based on management risk assessment of rhe wade receivables collectibility. 

3.8 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. For the purposer of the statement of cash flowr. 
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand. cash held a t  cal1 with banks. other short-term highly liquid investments 
with original maturitier of three monthr or Iers, and bank overdrah. In the balance sheet, bank overdrafu are included with 
borrowingr in current liabilitier. b-. 

3.9 Shareholders'equiîy 

Share capital and Share Premium 

'4 

I Ordinary and preferred shares are clasrified as equity. Any excess of rhe fair value of consideration received over the 
par value of shares irrued is recognised ar a share premium and any deficit is deducred from share premium and retained 
earnings. if available. 

hi 
<Td\ 

Translation reserve '4 
,--i - 

In translating the financial statements int0 EUR. al1 rerulting exchange difíerences are clasrified as equity. The main 
differences arire on <he translation of income and expenre items at the monthly average exchange ates and assets and 
liabilities at the date of each balance sheet cloring rate. Cornponenrr of equity are not retranslated. 

Dividends 

The Group can only pay dividends from its entities statutory retained earnings and share premium. based upon financial 
statements prepared in accordance with local accounting regulations. 

Dividends are recognired as a liability and deducted from equity ar the balance sheet date only if they are declared 
on the balance sheet date. Dividends are dirclored when they are propored before rhe balance sheet date or before 
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(All-amounts $e ëiprersed in EUR ‘000; i ihlciisöthemisestated) 

proposed or declared aker the balance sheet date, but before the financial statements are authorised for issue. 

3.10 Deferred income taxes 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated in respect of temporary differences using the balance sheet liability 
method. Deferred income taxes are provided lor  al1 temporary differences arising between the tax basis of arretr and 
liabilitier and their carrying values for financial reporting purposes. A deferred tax asset is recorded only to  the extent that 
it i s  probable that taxable profit wil1 be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised. 

Deferred tax assets and iiabilities are measured at tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is 
pealised or the iiabiiity is serrled. based on tax rateer that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet 
date 

Deferred income tax i s  provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subridiarier and associater. except 
where the timing of the reverral of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary 
difference wil1 not be reversed in the forereeable future. 

3.1 1 Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation ar a result of past events. and 
it is probable that an oumow of rerources wil1 be required to senle the obligation. and a reliable esrimate of the amount 
can be made. Where the Group expects a provirion to be reimburred. for example under an inrurance contract. the 
reimbursement is recognised ar a separate arset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. 

3.12 Leases 

Learer of properry. plant and equipment where the Group har subsrantially al1 the risk, and rewards of ownerrhip 
are classified as finance leaser. Finance leases are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the lower of the fair value of 
the leased properry or the present value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is allocared between the 
liabiliry and finance charges 10 as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The correrponding rental 
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other long-term papbles. The interest element of the finance costs i s  
charged to rhe income statement over the lease period. The properry. plant and equipmenr acquired under finance leares i s  
depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the asset o r  the lease term. 

Leases where a significant portion of the rirkr and rewardr of ownership are retained by the lesror are clarrified ar 
operating iearer. Payments made under operating leaser (net of any incentives received from the lerror) are charged to the 
income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. a 
3.13 Borrowings 

Al1 lom6 and borrowingr are initially recognised ar the fair value of the consideration received Iess directly attributable 
transaction costs. The transaction COLS incurred in isruing the liability are amortired over the life of the Ioan. 

After initial recognition. interest bearing loans and borrowings are rubsequently mearured at amortired colt using the 
effective interest method any difference between fair value of the proceeds (net of transaction corts) and the redemption 
amount is recognised as interest expense over the peiiod of the borrowingr. 

3.14 Accounts payable 

er lor  trade papbles are carried a t  cost. which i s  the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the future lor  
goods and services received. whether or not billed to the Group. After initial recognition. the Group measures trade payable 
at amortised C o l t  using effective interest method. 

3.1 5 Foreign currency transactions 

Tranractionr in foreign currencies are tranriated fo the rerpective functional currencies of Group entitier a t  exchange 
rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losser resulring from the settlement of such transactions 
and kom the translation a t  balance sheet date exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies are recognised in the statement of income a 



the period from 24 May 2006 

(AU amounts $e exprerred in EUR~'OO0;unlërlÓthë~ise~rta~d) 

3.16 Revenue recognition 

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable lor  the sale of goods and services in the 
ordinary course of the Group'r activities. Revenue is shown net of value added f ~ ,  returns, rebates and discounts. 

Revenue from the rale of goodr is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods are 
transferred to the buyer and when collection is rearonably assured. 

Saler of services are recognired in the accounting period in which the services are rendered. by reference to completion 
of the rpecific transaction arserred on the barir of the actual service provided ar a proportion of the total services to be 
provided. 

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion baris uring the eñective interest method. When a receivable 
is impaired. the Group reduces the-carrying amount to its recoverable amount. being the ertimated future cash flow 
discounted a t  original effective interest rate of the instrumenf and continues unwinding the discount as interest income. 
Interest income on impaired loanr i s  reo+sed using die original effective interest rate. 

3.1 7 Employee benefits 

The Group. in the normal course of burinerr. makes payments to the Romanian State on behalf of it. employees. 
Al1 employees of the Group are members of the Romanian State pension plan. Al1 such contributionr to the mandator/ 
government pension scheme are expensed when incurred. The Group does not operate any other pension scheme or post 
retirement benefit plan and. consequently, har no obligation in respect of pensions. In addition. the Group is not obliged to 
provide further benefits to current and former employees, 

3.18 Financial instruments 

Non-derivative financial instruments comprise investments in equity and debt securities. trade and other receivables. 
cash and cash equivalents. Ioans and borrowings. and trade and other payables. 

Non-derivative financial inwuments are initially recognised at fair value plus, for instruments nor at fair value through 
profit or loss. any directly attributable transaction cost. except as dercribed below. Subsequent to initia1 recognition non- 
derivaùve financial inrtruments are mearured ar described in the notes, 

Fair value is  the amount lor  which a financial instrument could be exchanged between knowledgeable and willing partier 
in an arm's length transaction. The amounts dirclored in the financial statements approximate their fair value. 

The Group urer financial instruments that are subject to Ructuations in foreign currency exchanges (Note 27(ii) ) for 

k+ 
the financial i r k r  faced by the Group. 

Changes in the fair value of a derivative hedging instrument designated as a fair value hedge are recognised in profit or '4 
losr. The hedged item als0 i s  rrated at fair value in respect of the risk being hedged. with any gain or loss being recognised 
in profit or los  '3 

@ 
3.19 Determination of fair values I 

hJ 
A number of the Group'r accounting policier and dirclorurer require the determination of fair value. for both financial L~ 

and non-financial arsets and liabilitier. Fair values have been determined lor  measurement and / or disclosure purposes 
~ 

bared on the following methodr. Where applicable. further information about the assumptions made in determining fair ,, 
values is disclosed in the notes rpecific to that asret or liability. 

Intongible assets 

The fair value of other intangible assets is based on the discounted cash flowr expected to  be derived from the ure and 
eventual rale of the assets ar detailed in Note 5. 

lrade and other receivables 

The fair value of trade and other receivables is ertimated ar the present value of future cash flowr. discounted at  the 
market rate of interest a t  the reporùng date. 
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Derivatives 

The fair value of forward exchange contracts is based on their listed marker price. if available. If a listed market price i s  
nat available. then fair value is estimated by dircounting the difference between the contractual forward price and the current 
forward price for the reridual maturity of the contract uring a risk-free interest rare (bared on government bonds). 

Non-derivative financial liabilities 

Fair value. which i s  determined for disclosure purpores, is calculated based on the present value of future principal and 
interest cash fiows. discounted a t  the marker rate of interest at the reporting date, For finance leases the marker rare of 
interest i s  determined by reference to  similar lease agreements 

3.20 Earnings per share 

of the Group by the weighted average number of shares outsranding during the fiscal period. a Pursuant to IAS 33, earnings per share ("EPS") are calculated by dividing the profit o r  loss allocated to the shareholders 

The weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period i s  the number of ordinary shares 
outstanding a t  the beginning of the period, adjusted by the number of ordinary shares irsued during the period multiplied 
by a time - weighting factor. 

Dilution is a reduction in earnings per share or an increase in loos per share resulting from the assumption that 
convertible instruments are converted. that options or warrants are exercised. or that ordinary shares are issued upon the 
satisfaction of specified conditions. The objective of diluted earningr per share is consistent with that of basic earningr per 
share, namely to  provide a mearure of the interest of each ordinary share in the performance of an entity. 

3.21 Recent accounting pronouncements 

(a) Adoption ofstandords efenive from incorporation date , 
Ar at 24 May 2006. the Company adopted rhe IFRSr below. The financial statements have been amended as required. in 

accordance with the relevant requirementr. 

* 

* 

. 
IAS 19 (Amendment). Employee Benefits 

IAS 39 (Amendment). Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of Forecart Intracompany Tranractionr 

IAS 39 (Amendment). The Fair Value Option 

IAS 39 and IFRS 4 (Amendment). Financial Guarantee Contracts 
IFRS I (Amendment). Firrt-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards and IFRS 6 (Amendment). 
Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources 

IFRS 6. Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources 
IFRIC 4. Determining whether an Arrangement containr a Lease 
IFRIC 5. Rights to  Intererts arising from Decommissioning. Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds 

The adoption of the new o r  amended standards did not have a significant impact on the Company's financial 

* 

* 

* 

statements. 

(b) Adoption ofstandards efenive fram I January 2007 

Cemin new standardr, amendments and interpretations to exirting rtandardr that have been published are mandatory 
for the Group's accounting periods beginning on or after I January 2007 or later periods but which the Group har not early 
adopted. as follows: 

* IFRS 7 Financial Inrtruments: Dirclosurer - The Standard wil1 require increared disclosure about the significance of 
financial instruments for an entity'r financial position and performance. and qualitative and quantirative disclorures on 
the nature and extent of riskr. 
Amendment to IAS I Prerentation of Financial Statements - Capital Dirclorurer - As a complimentary amendment 
ariring from IFRS 7 (ree above). the Srandard wil1 require increared disclosure in respect of the Group's capital. 

IFRS 8 Operating Segments (effective from I January 2009). The Srandard requires segment disclosure based on the 

* 

a 



the period from 24 May 2006 

(All-amounts are exprerred'in EUR'000;unlgrsothémirërtated) 

components of the entity that management monitors in making decisions about operating matters. Operaring segments 
are components of an entity about which separate financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by the 
chief operating decirion maker in deciding how to allocate rerources and in arrersing performance. Thir rtandard which 
becomer mandatory for the Group's 2009 financial statements is not expected to have any impact on the financial 
statements. 

IFRIC 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under IAS 29 Financial Reponing in Hyperinflationary Economier (effective 
for annual periods beginning on o r  after I March 2006) addresser the application of IAS 29 when an economy firrt 
becomer hypetinllationary and in panicular rhe accounting lor  deferred rax. IFRIC 7 is  nor relevant 10 the Group's 
operations as the Group does nor have the currency of a hyperinflationary economy as its functional currency. 

IFRIC 8, Scope of IFRS 2 (effective for periods beginning on or after I May 2006, that is from I January 2W7) The 
interpretation states that IFRS 2 alro applier to transactions in which the entiq receivei unidentifiable goods o r  services 
and that ruch items rhould be mearured ar the difference between the fair vaiue of the share-bared payment and the 
fair value of any identiíiable goods or services received (or to be received). 
IFRIC 9. Reassessment of Embedded Derivativer (effective for annual periodr beginning on or aker i June 2006). The 
interpretation stater that an entity shall assess whether an embedded derivative is required to be separated from the 
hort contract and accounted for ar a derivative when the entiq first becomer a party to the contract. Subrequent 
rearressment is  prohibited unlerr there is a change in the termr of the contract that rigniíicantly modifier rhe cashflows 
that otherwise would be required under the contract, in which case reasserrment i s  required. IFRIC 9 is not  relevant 
to the Group's operations. 
IFRIC 10 interim Financial Reponing and Impairment - The Interpreration prohibits the reversal of an impairrnent l os  
recognised in a previous interim period in respect of goodwill, investmentr in equity inrtrumenu or íinancial assets 
carried a t  COSL 

IFRIC I I IFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transaffionr - The Interpretation requirer a share-bared payment 
arrangement in which an entiry receiver goods or services as consideration lor  iu own equiry-inmumenu to be 
accounted for ar an equity-rettled share-bared payment transaction. regardless of how the equity instruments needed 
are obtained. It alro provider guidance on whether share-bared payment arrangementr. in which rupplierr of goodr or 
services of an enrity are provided with equity instruments of the entity's parent. rhould be accounted for ar cash-rettled 
o r  equity-settled in the entity's íinancial statements. 

IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements - The Interpretation provider guidance to private rector entitier on cenain 
recognition and measurement issues thar arise in accounting for public-co-private service concerrion arrangementr. 

Unlesr othemire described above, these new standardr and interpretationr are not expecred to significantly affect the 

* 

. 

* 

* 

* 

* 

Group's íinancial statements. 

4. PROPERTY, PLANTAND EQUIPMENT 

Motor Fixturer Arsets i" Larehold Computen 
8 electronk vehlder 8 flttingr Of equiprnent Conrtructio" 

Land & 
buildingr irnpmvernents 

. .  
24 Ma7 ZW6 (Noce 5) 5,734 4.557 1.634 4.782 1.334 4.329 22.370 

Additionr 512 47 746 1.848 565 11.649 15.367 

i m p i rm e n t 369 13 61 - 443 

199 919 Translation diñerencer 258 I89 55 I65 53 

Cloring net bod< amount 7.130 5.397 1,960 5.484 2.038 13.583 35.592 

7. i 30 5.397 1.960 5.484 2.038 13.583 35.592 
".I". as Of 3 I 

December 2M)6 

Arrets under construction reprerent mortly the building of new head office in Mogoroaia (EUR 12,128 thousand 
including the automatic warehouring ryrtem ), the building of new warehouses in Craiova (EUR 621 thourand) and lasi 
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the period from 24 May 2006 

(AI1 m ö u n t s  are exprerred i n ~ E U R  '000;unlerr othemire-rtated) 

Ar at 3 I December 2006. for impairment purporer, management har allocated goodwill to the Group'r [wo main cash 
generating units. Mediplur Exim SA EUR 195.351 thourand as a t  3 I December 2006 and Senriblu SRL EUR 35.300 thourand 
ar a t  31 December 2006. Goodwill was allocated taking into account the enterprise value arserred by the independent 
valuer for each entiry and ir. net arseu upon being acquired. 

As a t  24 May 2006, rhis Group acquired iu only brand ("Senriblu"). which har an indefinite economic life in accordance 
with management's ertimation. The brand war valued by an independent valuer. uring a dircounted cash flow methodology 
bared on management arrumptionr and estimater regarding future revenue growth. pricer. coifs and economic factors. 
The discount rate used in the computationr was estimated a t  15%. by the SCOR Interbrand and SCOR Brand Finance 
approaches. 

The acquired goodwill reprerents a rum of non quantifiable intangible asretr ruch as: 

Leading porition in Romanian pharrnaceutical wholesale and retail. a market of EUR 1.563 rnillion and with a compound 
annual growrh rare of 3 I% pa. Thir high growrh rate is driven by the rtrong economic growth funher rupponed aipo by 
the recent EU membership. 

Proven management uack record 
ADPr management har a proven track record of delivering profitable growth and consirtently increasing marker share. 
ADP'r management team har been involved with the Group rince 1996 and har managed the burinerr independenrly of 
the founding shareholderr rince July 2002. Under the supervision of the current management team. ADP har (i) become 
the leading pharmaceutica wholeraler and retailer in Romania. (ii) achieved national coverage in both the wholerale and 
retail markers. (iii) introduced various innovative services for both rupplierr and clientr in wholerale. (iv) introduced the 
loyalry card rcheme for Senriblu curtomerr and (v) undemken the firrt major private pharmacy chain acquirition in the 
pharmacy retail marker in Romania through the acquirition of Ideapharm. 

Mediplus' conrumer healthcare divisionr and value added service 
Mediplus is differentiared from traditional wholeralerr due to iu conrumer healthcare raler divirionr which provide 
contract marketing services and promote OTC brands of international producers generating higher gros marginr than 
the traditional wholerale burinerr. Mediplus als0 provider a wide range of value added services ro both producers and 
iu pharmacy clientr ruch ar free pharmacy r o b a r e .  pharmacy refurbirhment services and pharmacirt training 

Vertical integration: rtrong synergier on both revenuer and coitr 
There are significant rtrong synergies between rhe wholerale and retail businerses. Revenue rynergies arire from the 
improved insight gained by Mediplur via Senriblu inra conrumer behaviour and segmentation which enables Mediplus to 
offer greater value added seryices to ifs key rupplierr. Cort rynergier are generated by higher operations efficiency due 
to vertical integration. For example. fewer field salep force viritr are required lor Senriblu which means that raler and 
marketing corts are reduced. Invoice processing colts and time are alro reduced. Mediplur provider for Senriblu with 
warehousing facilitier. logistics infrastructure. the head office building and other central casts. 

As a t  31 December 2006 manacement terted poodwill. brandr and licenrer, ar wel1 ar non-current fixed asretr for 

c-' 

'-4 - - 
impairment (ree Note 25 (i")). 

p 
Pharmacy licence l.0 

I 

i 
Licencer reprerent mainly the cost of the legal entitier acquired by Senriblu SUL during the yearr. in order to obtain their 

hJ 
c 3  
'?I 

*-i1 

exirting operating licencer to open new pharmacier. 

The life and the conditionr for obtaining a pharmacy licenre are regulated under article 15 of the Normr approved by 
the Order no. 6261 2001. isrued by the Romanian Minister of Health. modified and completed by the Order no. I 1961 2004. 
Article 15 rtipulater that the pharmacy licenrer obtained aiter the enforcement of the Order no. I 199 are to be permanent. 
under the amendmenr of preserving the initia1 conditionr that have originated the authorization of such a license. 

In respect to the licenrer previously obtained. having a limited life of 5 years according ro the Order no. 626, the new 
regulation stater they wil1 be re-authorized. under the provirionr of the Order no. I 199. 

Conridering the changes in legislation mentioned above. and bared on the fact that no licenre was cancelled rince the 
Company'r foundation, the management has decided to ceare the arnonisation of the current pharmacy licenrer. 

Acquisition of Lauren Finance IFN SA 
On 18 Juiy 2006, the Group acquired 99.67% of huren Finance IFN SA ("huren") as follows: 94.97% from Gemira 
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investmenu Ltd (related party) and 4.69% from others. for the amount of EUR 450 thourand plus 2.3% of buren's monthly 
rales for a t  least 5 years, starting I January 2007. 

Lauren was incorporated in 2004. and i t s  object of activity is financial intermediation. rpecifically irsuing of credit cards 

At the date of acquisition. buren's fotal rtatutory turnover war EUR 8 thourand and the net loss was EUR 28 thourand 
Net asiets a t  acquisition date are EUR 72 thousand. As at year end,.buren'r net sales are in amount of EUR I I thourand 
and the net assets are ac the ievei of EUR 42 rhourand. 

As a t  3 I December 2006 the National Bank of Romania ("NBR") did nor give an official answer CO the request to include 
Lauren in the General Register of Non-Banking Financial Institutionr. the parties have agreed to extend the acquisition 
agreement until a decirion wil1 be formulated by NBR. 

6. INVESTMENTS 

_ .  

Ar at 31 December 2006 al1 avaiiable for rak recurities are carried a t  cost because they are nor publicly traded and 
management of the Group i s  not abie to mearure reliably their fair value. 

7. LONGTERM RECEIVABLES 

3 I December 2006 

Loog term trade receivabler 4.365 

Health Inrurance Hourer receivabler 1.562 

Orher 304 

6,231 

' I  
i 

Ar a t  31 December 2006, the carrying value of long term receivabies approximates their fair value of EUR 6.409 
thourand. 

As ar 3 I December 2006 amorùsed COS[ was computed based on an effecuve weighted average interest rate of 8.57 %. 

As at 3 I December 2006 bank borrowingr (Note 15) are recured over EUR 4.365 thourand from the above long term 
trade receivables balance. 

Following a three year analyrir of receivabler. i t  war determined that from the total population of curtomerr with 
outstanding amountr ageing 60 days from the rak date. approximately 10% are "carhed" after a period longer than I year. 
This amount (EUR 4.365 thourand) was reclasrified ar long term receivabler. 

As a t  31 December 2006. the Health Inrurance Houses receivable balance in amount of EUR 1.562 thousand conristr 
of amounts due from Health Inrurance Houses for raler of items subridired by the Romanian State, raier which exceeded 
the ceilings set out in the contractual agreements concluded by ideapharm SA with the Health Inrurance Houses for the 
year ended 3 I December 2005. Since the salep were in excess of the contractual agreements. as at the date of this report 
the Heaith Inrurance Houses do nor recognize these amounts. However. these long term receivabler from Healrh Insurance 
House are covered by a warranty undertaking from GlaxormithKline SRL (GSK Group - Note 17). 

According to the acquisition contract of Ideapharm SA, GSK Group must cover al1 the uncollected receivabler from 
Health Insurance House, which were outstanding at the acquirition date. 

In case the Health Inrunnce Houre wil1 not pay its outrranding debtr towardr the Company within a period of 3 yearr. 
GSK Group wil1 compenrate these amountr with the debtr of the Company. 

8. INVENTORIES 

3 I December 2006 

Goodr held for d e  64.827 

Provision for slow movinz snd obsolete inventor, 11.372) 

63.455 

Ar at 31 December 2006 bank borrowingr (Note 15) are secured over EUR 63.136 thousand kom the above 
inventorles. 
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9. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

3 I December 1006 

Tnde receivabler 115,841 

Amounts due h.om related p d e r  (Nore 21) 6.487 

Impairment for receivabier (2.541) 

I I 9,787 

Trade receivabler amonired colt war computed bared on an effective weighted average interest rare of 4.43% ar a t  3 I 

Ar at  31 December 2006 bank borrowingr (Note 15) are recured over EUR 119,770 thourand from rhe above trade 

The fair wIue of trade receivabler (including related parties) as a t  31 December 2006 i s  EUR I2O.i 13 thourand. 

December 2006. - 

receivabier balance. 

10. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 
3 I December 1006 

Prepayme"s 4.886 

VAT recovenble 3.505 

O h e r  sute receivabler 1.384 

L o m  receivable fmm curtomerr 733 

Amainrr receivable kom rhareholderr (Note 21) 587 

Advsncer ro rupplierr 181 

Sundly debrorr. net 35 I 

Amouns due kom related partier (Nore 21) 222 

11.849 

In prepayments. the Group har included various formr of discounts granted in advance to clients. 

11. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

31 December 2006 

Cash and bank in RON 17.127 c 
Cash and bank in foreign culrency 67 -4 

17.194 ' 
Reruicred cash 5.863 * 

23.057 i 

u 
c" ,a 

Ar at 3 I December 2006 the value of short-term depositr included within cash and bank in RON was EUR 14.5 million, 
and the weighred average effective interest rate on short-term bank depositr was 3.36% p.a. 

Ar at 31 December 2006 bank borrowingr (Note 15) are secured over EUR 589 thousand from the above cash 
balance. 

For the purpose of rhe cash íìow statement. the cash and cash equivalent; comprire the following: 

3 I December 1006 

Cash and bank balancer 23.057 

Lerr reruicted cash (5.863) 

Bank overdrab (Nore i5) 

17.194 



r the period from 14  May 2006 

12. SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM 

The rtatutory issued share capital and share premium were contributed as set out below: 

Share capital Share premlum 
(EUR'OOO) (EUR '000) 

In-kind conuibution by hgrano BV of shares in ADP 5RL 24 May 2 w 6  2.500 257.500 

Convenion of the share premium into the irrued share 
C l " i f l 1  

Date 

za june 2006 197,500 (197.500) 
-r.-. 

(925) 
2 0 0 . m  59.075 

Dividendr dirrriburion 9 October 2006 

Shares have a nomina1 value of EUR I each and al1 have equal voting rightr. The total statutory value of share capital is 
EUR 200 million. 

The shares of ADP SRL. contributed by Sograno BV into die share capita of the Company. have been valued by an 
independent valuer using the market comparison approach, whereby price data ("multiples") lor  shares of rimilar companier 
which are traded in public markets (the "Comparable Companies") were applied to the Entities' financial data to estimate 
their marketable value. Ar value mearures. the valuer wed pricelearningr, pricelraler. pricdEBITDA. and pricelEBIT ratior 
as of the valuation date. The Companble Companies used in developing these ratior were drawn from the rame industry 
as the Entities. 

For the purporer of these financial statements drawn up under IFRS. the fair value of the shares of ADP SRL was 
estimated at 260.000. which rerulu in a share capital of the Company of 200.000 and share premium of 59.075 as a t  31 
December 2006. 

The issued share capita consiru of the following: 

Number of shares 0idinar)r shares 
(thourand) (EUR '000) 

At 24 May 2006 2.500 2.500 

At31 December 2006 2 0 0 . m  200.000 

I 
, ' ,  

! ' !  

13. TAXATION 

1006 

Income tax expenre - currenr 3.757 

Deferred tax (incorne)lexpenre (686) 

Income tax 3.071 

The Romanian subsidiarier accrue income rax a t  the rate of 16% on profits as at 31 December 2006 computed in 
accordance with the Romanian tax legislation. 

The profit before raxxation lor  financial reporting purposer i s  reconciled to the total rax expense as followr: 

1006 

Prolir before tax charge 

Tax calculated at  domertic tax rater applicable to pmSu in the rerpective counrrier 

I 1.854 

1.897 

Tax efíecf af items which are nol deductible or arrerrable for taxation DUTDOSS 

Orher non-tempo- adjurunenu 212 

a Income rax 
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t he  period from 24 May 2006 

(AI1 amounts &e expresrëd in EUR 'OOO~unles~átherwi<ë rtated) 

Deferred tax 

Deferred tax asretrlliabiiitier arire from the Romanian subsidiarier operationr. These subsidiaries are subject ro the 
rtatutov tax rate of 16% on taxable profits. Deferred fax asseulliabiiitier are measured a t  the enacted statutory effective 
fax rate of 16%. The net effect of the change on deferred fax balances recognised as a t  3 I December 2006 is reiìected in 
rhe statement of income lor rhe period then ended. 

3 I -Dec-O6 

Cumulative rernporay Deferred rax arretl(1iability) 

Pmpem. dnnr and eguiprnenr 11.1 18) 1179) 

difierences 

I""e"mde* 7.830 1.253 

Receivabler 5.953 952 

I""eStme"tS 1441) 171) 

Payabler and other aicc~uds (I 3.085) (2.094) 

Deferred - arrec for rtatutory unured IOBI relief 7.892 1.263 

Brand (48.912) (7.828) 

Deferred - arret nor recognired 

Deferred rrretllliabilicrì (41.892) (6.704) 

The movement in deferred fax liability balance i s  as foilows: 

Dderred tax (llabllity)/arret 

14 May 2006 (7.087) 

Deferved rax (expenre)/incorne 686 

Translation reserve (303) 

31 December2006 (6.704) 

In the context of the Group'r current strucrure. fax losser and current fax asseu of the different companier may nor 
be set off against current fax liabilitier and faxable profiu of other companier and. accordingly. faxer may accrue even when 
rhere is a net consolidated fax loos. Therefore. a deferred fax asset of one of the companies is not offset againrt the deferred 
fax liabiliry ofanorher company in the Group. 

14. FINANCE LEASE 

Finance lease iiabilities - minimum lease paymentr: 

3 I December 2006 

Gmrr obliptions under finance learer 

L e s  than I year 2.694 

Beween I year and 5 years 1.924 

4.6 I 8  

Fuere finance charges (342) 

Present vdue of finance lease liabilitier 4.276 
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ëd'in EUR '000;unlëss~óthemise i ta ted)  
e 

The present value of finance lease liabilities i s  as followr: 

3 I December 2006 

Lerr h a "  I year 2.45 I 

Beween I year and 5 yearr 

Present M I U ~  of finance lease liabilitier 

1.825 

4.276 
~~ 

The carryhg amountr of lease obligations approximate their fair value 

15. BORROWINGS 

Ar at I 3  Juiy 2006. the Company har contracted the ryndicated loan with Citibank. The balance as at  3 I December 2006 
is as follows: 

3 I December 2006 

CITIBANK - EUR (Svndicated Lom) 71.718 

Prepaid feer - Ieis b a n  I )iear (745) 

Prepaid feer - between I year and 5 yeam (1.180) 

69.793 

Long term loans are prerented as followr: 

Interert 3 I December 1006 Lender Mnturity 

CiTIöANK - Facility A 31 Juiy 201 I EURIBOR 6m + 1.95% p.a. 4.000 

CITIBANK - Facility 82 31 Juiy 2009 EURIBOR 3m + 1.7% p.= 50.580 

CITIBANK - Facility B I 31 Jdy  2009 EURIBOR 3m + 1.7% p.a. 17.138 

71,718 e 
This financing facility replaced the overdraft facilities provided by HVB h n k  and ING Bank, 

The bank har agreed co split the total faciliry as followr: 

Facility A -capiral expenditure requirementr and/or repayment of existing indebtednerr of any member of the Group. 
over a period of 5 years; 

Facility BI - working capital requirements andlor repayment of existing indebtedness of any member of the Group 
(revolving). over a period of 3 yearr; 
Faciiity 82 -capiml expenditure requirements andlor repayment of existing indebtednerr of any member o If the Group. 
over a period of 3 yearr; 

Faciiity B3 -isruance of letters ofguanntee to rhe extent required in the ordinary course of the business of any member 
of the Group. over a period of 3 yearr; 

Limitations and utilisations: 

The maximum amount can be utilised for facility A is EUR 10 million a t  the date of the agreemenc 
The maximum amount that can be utilired for facility B2 is  EUR 45 miliion; 

The maximum amount of al1 letters of guarantee isrued under faciliry 83 shall not exceed EUR 10 million; 

The maximum toml amount that can be utilised for facility B is EUR 90 million at the date of the agreement 

The Citibank Lom Agreement contains cemin affirmative covenanu, including. without limifation. cemin financial ratio 
covenants to be observed and. in rome cases, restrictions on dividend paymentr. unless a cerrain debdEBITDA ratio is  
mer 

* 

* 

* 

a 
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16. PROVISIONS 

Ar a t  31 December 2006, the Group recognized in its balance sheet a part of the acquired contingent liabilities of 
Mediplus Exim SA and Sensiblu S R L  The contingent liabiliries not recognized - due to management’s not being able to make 
reliable estimations of their impact - are described in Note 26(i). 

The Group was subject to a Romanian Customs Authority control regarding the clarsification of cemin imported goodr 
which were nor considered as nutritional supplements and taxed with 18%. but taxed as exempted products. The control 
of the Romanian Curtomr National Authority covered [he period from 2001 to 2003 and resulted in additional custom 
dutier. VAT, and related interest and late paymentr in amount of EUR 0.8 million, which is included in the amount of EUR 
ISmillion. , , I .  

Management is actively challenging the imporition of these charges. 

Thur the legal and fiscal environment in Romania and its implemenratioo int0 practice can change and is subject 
to different interpretation by variour Ministries of the Government 2nd their agencier that are authorired to conduct 
audits (l<controIs”) of Romanian companies. Management har therefore made provision for fax or other liabilities in the 
financial statements where rhey consider that tax or other authorities could take differing poritions 4 th  regards to the 
interpretation of these issues. 

17. LONG TERM PAYABLES 

As at 3 I December 2006. the long term payables of the Group 10 GlaxoSmidiKline SRL (GSK Group) guarantee for the 
receivable balance of EUR 1.562 thousand of the Group. in relation with Heairh Insurance House (Note 7). 

Long term trade payabler amortized colt w a r  computed bared on an effective weighted average interest nte of 5.24 % 
p.a. ar at 3 I December 2006. The fair value of long term wade payabler as a t  3 I December 2006 is EUR I.@S thousand. 

18. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS A N D  OTHER LIABILITIES 

3 i December 2006 

Tnde oavabler 147.779 

Amounrr owing ro relared partier (Note 21) 9,369 

Due to State 2.548 

Financial liabiliuer 1.590 

Interest oarable 437 
~ 

Advances for d e  of land 2nd building 

Other payabler 213 

Accounrr oavable. accnialr and oher liabilider 163.07 I 

Taxon profir 2.580 

165.651 

Short term trade payables amortired colt war computed based on an effective weighted average interest rate of 4.96% 

The fair value of trade payables (including related parties) ar a t  3 I December 2006 is EUR 156,960 thousand. 

Financial inrtrumenrs a t  fair value through profit or 10s 
The Group entered into a number of foreign currencier enhanced non-deliverable forward contracts to mitigate i t s  

foreign currency exposure with trade payabies. Al1 gainr and losser on foreign currency contram are recognised in the 
income statemenr. The unrealised losses as a t  31 December 2006 on these non delivenble forward contracts are EUR 
IS90 thousand. 

The table below rummarizes. by major currency. the contractual amounts of the Group non-deliverable forward foreign 
exchange contracts as at 3 I December 2006, with details of the contracted exchange rates versus the RON. Foreign 

as a t  3 I December 2006. 
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(AH arnounts $e exprerred in EUR '000;unlesr othemise stated) 

currency arnountr are translared at marker rater ruling a t  the balance sheet date, 

Enhanced forward Partkipation Notlonal = m o m t  
exchange rater exchange ratei  in EUR 

Buy US Dollars 2.72 2.92 15,185 

Buy Euro 3.47 3.60 I8.000 

Buy Euro 3.40 3.50 8.OW 

Buy US Dollars 2.60 2.70 5.315 

The "Enhanced forward rate" reprermts the rate at which the Group buys the notional arnounts in foreign currency as 
long as the spot rate is below the "Participation rare'.. In case the spot rate reaches or goes above the Participation rate. 
ihe Group exits the hedge. 

19. OPERATING COSTS 

. 

~ ~~ 

2006 

corr of salep I55.121 

Salaier i i d  benefis 18.684 

Rent and sdminirwative expenrer 8.542 

Third pary services 7.606 

Advertiring snd promotion 0,723 

Deoreciation and amortization 3.074 

Impaiment for fixed arrerr (443) 

Provision for invenforiei 648 

1nvent.q write off 485 

Penaltier and finer 1.064 

Impaiment on recelvables 520 

Operational foreign exchange (income)/ expenre (5.366) 

Hedging los 

m e r  expenrer 719 

200.961 

o 
20. FINANCIAL RESULT 

~ 

2006 

Foreien exchanee differencer. net 2.830 

Interest income 244 

Interest expenre (2,698) 

Interest (expenre)lrevenue financial inrtrurnens 909 

Other financial emenre (503) 

182 

21. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

For the purpores of these financial rtaternentr. parties are considered to be related if one party har the ability to control 
the other party or exercire significant influence over the other party in rnaking financial o r  operational decirionr ar defined 
by IAS 14 "Related Party Disclosure". In considering each posrible related party relationship. attention is directed to the 
substance of the relationship, nor rnerely to the legal forrn. 
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the period from 24 May 2006 

a 

Related parties may enter into tranractionr which unrelated paru'es might not, and transactions beween related partier 
may not be eííected on rhe rame termr. conditionr and amounts as tranractionr beween unrelated partier. 

The nature of the related party relationrhipr for chose related partier with whom the Group entered into significant 
transactions during the period ended 3 I December 2006 o r  had significant balances ouutanding at 3 I December 2006 are 
derailed below. Transactionr were entered into with related parties during the ordinary course of business on both normal 
2nd preferential commercial termr. 

country of 
incorpoation Controiied by the iame uitimate rharehoiderr Activicy 

Romania Conrumer Product Neyork SRL Impper  and diruibuwr of 
(fomerly Famactiu SRL) panphamaceutiui product. 

Giobai Business Sofware SRL Software development Romania 

Ozone bbontotier L d  Holding company of 
Ozone biboncotier SRL United Kingdom 

Ozone Laboratotiu SRL Phannaceuticai manufacturer Romania 

Fieet Management Services SRL 

~~~ 

Car fleet maintenance Romania 

PRII Pro international SRL Media promarion Romania 

Bulpria Arirhop Pharma AD 

Oxigen Plus SRL Oxigen product. dirttibutor Romania 

importer and distributor 
of phamxeuti'cal product. 

Country of 
incorpomtion Contmiied by the s m e  uitimate rharehoiden Actiricy 

Minibiu SRL Baby ciothing and toy5 Romania 

Opricai Nerwork SRL Optical pmducrr Romania 

Gemiu inverrmen~ Ltd invertment fund Cyprus 

Lauren Finance SRL Merchant card Romania 

Adkit Serv SRL Management services Romania 

Grup 3 Conmcting SRL CO"StKICti0" Romania 

Cnrtal Diagnortic SRL Laboratory terts Romania 

Sognno BV The Netheriandr 

Dwing the period. [he following tranractions were carried out with related partier: 

Saicr of goodr and services 2006 

Ozonc bibontorie SRL 1.660 

Employees 789 

Minibiu SRL i 32  

Opricai Network SRL i41 

Conrumer Product Nerwork SRL 98 

Gemira Servicii SRL I 

3.821 

t 

'-4 
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Mediplus k i m  SA and Ozone bboratorier SRL have entered into an agreement dated I January 2006. bared on which 
the former undertook 10 provide the latter rtorage and dirtribution services. ar wel1 as logirtic services reiated to the 
transport and management of Ozone Laboratories producu. up to a yearly limit set out by the partier in the agreement. The 
agreement remainr in force until 3 I December 2007. The feer that Ozone Laboratories must pay to Mediplus Exim SA are 
calculated by applying cemin percentages to the value of che Ozone Laboratorier finirhed productr acquired by Mediplus 
Exim SA from Ozone Laboratorier. 

On 2 August 2006 Senriblu SRL and Ozone Laboratorier SRL entered into a service agreement according to which the 
former undertook to provide to the latter cemin services for the merchandising of Ozone Laboratorier productr in 159 
of Senriblu SRL'r pharmacier. The number of the pharmacier where these services are to be provided wil1 increase to 190 
by the end of 2006 and to 210 by I July 2007. The agreement i s  entered into fora I2  month period. namely from I July 
2006 to I July 2007. The tariffr to be paid by Ozone Laboratorier SRL are set outfor each type of services provided. Given 
the significant packnge of services acquired. Ozone bboratories SRL benefits from a 17 per cent discount applied to the 
aggregate value of the purchased services 

Purcharer of goodr and services 2006 

Ozone bboratorier SRL 16,265 

Conrumer Product Nework SRL 1.299 

Fleer Management SRL 328 

Miniblu SRL 10 

Optical Network SRL 66 

SC Cdrral Diagnostic SRL I09 

Adkit Serv SRL ir 

Sensibh Optica SRL 8 

Otherr 18 

18.130 

The goodr and services purchared are prerenred net of discounts received from Ozone Laboratorier SRL dwing the 
7 monthr period ended 31 December 2006. The value of discounts received by the Group in the period i s  of EUR 3.468 
thourand. 

2006 e Saks of pmperty, plant and equipment 

Conrumer Product Nerwork SRL 52 

Ozone Laboratorier SRL 41 

Other 24 

I17 

Purcharer of properq plant and equipment 2006 

G r u ~  3 Conrractinn 9.594 

Fleer Management SRL I 2  

9.606 

Management ralarier 1.688 

Interest related to l o m  granted by reiated partler 

Interest paid v> hgrano BV 

2006 

e 
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The following balancer were outstanding with related panier: 

~ 

T a d e  recelvables bom related partier 1 I December 2006 

Ozonc bboratona SRL 4.286 

Emdoveer 1.516 

Ozone Laboratoner Lrd 453 

Optical Network SRL I O9 

Miniblu SRL i O0 

Consumer Pmduct Nework SRL 23 

m e n  

6.487 

For rhe above receivable. rhe Company har provided the amounr of EUR 1.5 rnillion as at 31 December 2006. 

Orhsr rscsinblsr from rela.red pnrrier 3 I December 2006 

Ozone Labaratorles SRL 64 

Receivsble fram shareholder. 587 

Miniblu SRL 36 

Oxigsn Plus SRL 60 

Optical Neewo& SRL 40 

Gemira Servicii SRL 

OthWS 10 

809 

Trade papbles to related partles 31 December 1006 

Orone Labaratorleer SRL 7.323 

Grup 3 Conwacting SRL 1.286 

Conrumer Product Nerwork SRL 579 

Optical Nerwork SRL 74 

Fleet Msnqemenr SRL 60 

SC Cristal Diagnortic SRL 23 

Miniblu SRL 18 

Globsl Business bfrware  SRL 

&me Laborato6er Ltd 

Other. 6 

9.369 

As ar I January 2006 a contract was signed between Mediplus k i m  SA and Ozone Laborarories SRL related party 
of the Group (Note 9). related 10 rhe transfer of the Mediplur's outstanding recelvables balances older than 110 dayr on 
Orone productr. 

The contract concerns the compensation of third parties receivables balancer towardr rhe Group against the Ozone 
Laboratorier SRL payable balance. 
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(Allamounts >e exprësie~~iriEUR'000~~ünlë~ZothëTwi~ërtated) 

Transactions with shareholders 

Balancer from/(due) to shareholden 31 December 1006 

To recover from founding shareholderr (Note 10) 39 

Other amounts receivabld(payab1e) (Nore 10) 548 

Net amounr receivable from rhareholderr 587 

The founding rhareholderr have provided goodr to is employees, ar benefits in kind, in amount of EUR 767 thourand. 
The receivable of the Company from the founding rhareholderr for the amount mentioned above were wrinen off by 
management decirion. 

Other amountr receivable comprire the withholding fax due to the smte in relation with part tranractionr involving the 
founding shareholderr. 

Bared on administrator's decirion of Mediplur Exim and Senriblu from 7 March 2007. the rhareholderr have committed I 
themrelver to  repay the amount of EUR 548 thourand CO the two companier. 

Other transactions with key management personnel 

Directorr of the Company control 7% of the voting shares of the Group'r parent company. A&D Pharma Holdings NV. 
Netheriandr. 

1006 

Board of Directors Salarier 507 

The 4 founding rhareholders which are Non-Executive Directorr are nor remunerated for their services rendered to 
the Company. 

22. MAIN SUBSIDIARIES I 
The conrolidated rubsidiarier included within the Group and the degree of control exercired by A&D Pharma Holdings 

N.V. are as followr: 

Country of X share 
incorpontion Activlhl 3 I December 1006 Entity 

I O0 
Romsnian holding company of Mediplur and 

Senriblu A&D Pharms Holdings SRL Romania 

Mediplur k i m  SRL 
Import and wholeraie dirwibution of pharmaceutical 

prcducts in Romania 
Romania IW 

Senriblu SRL Remil dirwibution of pharmaceutical pmducts in 
Romania 

Romania I O0 

Remil dirwibution of phamaceutical products in 
Romania 

Ideapham SA Romania 

Lauren Finance SRL Romania Financial activities IW 

In September 2006 Ideapharm SA merged with Sensiblu SRL. 
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23. SEGMENT INFORMATION 

Statement of Income 

Perlod rmm 24 May 2006 (date d 
Incorpontlon) to 1 I December 2006 
Ssles 183,597 56.236 (27,794) 212.039 

Openting income and expenser ( 1 7 0 ~  15) (57,636) (1,033) 27.8 I 7  (200.967) 

Segment resdt 13.482 (1.400) (1.033) 23 I 1.072 

Operating prodtl(l0rr) 13,482 (1.400) (1.033) 23 11.072 

Financwcorts. net 647 223 (88) 782 

Wholerale Retail Other Elimlnatlonr Gl0"p 

ProRtl(losr) before mation 14.129 (1.177) (1.121) 23 I 1.854 

Net pmRtl(lorr) for the p e k d  II,M)9 (1.128) (1.121) 23 8.783 

Income m expenre (3.120) 49 (3.071) 

Balance sheet 

Unaliocated assets 

Total asie= 245.820 49.275 269.832 (21.939) 542.988 

Segment liabilitier 120.025 62.619 2.015 (21.708) 262.952 

Unallocared iiabilitier 

Total liabilitier 220.025 62.619 2.015 (21.708) 262.952 

Capiral expenditure 13.253 3.104 15 16.373 

Deoreciation and amorrisation 11.037) (1.9801 158) (3.074) 

Inciuded in operating income and expenres are depreciation and amartisatiaion charges in amount af EUR 3,074 thousand 
out of which wholerale accounts for EUR 1,037 thourand and retaii segment for EUR 1.980 thousand. 

Primary reporhg formot - business segmenis 

There are material rales and other transactionr beween rhe business segmenrs. Segment arsers consirr primarily of 
property.plantandequipment.intangiblearretr.inventories.receivablesandoperatingcashandinvestmenrs.Segmentliabilities 
comprire operating liabilitier. lease liabilities and borrowingr. Eliminationr comprire mainly intercompany commercial and 
setvice transactianr. , -4 

<z, 
LE 

I 

bi' 

Capital expenditure comprirer additions to property. plant and equipment and intangibler 

The recondary segmental information bared on geographical area is not material to be disclored ar almort al1 the activity 
i s  carried out in Romania. 

24. EARNINGS PER SHARE q 
-4 

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity 
holderr of the parent by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year. 

Diluted earningr per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit anributable to ordinary equity holderr of 
the parent (aíter deducting interest an the convertible preference shares) by the weighted average number of ordinary 
shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be irsued on the 
conversion of al1 the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares. 

A capitaiisation which har the effect of increaring the number of shares in issue without any inflow of resources and 
further ordinary shares are irsued to exirting rhareholders for no considerarion - the additional shares should be treated ar 
having been in issue for the whole period ar alro included in rhe E B  Caicuiation of al1 earlier periods. 
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d ror the period from 24 May 2006 

(Allámáunts &e éipresreä in EUR'000;unless~othemire~rtated) 

As at period end. basic earnings per share value are as follows: 

2006 

8.783 

Number of shares 20o.Mx).ow 

Basic earningr per share (€) 0.04 

Also. in accordance with group's accounting policier, as at period end, diluted earnings per share value are as follows: 

2006 

Net  PmCt 8.783 

Number of shares 20o.Mx),ow 

Diluteed earninpr oer rhsie IEl 0.04 
~~~~ 

There have been no transattions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares between the reporting date and 
the date of compietion of these financial statements. 

25. USE OF ESTIMATES 

The Company makes ertimater and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will. by 
deíinition. seldom equal the related actual rerults. The estimates and arsumptionr that have a significant risk of cauring a 
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next íinancial year are discussed below. 

(i) Interest income and expenses 

Interest income and expenses for financial instruments is recognired in the income statement a t  amortired cost using 
the effective interest rate method lor  receivabler and payabler. 

The effective interest method is  a method of calculating the amortired colt of a financial asset or a financial liability and 
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. 

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts ertirnated future cash payments or receipts through the 
expected life of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the íinancial asset o r  financial liability. 

The linear amortiration merhod "red to  determine the amortired colt for both receivable and payabler representr the 
management's best ertimate for the value of the corresponding amortiration. 

(;i) Impairment losses on receivable 

In accordance with the internal impairment arsesment methodology, the Company reviews is receivable pordolios 
to  arrers impairment on a yearly basis. In determining whether an impairment loss rhould be recorded in the income 
statement. the Company makes judgments as to whether there is any observable data indicating that there is objective 
evidence of impairment that har an impact on the estimated future cash flows from an individual o r  from entire portfolio of 
receivables. Management uses estimates bared on historica1 loss experience; in the rame time the calculation of the present 
value of future cash flows requires judgement by the management. The methodology and assumptions "red for ertimating 
both the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differencer between loss estimates 
and actual loss experience. 

(iii) Carrying value ofinventories 

The Company assesses a t  each balance-sheet date the requirement for a provision against i t s  inventories. The Company 
uses its judgement, based on the expiry date of goods in order to estimate the level of the provision required. 

(iv) Impairment of non-financial assets 

Arretr that have an indefinite useful life are nor subiect t o  amortiration and are tested annuallyfor impairment. Arretr a 
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that are subject 10 amoniration are reviewed for impairment whenever eventr or changes in circumrtances indicate that 
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment 106s is recognised lor  the amount by which the arret'r carrying 
amount exceedr its recoverable amounr The recoverable amount is the higher of an arret*r fair value Iers costr to sell and 
value in ure. For the purporer of arserring impairment. asreu are grouped a t  the lowert levels for which there are reparately 
identifiable cash flowr (cash-generating units). 

Identification of cash generating units requirer judgment and is bared on abiliry to generate independent cash inflowr. 
60th the wholerale and retail regmentr are treated by the Management ar cash generating units ar their operationr are 
interdependent and there are no smaller units that have the ability to generate revenuer largely independent from otherr 
within the group. 

Goodwillïr'allocated a t  the acquirition date before the end of !he first annual reporting period. Ar a t  31 December 
2006 management terted goodwill. brandr and licenrer for impairment. Goodwill acquired through business combination. 
indefinite lived intangibler and net book value of fixed arretr have been allocated to cash generating units ar follows: 

C q i n g  Carrylng Carrylng Excerr of 
Vdue i" recovembie 

Ure atn0""t over 
Carving m o m t  of amount oï amount of 

indefinite pharmacy tsngible 
lired brand llCe"CeS arret* cay ing  amount 

C a y i n g  
goodwill ".I". 

Cash- 

unit 
generating amount of 

Wholerale 195.351 26.690 222.04I 338.986 116,945 

Remil 

~ 

35.300 48.931 1.719 8.887 94.837 134.797 39.960 

230.65 I 48.93 I 1.719 35.577 316.878 473.783 156,905 

In determining the values in ure. the management urer four-year derailed free cash flow lorecarts (for period 2007-20 I O) 
and then simplilied free cashflow lorecarts in perpetuity with a discount rate of 9.6%. uring data lor  20 10. The value in ure 
of the cash generating units war bared on a growrh factor of 2% for al1 cash flows beyond the derailed projectionr. 

Key arsumptionr are bared on a local pharma marker of EUR 1.268 million ar at 3 I December 2005. 

Over the four-year period. the Compound Annual Growth Rate ("CAGR") of the total pharma marker is ertimated 
at 19% (i.e. EUR 2,976 mil1 ar at 31 December 2010). The ADP Wholesale'r CAGR-is expected a t  31% yearly. up 10 3 I 
December 2010 (from net raler of EUR 286 mil1 ar at  3 I December 2005 to EUR 824.3 miilion in 20 ia). 

Over the rame period. the retaii market'r CAGR is 20% (from EUR 286 mil1 as at 3 I December 2006 to EUR 8 I 5  million 

-J ar a t  31 December 2010). The ertimated ADP Retail segment CAGR of 56%. up to 31 December 2010 (from net raler of . 
EUR 89.8 million ar at  31 December 2005 to EUR 370 million in 2010). 

I 

The key arrumptionr in the value in ure calculationr determining recoverable amountr for the rpecific cash-generating 
units noted above are: ccl 
Wholesale segment .- 

For the wholerale business, the Company proiectr salep and g ros  marginr by product group bared on ertimated market 
growrh dynamicr and expected marker shares. Management believer the arrumed improvementr and marginr are rearonably 
achievable. 

a 
,%J 

Retail segment 

For the retail business. the Company bared its forecartr on the projected future number of pharmacier, and how 
raler per pharmacy are expected to evolve. Management believer the arrumed improvementr and margins are rearonably 
achievable. 

As at  3 I December 2006. management tested goodwill and brandr for impairment by reference co the Entitier' business 
plans drawn up for the penod 2006-2010. The arsumptionr and ertimates "red in the preparation of these business plans 
are detailed above. Following these terts. management har reached the conclurion that the above-mentioned arrets are not 
impaired ar at 3 I December 2006. a 
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26. CONTINGENCIES, COMMITMENTS AND OPERATING RISKS 

(i) Contingencies 

a) laxation 

The Romanian taxation ryrtem is undergoing a proces of consolidation and harmoniration with the European Union 
legislation. 

Even if the cument Romanian Fircal Code is meant to create a rtable tax frarnework. tax legislation is s t i l l  subject to a 
significant amount of changes and contradictory interpretationr. which may apply retroactively. 

Moreover. in practice, the rax authoritier can take an aggressive approach and arrerr additional tax liabilities and related 
late paymenr penaltier (2006 0.06% per day plus 0.5% per month of delay) based on questionabie interpretationr of the mx 
legislation. As a rerulr. penalties and delay payment interest could result in a significant amount payable to  the State. 

Contingent liabilities may arise in relation to additional m e s  that may be imposed by the tax aurhorities ar a result of 
reviews períormed. Corporate tax returns can be subject to review by tax authoritier within a 5-year period. 

b) Transfer pricing 

The Romanian Fiscal legislation includer detailed regulations regarding transfer pricing between related panies and 

(Allämountr are expresrëd in EUR '000;unlerr othemire"stated) 
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ruch practicer may rerult in either the reciarsification of certain tranaaction from a fax standpoint or fines and other 
sanctions. The fax exposure may result into additional EUR 9.3 million profit fax. VAT and late payment Interest and als0 
confiscation of revenuer in amount of EUR 2.9 miliion. 

However. h e  inspection performed by the Fircal Authoritier covering the financial periods to 3 I December 2004, did 
nor rerulr in any additional fax liabilities or penaltier in comection with thir matter. Although ruch amountr are porrible 
and may be matenal. it is the opinion of rhe Group's management thar these amountr are either nor probable. or reasonably 
determinable. or both. 

The accompanying financial statements do nor include any provision for such marters. 

e) Legal proceedings 

Dwing the period. the Group war involved in a number of COUK proceedingr (both as a plaintifl and a defendant) 
ariring in the ordinary course of burinerr. In rhe opinion of managemenr. bared on legal advice. there are no wrrent legal 
proceedings or other claims ouutanding which could have a marerial effect on the result of operations or financial porition 
of the Group and which have nor been accrued or disclosed in these consolidated financial statements 

f l  Insuronce policies 

The Group holdr iniwance policies covering iti office building. warehouses and inventory balancer as wel1 ar inrurance 
policier covering iu lorres rerulting from malpractice for the retail business. The Group holdr no other insurance policier in 
relation CO its assets. operations. product liability. or in respect of public liability or other inrurable riskr. 

gJ Benefits in kind to employees 

Over time. the Group har given beneíits in kind to  ik employees, which could be regarded as salaries by the fiscal 
authoritier and w e d  accordingly. However. the inrpection performed by the Fiscal Aurhoritles covering the financial 
periodr up to 3 I December 2004. did nor result in any additional fax liabilitier or penalties in comection with thir marter. 
Therefore. Group management conriderr the risk of ruch taxer being impored to be remote and the accompanyingfinancial 
statements do nor include any provision for such matters. 

(ii) Contractual commitments 

a) Operating lease contracis for phormocies 

The Group har operating lease contracU for pharmacier location in total amount of EUR 30.8 million. fora period from 
3 to 10 years. with future minimum lease payments ar followr: 

i) Iess than I year EUR 6.6 million: 
ii) between I and 5 years EUR 18.7 million: 

iii) more than 5 yearr EUR 5.5 million. 

b] Construction Agreement for Mogosoaia office building ond worehouse 

in the Mogosoaia village with Grup 3 Contracting (related party). 
As at 23 June 2005, Mediplus har enrered into an agreement for the construction of an office building and a warehoure 

The agreement war further amended ar a t  I March 2006 and sets out the following deadlines lor the construction 
works: (i) 31 July 2006 for the warehouse. 2nd (ii) 30 September 2006 for the office building and for completing ancillary 
ourfitting workr. In case of delayr in carrying out the relevant construction workr the contractor i s  liable for penalties of 
EUR 2.500 per day of delay. 

Although the deadlines were nor achieved as at 3 I December 2006. no penalties were perceived o? collected 

The value ofthe agreement i s  of EUR 10.8 million exclurive of VAT. payable by Mediplur in reveral inrtalments upon the 
acceptance of different categories of construction works. 

As at  3 I December 2006. future services in an amounr of approximately EUR 2.0 miliion rhould be rendered by Grup 
3 Contracting (related party) to Mediplus relared 10 this agreement 
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t? the:Conrolidated Financial Stofements as a t  and for the period from 24 May 2006 
( d a t e o f i n c o r p y a t i o n ) ~ ~  31 Decernbei 1006'"~~''~"'"~.'"l~" 
(Al lamounts &e exprerred in EUR~'OO0;Ünië~~ötKe~~isëitated) 

(iv) Liquidity risk 

31 December 2006 

Arreu 

Monetary arrefs in RON 160,346 

Monetary assets in foreign currency 578 

160.924 

Liabiiitier 

Monsm-y liabilirier in RON (I I i ,125) 

Monetary liabilirier in foreign currency (145.023) 

(256.248) 

Net monetary porition in RON 49.121 

Net monetar)i porition in foreign currency (144.445) 

The Group's policy on liquidity i s  to maintain rufficient liquid resources to meet the obligations ar they fail due; however. 
due to the Group'r current financing s t r u ~ t ~ r e .  there is a significant risk that the Group wil1 encounter liquidity probiemr 
in the forereeable future. 

28. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS 
Recovery of debtr from Romanian Ministry of Health 

In January 2007. following the discursions beween the Drugs Distribution Association. other arsociationr and the 
Ministry of Health. a law bil1 regarding the acceptance and the paymenr method of the debu related to salep exceeding the 
rettled ceilings for pharmacier. war propored co Parliament for debate and approval. 

The Company har receinbier nor recognired as a consequence of ceiling exceedr in amount of EUR 900 thousand. No 
provision was recognired. 

CITIBANK Loan - utikation requertr 

As a t  30 April 2007 the amount withdrawn by the Group from Facility A, Facility 6 and Facility 63 is of EUR 76.329 

CITIBANK Loan - mortgage 

As pan of the loan agreement. the Group har agreed with Citibank to conclude an addendum to the mortgage contract 

Land sale 
In January 2007 the Group roid a land in Conrtanta County having the GBV of EUR 197 thourand , obtaining proceeds 

thourand. 

lor Mogoroaia buiiding dwing the week 14-16 May 2007. 

in amount of EUR 475 thourand. 

29. PROFORMA FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
IFRS does not prercribe an accounting treatment lar common control business combinations and therefore it is 

management's decirion to determine the appropriate accounting treatment co be applied. IFRIC decided not to prercribe 
precise treatments for al1 porrible situations in thir area only becaure there is too much diversity in practice and judgment 
wiil always remain. 
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According to IAS 8.10 "Accounting policier, changes in accounting estimater and errors" in the absence of a Standard or 
an Interpretation that rpecifically applier to a transaction. management shali ure itr judgment in deveioping and applying an 
accounting policy that rerults in information that is relevant to the economic decision-making needs of uiers. 

The management of the Company assesred inter alia that A&D Pharma Holdings NV. (new "Company"). could be 
regarded ar the acquirer if it is considered that the rertructuring was linked to another future transaction. a future Initia1 
Public Offering (IPO). 

In these circumstances. given the substance of the transaction. the purchase method of accounting wil1 provide users of 
the financial statements with more relevant information than an approach in which only one of the pre-existing entities is 
prerented at fair value and the other one a t  book value as recommended.by IFRS 3.22 under the reverse acquisition method. 
The Management of the Company har made thir relection. conridering al1 the pertinent factr and circumrtances: - lt is more useful for future invertorr to apply an accounting method which would result in fair valuer being anributed 

to the asseti. iiabilities and contingent liabilities of the exirting burinesrer. and the recognition of goodwill. relating 
to al1 of those burinesser. The ure of book value for the mort imporrant segment - wholesale and fair value for the 
smallest segment - retail would impair the usefulness of the information provided to uren about the combination both 
comparability and reliability: 

IFRS 3 scopes out common control transactionr and did nor issue any guidance to  prescribe or ban the method applied 
in thir case; 

The accounting policy choren did not mirinform the public; the difference between reverse acquisition and fresh stam 
accounting is an adjurunent between goodwill and premium reserve. The value of the goodwill is tested yearly for 
impairment and any excess over the recoverable amount is  recognised ar an expenre in the profit and loss account. The 
nature of the business strongly encourages the use of fair value for both burinerrer. 

Thetwo operatingrubridiarier are in the pharma industry-wholerale and rerail distribution. While the retail diruibution. 
the smaller business i s  accounted at fair value, i.e. 60 miliion EUR. the wholesale business would not be allowed becaure, 
according to  IFRS 3.22. it is considered the acquirer and rhould be accounted in the consolidation a t  book value. 

If the Group had accounted for the business combination ar reverre acquirition. the following adjustmenu wouid have 

* 

been made to the financial information (other items not being affected): 

I 

, 
' ,  

Adjurtmentr 
EUR million 

3 I December 1006 3 I December 2006 
reverre acquirition ar prerented 

EUR miilion EUR milllon 

Gmdwiii 55 283 (228) 

Sharehoidee' Equiry 

Share capiral II 200 ( 1  89) 

Reverre acquirition premium 59 59 

Share premium 59 (59) 

Shareholder'r conteburion 3 3 

Tmnriation reserve 7 11 (5) 

Rerained earningr 34 9 25 

Tomi rharehoiderr' equiq i14 280 ( 166) 

Non-currenr iiabilirier 

Provirionr 6 i5 
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the period from 24 May 2006 

(All.amounts aie expressed in EUR'000;unlers 'othemire-stated) 

i *  

I 

i 

If die Gmup had accountcd for die burines combination under reverse acquirition. comparative information for 2005 prerenred in these 
canrolidated Snancial rtatemem would be tha t  of Mediplur only: 

2005 Medlplus 2006 Conrolidated 1006 conrolldated Ad,urtmentr 
Reverre Acqulrltion arprerented 0"lY 

EUR million EUR million EUR million EUR million 

biler 332 212 I20 105 

Openting co*u (309) (201) ( 108) ( 1  87) 

openting profit 23 II 12 18 

Financial rerulr (1) I (3) (4) 

Pmfir before taxation 21 12 9 14 

TaxdO" (4) (3) ( 1 )  (3) 

Pmrlt far the war 17 9 8 I 1  

Comparative cash flow statements under reverse acquisition 

2006 

EUR million EUR million EUR million EUR million 

Net cash fmm operaring activitier (8) I (9) 14 

Net cash wed in inrerting activitier (14) (14) (2) 

Net carh fmm financinn activitier 51 59 (81 I1 I1 

Net inrrease I (decreare) in cash and rarh equivalentr 29 46 (17) I 

Cash and cash equivalenu at beginning of the year ( 1 1 )  (29) 18 (12) 

Cash snd cash wuivalenu a t  end of year 17 17 

P 

The management conriderr rhat accounting lor rhe business combination under the reverse acquirition method would 'V 
impair the comparabiliry of the linancial porition. performance and cash flow of the enrity. Following the rertructuring of I 

the former ADP Antilier group. AD? NV har prerewed the rame operating structure and ruch comparativer wouid not ,2 
(42 reprerent faithfully the linancial porition. performance and cash flowr of the entity over the period. 
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stitutór 

I 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
Description of the business 

A&D Pharma Holdings NV and itr subsidiarier' (together "the Group") principal activities include the imporr. wholesale 
and retail dirtribution of pharmaceutical products. The Group'r íacilities are based in Romania. The parent company. A&D 
Pharma Holdings NV (ADP NV or"the Company") war incorporated ar a limited iiabilifycompany in Delft, rhe Netherlandr. 
on 24 May 2006. By means of the amendment of the artitier of arsociation dated 19 June 2006, the legal form of the 
incorporared limited liability company was changed into public company. The principal rubridiarier are dirclosed in Note 21 
to the Conrolidated Financial Statements. 

Ar at 31 December 2006 the Group have 3.173 employees (2.813 as at 24 May 2006). The regirtered office of the 
Company i s  Maninur Nijhoflaan 2.2624 ES Delft. The Netherlandr. 

On 24 May 2006, Sograno set up ADP NV. a joint-stock company incorporated and organized under the lawr of the 
Netherlandr. and made an in-kind contribution 10 itr share capital conrirting of the shares held in the A&D Pharma SRL 
holding the shares of Mediplur. Sensiblu and Ideapharm. 

Shareholders structure 
The rhareholderr of the Company ar at 3 I December 2006 were: 

Number of shares Shareholdim % 

Sograno BV. Nethedandr I17.WO.WO 58.5WO 

Defrin Investment Ltd 4.454.600 2.2273 

Nezik Trading L d  3.818.200 1.909 I 

Warrtield Inverrmencr Lrd 1.272.600 0.6363 

Mantin Ltd 4.454.600 2.2273 

titibank N.A. (Depositay) 69.oW.000 34.5000 

200.000.000 I O0 

The shareholder of the Company as a t  24 May 2006 was: 

Number of shares Shareholding X 

Sograno BV 2.500.000 I O0 

2.500.000 I O0 

The ultimate parent campany is Active Pharma Invert Limited. Cyprus. 

The perrons who held office dwing the year ended 3 I December 2006 were the íollowing: 

Chief Executive Oficer Dragos Dinu 

Florin Buligoanea Chief Financial Offlcer 

Chief Operaring Oflicer Wholerale Vivian Diaconercu 

Claudiu Opran Chief Operating Oficer Retail 

Chairman of the Board Dr. David Ebrworrh 

Non-Executive Director Ludovic Roben 

Michel Eid Non-Executive Director 

Roger Akoury Non-Executive Director 

Non-Executive Director Walid Abboud 

Chairman of Remuneration Comrnittee Michael Wemmr 

Urr Kamber Chairman of Audit Committee o 
c-3  



STATUTORY COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Balance Sheet 

Note 31 December 1006 14 May 1006 

EURO00 EURO00 

ASSETS 

~ 

Non-current asieti 

Finanrirl arrem . 3  281.926 260.oW 

28 1,926 2 6 0 . W  a 
Current receivabier 

Tradc and other reeivablei 2 16 

Cash rnd cash equivaienu 

16 

Current iiabiiitier 6 956 

956 

1940) Cument arretr minus current iiabiiitier 

~ 

Long term liabiiitier 5 950 

Sharehoiderr' equity 

Irrued capita 4 2oo.m 2.500 

Share premium 4 59.075 257.500 
b- 

- 'W Tmnrisrion reiewe 12.178 

Pmfit íor the war 8.783 _ I  

Totai rharehoiderr' equiry 280.036 260.004 cc' 

h' 
I Profit and toss account 

24 Mav 2006.3 i December 2006 

EUR' O00 -4 

Pmfit 01 participation interess aker mation 9.748 

Other income and u ~ e n r e r  aíter taxation 1965) 

Pmfit lor the p a r  8.783 
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from 14 May 2006 
(date Of incorDoration 

NOTESTOTHE STATUTORY COMPANY FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS 
1. GENERAL 

The company financial statements are prepared in accordance with Title 9 of Book 2 of the Netherlandr Civil Code. 
The Company uses the option provided in section 2362 (8) of the Netherlands Civil Code in that the principles for the 
recognition and measurement of assets and liabilities and determination of rerut (hereinafter referred to as principles lor  
recognition and me?surement) as applied in the conrolidated financial statements are alro applied in the company financial 
statements. Reference i s  made to the noter to the statutory consolidated financial statements for a dercripcion of the 
principles for recognition and measurement 

The Company's parent-only income statement har been prepared in accordance with section 2402 of the Netherlands 
Civil Code. 

For the information on group companies of AüD Pharma Holdings N.V. please refer to note 21 of the conrolidated 
financial smtements. 

2. TRADE A N D  OTHER RECEIVABLES 

The amount reprerentr a payment made in error CO Mr. Florin. ûuligoanea. Group CFO 

Ar ar I 5  May 2007 the entire amount has been repaid co the company. 

3. FINANCIAL ASSETS 

Investments in group companies are carried a t  net asret value, calculated according to the group accounting policies. 
Non-conrolidated panicipating intererts where the company har got no significant influence are carried at colt Iers any 
impairment losses. 

The financial assets consist solely of panicipating interesrs in group companies 

Movement in the net asret value war as follows: 

1006 

EUR'WO 

Balance a t  24 May 260.000 

Additions 

Shares of profit of panicipating in terem 9.748 

Translation differencer 12.178 

Dividend received 

Balance a t  31 December 18 1.916 

4. ISSUED CAPITAL 

The authorized share capital amounfs to Euro 220,000,000 divided into 220,000,000 ordinary shares of Euro 1.00 
nomina1 value each. The issue and fully paid up capital i s  Euro 200.000.000. 

For the movement schedule of issued capital. share premium. other reserves and profit for the year pieare refer to the 
rpecification of the consolidate statements of changes in equity for the lor  the reven month Deriod ended 31 December 
2006 included in the consolidated financial statements. 

5. LONG TERM LIABILITIES 

The long term liabilitier represent a loan group. 
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6. CURRENT LIABILITIES 

The currenf liabilities can be broken down as foliowr: 

I I December 2006 

EUR' Wo 

Accrucd expenser , 4w 

73 

TaXatiO" 19 

Other lirbiliticr I 2  

956 

Accrued expenser include audit feer due to HLB Den Hanog, KPMG, (eer for aiisrance to management in cascading 
objectiver 10 organization. inrurance premiums, and other professional feer. 

Current account shareholder comprirer an intra p u p  loan and share premium dirtribution due to Sograno BV. which 
is nor interest bearing. 

7. EMPLOYEES 

Dwing 2006 the company employed no personnel. 

As at 3 I December 2006 the Group har 3.173 employees (2.81 3 as at 24 May 2006). 

3 August 2007 

The Board 

Dr. David Ebrwonh 

Urr Kamber 

Michael Wemmr 

Walid Abboud 

Roger Akoury 

Michel Eid 

Ludovic Roben 

Dragos Dinu 

Florin Buligoanea 

Vivian Diaconercu 

Claudiu Opran 
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Statutory Conrolidaied Balance Sheeh-ar at 3 I: Decembe; 2006 
(Al1 amoÙnts are &presred in EUR '000. unless othemise stated) . .  - ~, i ..... ... " * I  

Note 3 I December 2006 24 May 2006 

Asiets 

Non-current arreti 

Inmngibie arrets 5 282.960 269.373 

Pmpercy. plant and equipmenr 4 35.592 22.370 

Financial fixed asseU 6 6.288 4.858 

Totai "o"-c"rre"t arretr 324,840 296.601 

Current asset* 

invenmries 7 63,455 35.403 

Receivabler 8 I3 1,636 i 03.505 

Cash and cash equivalentr 10 23.057 7.989 

Total cument arreh 218.148 146,897 

Cument liabilitier 

Short tem borrowingr 14 42.038 

Accounts payable. accnidr and orher liabilitier I1 165.651 I 14.264 

Finance lease 13 2.451 2.647 

Totai cument liabilitler 168, I02  158,949 

Current assets minus current liabilitier 50,046 (12.052) 

Provirionr 

Deferred cax 12 6.704 

Pmvirionr I S  14.966 14.303 

Totai provirionn 21,670 21.390 

7.087 e 
Non-Cument iiabiiitles 

Long t e m  payables 16 IS62 1.493 

Long term borrowingr 14 69.793 
~ 

Finance lease I 3  1,825 1.666 

Total non-current liabilitier 73,180 3,159 

Shareholderr' equlty 

Share capiml li 2W.000 2,500 

Share Premium 59.075 257,500 

Rerained earningr 8.783 

Translation refewe 12.178 

260'ooo 

Totd rhareholderr' equity 280.036 

c-7  The naes i to 28 form an integral pan of these Starumry Conrolidared Financial Statementr. 
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Statutory ConroMated Statementbf Income for &e &iód from 24 May 2006 
(date of incomorationi to 3 I Decembe; 2006 " ' ' ' '. 'd'.' 

(Ai1 arnounts are exprerred in EUR '000;unlerr othenvire-stated) 

Note 24 May 1006 - 3 I December 2006 

we* 212.039 

C - 8  

Cort of goods rold ( 155.12 i) 

Gmrr margin 56,918 

Genen1 rnd adminirmtive expenrer I8  (45.846) 

operating pmflt 11,072 

Financid incame 3.074 

Financial expenre (2.292) 

Flnancid result 19 782 

Profit befme taxation 11,854 

Taxarion 12 (3.071) 

Pmnt  foor the p a r  8.783 

b i c  earningr per share 23 €0.04 

Diiuted earningr per share 23 €0.04 

The notes I to 28 fmm an integnl part of these Sratur0i-y Conrolidated Financial Statemena. 



eriod from 24 May 2006 e 

24 May 2006 - 3 I December 2006 

Cash flowr from operating activities 

Pmfir before faxation 11.854 

Adjurtments for: 

Depreciation and amortilation 3.074 

Lorr on disporal of rangible and intangibls arsets (74) 

(1,153) (443) e Pmpeq. plant and equipment impaiment 

Interest income 

Interest expenre 2,698 

Opeatlng pmiìt before working capital changes 15,956 

Increare in rereivables and prepayments (34.626) 

Increaie in inventwies (28.052) 

Incmaie in wade and other payabler 49.083 

Changes In working capital (13.595) 

Tax paid (I ,177) 

Net cash fmm opeating activitier 1.184 

Cash flowr fmm investing actlvities 

Purcharer of property. plant and equipment (13,141) 

Pureharer of intangibles (I ,006) 

Acquirition of other subsidiader 

Pmceedr fmm r a k  of tangible and intangible srrets 803 

Interest received 233 

Net cash wed in investing activitier 

(273) o 
(I 3.384) 

Cash Row fmm Cnancing activitier 

Long rem Ioms 69.793 

Shon rem borrowingr (5.614) 

Lease payments (2.263) 

Share premium dirtribution (925) 

inrererr paid (2.291) 

Net cash fmm flnancing actlvitles 58.700 

rmm(ahcffecr - ( 178) 

Net increare in cash m d  cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equlvalentr a t  beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equivalent* at end of year (Note 9) 

46,321 

(19,118) 

17.194 

C - 9  The notes I to 28 form an integral part of these Sratutory Conrolidated Financiai Statements. 



(Al1 arnounts are exprerred in EUR ‘000;unlerr othemise-stated) 

Share Translation 
Retdned Earnlngr Share 

capital premium reserve 
Total 

2.500 257.500 
260,000 

97.500 (I 97.500) 
Converrion of share premium into the 
irrued rapital on Jme 28.2006 

Share prem,iup diruibution on October 
9. 2Ml6 (925) 

Pmfit for the year 8.783 8.783 

Tnnrlation reserve 12.178 12.178 

3 I December 2006 200.000 59.075 12.178 8.783 280.036 

The Group i s  not allowed to  declare and pay dividends without prior consent of Citibank (see Note 14) 

c -  10 The noter I to 28 fom an integral pan of these Statutory Conrolidared Financial Statements. 



at and for the period from 24 May 2006 

(Alïiniounts a& eipressëd in EUR ‘000;unlesr’otiiemisë~stated) 
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1. REPORTING ENTITY 

These conrolidated financial statements (alternatively referred to hereinaíter ar the ‘Yinancial statements.’) are presented 
by A&D Pharma Holdings NV (“ADP NV“ or the “Company”) and they incorporate the results of the Company and i t s  
rubridiaries (together the “Group” or separately the “Entity” o r  “Entities”). as detailed in Note 21. 

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OFTHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

2.1 Basis of preparation 

These cpnrolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with, and comply with, International Financial 
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) irrued by International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) ar adopted by European Union 
(“EU). 

e The consolidated financial statements are prepared bared on the rtatutory records of the Entities. which are maintained 
on a going concern basis under the hirtorical COS convention except for the derivative financial inruuments. mearured at 
fair value and financial insuuments measured a t  amortired COST 

The preparation of conrolidated financial statements in conformiry with IFRS requirer the ure of estimates and 
asrumptionr that affect the reported amounts of arsets and liabilitier 2nd disclosure of contingent arsets and liabilitier 
a t  the date of rhe financial statements and the reported amountr of revenues and expenrer during the reponing period. 
The ertimater and arrociated arrumptionr are bared on hirtorical experience and variour other factors that are believed 
to be rearonable under the circumstances. the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying 
values of asrets and liabilities thar are not readily apparent from other rources. The ertimater and underlying assumptions 
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisionr 10 accounting ertimater are recognired in the period in which rhe ertimare is 
revired ifthe revirion affects only that period. or in the period of the revirion and future periodr if the revirion affectr both 
current and future periods. Alrhough these ertimates are bared on management’s best knowledge of current events and 
actions. actual results may differ from these ertimates (Note 24). 

2.2 Functional currency 

Based on the primary economic environment in which die group entirier operate and taking into account the other 
factors as dercribed in IAS 21. the functional currencies of individual conrolidated Group entities were determined as 
follows: - ADP NV-EUR 

ADP SRL - functional currency war determined to be Romanian Leu (“RON) 

Mediplur - functional currency was determined to be Romanian Leu (“RON”) 

Senriblu - functional currency was determined to be Romanian Leu (“RON”) 

Ideapharm - functional currency was derermined to be Romanian Leu (“RON) 

Lauren - functional currency war determined to be Romanian Leu (“RON”) 

The RON is nor convertible outride Romania. The management of the Company har decided to adopt EUR as 

* 

* 

- 
- 
prerentation currency for the purpose of consolidated financial statements. 

The balance sheet items have been translated into EUR by dividing the RON amountr at the National Bank of Romania 
(“NBR”) official exchange rates ar a t  the date of each balance sheet. as set out below: 

3 I December 2006 24 May 2006 

R O N  I I EUR 3.3817 3.5386 

The statement of income items for the periods ended 3 I December 2006 were tranrlated uring the RON/EUR monrhly 
average exchange rates. The translation of the balance sheet and statement of income items inro the prerentation currency 
gave rire to a translation reserve ar defined in Note 3.9. Cash flows are tranrlated using appropriare average exchange rater. 
Componenu of equiry are not retranrlated. e 

c - I I  
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Such computationr and prerenration of amounts in EUR should not be construed as a reprerenration that the RON 
amounu have been or could be converted into EUR a t  these rater or any other rater. 

2.3 Going concern 

Management is satisfied that i t  is appropriate to prepare these financial statements on a going concern basis. 

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

3.1 Group accounting 

o) Subsidiaiiez 

Subsidiarier. which are those Entities in which the Group har an interest of more than one half of the voting rightr or 
othemise har power to govern the financial and operating policies. are consolidated. The existence and effect of potential 
voting rights that are prerently exercirable or prerently convertible are considered when arsesring whether the Group 
controls another entity. 

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control i s  transferred to the Group and are no longer consolidated 
from the date when control ceases. The purchase method of accounting i s  ured to account for the acquirition of subsidiarier 
(Note 28). 

The colt of an acquisition is measured by the fair value of the assets given up, shares issued o r  liabilitier undertaken at 
the date of acquisition plus COSIS directly auriburable to the acquirition. The excerr of the COL of acquisition over the fair 
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired is recorded as goodwill. 

b) Associotes and joint ventures 

Arrociates are entitier over which the Group generaliy har beween 20% and 50% of the voting rights. or over which 
the Group har significant influence. but which it does nor control. 

Joint ventures are those entities over whose activities the Group har joint control. established by contractual agreement 
and requiring unanimour consent for strategic financial and operating decisionr. Asrociater and joint ventures are accounted 
for using the equiv method (equiry accounted investeer). The consolidated financial statements include the Group's share 
of the income and expenser of equity accounted investees, after adjustments to align the accounring policies with those of 
the Group. from the date that significant influence or joint control commences until the date that Significant influence or 
joint control ceares. 

c) Acquisitions from entities under common control P 

'iJ , 
Q 

0 

Business combinationr ariring from transfers of interests in entities that are under the control of the shareholder that 
controls the Group are accounted for ar an acquisition a t  the date when business combinarion har occurred. The arsets and 
liabilities acquired are recognired at fair value (Note 27). 

d) Transactions eliminoted on consolidotion I 

h.! 
Intra-group balancer. and any unrealired income and expenser arising from intra-group transactions. are eliminated in C 2  

preparing the conrolidated financial statements. Unrealised gainr ariring from transactionr with equity accounted investees C3 
are eliminated against the invertment to the extent of the Group's interest in the investee. Unrealised lorses are eliminated '-.I 
in the Same way as unrealised gainr. but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment 

3.2 Segment reporting 

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group'r business segmentr. bared on the Group'r management and 
internal structure. Inter-segment pricing is  determined on an arm's lengrh basis. 

Segment results. arsets and liabilities include items directly attriburable to a segment as wel1 as thore that can be 
allocated on a rearonable basis. 

Segment capiral expenditure is the total c o s  incurred during the period to acquire segment assets that are expected e 
c -  I 2  
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to be "red for more than one period. 

Primary reporring format - business segments 

The Group comprises the following main business segments: 

Wholesale 

- Retail 

Secondary reporring format - geographicol segments 

The opentioh! activities of the Group are in Romania and accordingly no geographical segment is prerented 

3.3 Property, plant and equipment 

Property. plant and equipment i s  recorded a t  purchase or conrtrunion COSL 

Depreciation is calculated on the amounts of property. plant and equipment on a straight-line basis down to the asseu, 
estimated residual values: 

The depreciation periodr. which approximate the useful economic lives of the respective arsets. are as follows: 

Type. Useful life (years) 

Buildings 30-50 

Learehold improvements 3-10 

Computers and electronic equipment 3-5 

Motor vehicles and t ruck 3-5 

Finures and finingr 3-10 

Land i s  nor depreciated. 

Repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of income dwing the financial period in which they incur. The 
col t  of major renovations i s  included in the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that future economic benefits 
in exces of the originaily arresred standard of performance of the existing arret wil1 llow to  the Group. Major renovations 
are depreciated over the remaining ureful life of the related arset. Gains and losses ariring from the retirement of propeny. 
plant and equipment are included in the statement of income as incurred. 

e 
Al1 borrowing costs are expensed as incurred. 

Impairment 

At each reporring date the management asress as to whether there is any indication of impairment of propercy. plant 
end equipmenr If any such indication exirts. the management ertimates the recovenble amount which is determined as the 
higher of an asset's net selling price and i t s  value in use. In arressing value in use, the ertimated cash flows are discounted to 
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflectr current marker assessmentr of the time value of money and 
the rirks specific t o  the arret. The carrying amount i s  reduced to the recoverable amount and the difference is recognised as 
expenre (impairment 10s) in the statement of income. An impairment 101s recognired for an asset in prior yearr is reversed 
if there har been a change in the circumstances leading to the impairment. 

3.4 Intangible assets 

a) Goodwill 

Goodwill represents amounts arising on acquisition of subsidiarier. arrociates and joint ventures. Goodwill reprerentr 
the difference beween the tost of the acquirition and the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired. 

e 
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Goodwill is  rtated at colt Iers any accumulated impairment losser. Goodwill is allocated to cash generating units and is 
tested for impairment at each reporting date. 

Impninnent 

At  each reporting date the management arresses whether there is any indication of impairment of goodwill, If any 
ruch indication exirts. the management estimates the recoverable amount which is determined as the higher of net relling 
price and i s  value in ure of cash generating units it is allocated to. In asrersing value in use. the ertimared cashflows are 
discounted to their present value uring a pre-tax discount rare that reflecu current market assessments of the time value 
of money and the rirkr rpecific to the asset The carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable amount and the difference 
is recognired as expense (impairment lors) in the statement of income. An impaiment l os  in respect of goodwill is nor 
reversed. 

b) bands 

Acquired brands are capitalized on the balance rheer These brands are valued on acquirition by an independent valuer, 
uring a dircounted cash flow methodolok/ bared on management arrumptionr and ertimater regarding future revenue 
growrh. pricer. costs and economic factors in valuing a brand. These assumptionr reflect management's best ertimater but 
these estimater invoke inherent uncemintier. which may not be controlled by management 

No amortisation is charged on brand intangibler ar the Group believer that the value of these brandr is maintained 
indefinitely. The factors that result in the durability of brandr capitalired are that there are no material legal. regulatory. 
contractual. competitive. economic or other factors that limit the ureful life of these intangibler. 

Furthermore: 

The Group expects to acquire. hold and  upp port brandr for an indefinite period. The Group supports there brands 
through spending on consumer marketing acrorr the business and through significant investment in promotional  upp port. 
The brands capitalired are expected to be in longstanding and profitable marker rectors. 

The likelihood that market based factors could truncate a brand's life is relatively remote becaure the rize and market 
share of the brands in quertion. 

The brands are terted for impairment at  each reporùng date, irrerpective of whether there is an indication that the 
related arsets may be impaired. ar weli as whenever there is any indication that they may be impaired. Management ertimates 
the recoverable amount which is determined ar the higher of net relling price and the value in ure of the cash generating 
units it i s  allocated to. The carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable amount and the difference is recognired ar 
expense (impairment lors) in the statement of income. 

* 

c.L 

c) Pharmocies licenses w 
I 

Expenditure 10 acquire operaring licenser for pharmacier are capitalired at cost. c$ 
Licenrer are tested for impairment a t  each reporting date. Impairment terting i s  performed in a rimilar way to that of * 

N 
I 

brands and goodwill (ree paragraph above). Licenses are rtated a t  cost lesr any accumulated impairment losser. 

d) Computer licences ond software 

Expenditure to acquire licences and computer software is capitalired and amortised uring the straight-line method over V 
their ureful lives. normally I to 5 years. 

e) Impairment ofintangible assets 

Where an indication of impairment exists. the carrying amount of any inrangible asret is arsessed and. when impaired. 
the asrer is  written down immediately to its recoverable amount 

3.5 Investments 

The Group clarrified i s  invertments in debt and equity recurities into the following categorier: trading. held-to-maturity 
and available-for-de. The classiíication is dependent on the purpore for which the invertmenti were acquired. Management 
determines the clarsificarion of i ts invertrnents a t  the time of the purchase and re-evaluates such designation on a regular 
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basis. Investmentr that are acquired principally for the purpose of generating a profit from shon-term fluctuations in price 
are clarrified as trading investments and included in current assets; for the purpose of these financial statements short term 
is defined ar 3 months. Investmentr with a fixed rnaturity that management har the intent and abiiity t o  hold to maturity 
are classified as held-to-maturiry and are included in non-current assets. except for maturities within I2 months from the 
balance sheet date which are classified as current arsets. Investmentr intended to  be held for an indefinite period of time, 
which may be rold in response to  needr for liquidity or changes in interest rates. are classified as available-for-sale and are 
included in non-current arsets unless management har the exprerr intention of holding the investment for Iess than I 2  
months from the balance sheet date or unless they wil1 need to be sold to raise operating capital. in which case they are 
included in current arsets. 

Purchases and ralef of investments are recognized on the trade date, which is the date that the Group commits 
to purchase o r  sell the asser Cost of purchase includes tnnsaction costs. Trading and available-for-rale investments are 
subrequently carried at fair value. Held-to-maturity investments are carried a t  amortired cost uring the effective yield 
method. Realized and unreaiired gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of tnding and available-for-sale 
investments are included in the statement of income in the period in which they arise. The fair value of investments i s  
bared on quoted bid prices or amounts derived from cash flow modelr. Fair vaiues for unlirted equity securitier are 
estimated using applicable pricelearnings or pricelcash flow ratios refined to reflect the specific circumstances of the issuer. 
Equity securities for which fair values cannot be mearured reliably are recognized at COSI lesr impairmenr When recurities 
classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired the accumuiated fair value adjustments are included in the statement of 
income ar gains and losies from investment recurities. 

3.6 Inventories 

Inventories are rtated a t  the lower of c o s  and net realisable value. Cost is determined by the first-in, first-out (FIFO) 
method. Net realisable valw is the estimaced selling price in the ordinary course of business. Iers any selling expenses. When 
necessaty, provision i s  made for obsolete, slow moving and defective inventorier. 

3.7Trade receivables 

Trade receivabler are recognired initially at fair value and subsequently measured a t  amortired colt using the effective 
interest method. Iess provision for impairmenr A provision for impairment of trade receivabies is esrablirhed when there is 
objective evidence that the Group wil1 not be able to  collect al1 amounts due according to  the coliection terms of receivables. 
Significant financial difficulties of the debror. probabiiity t h a t  the debtor wil1 enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation. 
and default or delinquency in payments ar@ considered indicators that the tnde receivable is impaired. The amount of the 
provision is determined bared on management risk assessment of the trade receivables collectibility. 

3.8 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. For the purposer of the statement of cash flows. 
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash an hand. cash held a t  cal1 with bankr. other short-term highly liquid investments 
with original maturities of three months or Iers, and bank overdrab. In the balance sheet. bank overdníts are included with 
borrowings in current liabilitier. 

3.9 Shareholders' equity 

Share capital and Share Premium 

Ordinay and preferred shares are clarrified as equity. Any excers of the fair value of consideration received over the 
par value of shares irsued i s  recognired as a share premium and any deficit i s  deducted from share premium and retained 
earnings. if available. 

Translation reserve 

In translating the financial statements into EUR. al1 rerulting exchange differences are clasrified as equity. The main 
differences arise on the translation of income and expense items at the monthly average exchange rates and assets and 
iiabilities at the date of each baiance sheet closing rate. Components of equity are not revanslated. 
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Dividends 

The Group can only pay dividendr from im entitier rtatutory retained earnings and share premium, bared “pon financial 
statements prepared in accordance with local accounting regulationr. 

Dividends are recognised as a liability and deducted from equity at the balance sheet date only if they are declared 
before or on the balance sheet date. Dividends are disclosed when they are proposed before the balance sheet date or 
proposed or declared after the balance sheet date, but before the financial statements are authorised for issue. 

3.10 Deferred income taxes 

Deferred tax arretr’and liabilities are calculated in respect of temporary differencer using the balance sheet liability 
method. Deferred income w e i  are provided for al1 temporary diííerences arising between the tax baris of assets and 

es and their carying values for financial reponing purposes. A deferred fax asset is recorded only to the extent that 
it i s  probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised. 

Deferred tax assem and liabilities are mearured at  fax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is 
realised or the liability i s  renled, based on tax rates that have been enacted o r  rubrtantively enacted at rhe balance sheet 
date. 

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary diierences arising on invertments in subsidiarier and associates. except 
where the timing of the reverral of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that [he temporary 
difference wil1 not be reverred in the forereeable future. 

3.1 1 Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past eventr. and 
i1 is probable that  an oudIow of resources wil1 be required to settle the obligation. and a reliable estimate of the amount 
can be made. Where the Group expects a provision to be reimburred. for example under an insurance contracr, the 
reimbursemenr is recognired as a separate asset but only when the reimburrement i s  virtually certain. 

3.12 Leases 

Leases of propeny. plant and equipment where the Group har substantially al1 the risk and rewards of ownerrhip 
are clarsified as finance leases. Finance learer are capiralired a t  the inception of the lease a t  the lower of the fair M I U ~  of 
the leased propeny or the present value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is allocated beween the 
liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rare on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental 
obligations. net of finance charges. are included in other long-term payabler. The interest element of the finance cosm is  
charged to the income statement over the lease period. The propeq. plant and equipment acquired under finance leases i s  
depreciated over the rhorter of the ureful life of the arret or the lease term. 

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownerrhip are rerained by the lessor are clarrified as 
operating leases. Paymenu made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the ierror) are charged to the 
income statement on a straight-line baris over the period of the lease. 

3.13 Borrowings 

Al1 loans and borrowings are initially recognised a t  the fair value of the consideration received Iess directly attributable 
transaction tosts. The transaction C O S ~ S  incurred in irruing the liability are amortized over the life of the loan. 

After initial recognition. interest bearing loans and borrowings are subrequently measured at amortired colt using the 
eííective interest method any difference beween fair value of the proceeds (net of transaction cosu) and rhe redemption 
amount i s  recognised as interest expense over the period of the borrowings. 

3.14Accounts payable 

er for trade payables are carried a t  colt, which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the future lor  
goods and services received. whether or nor billed to the Group. After initial recognition, the Group measurer trade payable 
at  amortired tost uring effective interest method. 
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3.15 Foreign currency transactions 

Tranractions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functionai currencies of Group entitier at exchange 
rates a t  the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losser resuiting from the settlement of such transactions 
and from the translation at balance sheet date exchange rater of monetary assetr and liabilitier denominated in foreign 
currencies are recognised in the statement of income. 

3.16 Revenue recognition 

Revenue comprirer the fair value of the consideration received or receivabie for the sale of goodr and services in the 
ordinary course of the Group'r activities. Revenue is rhown net of vaiue added ~nx. returns. rebater and discounts. 

Revenue from the r a k  of goods is recognised when the significant rirks and rewardr of ownership of the goodr are 
tranrferred to  the buyer and when collection is reasonabiy assured. 

Sales of services are recognised in the accounting period in which the services are rendered. by reference to compietion 
of the specific transaction arressed on the basis of the actual service provided as a propomion of die total services to  be 
provided. 

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method. When a receivable 
is impaired. the Group reduces the carrying amount to i t s  recoverabie amount, being the estimared future cash flow 
discounted a t  original effective interest rate of the instrument. and continuer unwinding the discount ar interest income. 
interest income on impaired loanr i s  recognised uring the originai effective interest rate. 

3.1 7 Employee benefits 

The Group. in the normai course of business. makes payments to the Romanian State on behalf of i t s  employees. 
Al1 employees of the Group are members of the Romanian State pension plan. Al1 ruch contributionr to the mandatory 
government pension rcheme are expenred when incurred. The Group does not operate any other pension rcheme or port 
retirement benefit plan and. consequently, har no obligation in respect of pensions. In addition. the Group i s  not obliged to 
provide further benefits to current and forrner employees. 

3.18 Financial instruments 

Non-derivative financial instruments comprire investmentr in equity and debt secwitier. trade and other receivables. 
cash and cash equivalents, ioans and borrowingr, and trade and other payables. 

e Non-derivative íinanciai instruments are initialiy recognised at fair value plus, for inrtruments not a t  fair value through 
profit or loss. any directly attributable transaction COSC except as dercribed below. Subsequent to  initia1 recognition non- 
derivative financial instruments are rneasured as dercribed in die notes. 

Fair value is the amount for which afinancial instrument could be exchanged between knowledgeable and willing partier 
in an a d s  length transaction. The arnounu dirclored in the financial statements approximate their fair value. 

The Group ures financial instruments that are subject t o  fluctuations in foreign currency exchanges (Note 26(ii) ) for 
the íinancial rirkr faced by the Group. 

Changes in the fair value of a derivative hedging instrument derignated ar a fair value hedge are recognised in profit or 
lorr. The hedged item also is rtated a t  fair value in respect of the risk being hedged, with any gain o r  loss being recognised 
in profit or loss 

3.19 Determination of fair vaiues 

A number of the Group's accounting policier and dirclorures require the determination of fair vaiue. for both financial 
and non-financial arrets and liabilitier. Fair valuer have been deteermined for measurement and I or dirclosure purporer 
bared on the following methods. Where appiicable. further information about the arsumptions made in determining fair 
values is disclosed in the noter specific to that asret or liability. 
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Intangible ossets 

The fair value of other intangible assets is based on the discounted cash flows expected to be derived from the w e  and 
eventual sale of the assets as detailed in Note 5. 

Trade ond other receivables 

The fair value of rrade and other receivables is ertimated as the present value of future cash fiowr. discounted at  the 
market rate of interest at the reporting date. 

Derivatives . .  
The fair value of forward exchange contracts i s  based on their listed market price. if available. If a lirted market price i s  

not availabie. dien fair value is estimated by discounring the difference beween the contramal forward price and the current 
forward price for the residual maturiv of the contract using a risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds). 

Nonderivative finoncial liobilities 

Fair value. which is determined for disclosure purposer. i s  calculated bared on the present value of future principal and 
interest cash flows. dircounted at  the market rate of interest at the reporting date. For finance.leares the marker rate of 
interest is detemined by reference co similar lease agreements. 

3.20 Earnings per share 

Purruant to IAS 33. earningr per share (“EW) are calculated by dividing the profit or loss allocared to the rhareholders 
of the Group by the weighted average number of shares ourstanding dwing the fircal period. 

The weighted average number of ordinary shares outsranding dwing the period is the number of ordinary shares 
outrtanding a t  the beginning of the period. adjuned by rhe number of ordinary shares issued dwing the period muitipiied 
by a time - weighting factor. 

Dilution is a reduction in earnings per share or an increase in loss per share resulring from the assumption that 
convertible instruments are converted. that options or warrants are exercired. or that ordinary shares are issued upon the 
ratisfaction of specified conditionr. The objective of diluted earnings per share is consistent wirh that of basic earnings per 
share, namely to provide a measure of the interest of each ordinary share in the performance of an entity. 

3.21 Recent accounting pronouncements 

(o) Adoption afstandords efective fom incarporation date II 

-4 , 
mz, 
0 

As ar 24 May 2006, the Company adopted the IFRSs below. The financial statements have been amended as required. in 
accordance wirh the relevant requirements. 

IAS 19 (Amendment), Employee Benefits 

* IAS 39 (Amendment). Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of Forecart Intracompany Transaaions 

IAS 39 (Amendment). The Fair Value Option 

IAS 39 and IFRS 4 (Amendment). Financial Guarantee Contracts ‘...I 

* IFRS I (Amendment). Fint-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards and IFRS 6 (Amendment). 
Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources 

IFRS 6, Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources 

IFRIC 4. Determining whether an Arrangement containr a Lease 

IFRIC 5. Rightr to Intererts ariring from Decommirsioning. Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds 

* 

* 

* 
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The adoption of the new or amended rtandards did nor have a significant impact on the Company'r financial 
statements 

(b) Adoption ofstandards efective from I januoiy 2007 

Cemin new standardr. amendmentr and interpretationr to exirting rrandards that have been publirhed are mandatoiy 
for the Group'r accounting periodr beginning on or after I January 2007 or later periodr but which the Group har not early 
adopted. ar followr: 

- IFRS 7 Financial Instrumentr: Disclorurer - The Standard wil1 require increared disclosure about the rignificance of 
financial inrtruments for an entity'r íinancial porition and performance, 2nd qualitative and quantitative dirclosurer on 

' the nature and extent of rirkr. 

- Amendment to IAS I Prerentation of Financial Statementr - Capital Disclorurer - Ar a complimentary amendment 
ariring from IFRS 7 (ree above), the Standard wil1 require increased disclosure in respect of the Group'r capital. 

IFRS 8 Operating Segmentr (effective from I January 2009). The Standard requirer segment disclosure bared on the 
componentr of the entity that management monitors in making decirionr about operating maners. Operating regmenu 
are componentr of an entity about which separate financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by the 
chief operating decision maker in deciding how to allocate resources and in arrerring performance. Thir rtandard which 
becomer mandatory lor  the Gmup'r 2009 financial statemenu is nol expected co have any impact on the financial 
statemenu. 

IFRIC 7 Applying the Rertatement Approach under I4S 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economier (effective 
lar  annual periodr beginning on or after I March 2006) addresrer the application of IAS 29 when an economy firrt 
becomer hyperinflationary and in particular the accounting for deferred tax. IFRIC 7 is not relevant t o  the Group'r 
operationr as the Group does not have the currency of a hyperinflationary economy ar its functional currency. 

IFRIC 8. Scope of IFRS 2 (effective for periodr beginning on o r  after I May 2006, that i s  from i January 2007) The 
interpretation stateer that IFRS 2 also applies to tranractionr in which the entity receiver unidentifiable goodr or services 
and that ruch items rhould be measured ar the difference beween the fair value of the share-bared payment and the 
fair value of any identiíiable goodr or services received (or to be received). 

IFRIC 9, Reasrerrment of Embedded Derivativer (eiíective lor  annual periodr beginning on or after 24 May 2006). The 
interpreration stater that an entity rhall arses whether an embedded derivative i s  required to  be reparated from the 
hort contract and accounted for ar a derivative when the entity firrt becomes a party to  the contract Subrequent 
rearrerrment is prohibited unlerr there is a change in the t e r m  of the contract that significantly modifier the cash flowr 
that otherwire would be required under the contract, in which case reasressment is required. IFRIC 9 i s  not relevant 
t o  the Group'r operationr. 

IFRIC 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment - The Interpretation prohibitr the reverral of an impairment lorr 
recognired in a previour interim period in respect of goodwill. invertments in equity inrtrumentr or financial arretr 
carried at COIT 

IFRIC I I IFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Tranractionr - The Interpretation requirer a share-bared payment 
arrangement in which an entity receiver goodr ar services ar conrideration for i ts own equityinrtrumentr to be 
accounted for ar an equity-renled share-bared payment transaction. regardlerr of how the equiry instruments needed 
are obrained. It also provider guidance on whether share-based payment arrangementr. in which supplierr of goodr or 
services of an entity are provided with equity inrtrumentr of the entity's parent. rhould be accounted lor  as cash-settled 
o r  equity-renled in the entity'r financial statements. 

IFRIC I 2  Service Concerrion Arrangementr - The Interpretation provider guidance to private rector entitier on cemin 
recognition and mearurement issues that arise in accounting for pubiic-to-private service concerrion arrangementr. 

Unlerr otherwise dercribed above, these new standardr and interpretationr are not expected to  rignificantly affect the 

a 

* 

* 

* 

a 
- 
* 

* 

Group'r financial statements, 

a 
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4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Total 
Land & Learehold ComPUtelS Motor Fixturer & Arretr in course 

vehicler fitting. of construction 
8 electronk 

equipment building. improrementr 

5.734 4.557 1.634 4.782 1.334 4.329 22.370 Openlng net book amount 
ar of 24 May 2006 

Translation diKyencer 258 I89 55 165 53 199 919 

Additions 512 47 746 1.848 565 11.649 15.367 
~ 

Transfen 824 1.195 29 I92 338 (2.578) 

Impairmcnt 369 13 61 - 443 

Cloring net book m o m t  7,130 5,397 1.960 5,484 2,038 13,583 35.592 

A t  31 December 2006 

Cort 7.320 8.712 4,043 8.146 3.007 13.583 44.81 I 

Accumulated depreciation ( 1  90) (3.315) (2.083) (2.662) (969) - (9.219) 

7, I30 5,397 1.960 5.484 2,038 13.583 35.592 N e t  book vdue IS of 3 I 
December 2006 

Arreu under construction reprerent mortiy the buiiding of new head office in Mogoroaia (EUR 12.128 thourand 
including the automatic warehouring ryrtem). the building of new warehourer in Craiova (EUR 621 thourand) and lasi (EUR 
394 thourand) and improvements made at the 29 new ieared pharrnacier which had nor been opened until after the period 
end. The new head office in Mogosoaia har been operational from February 2007. P 

W Leasehold improvementr include services from related parties capiralised in amount of EUR 1.950 thourand. 

Bank borrowingr (Note 14) are recured over buiidings and land with a net book value of EUR 5.367 thourand (24 May c' 
I 

2006 EUR 5,734 thousand). <i) 

be relocated. cr? 

I 

The impairment on ieasehold improvemenu relates to the arrerr existing in some pharmacier which are intended to t.;, 

,Ti 
Included above are ieased asrets (mainly electronic equipmenr. motor vehicler and trucks). where rhe Group i s  a lessee 

-4 under a finance lease ar follows: 

3 I December 2006 24 Ma" 2006 

Cort - capiralired finance leaser 10.431 9.227 

Accumulared depreciation (3.235) (2.691) 

N e t  bookraluearo~3111U2006 7.196 6,536 
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(date of incorDoration> to 3 ,  Decem&e;2006 Ar e: 

(Al lämounts are expresred in EUR ‘000, unlesr othemise-stated) 

5. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

Bland Software 
Senriblu and other 

Goodwill Licenres Total 

A t  14  May 2006 

Opening net k o k  amount 220.036 46,761 1.654 922 269.373 

Tmnslation reserve 10.210 2, I70 65 26 12.471 

Additions 405 I .M16 1.41 I 

Disporair (6) (6) 
Deweciation charne (289) (289) - . .  . .  
Cloring net book amount 230,65 I 48.93 I 1,719 1,659 282.960 a - 
A t  31 December 1006 

cort 130.651 48.93 I 1.168 2.419 184.169 

Accumulated depreciation (449) (760) (1.2CQ) 
N e t  book vduo 230,65 I 48.93 I 1,719 1,659 181,960 

Goodwill was computed as followr: 

The vdue of ADP SRL ermblirhed by the Campany (See Note 12) 260,CCiJ 
Les: Fair vdue of net =set( acquired (see table beiow) (39.964) 

Goodwill ar at 14  May 1006 210.036 

Add Goodwill in Mediplus Exim from the acquirition of Lauren Finsnce IFN SA 405 

Translation reserve 10.210 

Goodwill DI at 3 I December 1006 130.65 I 

The fair value of the net assets of A&D Pharma SRL as at 24 May 2006 i s  as follows: 

Property. plant and equipmenr 22.370 

Inmngibler 49.333 

Receivabler and other arreU 108.360 

I”W”to+S 35.403 

Cash 7,989 

Payabler ( 130,053) 

Interest-baring debt (46.35 i) 
Deferred tax (7.087) 
N e t  Arsets 39,964 

Ar at 3 I December 2006. for impairment purposer. management har allocated goodwill to the Group’s two main cash 
generating units. Mediplus k i m  SA EUR 195,351 thourand as at 3 I December 2006 and Senriblu SRL EUR 35.300 thourand 
as a t  31 December 2006. Goodwill war allocated taking into account the enterprire value asrersed by the independent 
valuer for each entity and i t s  net assets upon being acquired. 

As at 24 May 2006, this Group acquired i t s  only brand (“Senriblu”). which har an indefinite economic life in accordance 
with management’s ertimation. The brand was valued by an independent valuer, uring a discounted cash flow merhodology 
bared on management arrumptionr and ertimates regarding future revenue growth. pricer. miti and economic factors. 
The discount rate ured in the computationr war ertimated at 15%. by the SCOR Interbrand and SCOR Brand Finance 
approaches. 
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a t  and for the period from 24 May 2006 

(All.amounti are expressed'ln- EUR'OOO;Ünlersóthëi+isë~s~ted) 

The acquired goodwill representr a rum of non-quantifiable intangible arretr ruch ar: 

Leading porition in Romanian pharmaceutical wholerale and retail. a market of EUR 1.563 million and with a compound 
annual growth rare of 3 I% pa. This high gromh rate is driven by the rtrong economic growth further supported alro by 
the recent EU memberrhip 

- 

- Proven management track record 

ADPr management has a proven track record of delivering pro0cable growth and conristently increaring marker share. 
ADPr management team har been involved with the Group rince 1996 and har managed the business independently of 
the founding rhareholderr rince Juiy 2002. Under the rupervirion of the current management team. ADP har (i) become 
the leading pharmaceutical wholeraler and retailer in Romania. (ii) achieved national coverage in both the wholesale and 
retail marketr. (iii) introduced variour innovative services for both rupplierr and clientr in wholesale. (i") introduced the 
loyalty card rcheme lar Senriblu customers and (v) undemken the Orrt major private pharmacy chain acqu 
pharmacy retail marker in Romania through the acquisition of Ideapharm. 

Mediplur' conrumer healthcare divirionr and value added service 

Mediplur is  diiíerentiated from traditional wholeralerr due to its conrumer healthcare raler divirionr which provide 
contract marketing services and promote OTC brandr of international producers generating higher grorr marginr than 
the oaditional wholerale business. Mediplus alro provides a wide range of value added services 10 both producers and 
iu pharmacy clienu such as free pharmacy software. pharmacy refurbirhment services and pharmacist training. 

Vertical integration: xrong rynergier on both revenues and costs 

There are significant rtrong rynergier between the wholerale and retail burinerrer. Revenue synergier arise from the 
improved insight gained by Mediplur via Senriblu into consumer behaviour and segmentation. which enabler Mediplus to 
offer greater value added services co i ts  key supplierr. Cort rynergier are generated by higher operationr efficiency due 
co vertical integration. For example. fewer field rales force visiu are required for Senriblu. which meanr that rales and 
marketing corts are reduced. Invoice processing colts and time are allo reduced. Mediplur provider for Sensiblu with 
warehouring facilitier. logistics infraruucture. the head office building and other central cosu. 

As a t  31 December 2006 management terted goodwill. brandr and licenrer. as wel1 as non-current fixed arrets for 

* 

impairment (ree Note 24 (iv)). 

Pharmacy licence 

exirting operating licencer to open new pharmacier. 
Licencer reprerent mainly the COL of the legal entitier acquired by Senriblu SRL dwing the years. in order CO obtain their 

c.L 

-J The iife and the conditions for obtaining a pharmacy licenre are regulated under article 15 of the Norm approved by 
the Order no. 6261 2001, irrued by the Romanian Minister of Heaith. modified and completed by the Order no. I 1961 2004. 
Anicle I 5  rtipulater that the pharmacy licenrer obtained aker the enforcement of rhe Order no. I 199 are to be permanent. 

I 

under the amendment of prererving the initia1 conditions thar have originated the authoriration of ruch a licenre. 

regulation stater they wil1 be re-authorized. under the provisions of the Order no. I 199. 

ia 

In respect to the licenses previously obrained. having a limited life of 5 years according to the Order no. 626, rhe new I..! 

Q 
o 
'4 

I 

Considering the changes in legislation mentioned above. and bared on the fact rhat no licenre war cancelled rince the 
Company's foundation, the management har decided to cease the amortiration of the current pharmacy licenses. 

Acquisition of Lauren Finance IFN SA 

On 18 July 2006. the Group acquired 99.67% of Lauren Finance IFN SA ("Lauren") as follows: 94.97% from Gemira 
Invertmenu Ltd (related party) and 4.69% from otherr. lor  the amount of EUR 450 thourand plus 2.3% of Lauren'r monthly 
rales for a t  least 5 years. rtarting I January 2007. 

Lauren war incorporated in 2004. and its object of activity is financial intermediation. specifically isruing of credit cards. 

At  the date of acquiririon, Lauren'r total rtatutory turnover was EUR 8 thourand and the net los war EUR 28 thourand. 
on date are EUR 72 thourand. Ar at year-end. Lauren'r net mler are in amount of EUR I I rhourand 
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(All-amounti $e expreisëd in~EUR'000;~unlëss~otherwisë~stated) 

and the net assets are a t  the level of EUR 42 thourand 

Ar at 3 I December 2006 the National Bank of Romania ("NBR") did nor give an official answer to the request to include 
Lauren in the General Renister of Non-Bankinn Financial Inrtitutionr. the Dartier have wreed to extend the acquirition " ~ 

agreement untii a decision wil1 be formulated by NBR 

6. FINANCIAL FIXED ASSETS 

3 I December 1006 14 May 1006 

I""e*tme"D 57 10 

Long term uade receivabler 4.365 3.071 

Health Inw~ance Houses receivabler 1.562 

Other 304 284 e 
6.288 4.858 

As at 31 December 2006, al1 available for sale securities are carried at cost because rhey are not publicly traded and 
management of the Group i s  not able to measure reliably their fair value. 

As at 31 December 2006. the carrying vdue of long-term receivabler approximater their fair value of EUR 6.409 
thourand (24 May 2006 EUR 4,870 thousand). 

As at 3 I December 2006 amortired cost was computed bared on an effective weighted average interest rate of 8.57% 
(I 0.80% as at 24 May 2006). 

Bank borrowings (Note 14) are secured over EUR 4.365 rhourand from the above long term trade receivabler 
balance. 

Following a three year analyris of receivables. it was determined rhat from the total population of curtomerr with 
outstanding amountr ageing 60 dayr from the sale date. approximately 10% are "carhed after a period longer than I year. 
This amount (EUR 4.365 thousand) was reclarsified as long term receivables. 

As a t  3 I December 2006, the Health Inrurance Houses receivable balance in amount of EUR 1.562 thourand (as a t  24 
May 2006 EUR 1,493 thousand) consists of amountr due from Health Inrurance Houses for sales of items subsidired by 
the Romanian State. sales which exceeded the ceilingr set out in the contractual agreements concluded by Ideapharm SA 
with +e Health Inrurance Houses for the year ended 3 I December 2005. Since the raler were in excerr of the contractual 
agreements. ar a t  the date of this report the Health Insurance Houses do not recognize these amountr. However. these long 
term receivabler from Health Insurance House are covered by a warranty undertaking from GlaxosmithKline 5RL (GSK 
Group - Note 16). 

e 
According to the acquirition contract of Ideapharm SA, GSK Group must cover al1 rhe uncollected receivables from 

Health Inrurance House. which were outstanding a t  the acquirition date. 

In case the Health Insurance House wil1 nat pay its outsranding debts towards the Company within a period of 3 yearr. 
GSK Group wil1 compenrate these amountr with the debu of the Company. 

7. INVENTORIES 

3 I December 1006 14 May 1006 

Gmdr held for d e  64.827 36.071 

Pmvirion for slow moving and obrolere inventov (1.372) (668) 

63,455 35,403 

Bank borrowings (Note 14) are secured over EUR 63,136 thousand from the above inventories. (24 May 2006 EUR 
35.403). 
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a 

8. RECEIVABLES 

3 I December 1006 14 May 1006 

Tnde receivabler 115.841 93,161 

Arnounu due h.om related partier (Note 20) 6.487 4.177 

Irnmiment ior receiuabler (2.5411 (1.5881 

Ocher current arreu (Note 9) 11.849 7.755 

131,636 103,505 

Trade receivables amonised cost was computed based on an effective weighted average interest rate of 4.43% p.a. as a t  

. .  

3 I December 2006 (24 May 2 0 0 6  4.04%). 

Bank borrowingr (Note 14) are secured over EUR I 19,770 thousand from the above trade receivables balance. (24 May 
2 0 0 6  EUR 95.992). 

The fair value of trade receivables (including related panier) ar at 3 I December 2006 and 24 May 2006 i s  EUR 120.1 I 3  
thousand and EUR 96,894 thourand. rerpectively. 

9. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 

3 1 December 1006 24 nay 2006 

Preoavrnent3 4.886 1~540 

VAT recoverable 3,505 2.239 

Ober state receivabler 1.384 23 I 

L a n s  receivable fmm wrmmers 733 I.W2 

Arnounu receivable fmm shareholden (NOR 20) 587 I 

Advancer fo IuDDliers 181 825 

Sundv debfon. net 35 I 1.446 

A m a n t s  due kom related oanier INore 201 122 47 I 

11,849 7.755 

In prepayments the Group har included various formr of discounts granted in advance to clients. 
c 

10. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS w 

31 December 2006 1 4  May 1006 a' 
Cash and bank in RON I, 17,127 7.235 1 

Cash and bank in foreign currency 67 61 
c9 

17.194 7.296 9 
Resvicted cash 5.863 693 '% 

23,057 7.989 

As at 3 I December 2006 the value of short-term deporits included within cash and bank in RON war EUR 14.5 million. 
and the weighted average effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 3.36% p.a. As at 24 May 2006 there were 
no short-term deposits. 

Rank borrowings (Note 14) are secured over EUR 589 thousand from the above cash baiance (24 May 2006 bank 
borrowings are recured over al1 cash accounts). 

For the purpose of the cash iìow statement. the cash and cash equivalents comprise the foilowing: 
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(All-amoünts are ëxpresrëd’in’ EUR‘OOO; unlers otiiëwire-stated) 

3 I December 2006 1 4  May 1006 

Cash and bank balancer 23.057 7.989 

Lerr rerwirted cash 15.863) 1693) 

Bank overdrafrr (Nore 14) (36,424) 

11,194 (29,128) 

11. SHARE CAPITAL and SHARE PREMIUM 

The statutory irrued share capital and share premium were contributed as set out below: 

Share citpitd Share premium 
(EUR ‘000) (EUR ‘000) 

Date 

In-kind contribution by bgrano BV of shares in ADP SRL Msy 2006 2.500 257.500 

Conversion oithe share premium inm the irrued share capiral J””e 2006 197.500 (197.500) 

Share premium diruibution October 2006 (925) 

200.000 59.015 

The company’r authorired share capital amounrs to EUR 220.000 dividend int0 220,000,000 ordinary shares with a 
nomina1 value of EUR I each. The number of shares isrued and fully paid up a t  3 I December 2006 amounted to 200.000,000 
(24 May 2006 2,500,000). 

The shares of ADP SRL, contributed by Sograno BV int0 the share capital of the Company, have been valued by an 
independent valuer using the marker compariron approach, whereby price data (“multiples”) for shares of rimilar companies 
which are traded in public markets (the “Comparable Companier”) were applied to the Entities’ financial data to estimate 
their marketable value. Ar value measuresi the valuer wed pricelearnings. pricelsaler. price/EBITDA. and price1EBIT ratios 
as of the valuation date. The Comparable Companies ured in developing these ratior were drawn from the rame indurtry 
ar the Entitier. 

For the purpores of these financial statements drawn up under IFRS, the fair value of the shares of ADP SRL was 
estimated at 260.000. which remlts in a share capital of the Company of 200,000 and share premium of 59.075 ar at 31 
December 2006. 

12. TAXATION 

2006 

Income fax expenre - CuTrent 3.757 

Deferred fax (income)/expenre (686) 

Income tax 3,011 

The Romanian subridiaries accrue income tax at the rare of 16% on profitr ar at 31 December 2006 computed in 
accordance with rhe Romanian ~ a x  iegislarion. 

The profit before faxation for financial reporting purporer is reconciled to the total rax expenre ar follows: 

2006 

I 1.854 Pmfir before fax charge 

Tax calculated at  domertic r a  ratei appiicable to profiu in the rerpective counwier 1.097 

Tax effect of items which are not deductible or arserrabie for faxation DUTDOS~S 

Non-deductible ex~enrer 962 

Other non-temporary adiurmentr 212 

3,071 a Income tax 
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Deferred tax 

Deferred fax assetslliabilities arke from the Romanian subsidiarier operations. These rubridiaries are subject 10 the 
statutory fax rate of 16% on raxable profits. Deferred fax asrets/liabilities are measured at the enacred rtatutory effective 
fax rate of 16%. The net effect of the change on deferred fax balances recognised as at 3 I December 2006 is  reflected in 
the statement of income for the period then ended. 

Curnulatlve Deferred tax arreti ternpoary 

dlfferencer 

Deferred tax arred 
(llablllty) 

Curnuletlve 
ternporary 
differenccr (liablll*) 

Invenwner 7.830 1.253 4.875 780 

(3444) 1551 
brrowingr 

Payablar and oher accmals (13.085) (2.094) (10.669) (I ,707) 

7.892 1.263 5.875 940 Delerred raxzirrerforrratuwr)i unured 
losi relief 

Brand (48,922) (7.828) (46.761) (7.482) 

Deferred tax arret mf recognised 

Deferred rax arrerl(liabi1ity) (41.892) (6,704) (44.291) (7,087) 

The movement in deferred fax liability balance is as foliowr: 

Deherred tax (llab1llty)farret 
i" 

'4 

,a 
Deferred tax (expenre)/incorne 6136 ?i, 
24 May 2M)6 (7.087) , 

I 

Tranrlation reserve (303) I L  

3 I December 2006 

v 
In the context of the Group's current structure. fax losser and current fax assets of the different companies may nor 

be set off againsr current fax liabilities and taxable profits of orher companies and. accordingly. taxes may accrue even when 
there i s  a net consolidated fax loss. Therefore. a deferred tax asset of one of rhe companies is not offset against die deferred 
fax liability of another company in the Group 
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Noter to the Statutory Conroiidated' Finincial Statementi'ar at and for the period from 24 May 2006 
(date of incor&ation) to 3 I DeC6mbek 2006 '.' ' '- - ' -  -'-li ' 
(Ai1 amounh are expresred in EUR '000;~unlesiöthemise~rtated) 

13. FINANCE LEASE 

Finance lease liabilitier - minimum lease payments: 

3 I December 1006 1 4  May 2006 

Gmrr obligarionr under finance Ieaies 

Lerr than I year 2,694 2,904 

Beween I year and 5 wan 1.924 1.771 

4.618 4.675 

Future finance charges (342) (362) 

Present value of finance lease liabiiitier 4,176 4.313 

The present value of finance lease liabilitier i s  ar follows: 

31 December 2006 14  May 2006 

Les than I year 2.45 I 2.647 

Beween I ~ear  and 5 wars 1.825 1.666 

Prerent vdue of finance ieare liabiiitier 4.176 4.313 

The carrying amounts of lease obligations approximate their fair value, 

14. BORROWINGS 

As a t  I 3  July 2006. rhe Company har contracted rhe syndicated loan with Citibank. The balance as at 3 I December 2006 
is  ar followr: 

3 I December 2006 

CiTIEANK - EUR (Syndicated Lom) 71.718 

Prepaid feer - Iers than i year (745) 

Prepaid feer - beween I year 2nd 5 yearr (I ,180) 

69,793 

Long term loanr are presented as follows: 

Lender Maturiîy Interest 3 I December 1006 

CiTIBANK - Faciliry A 3 I July 201 I EURIBOR 6m + 1.95% p.a. 4.0M) 

CITIBANK - Facility 82 3 I July 2009 EURIBOR 3m + 1.7% p.a. 50.580 

CITIBANK - Faciliry B I 3 I July 2009 EURIBOR 3m + I .7% p.a. 17.138 

71.718 
~~~~ ~~ ~~~ 

Thir financing facility replaced the overdraft facilitier provided by HVB Bank and ING Bank 

The bank has agreed to split the total facility as followr: 

Facility A -capital expenditure requirementr and/or repayment of existing indebtednerr of any member of the Group. 
over a period of 5 yearr: e * 
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Faciliry BI  - working capital requirements andlor repayment of exirting indebtednesr of any member of the Group 
(revolving). over a period of 3 yearr; 

Facility 02 -capital expenditure requirements andor repayment of exirting indebtednerr of any member o l f  the Group. 
over a period of 3 yearr; 

Facility 83 -irruance of letters ofguarantee CO the extent required in the ordinary course of the business of any member 
of the Group. over a peiod of 3 yearr; 

Limitationr and utilisationr: 

The maximum amount can be utilired for íacillry A is EUR 10 million a t  the date of the agreement; 

The maximum amount that can be utilired for facility 02 is EUR 45 million; 

The maximum amount of al1 letters of guarantee irrued under facility B3 rhall not exceed EUR 10 million; 

The maximum total amount that can be utilired for faciliry B is EUR 90 million at the date of the agreement. 

The Citibank Loan Agreement containr cenain affirmative covenantr. including. without limitation. certain financial ratio 
covenants CO be obrerved and. in rome cases, rertrictions on dividend payments, unlerr a cemin debdEBITDA n t i o  is 
me t  

* 

* 

* 

Shon term borrowingr and bank overdrafu are analyred below: 

24 May 2006 

HVB BANK - EUR 15.420 

ING BANK- EUR 7.1 18 

CITIBANK- EUR 3.886 

Total Overdraft 36.424 

SOGRANO - EUR (Short ferm lom) 5.6 I 5  

42.039 

Detailed bank overdnftr and rhon  term loanr are presenred ar followr: 

Lender Maturlty Interest 24 May 20064 

, 
3 I August lW6 EURIBOR 3m + 3% p.a. '5.W? 

HVB BANK - EUR 
Mediolus k i m  SRL 

ca 
3 I August 2W6 Overnight RBOR + 3% p.a. 1.109 

3 I August 2W6 

HVB BANK - EUR 
Senriblu SRL 

HVB BANK - R O N  
Mediplur SRL 

r v  
9.3 I I' Overnight RBOR + 3% p . ~  - 

'+I 

3 I August 2W6 BUBOR Im +I.S%p.a 7.1 184 ING BANK- EUR 
Senriblu SRL 

30 JuIr 2006 Overnighr EURIBORI 1.7% p.a 3.886 CITIBANK- EUR 
Senriblu SRL 

Bank overdnfrr 36,414 

30 June 2006 9% 5.334 

30 June lW6 9% 28 I 

SOGRANO - EUR (Short term lom) 
Mediplur k i m  SRL 

SOGRANO - EUR (Short term lom) 
Senriblu SRL 

42.039 
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There are no rhon-term borrowingr payable by the Group ar a t  3 I December 2006. 

Overdraft I war contracted with HVB Bank Romania under an umbrella agreement. having a ceiling of EUR 35 million 
and war obtained jointly by the Romanian rubridiaries. The facility is divided int0 two pam: 

one facility of EUR 20 million which can be wed only for RON withdrawalr o r  lor  RON and foreign currency letters of 
credit OT letters of guarantee. As at 24 May 2006, the Group ured EUR 10.4 million lor  refinancing and EUR 4.4 million 
lor  irruance of leners of guarantee. At 24 May 2006, the un-drawn facility available to the Group amounted to EUR 5.1 
million. 

a recond facility of EUR 15 million. ured in fuli lor  the repayment of previour loanr granted by the bank * 

Overdraft 2 war jointly obtained by Romanian rubridiarier from ING Bank Romania. having a ceiling of EUR I 1.4 million 

As at 24 May 2006 the Group ured EUR 7.1 million for working capital requirementr. and EUR 0.7 million for irruing 

(RON 38,400,000) and EUR 1.8 million lor  irruance of letters of guarantee. 

guaranteer lor  rupplier. 

At  24 May 2006. the un-drawn facility available to the Group amounted to EUR 4.3 miliion and EUR 1.1 million for 
irsuance of letters of guarantee. 

Overdraft 3 war joindy obtained by Romanian rubridiarier from Citibank Romania. of EUR 3.9 million (USD S miliion) 
out of which the Group wed EUR 3.89 million (USD 4.95 miliion) lor working capital requirementr. 

The short term loan from the Group’r main shareholder. Sograno BV, is unrecured, the interest rate at 3 I May 2006 
is  9% and it had the maturity date 30 June 2006. Thir loan i s  rubordinated to al1 the other liabilities of the Group. As at 30 
June 2006. Mediplur Exim har outstanding the last  instalment The fair value of the loan ar at 24 May 2006 i s  EUR 5.615 
thourand. 

15. PROVISIONS 

As a t  24 May 2006. the Group recognized in its balance sheet a part of the acquired contingent liabilitier of Mediplur 
k i m  SA and Sensiblu SRL. The change in balance a t  3 I December 2006 ar compared with 24 May 2006 is due to a translation 
effect on opening balancer. The contingent liabilitier nor recognized - due to management’s not being able to make reliable 
estimations of their impact - are dercribed in Note 25(i). 

The Group war subject to a Romanian Curtomr Authority control regarding the clarrification of certain imported goodr 
which were not considered ar nutritional rupplements and w e d  with 18%. but faxed ar exempted products. The control 
of the Romanian Customr National Authority covered the period from 2001 to 2003 and rerulted in additional curtom 
dutier. VAT, and related interest and late payments in amount of EUR 0.8 million. which is  included in the amount of EUR 
15 million. 

e 
Management is actively challenging the imporition of these charges. 

Thur the legal and fircal environment in Romania and i t s  implementation into practice can change and is subject 
to different interpretation by variour Minirtrier of the Government and their agencies that are authorired to conduct 
audits (I.controJr”) of Romanian companier. Management har therefore made provision for t~ or other liabilities in the 
financial statements where they conrider that fax or other authorities couid take diñering poritionr with regardr to the 
interpretation of these issues. 

16. LONGTERM PAYABLES 

As a t  3 I December 2006, the long term payabler of the Group to  GlaxoSmithKline SRL (GSK Group) guarantee for the 
receivable balance of EUR 1.562 thourandr of the Group, in relation with Health Inrurance House (Note 6) (EUR 1.493 ar 
a t  24 May 2006). 

Long trade payabler amortired colt war computed bared on an eñective weighted average interest rate of 5.24% p.a. ar 
a t  3 I December 2006. The fair value of long-term trade payabler ar at 3 I December 2006 and 24 May 2006 is  EUR 1.685 
thousand and EUR 1.474 thourand, rerpectively. 

17. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS A N D  OTHER LIABILITIES a 
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a t  and for the period from 24 May 2006 

(AI1 amountr are exprerred in EUR ‘000; ü n l ë r r - o t ~ e n v i r e - r t d )  

3 I December 1006 14 Mav 1006 

Trade payabler 147.779 99.454 

Amouns owing w relared p h e r  (Note 20) 9.369 13.176 

TU on pmfit 2.580 

Due to S m e  2.548 698 

Financial liabilitier 1.590 

Due to employees 1.140 826 

Interest payable 432 25 

Advancer for a l e  of land and building 

Other payabler 213 85 

165.651 114,164 

Short trade payables amortised cost war computed bared on an effective weighted average interest rate of 4.96% as at 
3 I December 2006 (24 May 2006 4.58%). 

The fair value of trade payables (including related parties) as at 3 I December 2006 and 24 May 2006 is EUR 156,960 
thourand and EUR 129.382 thourand. respectively. 

Financial instruments at  fair value through profit or loss 

The Group entered into a number of foreign currencier enhanced non-deliverable forward contracts to mitigate irs 
foreign currency exposure with trade payabler. Al1 gainr and lorres on foreign currency contracts are recognised in the 
income statement. The unrealired lorres ar at 31 December 2006 on these non-delivenble forward contracts are EUR 
1.590 thousands. 

The tabie below summarizer. by major currency. the conrractual amountr of the Group non-deliverable forward foreign 
exchange contracts ar at 31 December 2006. wirh details of the contncted exchange rater versus the RON. Foreign 
currency amounts are translated at market rater ruling at the balance sheet date. 

Enhanred fomard exchanee nter PartlciDatlon exchanee rnter Notionai amount in EUR 
~~~~ 

BUY US Dollar5 2.71 1.91 15.185 

Buy US Dollars 1.60 1.70 5.3 I 5  

Buy Euro 3.47 3.60 I 8 . W  

BUY Euro 3.40 3.50 8,OW + 

I The “Enhanced fomard rare’. represmts the rate a t  which the Group buys the notional amoum in foreign currency as 
long as the spot n t e  is below the “Participation rate”. In care rhe spot rate reaches or goes above the Participation rate. 
the Group exits the hedge. ‘.c 

18. OPERATING COSTS r.J 
c? 

24 Ma” 1006- 3 I December 1006 E, 

I 

Salatier 2nd benefits 18.684 ‘‘4 
Rent and adminiruarive expenser 8.541 

Third party services 7.606 

Adveniring and promotion 8.713 

Depreciation and amortizatiation 3.074 

Impaimenr for Cxed arses (443) 

Invenwv write off 485 

Pronsion for invencotier 648 

Penaltier and h e r  1.064 



at and for the period from 24 May 2006 

24 Mav 2006- 3 I December 2006 

Hedging IOPI 1.590 

Other expenses 719 

TOTAL 45,846 

19. FINANCIAL RESULT 
~~~ . .  

24 May 2006 - 3 I December 2006 

Fomign exchange differencer. net 2.830 

Interest income 

Interest expenre (2.698) 

Interest (expenre)/revenue financial inruumenu 909 

244 e 
Other financial expenre (503) 

182 

20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

For the purporer of these financial statemenu. partier are conridered to  be relared if one party har the ability to control 
the other party or exercire significant influence over the other party in making financial o r  operational decirionr ar defined 
by IAS 24 "Related Party Dirclosure". In considering each porsible related party relationship. attention is  directed to  the 
subrtance of the relationship, nor merely to the legal form. 

Related partier may enter into tranractions which unrelated partier might not, and tranractionr beween reiated partier 
rnay not be effected on the Same termr. conditionr and amountr as tranractionr beween unrelated partier. 

The nature of the related party relationrhipr for thore related partier with whom the Group entered into significant 
transactionr dwing the period ended 3 I December 2006 or had significant balances outrtanding at 3 I December 2006 are 
detailed below. Tranractions were entered into with related partier dwing the ordinary course of business on both normal 
and preferential commercial terrns. 

Country of 
Actbi* incorpoation Controlled by the rame ultimate rhareholderr 

Conrumer Product Network SRL Importer and diruiburor of 
(formeriy Farmactiv SRL) parapharmaceuticai pmducu 

Global Business b h a r e  SRL Software development Romania 

Romania 

Holding company of 
Olone Laboratoner SRL United Kingdom 

Ozone Laboramtier SRL Pharmaceutical manufacrurer Romania 

Orone Laboratoner Ltd 

Fleet Management Seivicer SRL car Reet maintenance Romania 

Press P m  International SRL Media promotion Romania 

Oxigen Plus SRL Oxigen produco diruibutor Romania 
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for the period from 24 May 2006 

Country of 
incorporation Controlled by the rame ultimite rhareholderr 

Miniblu SRL Baby clothing and toyr Romania 
Oatical Nerwork SRL ODtical0rcd"Cu Romania 

Actlvity 

i 

Gemira Invermem Ltd Invertment fund Cyprus 

Lauren Finance SRL Merchant card Romania 

Adkir Serv SRL Management services Romania 

Grup 3 Conmcting SRL COnStniCtiO" Romania 

Ctisral Diagnortir SRL . I  bboratory t e m  Romania 

Sograno BV The Neherlandr 

Dwing the period. h e  following tnnracrionr were carried out with related partier: 

Sales of modr nnd sewlces 24 May 2006 - 3 I December 2006 

Ozone bhratotit. SRL 2,660 

Employees 789 

Miniblu SRL I32 

Opticai Nemork SRL 141 

Conrumer Product Nerwork SRL 98 

Gemira Servicii SRL I 

3.821 

Mediplus Exim SA and Ozone Laboratories SRL have enrered into an agreement dated I January 2006, based on which 
the farmer undertook to provide the laner storage and distribution services, as wel1 ar logirtic services related KO the 
transpon and management of Ozone Laborarorier products. up to a yearly limit set out by rhe partier in the agreement. 
The agreement remains in force until 31 December 2007. The feer thar Orone Laboratorier must pay to Mediplus k i m  
SA are calculated by applying cenain percentages to the value of the Orone Laboratories finirhed productr acquired by 
Mediplus Exim SA from Ozone Laboratorier. 

On 2 Augurr 2006 Senriblu SRL and Ozone Laboratories SRL entered int0 a service agreement according fo which the 
farmer undenook to provide to rhe latter certain services for the merchandising of Orone Laboratorier producrr in I59 
of Senriblu SRL's pharmacies. The number ofthe pharmacier where these services are to be provided wil1 increare to 190 
by rhe end of 2006 and to 210 by I July 2007. The agreement is  entered int0 for a 12 month period. namely from I July * 
2006 KO I July 2007. The tariffr to be paid by Ozone Laboratorier SRL are set OUK for each type of services provided. Given "4 
the significanr package of selyices acquired. Ozone Laboratorier SRL benefits from a 17 per cent discount applied ro the 1 

El aggregate value of the purchased services. 

Purcharer of goodr and services 

Omne Laboratwier SRL 16.265: 
Ce' 

1.299.- 
i;' 

Conrumer Pmduct Network SRL 

Fleet Management SRL 328A 

Miniblu SRL 10 

Opticai Network SRL 66 

SC Ctistal Diagnortic SRL I09 

Adkir Serv SRL 27 

24 May 2006 - 31 December 2006 ! 

Senriblu Optica SRL 8 

Otherr 18 

18.130 

The goodr and services purchared are prerented net of discounts received from Ozone Laborarories SRL dwing the 
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Notes to tiie Sfatutoty Cónsolidated Financiai Statements as at and for the period from 24 May 2006 

iAll'amóihti 2 e  ëxfkssëd K E U R  '000;ü~hleis othemire-itated) 

7 months period ended 31 December 2006. The value of discounts received by the Group in the period is of EUR 3.468 
thourand. 

Saler of property. plant and equlpment 24 1006 - 31 December iaob 

Grup 3 Contncting 

Conrumer Product Network SRL 52 

Orone Labonrorier SRL 41 

Orhar 24 

. I  I17 

Purchares of proper* plant and equlpment 14 May 1006 - 31 December 2006 

Grup 3 Contracting 9.594 

Fleet Management SUL 12 

9.606 

14 Ma" 1006 -31 December 1006 

Management salrries 1,688 

Included in the management ralarier are, berider the ralarier of rhe board of the directorr. the remunention of senior 
management 

Interest related to  lonn ganted by related partier 14 May 1006 - 3 I December 1006 

I88 Interest paid to S o p n o  BV 

T h e  following balances were outstanding with related parties: 

Trade recelvables fmm related partier 3 I December 1006 14 nay iaob 
Ozone Laboratoner SRL 4.286 2.217 

Emplo)reer 1.516 M 9  

02one Labontoner Ltd 453 

Optical Network SRL I09 

Miniblu SRL I O0 I60 

Conrumer Product Network SRL 23 699 

Otharr l i  

6.487 4,177 

For the above receivable. the Company has provided the amount of EUR 1.5 million ar a t  3 I December 2006. and EUR 

432 9 e, 

0.7 million as a t  3 I May 2006. 

Other receivabler from related partier 14 May 1006 

02one Labomto6er SRL 64 20 

3 I December 1006 

Oxinen Plus SRL 60 I09 " 

Optical Netwo* SRL 40 99 

Gemira Servicii SRL 12 

Orherr 10 6 
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Consolidated Finbcial Statements ks  at and for the period from 24 May 2006 
to 31 December 2006 - " L ' . - d ' . ' d . . *  

(All-amounts Ge expréssed in EUR 'OOO;unlësiotliën%ise~stated) 

Trade payabler to  related partier 1 4  nay 1006 

Grup 3 Conuacring SRL 1.286 21 I 

31 December 2006 

Omne Laboratoder SRL 7.323 12,429 

Conrumer Product Netwok 5RL 579 I85 

Ootical Nemok SRL 74 51 

Miniblu SRL 18 43 

10 Global Burinerr Software SRL 

Ozone Laboratodes Lcd I90 

Otherr 6 9 

I .  

Ar a t  I January 2006 a contract was rigned beween Mediplur k i m  SA and Ozone Laborarorier S R L  related pany 
of the Group (Note E ) ,  related to the transfer of rhe Mediplur's outstanding receivabler balancer older than 210 dayr on 
Ozone produm. 

The contract concerns the compenration of third panier receivabler balancer towardr the Group against the Ozone 
bboratorier SRL payable balance. 

Lom from related martles 3 I December 2006 1 4  May 2006 

S O ~ r a n O  BV 5,615 

Transactions with shareholders 

Balancer fromi(due) to  rhareholderr 3 I December 1006 24 na7 1006 

To re~over fmm founding rhareholderr (Nore 9) 

Other amountr receivabld(payable) (Note 9) 548 (3) 

39 

191  
Amountr due from founding rhareholderr in respect of the price adjurunent on 
rhe shares purchared in Senriblu SRL 

N e t  amount recorelirble from rhareholderr 581 789 
P 

I 
In the parr. the founding rhareholderr arrigned to Mediplur pan of their shareholding in Senriblu. The initia1 conrideration (3 

was determined based on the founding rhareholderr' own valuation. which war rubrequently reduced bared on a valuation (f, 
from an independent conrultanL This generated a payable rowardr Mediplur which w a s  fully settled by the founding , 
shareholden in September 2006. h' 

management decirion. '*1 

The founding rhareholders have provided goods ro i t s  employees, ar benelitr in kind, in amount of EUR 767 thourand. fii 
The receivable of the Company from the founding rhareholders for the amount mentioned above were written off by the 'W 

Other amountr receivable comprire the wirhholding fax due to the state in relation with part tranractions involving 
the founding rhareholderr. 

Bared on administrator's decirion of Mediplur k i m  and Senriblu from 7 March 2007, the rhareholders have committed 
themrelver to repay the amount of EUR 548 thousands to the two companies. 

Other transactions with key management personnel 

Directors of the Company control 7% of rhe voting shares of the Group's parent company. A&D Pharma Holdings NV. 
Netherlandr. 
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at and for the period from 24 May 2006 

(AU amountr ai'e ëxprbrsed in EUR 'OOO~unlési~thë~ire'rtated) 

Directors' rernuneration 

The 4 founding rhareholderr which are Non-Execurive Directors are not remunerated for their services rendered to 
the Company. 

The remuneration of each director for [he 7 monrhr period ended 3 I December 2006 i s  set ou t  below: 

Total 
EUR EUR 

Bark ralaryl Annual performance 
fee* related bonus 
EUR EUR 

Pension 

Executlre directors I 
Dragor Dinu 
Fiorin Buligoanea 
Vivian Diaronerru 
Claudiu Opran 

111,621 
102,967 
I 11.383 
61.019 

111.611 
102.967 

Non-executlve directors 2 
David Ebnronh 
Michael Wemmr 
Urr Kamber 
Walid Abboud 
Roger Akoury 
Michel Eid 
Ludovic Roben 

72.m 
17.500 
20.m 

72.m 
17.500 
20.m 

507.490 so7.490 

N o t e  I: The Executive Directors als0 receive the ben& of n company car (the purrhare value of which is  between €45.000 and 

N o t e  2: The Non-Executive Directors were appoinred on the 9th October 26% snd the paymenrr relate to the period from thir date. 
€Ss.m). 

21. MAIN SUBSIDIARIES 

The conrolidated rubridiarier included within the Group and the degree of control exercired by A&D Pharma Holdings 
N.V. are as followr: 

%share 

24 nay country of 
lncorpoat ion 

Activi ty 3 I December Enti ty 

2006 2006 

I O0 I O0 Romania" holding company of Mediplur 
and Senriblu 

Romania A&D Pharma Holdings SRL 

I 1  Mediplur Exim SRL Import and wholerale diruiburion of 
pharmaceutical pmductr in Romania Romania I O0 I O0 

Senriblu SRL 
Retail diruibution of pharmaceutical 

productr in Romania 
Romania I O0 I O0 

Ideapharm SA ReQil diruibution of pharmaceutical 
pmducrr in Romania 

Romania I O0 

Lauren Finance SRL Romania Financial activities I O0 

In September 2006 Ideapharm SA merged with Senriblu SRL. 
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22. SEGMENT INFORMATION 

Statement o í  Income 

Wholerale Reei1 Other Elirninations Group Period fmm 24 Mal  2006 (date of 
incorporation) to 3 I December 2006 

Sak* 183,597 56.236 (27.794) 212,039 

Openting income and exparer (170. I 15) (57.636) (1,033) 27.817 (200.967) 

Segment result 13,482 (1,400) (1.033) 23 I 1.072 

operating pmflt/(los*) 13.482 (1,400) (1,033) 23 I 1,072 

Finance colts. net 647 223 (88) 782 

PmRti(losr) befoore taxation 14,129 (1,177) (1,121) 23 11,854 

Income Bx expcnrc (3.120) 49 (3.071) 

Net profltJ(lorr) foor the period I1.009 (1,128) (1,121) 23 8,783 

Ar at 1 1  December 2006 Wholerale Retall Other Eliminationr Grom -~~~ 
Segment arrets 245.810 49,175 269.832 (21.939) 542.988 

Unallocared aiiets 

Total assets 245,820 49,275 269,832 (21,939) 542,988 

Segment liabilitier 220.025 62.619 2.015 (21.708) 262.952 

Unallaated liabilities 

Total Iiabilitler 220.025 62,6 19 2,015 (21,708) 262,952 
___~  
Capital expenditure 13.253 3.104 15 16.373 

Depreciation and amortiradon (1,037) (1.980) (1) (57) (3.074) 

InclLdcd 'n operating 'ncome and expenrer are deprec'ation ana amon'sation charges in a m o m t  of EUR 3.074 thoLrandr 
out of which wholerale accomts for E L R  1.037 tho-ranar and retail segment for EUR 1.980 thourandr. 

R n l i n r r  .hert 

Wholernle Retaii Other Eliminationr Group 

'81 269~453 121.8221 443.498 

A= at 24 Mal 2006 

-4 
Total asretr 160.086 35,781 269,453 (2 1.822) 443.498 

Segment liabilitier 136.363 42.950 4.185 183.498 I 

Totai liabilltlei 136.363 42.950 4. I85 183.498 cl 

Segment arrets 160.086 35.1 

W 

rL;N 
There are material salep and other tranractionr beween the business regmenu. Segment asrets consist primarily of ~ 

propemy, plant and equipmenf inrangibie asretr. inventorier. receivabler and operating cash and invertmentr. Segment .. o liabiiitier comprire operating iiabilitier. lease liabilitier and borrowingr. Eliminationr comprise mainly inter-company .' 
-4 commercial and service transacùons. 

Primary reporting format - business segments I 

Capital expenditure compriser additionr to p r o p ~ t y .  plant and equipment and intangibies 

The recondav segmental information based on geographical area i s  not material to be dirclored as almost al1 the 
activity is carried out in Romania. 

23. EARNINGS PER SHARE 

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net profit for the year anributable to ordinary equity 
holden of the parent by the weighted average number of shares ouutanding during the year. 
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Diluted earningr per share amounu are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to  ordinary equity holders of 
the parent (aker deducung interest on the convertible preference shares) by the weighted average number of ordinary 
shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that wouid be issued on the 
conversion of ai1 the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares. 

A capitaliration which har the effect of increasing the number of shares in issue without any inflow of resources and 
further ordinary shares are issued to  exirting rhareholders for no consideration - the additional shares rhould be treated 
as having been in issue for the whole period as als0 included in the EM caiculation of al1 earlier periods. 

As at period end, basic earningr per share value are as followr: 

. I  

2006 

Net Profit 8.783 

Number of shares 200.wo.MH) 

Earningr per share (E) 0.04 

Alro, in accordance with group's accounting policier. ar a t  périod end, diluted earnings per share value are as follows: 

2006 

Net Profit 8.783 

Number of shares 2oo.wo.wo 
Earningr per share (€) 0.04 

There have been no transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares beween the reporting date and 
the date of completion of these financial statements. 

24. USE OF ESTIMATES 

The Company maker estimates and ariumptions concerning the future. The rerulting accounting estimates wiil. by 
definition. seldom equal the related actual results. The ertimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a 
materiai adjustment to  the carrying amountr of arreu and liabiiities within the next financial year are discusred below. 

( i )  Interest income ond expenses 

Interest income and expenses for financial instruments is recognired in the income statement at amortired COP using 
the effective interest rare method for receivables and payables. 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortired colt of a financial asset o r  a financial liability and 
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. 

The effective interest rare is  the rate thar exactly discounts estimated future cash paymentr or receipts through the 
expected life of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset o r  financial liability. 

The linear amortiration method used to determine the amortired COIK for both receivabie and payables represents the 
management's best ertimate for the value of the correrponding amortisation. 

(ii) Impoirment losser on receivoble 

In accordance with the internai impairment asressment methodologl. the Company reviews its receivable pordolios 
to assesr impairment on a yearly basis. in determining whether an impairment loss rhould be recorded in the income 
statement. the Company makes judgmens ar t o  whether there i s  any observable data indicating that there is objective 
evidence of impairment that har an impact on the estimated future cash flows from an individual or from entire portfolio of 
receivables. Management uses estimates bared on historica1 loss experience; in the rame time the calculation of the present 
value of future cash flows requires judgement by the management The methodology and assumptionr wed for estimating 
both the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences beween loss estimates 
and actual l os  experience 
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(iii) Carrying valoe of inventories 

The Company asserrer a t  each balance-sheet date the requirement for a provision against i t s  inventories. The Company 
user its judgement based on the expiry date ofgoods in order to estimate the level of the provision required. 

(iv) Impairment of non-financial assets 

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are nor subject to amortiration and are tested annually lor impairment. Arsets 
that are subject to amortiration are reviewed for impairment whenever events OT changes in circumsrancer indicate that 
the carrying amount may nor be recoverable. An impairment l os  is recognised lor  the amount by which the asset's carrying 
amount exceedr i t s  recoverable amount The recoverable amoynt is the higher of an asset*s fair value Iess costs to sell 
and value in ure. For the purposes of assessing impairment. assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are 
separately identifiable cash flowr (cash-generating units). 

Identification of cash generating units requirer judgment and is based on abiliry to generate independent cash inflowr. 
Both the wholerale and rerail regments are treated by the Management ar cash generating m i t s  as their operationr are 
interdependent and there are no smaller units that have the ability to generate revenues largely independent from others 
within the group. 

Goodwill is allocated at  the acquisition date before the end of the first annual reporting period. As at 31 December 
2006 management tested goodwill. brandr and licenses for impairment. Goodwill acquired through business combination. 
indefinire lived inrangibles and net book value of fixed assets have been allocated to cash generating units ar follows: 

Carrying Carrying Carrying E~~~~~ 
amount of amount of nmount of Vahe in recorenbie 

genentlng amount of indefinite phrrmncy tangible Ure amount over 
cay ing  =momt Ilved brand IiCe"le* asset* 

unit goodwill 

Cash- CW+g 

d W  

~~~ ~ 

Wholerale 195.351 16.690 222.041 338.986 116.945 

Rerail 35.3w 48.93 I 1.719 8.887 94.837 134.797 39.960 

230,65 I 48,93 I 1,719 35,511 316,818 413,783 156,905 

In determining the valuer in ure. the management uses four-year demiled free cash flow forecarts (for period 2007- 
20 10) and then rimplified free cashflow forecarts in perpetuity with a discount rare of 9.6%. using data for 2010. The value 
in ure of the cash generating units was bared on a growh factor of 2% for al1 cashflows beyond the derailed projectionr. 

Key assumptions are based on a local pharmaceutica market of EUR 1.268 million as at 3 I December 2005. 
F 

Over the four-year period. the Compound Annual Growh  Rate ("CAGR") of the total pharmaceutical marker is -..J 

t 

c3 
0 , 
h.J 

ertimated a t  19% (i.e. EUR 2.976 mil1 as at 3 I December 2010). The ADP Wholesale's CAGR is expected at 3 I% yearly. up 
to 3 I December 2010 (kom net sales of EUR 286 mil1 as at 31 December 2005 to EUR 824.3 million in 2010). 

Over the rame period. the rerail marker's CAGR is 20% (from EUR 286 mili ar at 31 December 2006 to EUR 815 
million as at 31 December 2010). The estimated ADP Retail segment CAGR of 56%. up to 31 December 2010 (from net 
raler of EUR 89.8 million as at 3 I December 2005 to EUR 370 million in 20 10). <> 

The key arrumptionr in the vdue in ure calculationr determining recoverable amounts lor the rpecific cash-generating \Ym 
units noted above are: 'li 

Wholesale segment 

For the wholerale business. the Company projects sales and gros marginr by product group based on ertimated 
marker growh dynamics and expected market shares. Management believer the arrumed improvements and marginr are 
reasonably achievable. 

Retail segment 

For the rerail business. the Company bared its forecasts on the projected future number of pharrnacies. and how 
s a k  per pharmaq are expected to evolve. Management believes the assumed improvements and marginr are rearonably 
achievable. 
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As at 3 I December 2006, management tested goodwill and brands for impairment by reference to the Entities' business 
plans drawn up for the period 2006-2010. The arsumptions and ertimates ured in the preparation of these business plans 
are,detailed above. Following these terts. management har reached the conclurion that the above-mentioned assets are not, 
impaired as a t  3 I December 2006. 

Pre-acquisition carrying amountr were determined bared on applicable IFRSr immediately before the acquisition. The 
value of assetr. liabilitier and contingent liabilitier recognired on acquirition are their ertimated fair values. 

Management i s  confident that the projections are rearonable in the context of consolidating the Ieadership position on 
the local market. 

25. CONTINGENCIES, COMMITMENTS AND OPERATING RISKS 

(i) Contingencies 

a) Toxation 

The Romanian taxation system is undergoing a process of consolidation and harmonisation with the European Union 
legislation. 

Even if the current Romanian Fiscal Code is m a n t  to create a rtable rax framework. tax legislation i s  still subject to a 
significant amount of changes and contradictory interpretationr. which may apply retroactively. 

Moreover. in practice. the tax authoritier can take an aggrersive approach and asrerr additional tax liabilitier and related 
late payment penaltier (2006 0.06% per day plus 0.5% per month of deiay) based on questionable inrerpretationr of the tax 
legislation. As a resulk, penalties and delay payment interest could r e d t  in a significant amount payable to the State. 

Contingent liabilitier may arise in relation to additional m e s  that may be impored by the tax authorities ar a rerult of 
reviews períormed. Corporate tax returns can be subject to review by rax authorities within a 5-year period. 

b) Transfer pricing 

The Romanian Fiscal legislation includes detailed regulations regarding transfer pricing between related parties and 
includer specific methods for determining transfer pricer between related prices at arm's length. 

Although transfer pricing is a relatively new issue in Romania and the authoritier have minimal experience in dealing with 
ik, continuous development of legislation indicates that the authoritier are becoming aware of itr growing imponance. 

The company entered into variour transactions with companier within the group. ar wel1 as other transactionr with 
related partier. 

Although no forma1 transfer pricing documentation i s  required under the domestic legislation. in practice the Romanian 
tax authoritier may requert rpecific documentation on a care-to-case basis. 

In light of this. if observance of arm's length principle cannot be proved. a future tax control could challenge the 
valuer of transactions beween related parties and adjurt the fircal result with additional taxable revenueslnon-deductible 
expenser (i.e. asiess additional profit tax liabiliry and related penalties). 

c) Campetition l a m  

The group har various contracts with rupplierr. which may be clarrified by Competition Council as potential prohibited 
pracricer. Should the Competition Council open an investigation on any of these contracts and decide that Prohibited 
Praaices exist. the Group and relevant suppliers may be subject to an Anti-Trust Fine for each offence. The fine may be up 
to 10% of annual turnover for the financial yearr prior to the invertigation. Management is confident that it i s  not probable 
that ruch a risk wil1 materialire, and i s  taking the necerrary mearurer to aker thore agreements ro be fully in line with 
Comperition lawr. 

d) Operoting environment 

The Romanian economy continues to display lome characteristicr of an emerging marker 
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(AI1 amountr ar6 biprerred in EUR '000;unlessót~e~~isë~stated) 

The Group's subridiaries have been involved in variour practices which may constitute violations of specific Romanian 
laws and regulations regarding the wholerale. rerail and advertising of medical products and medicarion. including of 
prescription drugs. 

These practices are common in the Romanian pharmaceutical marker and. to the Company's knowledge. in relation to 
these practices no invertigations have been undertaken or sanctions applied to date. However. if investigated and proved. 
ruch practicer may result in either the reclassification of cemin transaction from a tax standpoint or finer and other 
sanctions. The fax exposure may result into additional EUR 9.3 million profit tax. VAT and late payment interest and als0 
confircation of revenues in amount of EUR 2.9 million. 

However. the inspection performed by th,e Fircal Authoritier covering the financial periodr to 3 I December 2004, did 
nor r e d t  in any additional tax liabilities or'penaltier in connection with this matter, Although ruch amounts are porsible 
and may be material. it is the opinion of the Group's management that these amounts are either not probable. or rearonably 
dererminable. or both. 

The accompanying financial statements do nor include any provirion for ruch matters. 

e) Legal praceedings 

Dwing the period. the Group was involved in a number of court proceedings (both as a plaintiff and a defendant) 
ariring in the ordinary course of business. in the opinion of management. based on legal advice. there are no current legal 
proceedings or other claims ouutanding which could have a material effect on the result of operationr or financial position 
of the Group and which have not been accrued o r  dirclored in these consolidated financial statements. 

f l  Insurance policies 

The Group holds inrurance policies covering its office building, warehouses and inventory balancer as wel1 as insurance 
policies covering iu losses resulring from malpractice for the rerail business. The Group holds no other insurance policies 
in relation to is arsets. operationr. product liabiliry. or in respect of public liabiliry o r  orher inrurable risks. 

gJ Benefits in kind to employees 

Over time. the Group har given benefits in kind to its employees, which could be regarded as salaries by the fiscal 
authoritier and taxed accordingly. However. the inspecrion performed by the Fircal Authorities covering the financial 
periodr up to 3 I December 2004. did nor result in any additional tax liabilitier or penalties in connection with thir matter. 
Therefore. Group management considerr the risk of ruch m e s  being impored to be remote and the accompanying financial 
statements do not include any provision for ruch matters. 

( i j )  Contractual commitments F 

a) Operating lease controcis for pharmacies 

3 to 10 years. with future minimum lease payments as follows: 

21 
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The Group har operating lease contracts for pharmacier location in total amount of EUR 30.8 million. for a period from 

I 

i) Iess than I year EUR 6.6 million; ,s 

-4 
ii) between I and 5 years EUR 18.7 million; 

iii) more than 5 yearr EUR 5.5 million. 

b) Construction Agreement for Mogosoaia office building and warehouse 

Ar at 23 June 2W5. Mediplus har entered into an agreement lor the construction of an office building and a warehouse 
in the Mogoroaia village with Grup 3 Contracting (related paq).  

The agreement was further amended as a t  I March 2006 and sets out the following deadlines for the construction 
workr: (i) 3 I July 2006 lor  the warehouse. and (ii) 30 September 2006 for the office building and for completing ancillary 
outfitting works. In case of delays in carrying out the relevant construcfion workr the contractor i s  liable for penalties of 
EUR 2,500 per day of delay. 

C - 4 0  



s a t  and for the period from 24 May 2006 

(Allamiounk &è ëkpressëd in' EUR '000;unlers~othémise~s~ted) 

Although the deadlines were not achieved as a t  3 I December 2006. no penalties were perceived o r  collected. 

The value of the agreement is of EUR 10.8 million exclusive of VAT, payable by Mediplur in several instalments upon 
the acceptance of different categories of construction works. 

Ar a t  3 I December 2006. future services in an amount of approximately EUR 2.0 million rhould be rendered by Group 
3 Contracting (related party) to Mediplur related to thir agreement 

c) Controcts concluded for improvements to leased pharmacies 

The Group concluded agreements with Riga International and Grup 3 Contracting (related party) lor  improvements 
which were performed in 2006 to leared pharmacies. The total v&e of paymenrs in 2006 for improvements was in amount 
of EUR I million. 

d) Construction Agreement for warehouses in the country 

Mediplus has agreements for the construction of warehouses in Craiova with Grup 3 Contracting (related party) in 
amount of EUR 780 thourand, and in Oradea with Ecolution. in amount of EUR 594 thousand. 

Deporitr in Conrtanta and Oradea are considered to  be set up, and for the moment na constructorr were 
designated. 

(iii) Guarantees 

Ar at  31 December 2006. the Group had contingent liabilities in respect of bank and other guarantees and other 
maners ariring in the ordinary course of business from which it is anricipated that no material liabilities wil1 arise. In the 
ordinary course of business the business the Group har given guaranteer amounting to EUR 4.7 million to  third partier 
ar at 3 I December 2006 (EUR 5.7 million as at 24 May 2006). 

Ar at 31 December 2006 the Group har an agreement with HVB Bank Romania for the purpose of issuing of letters 
guarantee in amount of EUR 325,000. The unured faciliry available to  the Group as at 3 I December 2006 was EUR 
247,000. 

Ar at  31 December 2006 the Group har an agreement with ING Bank Romania for the purpose of isruing of letters 
guarantee in amount of EUR 900.000.The unused facility available to the Group as at 31 December 2006 was EUR 
384.000. 

Ar at 24 May 2006 the Group had a credit facility opened at ING Bank Romania. with a ceiling of EUR 1.8 million for 
the purpore of irsuing letters of guarantee. The unured faciliry available to the Group as at 24 May 2006 was EUR I. I 
million. 

e 
Ar at 3 I December 2006 thir facility har been cancelled 

Ar at 24 May 2006 the Group had a credit faciliry opened at HVB Bank Romania with a ceiling of EUR 20 million for both 
loan and letters of guarantee. The unused facility available to the Group as at 24 May 2006 was EUR 5.1 million. 

As a t  3 I December 2006 thir faciliry had been cancelled. 

26. FINANCIAL RISKS 

(i) Credit risk 

Financial arrets, which potentially subject thir Group to  credit risk, consist principally of trade receivables. The Group 
har policier in place 10 ensure that rales of productr and services are made to curtomers with an appropriate credit history. 
The carrying amount of accounts receivable. net of impairment adjustment, reprerenrs the maximum amount expored 10 
credit risk. 

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk other than the care of Senriblu SRL and Ideapharm SA with 
the amounts due from the Health Insurance Houses. Credit risk with respect to these receivabler is limited. since these 
amounts are primarily due from the Romanian State and hence are considered to be ultimately recoverable. Accordingly. 
management believe that the Group har no significant net credit risk wirh regardr to  such balances. e 

C-41 



". ; :- .^. .&?i 
, , :  

i 
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(Ai1 amounts are expressed in EUR '000;'unlesiöthe~ise~rtated) 

Cash is placed in financial institutions. which are considered a t  the time of deposit to have minimal risk of default. 

(ii) Foreign currency risk 

The Group impons supplier from orher European countries through is Romanian subsidiarier. which also attract 
significant foreign currency denominated borrowings. Thir exposer the Group to foreign exchange risk. 

The Group is expored to foreign currency risk on purchases and borrowings that are denominated in a currency other 
than the rerpective functional currencier of Group entitier. The currencier giving rise to thir risk are primarily Euro. U.S. 
Dollars (USD). Swirr Franc (CHF). 

The Group hedger 50 percent of al1 monthly paymentr to rupplierr denominared in Euro and USD. The Group ures 
forward exchange contracts to hedge ib foreign currency risk. The forward exchange contracts have maturities of Iers than 
one year aker the reporting date. Where necersary. the forward exchange contracts are roiled over at maturity. 

(iii) Interest rote risk 

The Group'r income and operating cash flows are impacted by changes in market interest rates since the maiority of 
interest rater on borrowingr are variable, as disclosed in Note 14. The Group har no significant interest-bearing arsetr. 

(iv) Liquidity risk 

3 I December 2006 24 nay 2006 

íEUROWOI IEUROWO) 

Arreu 

Monetary ai ie^^ in RON 160.346 I i 5,994 

Monetary arses in foreign currency 578 348 

160974 I16 342 . . . , . - . . . . ,. .. 

Liabilitier 

Monetary liabilirier in RON (I 11,225) (87. I 5  i) 

Monetarv liabilirier in fooreinn curreno (145,023) 189.2601 

1256.248ì (176.411) 

Net monetary porition in RON 49,121 28,843 

Net  monetary porition in foreign currency (I 44,445) (88,912) - 
-4 

The Group's policy on liquidity is to mainrain rufíicient Iiquid rerources to meet the obligations ar they fall due; I 

however. due to the Group's current financing rtructure. there is a significant risk that the Group wil1 encounter liquidity ,T, 
i 
Lc problemr in the forereeable future. 

27. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS I,' 
,3 

In January 2007, following rhe discussions between the Drugs Distribution Arsociation. orher arsociations and the '*i 

Recovery of debts from Romanian Ministry of Health 
<?i - 

Ministry of Health. a law bil1 regarding the acceprance and the payment method of the debts related to raler exceeding the 
rettled ceilingr for pharmacies. was proposed to Parliament for debate and approval. 

The Company har receivabler not recognised as a consequence of ceiling exceeds in amount of EUR 900 thousand. No 
provision war recognired. 

CITIBANK Loan - utilization requests 

thourand. 
Ar a t  30 April 2007 the amount withdrawn by the Group from Facility A. Facility Band Facility 83 is of EUR 76,329 



, ~~~ ---"% - 

as at and for the period from 14 May 2006 

CITIBANK Loan - rnortgage 

As part of the loan agreement. the Group har agreed with Citibank to conclude an addendum to the mortgage contract 
for Mogosoaia building dwing the week 14-16 May 2007. 

Land sale 

In January 2007 the Group sold a land in Constanta County having the GBV of EUR 197 thourand. obtaining proceeds 
in amount of EUR 475 thourand. 

28. REVERSE AQUISITION . .  
IFRS does nat prercribe an accounting treatment for common control business combinations and therefare i t  is 

management's decision to determine the appropriate accounting treatment to be appiied. IFRIC decided nor to prercribe 
precise treatments for ai1 possible situations in this area only because there is too much diversiry in practice and judgment 
wil1 always remain. 

According to IAS 8.10 "Accounting policier. Changes in accounting ertimates and errors" in the absence of a Srandard 
or an Interpretation that specifically applier t o a  transaction, management shall ure ie judgment in developing and applying 
an accounting policy that results in information thar is relevant to the economic decision-making needs of users. 

The management of the Company assessed inter alia that A&D Pharma Holdings NV. (new "Company"). could be 
regarded as the acquirer if it is considered that the restructuring was linked to another future transaction. a future Initia1 
Public Offering (IPO). 

In these circumstancer. given the rubrtance of the transaction. the purchare method of accounting wil1 provide uren 
of the financial statements with more relevant information than an approach in which only one of the pre-exirting entiries 
is presented a t  fair value and the other one a t  book value as recommended by IFRS 3.22 under the reverse acquisition 
method. The Management of the Company har made this selection. considering al1 the pertinent facu  and circumstances: 

* It i s  more usefui for future investors to apply an accounting method which would rerult in fair values being attributed 
to the arrerr. liabilitier and contingent liabilitier of the exirting businesses. and the recognition of goodwill, relating 
to alt of those burinerrer. The ure of book value for the mort important segment - wholesale and fair value for the 
smallest segment- retail would impair the usefulnerr of the information provided to urerr about the combination both 
comparability and reliability; 

IFRS 3 scopes out common control transactions and did not issue any guidance to prescribe or ban the method applied 
in this case; 

- The accounting policy choren did not mirinform the public; the difference beween reverse acquisition and frerh star t  
accounung is an adjustment between goodwill and premium reserve. The value of the goodwill is terted yearly for 
impairment and any excess over the recoverable amount is recognised as an expense in the profit and l os  account. 
The nature of the business strongly encourager the use of fair value for both burinerrer. 

The w o  operating subsidiaries are in the pharmaceutical industry - wholesale and retail distribution. While the retail 
distribution. the smaller business i s  accounted at  fair value, i.e. 60 million EUR. the wholesale business would nor be 
allowed because. according to IFRS 3.22, it is considered the acquirer and rhouid be accounted in the consolidation at 
book value. 

If the Group had accounted for the business combination as reverre acquisition. the following adjustmentr would have 

* 

been made to the financial information (other items nor being affected): 

31 December 1006 31 December 2006 Adjurtmen~r 
reverre acquis*ion arprerented 

EUR million EUR million EUR mlllion 

ASSETS 

Non ~urnent assets 

Gcodwill 55 283 (228) 
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(Ai1 am-ounts are Gipresred iri EUR'000;unlerrothémise-s~ted) 

3 I December 2006 3 I December 2006 
revene acquiritkm arprerented Adjurtmentr 

Shareholderr' Equlty 

Share capital I I 200 (189) 

Reverre acquirition premium 59 59 

Share premium 59 (59) 

Shareholder'r convibution 3 3 

Tranrlrtion reserve 7 12 (5) 

Rstained earnings 34 9 25 

Total shareholden' equity I I 4  280 (166) 

Non-current llabilltler 

Pmvisionr 6 i 5  (9 )  

If die Group had accounted for rhe business combination under reverre acquisition. cornpantive inforrnation for 2005 
presenred in these consolidated financial statements would be rhat of Mediplus only: 

2005 Mediplus 2006 
Conrolidated conrolidated Adjurtments 

BI orerenred only Reverre Acquirition 

EUR mllllon EUR mlliion EUR mllllon EUR mlliion 

S a k s  332 212 I20 205 

ODeratina COIts (309) (20 I ) (W (187) 

Openting pmflt 23 II 12 I 8  

Flnancial result (2) I (3) (4) 

Proflt before taxatlon 21 I 2  9 I 4  

8 Il-4 
Proflt for the year 17 9 

I 
Comparative cash flow statements under reverse acquisition (2 

.~ 
I 

2005 
Mediplus only 

2006 
2006 

Conrolldated 
Reverre 

Acquirition 
a EUR million EUR milllon EUR miliion EUR mlllion. , 

conrolidated Adjurtmentr 
ar prerented ,%X\ 

29 46 (17) I equivalent* 

Cash and cash equivaients at beginning of the p a r  ( 1  1) (29) 18 (12) 

Net increare I (decreare) In cash and cash 
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at and for the  period from 24 May 2006 

préireil'in'EUR'000; unleisothët+ise-stated) 

The management considerr rhar accounting for rhe business combinarion under [he reverre acquisition merhod would 
impair [he comparability of the financial porition. performance and cash flow of the entity. Following the restrucruring of 
the former ADP Antilles group, ADP NV har preserved the Same operaring rrrunure and such compararives would not 
reprerent faithfully rhe financial porition. performance and cash Rowr of the entity over [he period. 

3 August 2007 

The Board: 

Dr. David Ebrworth 

Urs Kamber 

Michael Wemms 

Walid Abboud 

Roger Akoury 

Michel Eid 

Ludovic Roberr 

Dragor Dinu 

Florin Buligoanea 

Vivian Diaconercu 

Claudiu Opran 
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OTH ER IN FORMATION 

1. AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To: A&D Phormo Holdings N.V. 

Report on the financial statements 

We have audited the accompanying rtatutory financial statements 2006 of A&D Pharma Holdings N.V.. Delft. included 
in Section C (page C I to C45) of this annual report and.accountants 2006. The statutory financial statements consist of the 
conrolidated financial statements and the company financial statements. The conrolidated financial statements comprise the 
consolidated balance sheet as at 3 I December 2006, the statement of income. statement of changes in equity and cashflow 
statement for the period from 24 May 2006 (date of incorporation) to 31 December 2006. and a rummary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory notes. The company financial statements comprise the company balance sheet 
as a t  31 December 2006. the company statement of income for the period from 24 May 2006 (date of incorporation) to  
3 I December 2006 and rhe notes. 

Management's responsibility 

Management i s  responsible lor  the preparation and fair presentation of the rtatutory financial statements in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting Srandardr ar adopted by the European Union and with Part 9 of Book 2 of the 
Netherlandr Civil Code. and for the preparation of the management board report in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of 
the Netherlandr Civil Code. This rerponribiiity includer: designing. implementing and maintaining internal control relevant 
to the preparation and fair prerentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatemenf whether 
due to fraud or error; relecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are 
reasonable in rhe circumstances. 

Auditor's responsibility 

Our responribility i s  to expres an opinion on the sratutory financiai statements bared on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with Dutch law. This law requirer that we comply with ethica1 requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain rearanable arrurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involver performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclorurer in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment. including the assersment of the rirkr of material 
missratement of the financial statements. whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk asseismentr. the auditor 

k a  
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order 10 
design audit procedures that  are appropriate in the circumrrancer. but not for the purpose of exprerring an opinion on the 
elíecùveness of the entity's internal control. An audit als0 includer evaluating the appropriatenerr of accounting policier j4 

used and the rearonableness of accounting ertimates made by management. as wel1 as evaiuating the overall presentation 
of the financial statements. 

' 
Q 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufiìcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 1 

opinion. u 

Opinion with respect to the statutory consolidated finonciol stotemenh 

'4 
In our opinion. the rtatutory conrolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial porition of A&D 

Pharma Holdings N.V. ar a t  3 I December 2006, and of its result and its cash flowr for the period from 24 May 2006 (date 
of incorporation) to 31 December 2006 in accordance with International Financiai Reporting Standardr as adopted by the 
European Union and with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Netherlands Civil Code. 

Opinion with respect to the stotutory compony finonciol statements 

In OW opinion. the company rtatutory financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial porition of A&D 
Pharma Holdings N.V. as a t  3 I December 2006. and of i t s  r e d t  for the period from 24 May 2006 (date of incorporation) 
ro 3 I December 2006 in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Nerherlandr Civii Code. 
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Report o n  other legal and regulatory requirements 

Purruant to the legal requirement under 2 3 9 3  sub 5 part e of the Netherlands Civil Code, we report. to the extent 
of our competence, that the management board report from page I to 72 i s  consistent with the financial statements ar 
required by 2391 sub 4 of the Netherlands Civil Code. 

Utrecht, August 3,2007 

(for and on behalf ar) 

BDO CamprObers Audit & Asrurance B.V. 
w.g. H. Kroeze RA . .  

O 
2. ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION PROVISIONS GOVERNING THE APPROPRIATION OF PROFIT 

The ralient points of Article 22 of the Articler of Asrociation governing the appropriation of profit are: 

The General Meeting rhall determine which parr of the profits earned in a financial year shall be added to the reserves 

Dirtributionr ca" only take place up to the amount of the distributable part of the net assetr. 

Dirtribution of profitr rhall take place after the adoption of the Annual Accounts from which it appearr it is approved. 

and the allocation of the remaining profiu. 

3. PROPOSAL FOR DISTRIBUTION OF PROFIT 

The foregoing in conjunction with article 23.2.c of the Articler of Arrociation conrtituter that the General Meeting 
is authorired to adopt the rerervation and dividend policy. For the Annual General Meeting of Shareholderr of 21 June 
2007, the Board of Directors propored to the General Meeting to adopt a policy which mandater the Board of Directorr 
to rubmit a rerervation proposal to the GM each year and to determine that in principal the net profit of the Company 
decreared with the amount of ruch rerewation as determined by the Board of Directors wil1 be available lor  dirtribution 
of a dividend to the rhareholderr in order to  make a meaningful part of the annual net operating rerultr of the activitier of 
the Company and iu gmup available to  the rhareholderr each year. In addition. the rerervation and dividend policy wil1 be 
rcheduled lor  dircurrion with the rhareholderr each year. The resolution regarding rerervation and dividend policy if the 
Company was duly parred at the General Meeting held on 21 June 2007. 

In anticipation of the adoption of a rerervation and dividend policy by the GM in accordance with this proporal and in 
view of the ratirfactory rerultr of the Company'r group in 2006 as explained in this Annual Report. the Board of Directors 
propored to the General Meeting held on 21 June 2007 to resolve to make a dividend distribution out of the net profit 
for the year 2006 under article 22. I of the Articler of Arrociation in an aggregate amount of EUR 3,565,600, equaling EUR 
0.017828 per share and payable as of 3 July 2007. In the opinion of the Board thir proporal is in line with the spirit of 
propored rerervation and dividend policy and the intention of the Company to make a meaningful part of the annual net 
operating resultr of the activitier of the Company and its group available to the shareholderr each year. 

It war initially intended that thir dividend distribution would be an end of year dividend payment out of the net profit 
for the year 2006 under articie 22.1 of the Articler of Asrociation and to add the remainder of the net profit in the amount 
of EUR 5.198.000 to retained earnings. In light of the eventr outlined in the introduction of the revired Annual Report, 
the annual accounts could not be adopted at the AGM on 21 June 2007 and therefore thir dividend proposal could not be 
put to  a vote at that AGM. However. the Company continued to propore a resolution at the AGM held on 21 June 2007 
relating to the dividend announced on 24 May 2007. Thir dividend was propored ar an interim dividend under articie 22.4 
of the Articler of Arrociation (the payment. ex-dividend and record dates remaining ar announced on 24 May 2007). It was 
the Board's opinion that ruch dirtribution war porrible with due obrervance of the provirionr ofthe Articler of Arrociation 
and Dutch law. 

Theabove mentioned rerolution regardinginterim dividend dirtribution proporal has been duly parred.The rhareholders 
received an interim dividend dirtribution on 3 July 2007 in the amount of the initialy announced end of year dividend for 
2006. The ex-dividend date lor  the London Stock Exchange lirted Global Deporirary Receiptr in the Company war 25 June 
2007 and the record date 27 June 2007. Therefore. the Board proposed to the AGM that at the further Extraordinary 
General Meeting of rhareholderr, yet t o  be convened. to rerolve not to make any dividend dirtribution out of the net profit 
lor  2006 and to add the net profit to the reserved earningr in full. 
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